Agency Mission: To assure the citizens of Kansas safe and competent practice by nurses and mental health technicians.

Kansas State Board of Nursing
Landon State Office Building, Room 509
Continuing Nurse Education & IV Therapy Committee Agenda

March 21, 2023

NOTE: The audience may attend in person or via Zoom. Link to access meeting to follow

Time:

Committee Members:

Staff:

II.

II1.

IV.

VL

VIL

VIIL

agenda.

12:30 p.m. — 2:00 p.m.

Lori Owen, LPN

Geovannie Gone, Public Member

Melanie Burnett, MSN, RN
Karen Aufdemberge, RN, BSN
Teresa Sanderson, RN

Andrea Watson, RN, BSN, OCN, CCRP, Chair
Julianna Rieschick, RN, MSN, NEA-BC, V-Chair

Carol Moreland, MSN, RN — Executive Administrator

Michelle Brown — Senior Administrative Assistant

Call to Order

Review of On-Site Packet
Additions/Revisions to the Agenda
Announcements

Approval of Minutes — December 13, 2022

Unfinished Business
1. Update on CNE Regulations
2. Update on CE Broker

New Business
1. TOA Statistical Report
2. LTP 5-Year Renewals
a. Accredo Health, Inc LT0223-0538
b. Republic County Hospital LT0057-0338
3. Initial LTP Application
a. Kansas Heart Hospital
b. Sarah E. Jorgensen
4. 5-Year Legislative Review
a. K.S.A.65-1119 — Nursing school accreditation
b. K.S.A. 60-16-102 — Scope of Practice

Agenda for June 2023 Committee meeting

CNE/IV Therapy 1



IX.  Adjourn

Please note: Additional items which have come to the attention of the Board or Committee will be handled as time
permits. Agenda is subject to change based upon items to come before the Board. Handouts or copies of materials
brought to the Board or Committee for discussion by Committee Members or visitors must be submitted to staff 30
calendar days prior to start of the meeting. Any items received after the 30™ calendar day may be addressed at the
meeting at the discretion of the President of the Board or Chairperson of the Committee.

Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84634673508?pwd=M WNITINublpCRFhGbWVENndQSHczUT09
Passcode: KsbnCEComm
Or One tap mobile :

US: +12532050468,,84634673508#,,,,*4680027625# or +12532158782,,846346735084#,,,,4680027625#
Or Telephone:

Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

US: +1 253 205 0468 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 669 444 9171 or +1 669 900 6833 or +1 719 359
4580 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 305 224 1968 or +1 309 205 3325 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 360 209 5623 or +1 386 347
5053 or +1 507 473 4847 or +1 564 217 2000 or +1 646 876 9923 or +1 646 931 3860 or +1 689 278 1000
Webinar ID: 846 3467 3508
Passcode: 4680027625

International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdrBiz9hxU

CNE/IV Therapy 2


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84634673508?pwd=MWNITlNublpCRFhGbWVENndQSHczUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdrBiz9hxU

PAGE LEFT
BLANK
INTENTIONALLY



PAGE LEFT
BLANK
INTENTIONALLY



PAGE LEFT
BLANK
INTENTIONALLY



Nov. 2022

Dec. 2022

T10As
Received: 74
Approved: 62
Denied: 12
Pending: 0

LTP Applications
Received: 4
Approved: 3
Denied: 0
Pending: 1

SP Applications
Received: 1
Approved: 1
Denied: 0
Pending: 0

IVT Providership
Applications
Received: 0
Approved: 0
Denied: 0
Pending: 0

I0As
Received: 64
Approved: 51
Denied: 13
Pending: 0

LTP Applications
Received: 1
Approved: 0
Denied: 0
Pending: 1

SP Applications
Received: 3
Approved: 3
Denied:
Pending:

IVT Providership
Applications
Received:
Approved:
Denied: 0
Pending: 0

2022 Total
I10As
Received: 927
Approved: 758
Denied: 169
Pending: 0O

LTP Applications
Received: 42
Approved:
Denied: 1
Pending: 0

SP Applications
Received: 13
Approved: 13
Denied: 0
Pending: 0

IVT Providership
Applications
Received: 1
Approved: 1
Denied: 0
Pending: 0

CNE/IV Therapy 6




Long Term CNE Provider Checklist
(K.AR. 60-9-107)

Name of Provider: Accredo Health, Inc. LT0223-0538
Name of Program Coordinator: Maureen McCullough, MSN, RN
Date Received: 2/9/23

Date to CNE Committee: March 2023

_____Approved

Not Approved:

Date Notified:

Information Required Received

NA

Completed application for initial approval or five-year renewal
for LT CNE providership shall be submitted at least 60 days X
before a scheduled board meeting

The name and address of the organization on the application X

The name and address of the department or unit within the
organization responsible for approving CNE, if different from
the name and address of the organization

The name, education and experience of the program coordinator Maureen
responsible for CNE McCullough
e Be a licensed professional nurse X
¢ Have three years of clinical experience X
e Have one year of experience in developing and
implementing nursing education X
e Have a baccalaureate degree (unless held this position
for the provider at least five years immediately prior to X

January 1, 1977)
Policies & Procedures:
Written policies and procedures, including at least the following
areas;
e  Assessing the need and planning for CNE activities

¢ Fee assessment

e Advertisements or offering announcements.
Published information shall contain the following
statement: “(name of provider) is approved as a
provider of continuing nursing education by the X
Kansas State Board of Nursing. This course offering
is approved for contact hours applicable for APRN,
RN, or LPN relicensure. Kansas State Board of
Nursing provider number: ”?

o Notice of change of coordinator or required policies
and procedures. The program coordinator shall notify X
the board in writing of any change of the individual

1

CNE/IV Therapy 7




s
§
i
:
1
]

responsible for the providership or required policies
and procedures within 30 days

For long term providers, the policies and procedures for the |

offering approval process shall include the following:

A summary of the planning

The behavioral objectives

The content, which shall meet the definition of CNE in
KSA 65-1117

The instructor’s education and  experience,
documenting knowledge and expertise in the content
area

A current bibliography that is reflective of the offering
content. The bibliography shall include books
published within the past 10 years, periodicals
published within the past five years, or both

An offering evaluation that includes each participant’s
assessment of the following:

»  The achievement of each objective

»  The expertise of each individual presenter

An approved provider may award any of the following:

Contact hours as documented on an offering agenda
for the actual time attending, including partial credit
for one or more contact hours

Credit for fractions of hours over 30 mins to be
computed towards a contact hour

Instructor credit, which shall be twice the length of the
first-time presentation of an approved offering,
excluding an standardized, prepared curriculum

Independent study credit that is based on the time
required to complete the offering, as documented by
the provider’s pilot test results

Clinical hours

Documentation of Attendance

Each provider shall maintain documentation to verify that each |
participant attended the offering. The provider shall require |
each participant to sign a daily roster, which shall contain the |

following information:

The provider’s name, address, provider number, and
coordinator

The date and title of the offering, and the presenter or
presenters

The participant’s name and license number and the
number of contact hours awarded

Each provider shall maintain documentation to verify |
completion of each independent study offering, if applicable. |

To verify completion of an independent study offering, the

provider shall maintain documentation that includes the |

following:

The provider’s name, address, provider number, and
coordinator

CNE/IV Therapy 8




o  The participant’s name and license number, and the
number of contact hours awarded

o  The title of the offering

e  The date on which the offering was completed

o FEither the completion of a posttest or a return
demonstration

Certificate of Attendance/CE Transcript

A certificate of attendance shall be awarded to each participant
after completion of an offering, or a CE transcript shall be
provided according to the policies and procedures of the long-

it

term provider X
Each certificate and each CE transcript shall be complete
before distribution to the participant X

Each certificate and each CE transcript shall contain the |

following information:

¢ The provider’s name, address and provider number X
o  The title of the offering X
o The date or dates of attendance or completion
X
e The number of contact hours awarded and, if
applicable, the designation of any independent study X
or instructor contact hours awarded
e The signature of the individual responsible for the
providership X

¢ The name and license number of the participant

Recordkeeping & Storage

For each offering, the approved provider shall retain the

following for two years:

e A summary of the planning

e A copy of the offering announcement or brochure

o  The title and objectives

e The offering agenda or, for independent study, pilot
test results

o A bibliography

o A summary of the participants’ evaluations

¢  Each instructor’s education and experiences

e Documentation to verify completion of the offering

The record storage system used shall ensure confidentiality and
easy retrieval of records by authorized individuals

Program Evaluation Plan

For long-term providers, a copy of the total program evaluation
lan '

Two Proposed Offerings

The provider shall submit two proposed offerings, including the
following:

DD | | 3¢

CNE/IV Therapy 9




e A summary of planning

e A copy of the offering announcement or brochure

e The title and behavioral objectives

o The offering agenda or, for independent study, pilot
test results

e Each instructor’s education and experience

e A current bibliography

e  The offering evaluation form
12/2018

2/15/23 Application reviewed and checklist completed by Carol Moreland, MSN, RN

CNE/IV Therapy 10




BuddyData.com - Secure Site https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

- 1of7

www.buddydata.com
RECEIVED
By KSBN Education pépartment at 2:35 pm, Feb 09, 2023
:: www.ksbn.org :: back to forms index printable version

~ private and confidential decrypted data ~
Reference No.: 25352 Date submitted: Feb 9 13:44 2023

18 files were uploaded with this form: 23 AHI 2021-2022 Total Program Evaluation
Final.doc.pdf, 24 (443)) Myasthenia Gravis a_f.pdf, 25 (448) AMD and DME a_f.pdf, 7
(443) MG Brochure Live 2022.pdf, 6_17 CE Fee Pymt_Assessment_Reimbursement
Policy.pdf, 2. 26 AHI CE Administrator Qualifications and Responsibilities.pdf, 3_1
Continuing_Education Process.doc.pdf, 22_26 AHI CE Administrator Qualifications and
Responsibilities (3).pdf, 21 5 AHI Record Retention Policy.doc.pdf, 20 (448) AMD and
DME Certificate.pdf, 19 18 Ind Learning_and CE Requirements.doc.pdf, 17_45 CE
Evaluation Outcome Summary.pdf, 9 (443) MG CE Approval 091222 .pdf, 11 16 Post
Presentation Process.doc.pdf, 12 4 Ind Learning _Contact Hours Determination via
Pilot Test.pdf, 15a (443) MG Attendance Roster RN.pdf, 15b (443) MG

Pre Posttest Eval Participant Info.pdf, 16 43 AHI CE Series Process Via WebEx.pdf

..............................................................................................................................................................................

www.ksbn.org

radio ~ Renewal

Providername ~ Accredo Health, Incorporated (AHI)

providernum ~ L T0223-0538

legalbody ~ ~

address ~ 11411 Strang Line Rd

adress2 ~ Lenexa, KS 66215

telephone ~ 816-200-1206

email ~ maureen.mccullough@accredohealth.com

coordinator ~ Maureen McCullough, MSN, RN

date ~ 02-09-2023

planningce ~ The Accredo Health, Incorporated Continuing Education
Advisory Committee directs the Continuing Education Program
activities. Continuing Education Program Coordinator, with cooperation
from the entire committee, leads and coordinates activity planning,
development, implementation, and evaluation.

The advisory committee consists of representation from the following:

[®lContinuing Education Program Coordinator meeting the following
requirements:

oLicensed to practice nursing; Have three years of clinical experience;
Have one year of experience developing and implementing nursing
education; Have a baccalaureate degree in nursing

Attachment 2: CE 26 Continuing Education Program Coordinator
Qualifications and Responsibilities

CNE/IV Therapy 11
2/9/2023, 2:26 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

2of7

[#laccredo Director and Clinical Practice Lead - Specialty Pharmacy;
Accredo Director, Specialty Clinical Product - Primary Therapies;
Accredo Director of Clinical Resources — Nursing

[@lSenior Clinical Consultants; Representatives from various target
groups appointed as required

The Accredo Continuing Education Program Advisory Committee meets
as needed, but no less than quarterly to plan, develop, review, and
evaluate the program activities as appropriate.

Accredo Health, Incorporated Continuing Education Program Advisory

| Committee Objectives:

[ElFoster professional nurse education in a planned and systematic
manner; Identify needed education; Approve course offerings; Approve
individual instructors based on defined criteria; Assess compliance with
the Kansas State Board of Nursing and Accredo Continuing Education
Program processes and services in order to evaluate appropriateness
and effectiveness of educational offerings to ultimately improve patient
outcomes; Assure records are maintained in a confidential and secure
manner; Analyze aggregate data from various sources to improve
performance; Acknowledge complaints regarding educational offerings
within 72 hours with written notification. Review complaints within 10
business days,and notify with a written response of resolution. Note:
We have not received any to date.

Need Assessment and Planning Continuing Nursing Education:

The Continuing Education Program Advisory Committee assesses the
need for a continuing nursing education offering by:

[ENew or updated information on therapies, medications, or disease
states of interest to AHI clinicians and clients; Formal needs
assessment - identified specific clinical or practice knowledge gaps;
Areas identified as high-risk, high-volume, high-cost, or problem
prone; Formal recommendations from the Performance Improvement
Committee; Informal suggestions from AHI clinicians requesting
education in a specified area.

Attachment 3: CE 1-03 Continuing Education Process 1.2 Faculty
Planning (3) CE Committee oversight

feeassessment ~ Process for fee assessment:

INo fee will be assessed for continuing education offerings for
employees of Accredo Health, Inc. and agencies contracted with
Accredo Health, Inc.

|No fees are being assessed for continuing education offerings
presented to healthcare providers not employed by Accredo Health,
Inc.

Attachment 6: CE 17 Continuing Education Fee Payment, Assessment,
and Reimbursement Process 1.3 Fee Assessment Process

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 12

2/9/2023, 2:26 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

30f7

advertisement ~ The following may be utilized to announce course
offerings:

oExternal CE - We create and maintain an internal course list we share
with our internal clinical operations partners and account managers.
The account manager communicates with external clients verbally or
by email that Continuing Education courses are available when
education need is verbalized by the client.

olnternal CE - Internal Email

[elPublished announcements shall contain the following statement:
“Accredo Health, Inc. Is approved as a provider of continuing nursing
education by the Kansas State Board of Nursing. This course offering is
approved for contact hours applicable for APRN, RN, or LPN
relicensure. Kansas State Board of Nursing Provider Number
LT0223-0538.

Attachment 7: (443) Myasthenia Gravis (MG) Brochure p. 2

approvalprocess ~ The Continuing Education Committee will approve
continuing nursing education offerings with content which meets the
definition of CNE in KSA 65-117: “Continuing nursing education means
learning experiences intended to build upon the educational and
experimental bases of the registered professional and licensed practical
nurse for the enhancement of practice, education, administration,
research, or theory development to the end of improving the health of
the public.” Approval will be noted by signature of the Continuing
Education Program Coordinator. Documentation will be kept on file in
Continuing Education limited access files for no less than 7 years.
Approval will also be documented in the AHI CE database.

For each continuing nursing education offering, the following are
required:

[lA summary of planning of the continuing nursing education offering
[6IThe behavioral objectives: meaning the intended outcome of
instruction stated as measurable learner behaviors

[lContent meets definition of CNE in KSA 65-1117(a)

[#The instructors’ education and experience, documenting knowledge
and expertise in the content area

[#]A current bibliography that is reflective of the offering content. The
bibliography will include books published within the past ten years and
periodicals published within the past five years, or both. Books and
articles outside of those timeframes may be included if they have
historical significance. Explanation will be included.

[#lan offering evaluation that includes each participant’s assessment of
the achievement of each objective, and the expertise of individual
presenters.

Attachment 3: CE 1 Continuing Education Process - 2.1 Course
Approval Process

Attachment 9: CE Review and Approval (447) Age-related Macular

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 13

2/9/2023, 2:26 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

4 of7

Degeneration and Diabetic Macular Edema: Overview and Treatment
Options

contacthours ~ Contact hours will be awarded to those meeting all
course requirements

sincluded in the course announcement, course presentation slides and
handout, and

eprovided orally by the presenter at the beginning of the activity.

Requirements per discipline example (i.e. verifying participation and
successful offering.completion):

eNurses must complete the attendance roster, including their license
number(s) and signature; and complete a posttest, and course
evaluation to receive course credit.

ePharmacists must complete the attendance roster, including their
NABP e-profile ID and date of birth (MMDD), a posttest, and submit a
course evaluation to receive a statement of credit.

eCase managers must complete the attendance roster, a posttest, and
course evaluation to receive course credit.

[RICNE credits and fractions of credits will be calculated as follows:
01.0 contact hours = 50 minutes

ol.1 contact hours = 55 minutes

01.2 contact hours = 60 minutes

00.1 contact hours added for each additional 5-minute increment
[{lcontact hours for presentations will be awarded for actual time
attended

2l ate arrival / early departure policy:

oNo credit will be given for CNE offerings in the event of late arrival or
early departures

lIinstructor credit shall be two contact hours for each contact hour of
first-time presentation of an approved offering

Attachment 3: CE 1 Continuing Education Process - 1.3 Activity
development - (9) Contact Hours

Attachment 11: CE 16 Post Presentation Process - Assignment of
Contact Hours

Attachment 12: CE 4 Independent Learning Contact Hour
Determination via Pilot Test

verifycompletion ~ [BIDocumentation to verify each participant
attended offering on site:

oParticipants will sign an attendance roster

oParticipants signature will be required following lunch for all day
courses to verify attendance of entire course

oThe attendance roster shall contain the following:

[#lProvider’s name

[#lProvider’s address

lProvider number

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 14

2/9/2023, 2:26 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

50f7

[ElProgram coordinator

[#IDate and title of offering

[#lPresenter(s)

Participant’s name and license number

EINumber of contact hours awarded

oPartial credit will not be given, as previously explained in late arrival /
early departure policy

Attachment 13: CE 27 Verification of Satisfactory Continuing Education
Activity Completion

Attachment 11: CE 16 Post Presentation Process (CE 16-03)
Attachment 15a: (443) Myasthenia Gravis (MG) attendance roster -
live

Attachment 15b: (443) Myasthenia Gravis (MG) attendance roster
distance learning format

[tlDocumentation to verify each participant attended offering via
WebEXx:

oParticipants will complete a pretest and register via Survey Monkey
oContinuing Education Specialist (CES) will provide WebEx access
information to participant via Outlook from information participant gave
in Survey Monkey

oParticipants will complete posttest and evaluation, and provide name,
license number(s) and state(s) of licensure in Survey Monkey after the
WebEx presentation. Note: Participant enters Survey Monkey by exiting
WebEX.

oWebEx attendee report documents arrival, departure, and return
times (if applicable). Participants must attend the entire presentation
to receive continuing education credit.

oThe attendance roster shall contain the following:

[ElProvider’s name

ElProvider’s address

=lprovider number

Program coordinator

ElDate and title of offering

ElPresenter(s)

[Elparticipant’s name and license number

[#EINumber of contact hours awarded

oPartial credit will not be given, as previously explained in late arrival /
early departure policy

Attachment 16: CE 43 CE Series Process

Attachment 17: CE 45 CE Evaluation Outcome Summary

Attachment 11: CE 16 Post Presentation Process (CE 16-03)
tlDocumentation to verify completion of independent study offering:
oParticipants will sign an attendance roster containing required
information mentioned above

oParticipants will complete a posttest with a passing grade or perform a
return demonstration

Attachment 19: CE 18 Independent Learning Continuing Education
Requirements CE 18-01

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 15

2/9/2023, 2:26 PM



BuddyData.com - Secure Site

6of7

[elCertificates

oCertificates of attendance will be awarded to each participant after
completing an offering

oEach certificate will be complete before distribution to participants
oEach certificate will contain the following:

[#lProvider’s name, address, and provider number

[sloffering title

#IDate(s) of attendance

s[Number of contact hours awarded

®JIf applicable, the designation of any independent study or instructor
contact hours awarded

®lSignature of Continuing Education Program Coordinator

eSignature may either be by signature stamp. Stamp will be kept in
locked file cabinet. Access to key will be limited to the Continuing
Education Program Coordinator and Continuing Education Administrator
eSignature generated by CE Database when certificate is created. Only
CEA and CES are able to access database.

[#lParticipant name and license number

Attachment 20: Sample Certificate

recordkeeping ~ For each offering, Accredo Health, Inc. will retain
the following in electronic format, or as hardcopy as appropriate, for a
minimum of two years:

oSummary of planning

oAnnouncement / brochure

oTitle and objectives

oAgenda

oPilot Test results for self-study courses

oBibliography

oParticipant evaluation summaries (Note: evaluation information has
been added to Survey Monkey. We are able to run reports using various
filters to summarize evaluation results; e.g. by session, by course, by
presenter

oEach instructor’s education and experience

oDocumentation to verify offering completion — signed hardcopy roster
or electronic roster, including license numbers, and contact hours
awarded

oAlphabetized list of participant names

Records will be kept at Accredo Health, Inc. - 11411 Strang Line Road,
Lenexa, KS 66215 in locked file cabinets. The Continuing Education
Program Coordinator and the Continuing Education Administrator will
have access to the key assuring confidentiality and easy record
retrieval.

Attachment 21: CE 5 Record Retention and Material Maintenance (CE
05-01)

noticeofchange ~ The Continuing Education Program Coordinator will
notify the board in writing of any change of the individual responsible

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 16

2/9/2023, 2:26 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

7 of 7

for the providership or required policies and procedures within 30 days.

Attachment 22: CE 26 Administrative Change (CE 26-1.2.2)

programevaluation ~ A total program evaluation will be completed
no less than annually by the Continuing Education Committee using a
systematic process to analyze the overall continuing nursing education
program outcomes in order to make subsequent decisions. The
evaluation will provide a process for collecting and analyzing data to
determine if the Continuing Education Program is appropriate and
effective. An annual report including statistical information regarding
the analysis of the educational offerings will be documented based on
the Committee findings and submitted to the Kansas State Board of
Nursing (KSBN).

The evaluation will assess the entire program:
Program Administration:

&lpolicies: Assess need, planning
oEvaluation summaries

oEmployee survey

[#lpolicies: Fee Assessment

[#lpolicies: Announcement

#lpolicies: Offering approval process
zlpolicies: Awarding contact hours
#lpolicies: Verifying participation/completion
[#lPolicies: Record keeping

[elpolicies: Notification of changes

[2[Total Program Evaluation effectiveness

Attachment 23: Long-Term Continuing Nursing Education Provider 2022
Annual Report - Total Program Evaluation

Submission date ~ 02-9-2023 14:07:12
Form ID ~ 1672730

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 17

2/9/2023, 2:26 PM




Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

Area Administration
Frequency Ongoing
Responsible Person | Continuing Education Program Coordinator
Criteria Review Accredo Health, Inc. (AHI) Standard of Practice (SOP) 26: Continuing Education Administrator Qualifications
and Responsibilities
» Licensed professional nurse
» A working knowledge of continuing education programming and development
» 3 years clinical experience
» Atleast 1 year experience developing and implementing continuing education offerings
» Baccalaureate degree in nursing, except those individuals exempted under K.S.A. 65-1119 (e) (6) and
amendments thereto
» An understanding of the basic principles of adult learning
» Experience in program faculty selection, program budget preparation, record keeping, and a general familiarity
with contemporary pharmacy and nurse practice and current trends and issues in pharmaceutical and nursing
education
Findings Meets requirements
Actions / Maureen McCullough, MSN, RN, Continuing Education Program Coordinator since December 2018 Maureen received

Recommendations | her Masters of Science in Nursini in 2016. She meets reﬂuired iualiﬁcations.

Area Policies: Assess need, planning
»  Wiritten tool
» Evaluation summaries
» Employee survey
Frequency Ongoing

Responsible Person

» Continuing Education Program Coordinator
» Continuing Education Administrator (CEA)
» Continuing Education Specialist (CES)

» Continuing Education Committee

CNE/IV Therapy 18




Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

» Presenter's Manager
» Therapy Resource Centers Clinical Resource Teams consisting of nurses, pharmacists, and case managers

Criteria Review survey for appropriateness; were survey findings and identified needs from evaluation summaries used in
program planning

Findings Meets requirements

Actions / AHI CE uses written needs assessment tools, evaluation summaries, and employee survey results when planning

Recommendations | new, and reviewing current, CE presentations.
» No change to tools previously discussed unless noted.

>  Tools:

o Needs Assessment and Learning Needs template is used. The developer provides information
documenting practice gaps, learning needs, and guideline changes pertaining to the topic. This
information guides the developer in developing content meeting participant continuing education
need(s).

o Evaluation template — Includes “Do not encounter this patient population for more accurate response
per participant response.

o Includes question on pretest asking participant for personal objective(s) for the CE topic. Results given
to presenter prior to presentation to add or emphasize content pertaining to personal objectives that
may differ from the CNE activity objectives.

»  Evaluation summaries composed for each presentation and reviewed by Continuing Education Administrator,
Continuing Education Specialist (CES), Presenter's manager, Clinical Operation Specialists, presenters. Results
used to revise current CNE activities and develop new activities requested by participants or determined
necessary by the Continuing Education Committee, or improve future presentations. Evaluations are completed by
~100% of the activity participants. Evaluation summaries are forwarded to the individual director and planning
committees who oversee the activities, and the presenters of the sessions to review and make those
determinations. Rating scale: 1 = Excellent, 2 = Good, 3 = Fair, 4 = Poor. Any area rated 3.0 or greater are
reviewed by the CEA and action determined. Note: there have been no results 3.0 or greater during the 2019-2020
report timeframe.

»  Continuing Education Planning Committee meets as needed to determine activity development from evaluation
summaries, new developments with a disease state (i.e. new drugs approvals, new indications for current drugs,
etc.), and staff performance needs and requests.

CNE/IV Therapy 19



Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

» Employee Survey: Accredo Health, Inc. employees complete an annual Employee Satisfaction Survey where they
may comment on the Continuing Education Program thereby capturing their opinions and suggestions for CE
activities to enhance their professional development.

¥ Individuals who interact with the Continuing Education department are asked to evaluate the department
standards of practice and make suggestions for improvements. The CEA and CES review results no less than
annually. Presenters and others who interact with AHI CE are asked to complete a Continuing Education
department evaluation which includes space to record their impressions of activity material and audience
questions, and provide suggestions on ways to improve activity materials. Activity evaluations request the
participants evaluate the activity content and materials; presenter, if applicable; and program administration. The
participants are requested to make comments and give suggestions for future presentations. We continue to ask
participants to assess their learning from the education experience. They record their expertise before the
presentation, after, and what they require for their position.

Area

Area Policies: Fee Assessment
Frequency Annually — No fees charged
Responsible Person | Reviewed by the Program Coordinator, CEA, and CES.
Criteria Policy meets organization and participant needs
Findings Meets requirements
Actions / Accredo Health Inc. continues to provide continuing nurse education activities at no cost to participants. A Standard of

Recommendations | Practice Eolici for fees has been develoied and will be revised in the event fees are charied.

Policies: Announcement

Recommendations

Frequency Annually
Responsible Person | Reviewed by the Program Coordinator, CEA, and CES.
Criteria Reflect information required by Kansas State Board of Nursing (KSBN), Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education
(ACPE), and Commission for Case Manager Certification (CCMC).
Findings Meets requirements.
Actions / The announcement format has not changed since our previous response as accreditation board requirements have not

changed. Templates are used — specific information pertinent to the activity is input into the template to ensure all
required information is included.

This includes:

» Title

» Disciplines for which the activity is approved

» Contact hours awarded for successful completion of all requirements

CNE/IV Therapy 20




Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

> Activity length
» Presenter information
» Fee information
»  Summary of planning
» Date, time, registration process, and contact information
» Intended outcome
»  Major activity objective
»  Activity overview
» Target audience
» lLearning objectives
» Agenda
» CE information and requirements per discipline, including required statements per accreditation board:
Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education (ACPE), Kansas State Board of Nursing (KSBN), Commission for
Case Manager Certification (CCMC)
» Assessment method
» Statements of credit information
»  Accredo Disclosure policy
» Faculty (Name, discipline, title/position)
» Disclosure declaration
Area Policies: Activity approval process
Frequency As needed when new activity is developed, and annually
Responsible Person | » Continuing Education Committee
» Accredo Creative Review Panel (CRP)
Criteria Review policies and compare to KSBN requirements
Findings Meets requirements

CNE/IV Therapy 21



Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

Actions /
Recommendations

P All activities are required to include:

@]

@]

o]

» Presenters must provide information documenting their education and/or clinical experience related to the activity
topic when applying to present the activity. Their application is reviewed by 2 CE Committee members and
approved only if it meets criteria.

» Bibliographies are required to include references meeting KSBN guidelines. A reference outS|de those guidelines
is accepted if it is documenting historical information that is not found elsewhere.

» The evaluation template includes assessment of learner achievement of each objective, and presenter expertise.

» The approval process remains unchanged. CNE activities for external audiences (clinicians not employed by
Accredo Health, Inc. or Express Scripts) are reviewed and approved by the Accredo Communication Review Panel
(CRP) comprised of representatives from legal, compliance, nursing operations, and nursing practices. All

Needs assessment and summary of planning

measurable behavioral objectives appropriate for each discipline for which the activity is developed
content which meets the definition of CNE for activities developed for nurses and other disciplines
Minimum presenter education and clinical experience requirements.

Current bibliography reflective of the offering content: books published within 10 years, periodicals
published within the past five years, or both

Offering evaluation that includes each participant’'s assessment of

Achievement of each objective

Expertise of each individual presenter

Usefulness of education material

Effectiveness of teaching and learning methods

How objective the presenter/content; free from bias

Active learning opportunities

Posttest accurately measured education learned from presented information
Contents impact participant's practice; promoted healthcare improvement

If participant would recommend the activity to others

CNE/IV Therapy 22




Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

requested revisions pertaining to continuing education are accepted or refused by the CEA depending on KSBN
and other accreditation board guidelines.

» The CEA completes the Quality Assurance review for grammar, punctuation, and spelling, formatting, and to
ensure all required documents are included and meet accreditation board guidelines. A clinical subject specialist
reviews the activity for topic information accuracy. CE Committee review is performed by the CE Program
Coordinator or one Continuing Education Committee member verifying the activity meets the Accredo Health, Inc.
Continuing Education objectives. Final approval is documented by the CEA. Review/approval of CNE activities for
internal audiences is the same with the exception of the CRP review which is not required by Accredo.

Area Policies: Awarding contact hours
Frequency As needed when new activity is developed
Responsible Person | Continuing Education Committee
Criteria Review agendas/pilot test results to verify contact hours awarded; review documentation of partial credit
Findings Meets requirements
Actions / An approved provider may award any of the following

Recommendations

= Contact hours as documented on an offering agenda for the actual time attended, including partial credit for
one or more contact hours

* Credit for fractions of hours over 30 minutes to be computed towards a contact hour

* Instructor credit, which shall be twice the length of the first-time presentation of an approved offering,
excluding any standardized, prepared curriculum

= Independent study credit that is based on the time required to complete the offering, as documented by the
provider's pilot test results

»  Clinical hours

»  Contact hours are determined during activity development as how long it takes to present content, and any other
activity related activities (e.g. posttest, hands-on activity), and approved with the rest of the activity approval.

»  Nurse instructors are awarded instructor credit, two contact hours for each contact hour of an approved offering,
for their first presentation of that offering.

» Pilot tests are performed for each independent study using a minimum of 3 nurses who successfully complete all
requirements. Completion time is totaled and divided by the number of participants. The average completion time
is converted to contact hours.

» We do not provide partial credit. This is documented in our activity brochure and attendance roster.

CNE/IV Therapy 23



Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

» Requirements to receive contact hours are included in the course offering instructions. Contact hours are awarded
only when all requirements are met.

A certificate of attendance is awarded to each participant after completion of an offering, or a CE transcript shall be
provided according to the policies and procedures of the long-term provider.

= Each certificate and each CE transcript shall be complete before distribution to the participant.

= Each certificate and each CE transcript shall contain the following information:

o Provider's name, address, and provider number;

Offering title;
Date or dates of attendance or completion;
Number of contact hours awarded
If applicable, the designation of any independent study or instructor contact hours awarded,;
Signature of the individual responsible for the providership; and
Participant name and license number
» Certificates are awarded each participant who meets all requirements

O O O 00

o]

» Certificates meet all KSBN requirements

» Certificates are processed and sent to the participant within 30 days of the offering date.

Recommendations

Area Policies: Verifying participation / completion
Frequency Annually
Responsible Person | Continuing Education Committee
Criteria Review rosters and certificates; compare to KSBN requirements
Findings Meets requirements
Actions / Each provider shall maintain documentation to verify that each participant attended the offering. The provider shall

require each participant sign a daily roster, which shall contain the following information:
= the provider's name, address, provider number, and coordinator
= the date and title of the offering, and the presenter or presenters
= the participant's name and license number, and the number of contact hours awarded

» AHI CE attendance roster is designed to document attendance for APRNs, RNs, LPNs, and Case Managers (if
applicable). The roster contains:

o Accredo Health, Inc. name, address, provider number, and coordinator

o Offering date and title

CNE/IV Therapy 24




Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

o Presenter(s)
o Participant name, license number, and state(s) of licensure
o the number of contact hours awarded

» Most of our CNE activities are one hour in length. In the event the presentation would occur before and after lunch
or dinner, the participants are required to sign at the beginning of the presentation, and again after the meal break.

» We provide CE presentations virtually using WebEx. Participation and completion requirements are included in the
announcement, and repeated by the host or presenter, and in the slide presentation. This may include registering,
completing a pretest, completing a posttest, completing an evaluation, and providing their participant information
(Name, address, license state and number). Participants must attend the entire presentation to receive credit.
Reports show participant names, time they logged in, and time they logged off.

» We also have live-recorded CNE self-study activities in Survey Monkey. Participants provide identification at the
beginning of the Survey Monkey activities. Participants are informed of all requirements to receive CE credit at the
start of the activity. A posttest with a passing grade is required, along with completing and submitting an
evaluation. License information is requested with the participant identification.

» We also offer self-study CNE activities online. Participants request access to the activity from the CEA or CES.
Reports can be run that show how long the nurse took to complete each slide and the activity as a whole. The
nurse is required to pass the posttest by a pre-determined percentage. Credit for the activity is only given if the
nurse views all slides and successfully passes the test, and completes the evaluation. License information is
requested in the evaluation template.

Area Policies: Record keeping
Frequency Daily and annually
Responsible Person | Continuing Education Committee
Criteria Audit contents of electronic files for compliance with KSBN requirements

For each offering, the approved provider shall retain the following for two years:
* Needs assessment/ Summary of the planning
Announcement or brochure
Title and objectives
Agenda or, for independent study, pilot test results
Bibliography
Summary of the participants’ evaluations
Instructor’'s education and experience; and
Documentation to verify completion of the offering: as specified in subsection (f).

CNE/IV Therapy 25



Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

o Each provider shall maintain documentation to verify that each participant attended the offering. The
provider shall require each participant sign a daily roster, which shall contain the following information:
»  Provider's name, address, provider number, and coordinator;
= Date and title of the offering, and the presenter or presenters; and
= Participant’s name and license number, and the number of contact hours awarded.
o [Each provider shall maintain documentation to verify completion of each independent study
The record storage system used shall ensure confidentiality and easy retrieval of records by authorized individuals

Findings Meets requirements
Actions / Course offering
Recommendations

= Course offering materials must include:
o Needs assessment/ Summary of planning
o Announcement / brochure
o Title and objectives
o Agenda
o Bibliography

= Course offering materials are kept in electronic file for no less than 7 years online with limited access. Access
is limited to the CE Program Coordinator, CEA and CES.

Presenter Approval

= Developers and Presenters must meet company policy and accreditation guidelines to be approved to develop
and/or present a course offering.

» Documentation (Presenter approval form, CV, copy of license time of application) is kept on file.
» Developer / Presenter approval is added to the Continuing Education Database
A post-presentation documents electronic file is kept for each course offering session.
Materials for live presentations include:
» Completed Documents Form (a form developed by us to track post presentation procedure completion)
» Alphabetized attendant lists

» Evaluation summaries

CNE/IV Therapy 26




Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

» Original attendance rosters

» Original evaluations

» Posttests, if applicable

Materials for online presentations include:
» Completed Documents Form

»  Attempt Detail Report showing participant’'s name, date activity completed, duration, posttest score, passing score,
status, license state and number, and posttest responses.

» Evaluations are not included in the session hardcopy. Evaluation data is entered by the CES into an electronic
evaluation template. Composite evaluation reports are reviewed by the CEA no less than quarterly. Reports are
downloaded and forwarded to the Senior Manager, manager, and clinical coordinator(s) responsible for the
development and management of the activity to review and determine if any revisions are warranted. An electronic
report is saved in a secure area on computer network with limited access granted to the Program Coordinator,
CEA, and CES.

» The presentation information is also recorded electronically in a continuing education database containing activity
title, presenter name and presentation location if applicable, and participant name, healthcare discipline, license
number, and state(s) of licensure.

The electronic version of the live presentation evaluation summaries are kept in a secure area on computer network
with limited access granted to the CE Program Coordinator, CEA, and the Continuing Education Specialist.

Hardcopy files less than 2 years of age remain on-site at:
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, Kansas 66215
Hardcopy files older than 2 years may be moved to:
Iron Mountain
15400 W. 99" Street
Lenexa, Kansas 66219
Phone: (913) 888-4766

» Records for online CNE activities may be viewed in the Continuing Education database. Reports can be run to
document the information. The evaluations for the online CNE activities are located on Survey Monkey. Data is

stored there and mai be viewed, shared, or downloaded.

CNE/IV Therapy 27



Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

Area Policies: Notification of changes
Frequency Annually
Responsible Person | Continuing Education Committee
Criteria Review procedures for changes reported to KSBN
Findings Meets requirements
Actions / Notice of change

Recommendations

» Accredo Continuing education has policy pertaining to notification of change: SOP 35 - Continuing Education
Substantive Change Policy
» For other substantive changes:
o Accredo CE should notify KSBN, and any other boards for which Accredo CE has been granted
accreditation, in writing within 30 days of the change. The circumstances provided may present the
need for review and consideration of accreditation in accord with standard evaluation and operational

irocedures or aiiroiriate monitorini.

Area Total Program Evaluation effectiveness
Frequency Each session and annually
Responsible Person | Continuing Education Committee
Criteria Review total program evaluation and compare contents to KSBN requirements
Findings Meets requirements
Actions / Nurse Practice Act: Continuing Education
Recommendations »  B0-9-105 Definitions

e B0-9-106 License Renewal
e 60-9-107 Approval of Continuing Nursing Education.

Review of the rules and regulations for Continuing Nursing Education shows Accredo Continuing Education Standards
of Practice to be in compliance.

AHI CE statistical evidence shows the effectiveness of the education through the use of pretest / posttest result
comparisons, and participant rating personal expertise related to presentation objectives before, after, and needed for
current position in completing the presentation evaluation.

» Participants are asked to complete a pretest which includes the response option, | don’t know, without
referring to any reference material prior to attending the CE presentation. Participants are asked to complete a
posttest consisting of the same questions following the presentation. Individual and aggregate results are
compiled, analyzed, and reported to the AHI CE Committee. Results showed all participants scored higher on
the posttest than the pre-test.

CNE/IV Therapy 28




Total Program Evaluation
Accredo Health, Inc.
11411 Strang Line Road
Lenexa, KS 66215
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

» Participants are also asked to rate their level of expertise (Novice, intermediate, expert) for each activity
objective before the education, after, and what expertise level they need for their current position. Individual
and aggregate results are compiled, analyzed, and reported to the AHI CE Committee. Level of expertise
increased after the education in all objectives. Also, the results of the level of expertise exceeded what was
needed for their current position with rare exception.

» Participants evaluate presenters’ teaching skills and knowledge, how well each objective was addressed,
usefulness of education material, Information presented objectively without bias, opportunities for active
learning, posttest accurately measured what participant learned, impact content will have on participant
practice, activity promotes healthcare improvement, would recommend to others. Results are analyzed per
activity; results are compared to all activities. We also average results per activity. Rating scale: 1 = Excellent,
2 = Good, 3 = Fair, 4 = Poor. Results were between 1.00 and 1.77.

AHI CE evaluation results show participants rate our CNE activities good to excellent per rating scale used. We will
continue to develop and present our CNE activities as we have, and will continue to analyze evaluation results and
look for ways to improve individual CNE activities, and the program overall.

CNE/IV Therapy 29



Effective date:
06/02/2005

Revision:

11

Number:

AHI SOP CE 1

;’
i
i
t
t

i
|
i
!
§

Title: Continuing Education Process

Depa;tment: Cpntinuing Education . {! {? é@}«@{g (} #

Program: General

Purpose

To provide a standardized process for Continuing Education program direction and planning, and course
development and approval by AHI and its subsidiaries for nurses, pharmacists and/or pharmacy technicians,
case managers, and other healthcare professionals.

Scope

This procedure is applicable to Accredo Health, Inc. Continuing Education (AHI CE) presentation developers
and the CE Committee (the planners). It shall be referenced by all individuals involved in AHI continuing
education program planning, development, and approval.

Definitions and acronyms

ACPE — Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education
AHI - Accredo Health, Inc.

BLS — Basic Life Support

CBN — California Board of Nursing

CE - Continuing Education

CEA - Continuing Education Administrator

CEPC - Continuing Education Program Coordinator
CCMC — Commission for Case Manager Certification
CPE - Continuing Pharmacy Education; Continuing Professional Education
CRP - Communication Review Process

EDDF — Education Design/Documentation Format
HCPs - Health care providers

KSBN — Kansas State Board of Nursing

NPA — Nurse Practice Act

PDF — Program Description Form

UAN — Universal Activity Number

Procedure

It is your responsibility to ensure that you understand this procedure before performing the following tasks.
Contact the document author if you have any questions about this procedure.

10of 17

Accredo Health, Inc. {1 11411 Strang Line Rd {1 Lenexa (i Kansas i1 66215  ~\ o/ Thorany 20

Py
SOP CE 1



Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

1.1 Program mission and goals determination

Step

Action

Part 1: Mission and Goals (1.1)

Accredo Health, Inc. (AHI) Continuing Education (CE) will create a clearly articulated mission,
desired goals, and a planning process to achieve the mission and goals.

¢ The mission, goals, and activities will:

o Relate to the vision and educational needs of the pharmacist, nurse, and case manager
(HCP) to better serve society.

o include Accredo CE’s short-term intent in conducting CE activities, including the intended
audience and activities scope

o Address how AHI CE will assist HCPs to maintain and enhance their professional
competencies to practice in various settings.

o Educate HCPs to deliver patient-centered care as members of an inter-professional team,
emphasizing evidence-based practice, quality improvement approaches, and informatics.

e The CE Committee will review and revise the mission and goals no less than annually.
Part 2: Assessment Plan

AHI CE will evaluate the impact of its mission and goals by evaluating learner participation,
satisfaction, and learning.

¢ Learners will provide feedback on the following:
o presentation

education

presence, or absence, of bias

likes and dislikes

o O O ©O

Suggestions for future presentations — changes to the presentation being evaluated, or
learner’s topics of interest.

e The CE Committee and presenters will review evaluation results no less than annually
+ Results will guide the CEA, Committee, and presenters in the need to:

o revise the mission and/or goals
o revise the presentations
o re-educate presenters; e.g. presentation skills

Part 3: Achievement of Mission
AHI CE will demonstrate evidence showing the degree to which the mission and goals are met.

e Based on the results of the aggregate evaluation results, AHI CE will evaluate and update our
~ mission and goals.

20f17

Accredo Health, Inc. i 11411 Strang Line Rd [ Lenexa .~ Kansas 1 66215  CNE/IV Therapy 31

SOP CE 1




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

1.2 Faculty: Planning

Step

Action

Anyone involved in Accredo Health, Inc. Continuing Education (AHI Continuing Education
Administrator (CEA), Continuing Education Specialist (CES), CE and CRP Committee members,

and any subject matter experts (SMEs) involved in AHI CE): (1.6)(1.5)(2)(3)(4)

Will not have direct marketing/sales/product line (distribution) responsibilities.

Will complete an Identification, Mitigation, and Disclosure of Relevant Financial relationships
(21) every two years to document they have no conflict of interest, and are eligible to develop
the required material.

o Disclosure documents will be kept on file, available upon request. Accredo Continuing
Education Disclosure Policy stating faculty members have nothing to disclose will appear
in the activity deck and brochure. Presenter will also tell audience he/she has nothing to
disclose during the introduction.

o If the individual does not sign the financial disclosure, he/she will be excluded from the
project.

o Ifthe individual discloses a conflict, the member will complete the Mitigation of Financial
Relationships (21) documenting what actions were taken to mitigate the conflict.

o Inthe event a conflict of interest is disclosed, the company compliance department will be
notified per company policy.

Accredo Continuing Education disclosure policy is included: in the slides immediately following the
title slide of every CE activity PPT, Accredo CE announcement, and any other CE related
document pertaining to faculty.

Accredo Disclosure Policy: Accredo Health, Incorporated, will develop continuing education
presentations for nurses, pharmacists, and case managers that provide in-depth presentation
with fair, full disclosure, and equitable balance. Topics and learning objectives will not be
promotional or appear to be intended for the purpose of endorsing a specific commercial drug
or a specific commercial service. All educational programs and associated materials will be
free from promotional influence and/or content. Written agreements will be used in the event of
external support. Any relevant relationship between funding organization(s) and program
faculty will be disclosed.

Accredo will avoid promotional activities or materials as an integral part of the program or
program materials, or in any manner that interferes with or interrupts the educational activity.
Disclosure will be made of limitations on information including but not limited to:

Data that represents ongoing research

Interim analysis

Preliminary data

Unsupported opinion

Opinions or approaches to care that, while supported by some research studies, do
not represent the only opinion or approach to care supported by research

o Off-label use

o 0O 0O 0 O

Accredo disclosure declaration: Accredo Health Group, Incorporated, and its subsidiaries
dispense medications and provide services discussed in this presentation. Every effort has
been made to include all approved treatment options currently used for the treatment of this
disease state; to present each therapy equally, objectively, and without bias; and to avoid
promotion of one therapy over another.

3of 17

Accredo Health, Inc. [1 11411 Strang Line Rd (| Lenexa ' Kansas | 66215  ~NE/nv Theraov.32
SOP CE 1




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

No commercial support was received for this activity. No compensation was received for
planning, development, approval, or presentation of this activity.
All persons considered to plan, develop, or review/approve content of an education activity
must disclose all relevant financial relationships (RFRs) with any ineligible company(ies).* If
any RFRs were disclosed, steps will be taken to mitigate the relationship. Disclosure and
mitigation will be kept on file, and will be disclosed to the participants. *Ineligible company:
One whose primary business is producing, marketing, selling, re-selling or distributing
healthcare products used by or on patients.
Relevant financial disclosure (The appropriate sub-bullet will be included in the disclosure)
o No persons in control of content had relevant financial relationships.
o The following persons in control of content had relevant financial relationships:
= Name:
= |Ineligible company:
= Nature of the relationship:
= Mitigation:
Participant information
o Participant names and contact information are retained by the continuing education
department and only shared with appropriate accreditation boards for the purpose of
providing continuing education credit.

Faculty involved in any aspect of the CE activity are listed by name, discipline, and title.

Continuing Education Administrator (CEA) will be familiar with all accreditation board requirements
AHI SOP CE 26_1.1.1

To ensure all discipline requirements are understood and met, the CEA will:

oversee AHI CE planning, developing, review/approval, presentation, and evaluation
provide verbal and written instructions, and guidance to all involved in AHI CE

o Faculty Guidance Checklist (required for pharmacy CE) provided to the developer to be
completed prior to activity development .Covers accreditation board requirements for
specific discipline continuing education.

o Creates and provides tools:

o Session planning worksheet / needs assessment justification template and
examples

o developing test questions
o sources and referencing - formatting
o adult learning concepts

ensure AHI CE meets all accreditation policies and standards
communicate and collaborate with CE activity faculty regarding:

o identified educational needs / practice gaps
o intended audience

o objectives

o active participation

o learning assessments
o evaluation

CE Committee oversight

4 0of 17

Accredo Health, Inc. = 11411 Strang Line Rd ¢ Lenexa i Kansas |1 66215  CNE/IV Therapy 33

SOP CE 1




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

The Company CE Committee will evaluate requests for continuing education course development
based on:

¢ New or updated information on therapies, medications, or disease states of interest to AHI
clinicians and clients;

Formal needs assessment - identified specific clinical or practice knowledge gaps;

Areas identified as high-risk, high-volume, high-cost, or problem prone;

Formal recommendations from the Performance Improvement Committee;

Content Criteria (ACPE policies and procedures_ Section 1_Introduction_C Definition (also
Appendix A: Definitions)

Continuing education [for the profession of pharmacy] is a structured educational activity designed
or intended to support the continuing development of healthcare providers to maintain and
enhance their competence. Continuing education (CE) should promote problem-solving and
critical thinking and be applicable to the practice of pharmacy, nursing, and case management.

KSBN NPA 65-1117 (a) Presentation content must build upon the educational and experiential
bases for the enhancement of practice, education, administration, research, or theory
development for the purpose of improving the health or healthcare of the public. The following will
not be considered continuing education: (KSBN NPA 60-9-1-5 Definitions (n)(p)

¢ In-service and on-the-job training: meaning learning activities in the work setting designed to
assist the individual in fulfilling routine job responsibilities

« Orientation: meaning formal or informal instruction designed to acquaint employees with the
institution and the position

Institution-specific courses containing the same content as courses that are part of basic
preparation at the level of current licensure or certification, or BCLS.

CE Activity methods and/or settings: (10) ACPE Guidelines with CE Definitions

Continuing education may be delivered through live lecture, workshops, journal clubs and study
groups, seminars, case presentations, video, audio, and computer-based materials, and self-
study programs. Program materials may include PowerPoint presentations, written documents,
posters, or other media that is accessible to the target audiences.

1.3 Activity Development

Action

AHI CE will develop CE activities based on identified knowledge, skill, or practice gap; i.e.
developer(s) will identify gaps between what HCPs currently know or do, and what is needed and
desired in practice. ACPE Accreditation Standards for CPE 2017_Competence Area 2: Designing
Educational Interventions p.49 Identified gaps:

e may be knowledge, skill, and/or practice gap
¢ guide content development and delivery
« form/ determine activity type, objectives, active learning exercises, and outcomes

Target Audience ACPE Accreditation Standards for CPE 2017_Universal Activity Numbers 9a (pp
25-26)

50f 17

Accredo Health, Inc. 1 11411 Strang Line Rd [1 Lenexa 11 Kansas 11 66215  ~\E/nv Therapy.34
SOP CE 1




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

| Activities for pharmacists and pharmacy technicians will be assigned a universal activity number
(UAN) and release date, and post the course on the ACPE Provider Web Tool. ACPE
Accreditation Standards for CPE 2017 Policy 9.0 Provider Web Tool

Activities for Case Managers will be submitted to CCMC by the CES 30 days prior to the first
scheduled presentation. (13)

AHI CE activities will be structured to meet knowledge-, application- and/or practice-based HCPs
education needs. (1.3)

» CPE activity types: knowledge, application, and practice. (14)

e The CPE activity type(s) will be consistent with Accredo Health, Inc. continuing education
mission, and appropriate to meet the identified pharmacist and other applicable healthcare
professional’s needs, and must be based on evidence as accepted in the literature by the
health care professions.

Knowledge-based CPE activity:

¢ Designed for HCPs to acquire factual knowledge

o The minimum credit for these activities is 15 minutes or 0.25 contact hour.

e Obijectives include verbs such as: list, recall, define, memorize, state.
Application-based CPE activity:

¢ Designed primarily for HCPs to apply the information learned in the time allotted.
s Minimum credit for these activities is 60 minutes or one contact hour.

+ Objectives include verbs such as: apply, demonstrate, interpret, solve, illustrate.
Practice-based CPE activity:

s Designed for HCPs to acquire specific knowledge, skills, attitudes, and performance
behaviors to expand or enhance practice competency.

o Formats of these CPE activities should include a didactic component and a practice
component.

¢ Minimum amount of credit for these activities is 15 contact hours.
¢ Objectives include verbs such as: appraise, assess, defend, analyze, and differentiate.
AHI CE is not required to offer all 3 activity types.
The activity type will be documented in the following:
s CE database under “Courses”
+ EDDF (Education Design / Documentation format)
e activity brochure per accreditation board requirements (ACPE)

4b Content requirements (SOP 01 CE Process 1.3 Activity Development and approval policy)
o Clinical content must come from credible, clinically approved sources, and must be specified in
the bibliography. The most commonly used types of sources are:
« Articles in peer-reviewed journals
¢ Textbooks and other reference materials
» Position papers, consensus statements, review articles, and guidelines from government,
academic, and other nonprofit organizations

6of 17

Accredo Health, Inc. &1 11411 Strang Line Rd " Lenexa i Kansas - 66215  CNE/IV Therapy 35

SOP CE 1




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

 Websites sponsored by acceptable organizations may be cited. The types of clinical

information cited from appropriate websites may include, but are not limited to, the following:

e Statistics

e Peer-reviewed journal articles posted online

o Consensus statements, position statements, and reference materials from approved
government, academic, and other nonprofit organizations

¢ FDA updates

o Information for patients regarding living with their condition (if based on sound clinical
rationale)

The content of the provider's CPE activities is based on evidence as accepted in the literature
by the healthcare professions.

To the greatest extent possible, clinical content must be current and based on evidence
accepted by experts in the field. In cases where content is unproved or controversial, steps
should be taken to ensure that objective and balanced information is provided. Content that
pertains to off-label must be disclosed as off-label.

“Sourcing” is the process of selecting and documenting sources for the clinical content in
communications materials.

Content that requires sourcing

« All definitive statements about medications, therapeutic and preventive practices, disease-
related information, healthcare costs and trends, or new and not generally accepted
information must be based on acceptable sources. This includes the following:

Statistics

Claims of medical benefit

Descriptions of side effects or symptoms

Clinical guidelines and treatment recommendations
Findings and conclusions of clinical studies

O 0 0 0O

Continuing Pharmacy Education Activity Development (1.4)

Course developers will:

Develop appropriate activity type behavioral learning objectives based on what the participant
should be able to do as a result of the activity. (1.4)

provide a summary of planning explaining how the activity addresses the HCPs CE needs

Include references in a bibliography; may include additional references as a suggested reading
list. (1.8)

create a product reference resource of all medications mentioned in the presentation activity
(1.8)

develop unbiased, evidence-based content including all FDA approved treatment options (8a)

o Content or format, or related materials, must not promote a specific proprietary commercial
interest.

o Presentations must give a balanced view of therapeutic options.

7 of 17

Accredo Health, Inc. 77 11411 Strang Line Rd [} Lenexa 1 Kansas ! 66215  oNE/IV Therapy 36

SOP CE1




Standard Operating Procedure

R Accredo - ;,
o Generic names will be used for all medications. If trade names are also used, they must be
used for all medications.

o Use trade names from several companies if several manufacture, or distribute, the
medication.

e develop objectives-based:; (1.20)

o knowledge checks - questions within the activity presentation participants answer to check
their comprehension

o learning assessments - to measure acquired knowledge and comprehension (1.7)

For internal presentations, participants will complete a pretest to measure their topic knowledge-
base, and share their personal objective(s) if different from the course objectives (1.7)

o Presenter will review results to guide the focus of the presentation.

o Personal objectives will be evaluated by the CEA and CE Committee to determine if they
should be added to future revised version / updates to the activity.

Reference Guidelines and Copyright use (15)

Learning Assessment (1.9)

AHI CE will include learning assessments in each CPE activity to allow pharmacists (and other
disciplines) to assess their achievement of the content. Learning assessment completion is
required for CPE credit.

Formal assessments: Tests and quizzes

¢  Will be in hardcopy and/or online, whichever is most appropriate for the circumstances.
o live sessions

Learning assessments will include participant discussion.

o

o The presenter will review answers with the learners.

o Correct answers will be provided, along with rationale.

o Tests will not be graded, nor will a passing grade be required.
o]

If some participants attending remotely, all participants will follow WebEx session
instructions (next bullet).

¢ \WebEX sessions

o Learners will complete a pretest with registration, and a posttest following the
presentation.

o Aggregate results will be analyzed for the pretest, and compared to the posttest to
show evidence of acquired learning.

o Posttests will be graded, with a required passing grade. Participants who do not pass
may retake the test.

o Answer key with rationale will be given with CE certificate, or when credit reported to
CPE Monitor.

» Consistent with identified CPE activity objectives (1.4) and activity type (1.3)

o Knowledge-based CPE activity — assessment questions structured to determine recall of
facts.

8of 17

Accredo Health, Inc. 70 11411 Strang Line Rd " Lenexa i Kansas i 66215  CNE/IV Therapy 37

SOP CE 1




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

o Application-based CPE activity — case studies structured to address application of the
principles learned.

o Practice-based CPE activity - formative and summative assessments which demonstrate
the participant achieved the stated objectives.

« Assessment feedback, verbal or written, will be provided to participants as per activity type:
(1.10)

o Knowledge — Participant informed of the incorrect responses. Rationale included for
correct responses.

o Application — correct evaluation of case studies. Presenter will explain the rationale for
incorrect responses.

o Practice — Presenter will provide feedback on assessments used by participants to
demonstrate they achieved the objectives.

Evaluations relevant to the intended activity outcome will be developed for each activity. (1.11)
Pharmacist feedback will be summarized separately from other disciplines responses. Results will
be used to determine areas requiring immediate or future CE program improvement.

Feedback will be obtained to measure:

« How well the activity met the participant's educational needs

e Objective achievement

« Faculty quality

¢ Education material usefuiness

« Teaching and learning methods effectiveness, including active learning
o Learning assessment activities appropriateness

e Perceptions of bias or commercialism

Additional items may be added to determine the program effectiveness and guide development of
future activities, as well as assess achievement and impact of the stated mission and goals. (1.1)

External CE program approval requirements

CE programs developed for presentation to non-employees (participants outside AHI) must also
meet the Communication Review Panel (CRP) requirements and receive CRP review and
approval. (16)

Prior to CRP submission:

e CEA will review the activity to ensure content is acceptable by accreditation guidelines, and all
accreditation board requirements have been met; formatting, grammar, and spelling.

¢ Clinical SME will review to ensure content is accurate.
After CRP approval:
+ The CEA will develop required supporting documents.

o Revisions will be submitted to the CRP Communications Analyst to determine if CRP review is
required.

90f17

Accredo Health, Inc. {7 11411 Strang Line Rd i Lenexa i Kansas 13 66215  cNE/IV Therapy.38

SOP CE 1




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo
CE Documents

The following must be completed / created for each CE presentation. Templates for each are
available from the CEA, along with the CE Objectives Tool (1.20):

» Needs Assessment/ Gap Analysis (1.2)

o ldentify gaps between pharmacist / pharmacy tech, other HCPs as applicable, current
knowledge and what is needed in practice

o Identified knowledge, skill, or practice gap, and guide content development and delivery

o ldentified gap root (i.e. specific knowledge, skill, attitude, experience) and determines
activity type, learning objectives, active learning exercises, and outcomes

+ Summary of Planning — content from needs assessment
e Education Design / Documentation Format (EDDF) (1.4)
o Snapshot of the activity
o Title:
o Course D
o ACPE UAN / Release date / Planned expiration date / Activity type
o Contact hours per discipline
o Presenter requirements
o Teaching Strategies
o Objectives
a Activity outline with knowledge checks
o References / Bibliography
o Product References and access date
» Objectives determined based on gap analysis finding(s) (1.4)
o Specific and measurable
o Developed to specifically address identified educational need (1.2)
o Addressed by an active learning activity (1.7)

O

Covered by a learning assessment (1.9)

e Bibliography (reference requirements for KSBN — books 10 yrs in age or less, journal articles
and website material 5 yrs or less including date accessed). Exceptions allowed with CEA’s
approval. (9b)(15)

e Agenda

¢ Announcement and/or brochure

e Attendance Roster(s) specific to each discipline

e Evaluation for multiple disciplines (1.11)

The following categories will be evaluated as appropriate to course format:
e How well the CPE activity met the participant’s educational needs

* Achievement of every objective (e.g., each objective is listed or a single question asking if all
objectives were met with a free-text option to list any unmet objectives)

10 of 17

Accredo Heaith, Inc. \* 11411 Strang Line Rd " Lenexa . Kansas ; 66215  CNE/IV Therapy 39

SOP CE 1




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

Content accuracy, current, and relevant

Faculty Quality - Presenter

o Knowledge of subject

o Presentation skills

e Educational material usefulness

e Teaching and learning methods effectiveness, including active learning
e Learning assessment activities appropriateness _

o Perceptions of bias, promotion, or advertisement of commercial products
o What they most / least liked about the education

¢ Suggestions for future education

e Comments

o Time was adequate for the material presented

Learning Assessment and Answer Key with rationale

A learning assessment is required for pharmacists and pharmacy technicians. AHI CE has
decided to require it for all disciplines. Examples of assessment of objectives or outcomes include,
but are not limited to:

e Case studies

¢ Role-play scenarios
e Pretest/posttest

s Posttest

e Action planning

Course handout is required for pharmacists and pharmacy technicians. Examples of content
include:

e PowerPoint slides in handout format
¢ Suggested reading list
e Table comparing / contrasting disease characteristics presented

10

Contact Hours

The course developer states the amount of time it takes to present the course material. From this,
contact hours are determined. (18)

Contact hours for nurses will be awarded as follows:
1.2 CONTACT HOUR = 60 minutes
0.1 CONTACT HOUR added for each additional 5-minute increment.
Contact hours for case managers will be awarded as follows:
1.00 CONTACT HOUR = 60 minutes
1.25 CONTACT HOUR =75 minutes
0.25 CONTACT HOUR added for each additional 15-minute increment.
Contact hours for pharmacists and pharmacy technicians will be awarded as follows:

11 0f 17

Accredo Health, Inc. it 11411 Strang Line Rd i Lenexa [} Kansas (1 66215  ~NE/\ Therapy 40

SOP CE 1



Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

1.0 CONTACT HOUR = 60 min’

1.25 CONTACT HOUR = 75 min

1.50 CONTACT HOUR = 90 min

0.25 CONTACT HOUR added for each additional 15-minute increment.
Minimum time for activity per discipline:
¢ Pharmacist and pharmacy technician — 15-minutes Knowledge-based
* Nurse — 30 minutes
o Case Manager — 30 minutes

ACPE Universal Activity Numbers:

11.| If approved for pharmacists and pharmacy technicians, the activity will be assigned a universal
program number and release date (self-study activities only), and posted on the ACPE Provider
Web Tool. (11) (12)

CCMC Approval (13)

12 & Ifcourseis to be approved for CM CE, notify Continuing Education Specialist to submit to
CcCMC

2.1 Course Approval Process

Step  Action

CRP Review (Peer Review)(16)(19)

e Prior to the CE review/approval, all CPE activities intended for external audiences are
reviewed and approved by AHI Communication Review Process.

1 e Apanel of AHI experts in key functional areas; which may include Legal, Compliance,
Privacy/HIPAA, Regulatory, Professional Practice, and Clinical Practice SME: reviews and
approves all communications AHI distributes externally.

e This review process has been implemented to manage legal and regulatory risk, and to
enhance patient safety.
AHI CE Approval

The CEA will designate individuals to perform a Clinical and Final CE Committee review. All
reviewers will complete and sign the Identification, Mitigation, and Disclosure of Relevant
Financial Relationships form which will be kept on file.

Review will be documented on the Multi-approval form (20) which provides:
2 + Review instructions, access link to documents in CE SharePoint, and due date
e Course ID and Title

¢ Reviewer name and title, date Identification, Mitigation, and Disclosure of Relevant Financial
Relationships form was signed

» Names of developer and documents to be reviewed:

o Course Developer

12 of 17
Accredo Health, Inc. 7 11411 Strang Line Rd . Lenexa i Kansas /1 66215 CNE/IV Therapy 41

SOP CE1



Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

o Identification, Mitigation, and Disclosure of Relevant Financial Relationships form
signature date

o Course offering documents — required for accreditation but not used for presentation
o Presentation documents
o Reviewers review each form and document any changes needed in a table with headings:
o Document number
o Slide or page
o Suggested revision
o Reviewer
o Revision date
o Who made revision (Note: revisions made by CEA only)

e Suggested revisions are reviewed by the CEA and made. CEA will discuss with the developer
if unsure change should be made. All changes are documented on the multi-review form.

¢ Review information from each separate review form is copied and pasted to a final review
form with QA, Clinical, and CE Committee reviews and signatures on one document.

o Final document versions are kept Continuing Education “Course Offering” folder with limited
access ensuring the most recent version is given upon request.

Quality Assurance Review

A Quality Assurance review (QAR) will be completed by the CEA for every program submission
to ensure:

¢ Inclusion of all required course offering documents

o Documents meet Continuing Education guidelines

e Terminology meets Continuing Education guidelines

¢ Course Offering meets definition of Continuing Education

Clinical Review

A clinician subject matter expert who is not the initial program developer/presenter, does not have
any direct marketing/sales/distribution responsibilities, and who does not have a commercial
interest in the activity topic, will perform a clinical review to ensure clinical accuracy of the
information. This may be done during CRP review or CE Approval review.

CE Commiittee Review

One (1) CE Committee member will perform the CE Committee review of the course offering
assuring the offering meets the needs of AHI.

Final CE Approval

After all points have been addressed by the CEA from the clinical and CE Committee review, the
CEA will sign the final approval line on the review/approval form. The form will be saved in the
course folder under “Approval Documents.” The QA, clinical, CE Committee and final approval
dates will be entered into the CE Database, along with any other information that was not
completed during the process.

Course approval documentation

13 of 17

Accredo Health, Inc. 77 11411 Strang Line Rd ] Lenexa [ Kansas [© 66215  cNE/IV Therapy. 42

SOP CE 1




Standard Operating Procedure

i - Accredo
Upon course approval, the CEA will:

» notify the course developer(s) and CES of course approval

| ¢ provide CES with course information to input in the CE database
‘ s add course name to appropriate course list template document

| Add final version to CRP JIRA database

Process Flow

The following Process Flows are to be used in conjunction with this SOP:
* Not applicable

Reference Documents

Individuals using this procedure should become familiar with the following documents:

1 ACPE Accreditation Standards for Continuing Pharmacy Education 2017

1.1-1.11 | -Standards 1-11

2 CP.Gen.003 Conflict of Interest

3 Financial Disclosure Form — retired 01/01/2022

4 AH!I SOP CE 39: Continuing Education Firewall Policy —~ independence from commercial interest
5 AHI SOP CE 2: Presenter approval

6 AHI SOP 26: CE Administrators Qualifications and Responsibilities

7 2018 Developing AHI CE [Survey Monkey]

8a EMB.003 Definitions ~ Education and Training Programs for Potential Sources (“Programs”)

8b AHI SOP CE 12: ACPE Program Description Form (PDF) Web Tool)

9a KSBN NPA K.S.A. 65-1117

9b KSBN NPA _ 60-9-107(d)(5))

10 ACPE 2007 CE Guidelines and Definitions — FAQs

11 AHI SOP CE 11: ACPE Universal Activity Number (UAN) for Course Offerings

12 AHI SOP CE 12: ACPE Program Description Form (PDF) Web Tool)

13 AHI SOP CE 6: Initial and Annual Commission for Case Manager Certification Course Approval

14 ACPE CPE Policies_Procedures

15 AHI SOP CE 43 Reference Guidelines

16 AHI CRP SOP

14 of 17

Accredo Health, Inc. (" 11411 Strang Line Rd . Lenexa || Kansas | ' 66215  CNE/IV Therapy 43

SOP CE 1



Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

17 CP.GEN.047 Dissemination of Off-Label Information

18 AHI SOP CE 4: Pilot Test for Determination of Contact Hours for Self-Study Course

19 AHI CE Multi-approval form

20 AHI CE Objectives Too! (CEOT)

21 Identification, Mitigation, and Disclosure of Relevant Financial Relationships

22 Mitigation of Relevant Financial Relationships

Document History

Document Location
This is an on-line document. Refer to the author for any questions regarding the content.

Revision History

Revision |Revision | ‘ ' - - f ~
Number |Date - Summary of Changes - . |Author
0 06/02/2005 { Original Lisa Havens
1 09/13/2005 Laura Turner
2 02/03/2006 Laura Turner
3 04/28/2009 Laura Turner
4 10/27/2009 Laura Turner
5 10/4/2011 Laura Turner
6 10/10/2014 Laura Turner
Header/footer
e Accredo below title
e Sui b i
7 08/14/2015 uite number revised Laura Turner
Added 2 acronyms
Deleted course list document location
Added attachments to “Reference Documents”
Removed content pertaining to respiratory therapists
8 11/07/2016 | Formatting Laura Turner
Revised KSBN content criteria

15 of 17

Accredo Health, Inc. 17 11411 Strang Line Rd 0 Lenexa 1 Kansas 11 66215 oNF/IV Therapy.44

SOP CE 1



Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo
Added legal contact; attachment 1c: AHI CRP SOP

Revised to match the 2018 ACPE Standards. Added information
9 117121717 on mission and goals, faculty, planning, development, and Laura Turner
approval.

Added 1.3 Activity Development 3. Content Requirements from
the previous SOP 1.

Corrected address.
Added CBN — California Board of Nursing to Acronyms.
Created AHI CE Objectives tool (1.20) to assist developers with

5/4/18 developing objectives based on participant education needs,
knowledge checks assess objectives, and pre- and posttest
10 And questions match objectives to measure education-gained Laura Turner

11/12/2018 | knowledge.
Revised any spelling other than pretest and posttest.
Changed CE folder location from W to N drive.

Added Clinical review may occur during CRP review or CE
approval review.

7. Added, “final version will be added to CRP Affinium database.”

Changed "Financial Disclosure” annually to “Identification,
Mitigation, and Disclosure of Relevant Financial relationships”
every two years.

Accredo Disclosure Declaration updated.

Revised nurse minimal activity time to 30 minutes.

11 1/20/2023 Laura Turner

Revised whre approved course is kept.
Changed "Affinium” to “JIRA” database.

Added “retired 01/01/2022" after Financial Disclosure in
Reference Documents #3

Subject Matter Expert (SME) Reviewers

This document was reviewed/edited by following SMEs:

Name Title Date Reviewed
Bette Murrell Continuing Education Specialist 12/01/2009
Karin Everett Clinical Coordinator 12/02/2009
Caryn Bing Senior Manager of Clinical Training 10/03/2011

Laura Turner Continuing Education Administrator 10/10/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/10/2014

16 0f 17

Accredo Health, Inc. 1 11411 Strang Line Rd 1" Lenexa i~ Kansas 1 66215  CNE/IV Therapy 45

SOP CE1



Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/07/2015
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 09/27/2016
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/28/2017
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/15/2018
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 01/26/2023
Approvals
This document requires following approvals:
Name | Title Date Approved
Mary Ann Anderson Director of Manufacturer Services (no longer applicable) 01/31/2009
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 10/10/2014
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources- Nursing 11/02/2015
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/29/2016
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/05/2017
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 11/15/2018
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources — Nursing 02/06/2023
17 0f17
Accredo Health, Inc. 7 11411 Strang Line Rd  Lenexa || Kansas ' 66215

CNE/AV-Therapy-46

=y
SOP CE 1




Number: Revision: | Effective Date:

AHI SOP CE 5 10 06/03/2005

Tntle Record Retention ahd Material e Jl? .
Maintenance CCCTedio

Department: Continuing Education

Program: General

Purpose

The purpose of Record Retention and Material Maintenance is to provide a standardized process for
maintenance of approved course material.

Scope

This procedure is applicable to Accredo Health, Inc. Continuing Education (AHI CE). It should be referenced
by all individuals responsible for maintaining all media forms of continuing education offerings provided
through AHI.

Definitions
AHI — Accredo Health, Inc.

CE — Continuing Education

QA - Quality Assurance

Procedure

It is your responsibility to ensure that you understand this procedure before performing the following tasks.
Contact the document author if you have any questions about this procedure.

Approved course offerings will be maintained electronically.

S’tep‘ Action - - _
) o Electronic course versions will be divided in individual folders named using the following format:
(Access ID) - Course Title - approval date. Example: (089) — Hemophilia Management - 103017

Within course folders, documents will be subdivided into:
+ Course Documents - documents required for course approval but not required for presentation

purposes
3 « Presentation documents - documents required for presentations
+ Approval documents — QA, clinical review, and CE Committee review and final approval
documentation

¢ Archive documents - documents that have been replaced by revised documents )
Version control will be implemented for document creation and each update. Electronic PowerPoint

4 presentation name will include the (course ID) CE approval date, course title, CRP approval date,
amc#. Course documents will include the course ID in the electronic document title.
5 A current list of approved courses for external use will be maintained on the limited access N

drive: N:\Continuing Education\Course Lists, and will be updated as courses are approved.

Upon course retirement, the retirement date will be added to the folder title. The folder will be
6 moved from “N:\Continuing

'Education \Course Offerings” to “N:\Continuing Education \Course Offerings\Retired Courses.”

10f3

Accredo Health, Inc. (1 11411 Strang Line Rd ©: Lenexa ! Kansas 11 66215  ~\E/ v Therapy 47
SOP CE 5




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo |
| 7 Electronic course folders and contents may be deleted 8 years after retirement date.
In the case electronic data is lost, all files are electronically backed-up on a nightly basis and sent
off-site to a 3rd party vendor for storage and retrieval. This data is retained past the legal
8 timeframe of 7 years. If Express Scripts, Inc. (ESI) were to go out of business, their Legal
| requirement would continue to retain data at the 3rd party vendor to stay in compliance with
l pharmacy law.

Process Flow

The following Process Flows are to be used in conjunction with this SOP:

* Not applicable

Reference Documents

Individuals using this procedure should become familiar with the following documents:

¢ Not applicable

Document History

Document Location

This is an on-line document. Refer to the author if you are in any doubt about the accuracy of this document.

Revision History

ss‘x)‘g‘: g;;/;swn Summary of Changes Author
0 06/03/2005 | Original Lisa Havens
1 09/13/2005 Laura Turner
2 04/28/2008 Laura Turner
3 10/27/2009 Laura Turner
4 11/21/2011 Laura Turner
5 11/03/2014 Laura Turner
6 09/29/2015 | Header/footer. Removed step 1 as process has changed. Laura Turner
7 09/23/2016 | Corrected effective date; added AH! reference Laura Turner
Added an example of retired course folder name. Updated course
8 10/30/2017 | list location. Revised retired course process. Added when a Laura Turner
retired course may be deleted.
Revised address in footer.
Changed folder name format from Course Owner — (Access ID) —
9 11/14/2018 | Course Title — approval date to (Access ID) Course Title — Laura Turner
Approval Date
Revised W drive to N drive.
10 02/03/2023 | No change Laura Turner
20f3

Accredo Health, Inc. ©* 11411 Strang Line Rd | Lenexa Kansas i 66215 CNE/IV Therapy 48

SOP CE 5



Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

Subject Matter Expert (SME) Reviewers

This document was reviewed /edited by following SMEs:

Name Title o , Date Reviewed:
Bette Murrell Continuing Education Specialist 11/18/2009
Karin Everett Clinical Coordinator 12/02/2009
Laura Turner Continuing Education Administrator 11/3/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/3/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/07/2015
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 09/27/2016
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/31/2017
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/15/2018
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 02/08/2023

Approvals

This document requires following approvals:

Name Title ‘ Date Approved
Mary Ann Anderson Director of Manufacturer Services 01/31/2011
Barbara Prosser Vice President, Infusion Operations Support

Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 11/3/2014

Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources — Nursing 12/7/2015

Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/29/2016

Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 11/06/2017

Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 11/15/2018

Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 02/08/2023

30f3
Accredo Health, Inc. i1 11411 Strang Line Rd (i Lenexa i Kansas 1 66215

CNE/IV. Therapy.49.

SOP CE 5




- Number: ’ Revision: | Effective Date:

AHISOPCE16 | 12 06/13/2005

Title: Post Presentation Process (gﬁiff{f{i(}

Department: Continuing Education

 Program: General

Purpose

To provide a standardized procedure for processing the post presentation documents and creating
certificates of completion for participants.

Scope

This procedure is applicable to AHI CE. It should be referenced by all individuals that that will be receiving
and entering referrals.

Definitions

AHI - Accredo Health, Inc.

CE - Continuing Education

CEA — Continuing Education Administrator
CES - Continuing Education Specialist

Procedure

it is your responsibility to ensure that you understand this procedure before performing the following
tasks. Contact the document author if you have any questions about this procedure.

Post presentation documents will be processed and certificates and/or statements of credit mailed within 4
weeks of receipt if all required information is present.

Step  Action

CES receives hardcopy from presenters or account coordinators, or accesses electronic data in
LLMS or Survey Monkey, post presentation documents, including attendance rosters, evaluations,
and pre- and posttests (if applicable). When appropriate, the CEA or CES grades posttest to
determine if participant passed and is eligible for contact hours.

e CES ensures all required documents are present

+ CES enters presentation information into Continuing Education database under “Session”:

1 * Date of presentation
= Presenter
»  Location
»  Contact type

Contact person, address, and phone number
Participant names, state(s), and license number(s) (required for nurses), NABP |ID and
DOB (MMDD) (required for pharmacists).

From entered data, CES creates course completion certificates, statements of credit, and/or
verification of completion forms; and alphabetized participant list. Certificates, statements of credit,
and verification of completion forms are mailed or emailed to individual designated on Request to
Present form. This could be:

»  Presenter or account manager

= Point person at location of presentation

= Participant

e See AHI SOP 41 Reporting in CPE Monitor

CNE/IV Therapy 50




CES enters hardcopy evaluation responses into the “Universal UPACE Evaluation Template —
Multi-discipline” in Survey Monkey.

o Select “New Collector.” Rename with Session Number, Course Name, Session Date, City,
State, and number of evaluations received.
Manually enter evaluation responses.
Filter results to display session results only.
Export evaluation all summary data in Excel.
Save evaluation summary on W Drive in Continuing Education/Presentation Summaries
remove with name — CE Database Session Number/Course Title/Presentation
Date//City/State.

» o o @

CES completes the “Completed Documents Checklist’, a tool used to track completeness of the
post presentation program records and process, with the following information:
e Date documents received
Course title
Presentation date
Agency name
City, state
Presenter
Presenter's manager or Participant Supervisor for completion of Home / Self Study course
Access Session number
Total number of participants
Total number of evaluations received
Total certificates and or statements of credit issued per discipline, date issued, and to whom
sent
e Checklist of the following:
= Alphabetized participant list generated by CE Data Base
Evaluations received
Posttest received
Confidentiality Agreement received
Evaluation summary completed
Electronic file made: “N” drive
Evaluation summary sent to Presenter and their direct supervisor
= Ready for permanent filing

e & & & 6 6 5 > o »

The completed document checklist is attached to the post presentation documents:

s Attendance roster of participants (name, license number, signature, contact hours awarded,
offering title, date of offering) to whom credit was awarded

o Participant course objectives and evaluations

e Summary of the program:
» Alphabetized participant list
»  ACPE Activity Description form (ADF) as appropriate

Hardcopy documents are filed.

Security measures:

Program records are kept in a locked file cabinet only accessible to the CEA and CES for seven

(7) years, however, the minimum required length of time from the date of program completion is

listed per discipline:

¢ Advance Practice Registered Nurse, Registered Nurse, and Licensed Practical Nurse — no
less than 2 years

e Pharmacist — no less than 5 years

e Case manager — no less than 5 years

The file cabinet is located within AHI. Access to the office is restricted by locked doors that open
with the use of a card key. The CE database is only accessible to the CEA and CES. The audited
CE electronic folders are restricted to the CEA and CES. See AHI SOP CE 5 Course Offering
Material Maintenance

CNE/IV Therapy 51




Individual attendance and information regarding each offering shall be available within two (2)
7 weeks upon request from individual health care professionals or their specific board. If individual
health care professionals are assessed a fee for this retrieval service, the fee shall be specified.

Program records for all informal offerings shall include:
8 e roster of participants to whom credit was awarded
e summary of the program including participant and provider evaluations

The hardcopy session material is kept in a locked file cabinet accessible to the CEA, CES, and
select Associate Account Coordinators only. Hardcopy presentation material after 2 years may be
moved to Iron Mountain for storage and is retrievable within 48 hours.

fron Mountain

15400 W. 99 Street

Lenexa, Kansas 66219

Phone: (913) 888-4766
Hardcopy session material may be shredded no less than 7 years after the session date.

The evaluation summary will be forwarded to the presenter, the direct supervisor who is
responsible for the disease state or subject matter of the course offering or to whom the presenter
10 reports, and to the CE Advisory Committee for the purpose of evaluating the present courses and
future course planning. Evaluations containing negative comments or scores of "Fair’ or “Poor” are
forwarded to the CEA for review to determine if action is required.

Process Flow
The following Process Flows are to be used in conjunction with this SOP:

¢ Not applicable

Reference Documents

Individuals using this procedure should become familiar with the following documents:
s AHI SOP CE 5 - Course Offering Material Maintenance

* AHI SOP CE 41 - Reporting in CPE Monitor

Document History

Document Location

This is an on-line document. Refer to the author if you are in any doubt about the accuracy of this
document.

Revision History

S(S\rﬁz‘gp ' g:;/eision Summary of Changes Author ;
0 06/13/2005 | Original Lisa Havens

1 09/15/2005 Laura Turner
2 01/30/2006 Laura Turner
3 05/11/2007 Laura Turner
4 04/28/2008 Laura Turner
5 10/27/2009 Laura Turner
6 11/22/2011 Laura Turner

CNE/IV Therapy 52




7 10/10/2014

Laura Turner

08/26/2015

Updated header, footer; Added supporting SOPs.

Laura Turner

9 09/20/2016

Corrected effective date; removed content pertaining to AARC
and respiratory therapy processes; added AHI reference.

Laura Turner

10 11/08/2017

CPE Monitor

Deleted CE Broker process. Did not renew. Revised post-pre.
Process to include evaluation summary in one Survey Monkey
template. Added pharmacist attendance roster requirements for

Laura Turner

11 11/19/2018

Revised footer address.
Revised spelling of post test to posttest.
Asked Erica to review and revise.

Laura Turner

12 02/07/2023

Added “email” to #2.

Removed “Respiratory Therapist” from #6.

Laura Turner

Subject Matter Expert (SME) Reviewers

This document was reviewed/edited by following SMEs:

Name Title Date Reviewed
Bette Murrell Continuing Education Specialist 11/18/2009
Karin Everett Clinical Coordinator 01/12/2010
Laura Turner Continuing Education Administrator 10/10/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/10/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/07/2015
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 09/27/2016
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/08/2017
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/19/2018
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 02/07/2023
Approvals
This document requires following approvals:
Name Title Date Approved
Mary Ann Anderson Director of Manufacturer Services 01/31/2011
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources- Nursing 10/10/2014
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources- Nursing 11/23/2015
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources- Nursing 12/29/2016
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/22/2017
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 11/20/2018
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 02/07/2023

CNE/IV Therapy 53




Number:

AHI SOP CE 17 9 06/27/2005

Revision: | Effective Date:

" Title: Continuing Education Fee F”'ayment,‘
Assessment, and Reimbursement Process

Department: Continuing Education

A Program: Gene’ral | {z {1{?}‘5{5 ('zi} %

Purpose

To provide a standardized process for payment for various Accredo Health, Inc. Continuing Education (AHI
CE). requirements.

Scope

This procedure is applicable to AHI CE. it should be referenced by all individuals responsible for processing
AHI CE Fee Payments and/or Reimbursements.

Definitions
AHI — Accredo Health, Inc.

CE - Continuing Education

Procedure

It is your responsibility to ensure that you understand this procedure before performing the following tasks.
Contact the document author if you have any questions about this procedure.

The CE Specialist will complete a check request form, submit it to Accounts Payable Division, and receive a
check to pay Continuing Education related fees.

1.1 Check Request Process

Step Action .
If the purchase falls outside the guidelines for usmg a P-Card and/or the Vendor will not take aP-

1 Card, complete a check request form with the appropriate information. If this is the first fee paid to
this vendor, request the vendor provide a W-9 form prior to fee payment.
Complete the official department check request form to include the division and location number,

2 check recipient's name and address, the amount requested, date requested, date required, name
of originator, location where check is to be sent, reason for check, and the general ledger account
numbers. ,

3 Obtain authorized signature or approval email from CE manager.

4 Send check request form plus approval by email to accounts payable.
Save electronic check request form in W Drive/Continuing Education/Check Request Form/Date

5 Vendor file. File copy of check request and attachments with pertinent documents in CE file cabinet
in folder with vendor name. Attach a copy of the check to the filed hardcopy documents when the
checkisreceived.

1 2 Fee Payment by Company Credit Card Process

Step Action

10f3

Accredo Health, Inc. (7 11411 Strang Line Rd i Lenexa i Kansas "1 66215  ~NE/nv Therapy. 54
SOP CE 17




Standard Operating Procedure

o | Accredo _—
In the event the fee may be paid by company credit card, provide P-Card information: name,
1 number, expiration date and security code.
5 The Continuing Education Administrator or the Continuing Education Specialist will provide the

Supervisor (P-Card owner) with a copy of the receipt, and keep a hardcopy on file.

1.3 Fee Assessment Process

Step  Action

1 No fee is assessed for continuing education offerings for AHI employees.

5 | No fees are assessed for CE offerings presented to healthcare providers not employed by AHI.

1.4 Fee Reimbursement Process

Step  Action

1 AHI does not charge a fee for continuing education.

Process Flow
The following Process Flows are to be used in conjunction with this SOP:

« Not applicable

Reference Documents
Individuals using this procedure should become familiar with the following documents:
o W-8form

o Check Request Form

Document History

Document Location

This is an on-line document. Refer to the author if you are in any doubt about the accuracy of this document.

Revision History

Eﬁ\rﬁgp g:;/eision Summary of Changes Author

0 06/27/2005 | Original Lisa Havens
1 01/30/2006 Laura Turner
2 06/10/2008 Laura Turner

20f3

Accredo Health, Inc. i1 11411 Strang Line Rd i/ Lenexa i Kansas 66215" CNE/IV Therapy 55

SOP CE 17



Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo
3 10/27/2009 Laura Turner
4 01/06/2012 Laura Turner
5 10/16/2014 Laura Turner
6 11/16/2015 ;Js?cit.ed suite #, removed 3™ request under insufficient check Laura Turner
7 09/20/2016 | Corrected effective date, added AHI reference. Laura Turner
Deleted information pertaining to fee assessment and fee
8 11/03/2017 | reimbursement processes as we do not charge fees. Added W-9 |Laura Turner
form as reference document
9 11/19/2018 | Revised footer address. Revised sentence structure. Laura Turner
10 2/6/2023 |No change Laura Turner

Subject Matter Expert (SME) Reviewers

This document was reviewed/edited by following SMEs:

Name Title Date Reviewed
Bette Murrell Continuing Education Specialist 11/18/2009
Karin Everett Clinical Coordinator 01/12/2010
Laura Turner Continuing Education Administrator 10/16/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/16/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/16/2015
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 09/27/2016
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/08/2017
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/20/2018
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 02/06/2023
Approvals
This document requires following approvals:
Name , Title ' ; o , | Date Approved
Mary Ann Anderson Director of Manufacturer Services 01/31/2011
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources- Nursing 10/16/2014
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 11/16/2015
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/29/2016
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/22/2017
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 11/20/2018
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 02/06/2023
30f3
Accredo Health, Inc. 1 11411 Strang Line Rd 7 Lenexa I/ Kansas [ 66215 ANEAY. Tharany EA

SOP CE 17




Number: Revision: | Effective Date:

AHI SOP CE 18 9 06/28/2005

| Tiflé’: Independent Study Co”ntinuing

Education Requirements [j{j{j?“{}{i{)

: Department: Continuing Education

* Program: General

Purpose

To provide a standardized process for development and completion of Independent Learning continuing
education courses approved for pharmacist, nurse, and case manager Accredo Health, Inc. Continuing
Education (AHI CE).

Scope

This procedure is applicable to the Accredo Health, Inc. Continuing Education (AHI CE). It should be
referenced by all individuals developing or completing independent learning CE.

Definitions

AHI — Accredo Health, Inc.

CCMC — Commission for Case Manager Certification
CE — Continuing Education

S8 - Self-study

Home-study and other mediated activities - printed, recorded, or computer-assisted instructional
activities that do not provide for direct interaction between faculty and participants.

Independent study - a self-paced learning activity undertaken by the participant in an unstructured
setting under the guidance of, and monitored by, an approved provider. This term may include self-study
, distance learning, and authorship.

Procedure

It is your responsibility to ensure that you understand this procedure before performing the following
tasks. Contact the document author if you have any questions about this procedure.

Participants of AHI CE courses that are not presented live will be required to complete an attendance roster
and pass a posttest with a minimum number of correct answers.

1.1 New Course Process

Step Action - , | ,
1 The course will be created and submitted for approval to the CE Administrator.

CE Administrator will develop additional supporting course material:
e Instructions for participant explaining requirements
« Instructions for participant explaining post presentation material handling
e Attendance roster requiring the following participant information:
=  Name
2 = Signature
»  State(s) and license number(s) (nurses only)
» NABP e-Profile ID and DOB (MMDD) (Pharmacists only)
» Address
Posttest and Answer Key with rationale
e Evaluation

CNE/IV Therapy 57




Contaéf hours will be determined by pilot test as per AHI SOP CE 4: Pilot Test Policy: Independent
Learning Contact Hour Determination via Pilot Test

Course material will be approved as per AHI SOP CE 1: Continuing Education Process
Upon approval for nurse continuing education, the course will be submitted to CCMC for case
manager approval, if applicable, per AHI SOP CE 6 Initial and Annual Commission for Case
Manager Certification Course Approval.

6

The Project requestor and their manager will be informed of approval, presentation
process, and materials.

1.2 Previously Developed Course Process

Step  Action

The request for an independent learning option for a previously approved course offering will be

CCMC for approval due to change in format per AHI SOP CE 6 Initial and Annual Commission for

1 sent to the CE Administrator.
CE Administrator will develop additional course material:
¢ Instructions for participant explaining:
o course and posttest requirements
o Post-education process to receive CE credit
®
* Attendance roster requiring the following participant information:
2 = Name
= Signature
=  State(s) and license number(s) (nurses only)
= NABP e-Profile ID and DOB (MMDD) (Pharmacists only)
* Address
o Posttest / Answer Key with rationale
¢ Evaluation
3 Two (2) members of the CE Committee will review and approve additional course material.
If the independent learning will be offered to case managers, the course will be resubmitted to
4
Case Manager Certification Course Approval.
5 The project manager and project requestor will be notified of independent learning course

approval.

1.3 Presented CE Series recorded via WebEx

Step  Action

The CEA will review and edit the recording.
s Go to “My Training Recordings” and select the presentation link you wish to revise.
1. Select “Streaming recording” link.
2. Listen to audio to determine start and stop times.
3. Go back to previous screen and select “Modify.” Will take you to “Edit Recording.”
4. Under “Recording File,”
a. unclick “Panel Display Options”
b. Select “Partial Playback” and enter Start and End times
¢. Select “Save”
d. Listen to audio by selecting “Streaming recording” link to make sure it starts and
ends where desired.
e. Copy link.

CNE/IV Therapy 58



CE Administrator will revise course material:
e Add to ACPE Webtool and create new UAN
e Add SS course into CE database to get course ID.
e Change original live course ID to new SS course |D
¢ Revise document to reflect self-study format
o EDDF: course ID, title, UAN, presentation format
o Brochure: change live format references to recording of live reference; instruction
for course and pre- and posttest requirements
o Attendance rosters
e Add course ID, title, and ACPE planned retire date to CE Series Recorded Presentations
Instructions found in Continuing Education folder “CE Series_SS Survey Monkey. Save
updated instructions with new date: e.g. 102317 CE Series Recorded Presentations
Instructions.

Add course to “CE Series Self Study — Session Info: Pretest/registration, Posttest, Evaluation,
Participant Information” template in Survey Monkey.

e Select “Design Survey”

e Add Course ID, title, planned retire date. Add any unigue info such as contact hours other than
RN 1.25, RPh 1.25

Go to last course added pre-test and make a copy.

Revise copy with new course 1D, title including Pre-test, and pre-test content.

Change copied course title to new course title.

Copy and paste test questions and responses. Select “Score this question” (enable quiz
mode). Mark correct answer(s). Save. Do this for each question. You may need to add or
delete questions if the copied test has a different number of questions than the one you are
adding.

e Add Answer choice and select “Insert / edit Link.

e In box “Insert Link,” add WebEx recording URL. For target, choose “New Window.”

o Select "OK.” Delete link from copied course.

e e e ©

Make a copy of the pre-test page. Rename it Course ID Title Posttest and Evaluation.

e Add passing grade information.

¢ Delete answer option “I don't know” from every question.

e Add course objectives under question asking participant to rate their level of expertise per
objective. Make sure to delete other course’s objectives.

e Save changes.

Return to page 1.

e For question 1. choose “Logic.”

o Find appropriate course title. In drop-down box on left, select course pre-test title. in drop-
down box on right, choose “Top of Page.” Save.

e Go to Pretest page. Select “Page Logic.” Select “Page Skip Logic.” Select the course posttest
and evaluation page in window below, “After the current page is completed, skip to this
page.... Select “Apply.”

e Go to Posttest page. Select “Page Logic.” Select “Page Skip Logic.” Select P##. Presenter
and Content evaluation. Select “Apply.”

Select “Preview and Test” at the upper right corner of the template. Choose added course and
select “Next” at page bottom. You should be taken to the pretest page.

If you did not, repeat step 5.

Complete the questions.

Test the WebEx link. If it doesn’t work, repeat step #3.

If link works, select “Next.”

If you were not taken to the post-test, repeat step #5.

Complete posttest and evaluation, and participant discipline. Select "Next.”
If you do not go to, “Presenter and Content evaluation,” repeat step #3.

CNE/IV Therapy 59




. Comp!éte page and select “Next.”
o Complete “Participant and Continuing Education Credit Information” page.
e Preview & Test again, or end test.

i

\
|

1.3 Post Presentation Process

Have one or two other people trial.

Step | Action

The CE Specialist will receive notification the participant has completed the activity, and view
posttest score:
+ Select Analyze Results
¢ Select Individual responses
¢ Find participants results by scrolling through respondent # tab
or
1 s Filter by questions and answer.
o Select question that contains an identifier such as name
o choose a row such as last name
o add matching words and input participants last name
o select apply.
Notify participant if they did not pass and send them link to 2" attempt posttest with instructions
and handout,
The CE Specialist will process the post presentation material as per AHI SOP CE16: Post
Presentation Process. , ,
The CE Specialist will create a certificate or statement of credit for individuals who have
3 successfully passed the posttest, and mail it to them along with the answer key and rationale for
future reference. Pharmacist credit will be submitted to CPE Monitor .

Process Flow

The following Process Flows are to be used in conjunction with this SOP:

s Not applicable

Reference Documents
Individuals using this procedure should become familiar with the following documents:

AHI SOP CE 1: Continuing Education Process

AHI SOP CE 4: Independent Learning Contact Hour Determination via Pilot Test
AHI SOP CE 6: CCMC Course Approval

AHI SOP CE 16: Post Presentation Process

Document History

Document Location

This is an on-line document. Refer to the author if you are in any doubt about the accuracy of this
document.

CNE/IV Therapy 60




Revision History

Revision |Revision |.. . . ... .
Number |Date Summary Qf Changes ‘ ~ Auth‘:o‘rr :
0 06/28/2005 | Original Lisa Havens
1 01/30/2006 Laura Turner
2 04/28/2008 Laura Turner
3 10/27/2009 Laura Turner
4 10/13/2014 Laura Turner
5 09/3/2015 |Revised suite #, header , Laura Turner
6 09/20/2016 | Corrected effective date; added EHI reference Laura Turner
7 10/31/2017 | Added 1.3 Presented CE Series recorded via WebEx Laura Turner

Revised footer address.

Added “development” to purpose.

Added SS — self-study to definitions.

Added Answer Key with rationale to supporting course material.

Revised AHI SOP CE 1 title.

Corrected pretest, posttest, and determination spelling.
8 11/20/2018 | Revised formatting of 1.2.2. Added answer key with rationale to || qura Turner

course material.

Removed “Program” from CEA title.

Added steps to 1.3.1 how to access participant score in Survey

Monkey.

Added instructions for 2nd attempt posttest.

Added 1.3.3 — mail certificate and answer key with rationale to

participant.
9 02/08/2023 | No change Laura Turner

Subject Matter Expert (SME) Reviewers

This document was reviewed/edited by following SMEs:

This document requires following approvals:

Name Title Date Reviewed
Bette Murrell Continuing Education Specialist 12/01/2009
Karin Everett Clinical Coordinator 12/02/2009
Laura Turner Continuing Education Administrator 10/13/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/13/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/07/2015
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 09/27/2016
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/20/2017
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/27/2018
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 02/08/2023
Approvals

CNE/IV Therapy 61




Name Title Date Approved
Mary Ann Anderson Director of Manufacturer Services (no longer applicable) 01/31/2009
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources- Nursing 10/13/2014
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 11/16/2015
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/29/2016
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/05/2018
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 02/08/2023

CNE/IV Therapy 62




' Number: f Revision: | Effective Date:
AHI SOP CE 26 10 10/03/2005

Title: Contihdihg Education Administrator ff{f’{?’“é”é’fi}
Qualifications and Responsibilities A LA

Department: Continuing Education

Program: General

Purpose

To provide a standardized guideline for the qualifications and responsibilities required by and for this position.

Scope

This procedure is applicable to Accredo Health, Inc. Continuing Education (AHI CE). It should be referenced
by all individuals performing the Continuing Education Administrator responsibilities.

Definitions

ACPE - Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education
AHI - Accredo Health, Inc.

CBN - California Board of Nursing

CCMC - Commission for Case Manager Certification
CE - Continuing Education

CEA - Continuing Education Administrator

KSBN — Kansas Board of Nursing

Procedure

It is your responsibility to ensure that you understand this procedure before performing the following tasks.
Contact the document author if you have any questions about this procedure.

1.1 CEA Administrator Qualifications and Responsibilities

Step Action

The CEA will be a visible, continuous and identifiable authority charged with the administration of the
provider's CPE program. The administrative authority shall have the responsibility and be accountable
for assuring and demonstrating compliance with all accreditation board standards. AHI CE will have
policies and procedures to conduct its CE program. . The CEA shall be qualified by virtue of
background, education, training and/or experience. The CEA must have authority within the
organization to assure that all accreditation board standards, and policies and procedures, are met.

e The CEA meets the following requirements: (Attachment KSBN Nurse Practice Act 60-0-107 (c)
(1) Licensed professional nurse

A working knowledge of continuing education programming and development

Have 3 years clinical experience

Have one experience in developing and implementing continuing education

Have a baccalaureate degree in nursing, except those individuals exempt under K.S.A. 65-
1119 €(6) and amendments thereto.

e An understanding of the basic principles of adult learning

10f8

Accredo Health, Inc. (1 11411 Strang Line Rd [ Lenexa ©® Kansas [1 66215

A\

20
rap

63
SOP CE 26




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

e Experience in program faculty selection, program budget preparation, record keeping, and a
general familiarity with contemporary pharmacy and nurse practice and current trends and
issues in pharmaceutical and nursing education.

Responsibilities:
¢ Oversight and management of presenters
e Oversight and management of;
o Presentations
o Presentation materials, references, PowerPoint presentations, handouts, manuals,
and supplies
o Day-to-day AHI CE department operations
¢ Develop and maintain relationship with provider boards
* Attend supervisory meetings related to the AHI CE offerings and program
¢ Develop and update SOPs as needed for AHI CE

The CE Administrator should be able to: (CPE Policies and Procedures: Section V - Policy 1.0
CPE Administrator; Appendix E; Competency Areas for CE Administrators for the Health
Professionals)
Competency Area 1. Using Adult/Organizational Learning Principles
+ Use evidence-based adult and organizational learning principles to improve the performance
of healthcare professionals, healthcare teams, and the organizations in which they work, in
order to improve patient outcomes.
o Competency 1.1: Apply adult learning principles in CE activities and overall program
planning by:
= |dentifying sources and resources about applicable and appropriate adult
learning principles and practices that can be used to support healthcare
professionals, and healthcare teams’, learning and change.
=  Describing how effective use of applicable and appropriate adult learning
principles can facilitate learning and change in healthcare professionals.
* Designing CE activities/interventions based on best practices and emerging
research.
o Competency 1.2: Apply organizational learning principles in CE activities/interventions
and overall program planning by...
= |dentifying sources and resources about applicable and appropriate
organizational learning principles and practices that can be used to support
program and organizational learning and change.
= Describing how effective use of applicable and appropriate organizational
learning principles can facilitate learning and change in the organizations in
which healthcare professionals work.
* Developing one's CE program and/or organization based on best practices
and emerging research.
Competency Area 2: Designing Educational Interventions
. Implement and improve independent, fair, balanced, and evidence-based educational
interventions that produce expected results for learners and the organizations in which they
work.
o Implement CE activities/interventions to address healthcare professionals’ practice
gaps and underlying learning needs by....
= |dentifying data and other sources that can help reveal healthcare
professionals’ practice gaps and learning needs.
= Using data and information related to healthcare professionals’ practice gaps
and learning needs to design CE activities/interventions.
= Developing learning objectives for CE activities that clearly describe the
intended behavior/action of the learner after engaging in the CE
activity/intervention.

20f8

Accredo Health, Inc. ©© 11411 Strang Line Rd i/ Lenexa " Kansas 1 66215  CNE/IV Therapy 64

SOP CE 26




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

= Creating CE activities/interventions using formats that are selected based on
objectives and expected results

= Creating Interprofessional CE activities for the healthcare team, when
appropriate.

o Develop CE activities/interventions with content that is valid, independent from the
influence of commercial interests, balanced and evidenced based by...

=, Implementing appropriate process(es) to help ensure CE content is valid
independent from the influence of commercial interests, and free from
commercial bias.
= Utilizing strategies to ensure CE content is modified prior to an activity, and
processes are reviewed for future activities, if problems are detected with the
balance, independence, or validity of a CE activity’s content.
Competency Area 3: Measuring the Performance of CE activities and the overall CE Program
¢ Use data to evaluate the effectiveness of CE activities / interventions and the impact of the
overall CE program.

o Use evaluation and outcomes data to: (1) assess the educational outcomes/results of
the CE activities/ interventions on participants' attitudes, knowledge levels, skills,
performance and/or patient outcomes, (2) determine unmet learning needs and (3)
assess the quality and success of CE activities/interventions.

= |dentifying the level(s) of outcome associated with objectives and expected
results of the CE activity/intervention

= Selecting assessment methods and tools that are appropriate for the goals
and objectives of the CE activity/intervention, based on the CE practice
setting and resources (e.g., time, expertise, staff, budget, stakeholder
expectations).

» Analyzing assessment data in order to draw conclusions about the
effectiveness of the CE activity/Intervention, based on expected results.

= Analyzing assessment data in order to identify learning needs that future CE
activities/interventions can address.

o Use evaluation and outcomes data to evaluate the impact of the CE program meeting
its mission and relevant organizational goals.

= Outlining steps to evaluate the impact of the CE program and its effectiveness
in meeting mission and relevant organizational goals.
= Utilizing activity evaluation data, and other relevant information, to assess the
impact of the overall CE program and the extent to which the CE mission and
relevant organizational goals were met.
» |dentifying areas for improvement within the CE program and individual CE
activities based on the overall CE program evaluation process.
Competency Area 4: Collaborating and Partnering with Stakeholders
e Collaborate and partner with stakeholders to help meet the CE mission.
o Collaborate with internal stakeholder groups that can help maximize the impact of CE
activities/interventions and meet the CE mission by...

= ldentifying opportunities for internal collaborations that can help the CE
program meet its mission (e.g., conduct an internal stakeholders analysis)

= Implementing an ongoing, collaborative communication plan with internal
stakeholders

= Evaluating the extent to which the collaboration helped achieve a CE
activity/intervention’s goals and objectives

»  Evaluating the extent to which the collaboration helped the CE program meet
its mission

o Collaborate with external stakeholder groups and key partners that can help maximize
the impact of CE activities/interventions and meet the CE mission by...

30f8

Accredo Health, Inc. 1 11411 Strang Line Rd ©1 Lenexa 71 Kansas 7! 66215  ~NE/IV Therany.65

SOP CE 26




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

= ldentifying opportunities for external collaborations that can help the CE
program meet its mission (e.g., conduct an external stakeholders analysis)
= Implementing an ongoing, collaborative communication plan with external
stakeholders
= Evaluating the extent to which the collaboration helped achieve a CE
activity/intervention’s goals and objectives
» Evaluating the extent to which the collaboration helped the CE program meet
its mission
= Maintaining compliance
Competency Area 5: Manage and Administer the CPE Program
* Manage and administer the CE office operations to meet personnel, financial, legal, logistical,
accreditation, CE credit, and / or regulatory standards.
o Execute CE activities and the CE program following sound and applicable business
policies and practices by....
* |mplementing basic accounting, financial management, and human resource
practices in compliance with organizational policies and procedures.
= Creating and/or interpret CE activity/intervention and CE program budgets,
along with income and expense statements.
*  Producing CE activities/interventions and administer the CE program in
compliance with local, regional, state and federal laws and regulations.
* Integrating effective meeting planning and hospitality management practices
into the planning and production of CE activities.
* Utilizing current and appropriate databases, software, and other technologies
in the execution of CE activities /interventions and the overall CE program.

Competency Area 6: Lead the CE Program
s Provide leadership for the CE program.
o Conduct all affairs with high standards of professionalism and ethics by...
= Adhering to ethical standards for CE professionals and related fields
=  Providing resources to help others learn about ethics and professionalism in
CE
= Providing mechanisms and support to help other identify and address ethical
dilemmas
o Develop and model a learning organization by...
= Creating mechanisms and practices that involve stakeholders in developing
solutions to identified problems
= Linking principles of continuous quality improvement to CE activities, the CE
program, and overall organizational improvement
= Utilizing collaborations with internal and external stakeholders to support
organizational learning and improvement
= Creating an environment that embraces learning and change
o Develop and model a learning organization by...
» Creating mechanisms and practices that involve stakeholders in developing
solutions to identified problems
= Linking principles of continuous quality improvement to CE activities, the CE
program, and overall organizational improvement
= Utilizing collaborations with internal and external stakeholders to support
organizational learning and improvement
= Creating an environment that embraces learning and change
o Be an advocate for the CE program, its mission, activities, staff and volunteers by...
= Recognizing the success and potential areas of improvement of one’s own
CE program

40f8

Accredo Health, Inc. I 11411 Strang Line Rd (: Lenexa [ Kansas {: 66215 CNE/IV Therapy 66

SOP CE 26




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

»  Encouraging opportunities for staff to participate in professional activities that
can highlight and expand their abilities
= Recognizing the achievements of staff and volunteers
= Sharing experiences and achievements with the CE community through
publicatlons and presentations
Competency Area 7: Engage in Self- Assessment and Lifelong Learning
o Continually assess individual and CE program performance, and make lmprovements
through relevant learning experiences. Engage in assessments and professional
development to help identify and then close one’s own knowledge, competence, and
performance gaps by....
= Participating in self-assessments and stay abreast of the CE environment to
identify gaps in one’s own CE knowledge, competence and performance.
=  Creating an individual learning plan for improvement with personal goals and
objectives that would address the identified gaps.
= Participating in professional development opportunities that would address
identified gaps.
= Modifying one’s own practice of CE to close identified gaps.
= Seeking out opportunities for feedback on new and/or modified practices
o Engage in assessments and professional development to help maintain and/or
improve the performance of the CE program by...
» Comparing the CE program’s performance to standards of practice and/or
emerging trends to identify areas of improvement.
= Creating an improvement plan for the CE program with goals and objectives
that would address needed and desired changes.
= Participating in training and learning opportunities that help support
implementation of the improvement plan.
»  Making modifications to the CE program to address areas of improvement
»  Seeking out opportunities for feedback on new and/or modified CE program
practices
o Actively participate in the profession of CE in order to model lifelong learning by...
=  Exploring opportunities to volunteer for professional and/or regulatory
organizations in CE
= Sharing best practices and experiences at local, regional, and/or national
meetings of CE professionals
= Disseminating best practices, experiences, and/or findings from one’s own
research and scholarship in CE via journals, newsletters, and other
publications
» Engaging in CE social media communications
Competency Area 8: Engaging in Systems Thinking in CE
e Approach the practice of CE from a system-thinking perspective, recognizing that healthcare
professionals are part of a complex healthcare system that delivers patient care. (Engage in
Systems Thinking in CE)
o Integrate into the design and assessment of educational activities/interventions a
systems-based approach to identifying and closing gaps in healthcare by...
= Evaluating quality and performance gaps for systems-based issues (e.g.,
structures and processes) that can be addressed within CE
activities/interventions
» Addressing systems-based issues that are barriers to change and the
implementation of new knowledge and skill
= Assessing improvements in team performance.
» Developing CE content that supports collaborative practice within the inter-
professional healthcare team

50f8

Accredo Health, Inc. 11 11411 Strang Line Rd {1 Lenexa i Kansas 1 66215 cNE/IV Therapy. 67
SOP CE 268




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

AHI must have, or provide, support for the administrator's continuing professional development.

5 The administrator and, where utilized, other professional staff, should maintain and enhance their
professional development by seeking to improve their knowledge, skills, and experience in the
responsibilities noted above.

1.2 Administrative Change

Administrative Change: (26b ACPE Policy 1.0 CPE Administrator 1b.; AHI SOP CE 12:
Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education Provider Web Tool)
In the event of administrative change, a transfer of authority procedure should exist for a smooth
and orderly administrative responsibilities transfer from one individual to another. The authority
1 transfer includes prompt notification to all accreditation boards within 30 days. ACPE notification
will be via the Provider Verification Form in the Provider Web Tool whenever a change takes
place. Adequate training of the new administrator will occur to ensure familiarity with accreditation
board standards. policy and procedures, general administrative and other liaison responsibilities
between Accredo Health, Inc. and all accreditation boards, and all other areas of operational and
policy responsibility for the Accredo Health, Inc. continuing education efforts. ,
ACPE Notification: When a change in administrator, address, or contact information occurs,
Accredo Health, Inc. must submit an online Provider Verification Form via the Provider Web Tool
prior to the change taking place.

a. Log into the Provider Web Tool

2 b. Click “Provider Verification Form”
c. Click "Make changes”
d. Enter the changes into the appropriate fields
e. Click “Submit” B ) ) ,
If there is an administrative change, Accredo Health, Inc. will ensure the new administrator is
familiar with all accreditation board standards and policies and procedures; ACPE standards,
policies, and procedures, including required participation in an ACPE Administrator's Workshop.
» |If possible, the former Continuing Education Administrator will orient the incoming CEA to all
accreditation board (ACPE, KSBN, and CCMC) standards, policies, and procedures. If that is
not possible, orientation will be provided by the Continuing Education Manager / Sr Manager
Clinical Training, and the Continuing Education Specialist.
e All accreditation standards, policies, and procedures are contained in the Continuing
Education Standards of practice found at:
o Electronic:
3 = W:\Continuing Education 1\ in the following folders:
o ACPE
o CCMC
o KSBN
o Online:
= ACPE - hitp://lwww.acpe-accredit.org/.
=  CCMC - http://www.ccmcertification.org/.
»  KSBN - http://www.ksbn.org
= _CBN - hitps://www.rn.ca.gov/applicants/cep-lic.shtmi#qual

Process Flow

The following Process Flows are to be used in conjunction with this SOP:

s Not applicable

6of8

Accredo Health, Inc. ©* 11411 Strang Line Rd i Lenexa * Kansas 1 66215  CNE/IV Therapy 68

SOP CE 26



Standard Operating Procedure
Accredo

Reference Documents

Individuals using this procedure should become familiar with the following documents:
e 26a: KSBN Nurse Practice Act 60-9-107-c-1

e 26b Section V — CPE Policies and Procedures: Policy 1.0 CPE Administrator

e 26c: Appendix E — CPE Policies and Procedures; Competency Areas for CE Administrators for the
Health Professionals

¢ AHI SOP CE 12: Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education Provider Web Tool

Document History

Document Location

This is an on-line document. Refer to the author if you are in any doubt about the accuracy of this document.

Revision History

Revision |Revision

Number |Date Summary of Changes - - E . . : AUthbr .
0 10/03/2005 | Original Laura Turner
1 01/30/2006 Laura Turner
2 04/28/2008 Laura Turner
3 10/27/2009 Laura Turner
4 11/22/2011 Laura Turner
5 10/20/2014 Laura Turner
6 [oommons|Reused vemderfoater emoyed eerence o GE ranetste, |z o
7 09/22/2016 Corrected effective date; corrected previous version number; AHI Laura Turner

reference added.

Added definitions. Updated CE provider responsibilities to match
ACPE July 2017 update, and CPE Policies and Procedures —

8 08/18/2017 | Section V, Policy 1.0 — CPE Administrator. Removed provider Laura Turner
11/02/2017 | boards we no longer have an accreditation: AARC, CE Broker,
Added KSBN Nurse Practice Act attachment.

Revised footer address.

Added updated ACPE verbiage defining CEA responsibilities.
9 and re-added KSBN NPA attachment. Laura Turner
1112612018 Pharmacist to CEA qualifications.

Re-added baccalaureate degree in nursing as requirement.
Added updated ACPE Policies and Procedures attachment.
Re-added KSBN and removed CBN.

70f8

Accredo Health, Inc. (7 11411 Strang Line Rd [} Lenexa [ Kansas [} 66215

INL.Th
Al

""SOP CE 26




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

Readded KSBN website and removed CBN website.

10 02/06/2023

Formatting

Laura Turner

Subject Matter Expert (SME) Reviewers

This document was reviewed/edited by following SMEs:

Name Title Date Reviewed
Bette Murrell Continuing Education Specialist 11/18/2009
Karin Everett Clinical Coordinator 01/12/2010
Laura Turner Continuing Education Administrator 10/20/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/20/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/07/2015
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 09/28/2016
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/13/2017
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 12/13/2018
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 02/06/2023
Approvals
This document requires following approvals:

Name Title Date Approved
Mary Ann Anderson Director of Manufacturer Services 01/31/2011

Barbara Prosser Vice President, Infusion Operations Support

Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 10/20/2014
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources — Nursing 11/23/2015
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/29/2016
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/05/2017
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/13/2018
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 02/06/2023

80f8

Accredo Health, Inc. - 11411 Strang Line Rd

Lenexa i Kansas

66215 CNE/IV.Therapy.70

SOP CE 26



i
i
i

Number: I Revision: | Effective Date:

i

AHI SOP CE 45 L 3 12/11/2017

Title: Cdntinuing Education Evaluation
Outcome Summary

Department: Continuing Education

Program: General

Purpose

To provide a standardized process for evaluation of Accredo Health, Inc. (AHI) Continuing Education (CE).

Scope

This procedure is applicable to AHI CE. It should be referenced by all individuals that that will be presenting
Continuing Education presentations.

Definitions
AHI — Accredo Health, Incorporated

CE - Continuing Education

CV — Curriculum Vitae

Procedure

It is your responsibility to ensure that you understand this procedure before performing the following tasks.
Contact the document author if you have any questions about this procedure.

Assessment Plan

Accredo Health, Inc. (AHI) continuing education (CE) evaluation plan has been developed to document
achievement of the AHI CE mission and goals. We measure the following:

o Participation: number of participants attending CPE activities

o Satisfaction: directly measuring satisfaction with learning activities, topic, level of content, and speaker's
organization of the material

e Learning: pre- and posttests, self-assessment tools, multiple choice, short answer, essays, presentations
Achievement of Mission

Analysis of the evaluation results demonstrates evidence indicating the degree to which the mission and goal(s)
of the AHI CE program were met. Based on the results of the evaluation results, our CE mission and goals are
evaluated, and updated or determined to be appropriate unchanged, in order to enhance the program.

1.1 Evaluation

Step  Action ; ; , ;
| Each course will include an evaluation tool that has been developed to gather required information
1 per accreditation boards requirements. Course specific information, such as objectives, will be input
into the evaluation template. [45a] , ,
2 Participant responses will be obtained via hardcopy or electronically via Survey Monkey.
Responses obtained via hardcopy are input into the appropriate course Evaluation template - Multi
3 Discipline found in Survey Monkey. [45b]
10ofb

Accredo Health, Inc. 71 11411 Strang Line Rd (] Lenexa 7 Kansas 7 66215  ~NE/I\V Therany. 71

SOP CE 45



Standard Operating Procedure

N Accredo
¢ Presentation date
e Presenter
Session number (source: CE database to coincide with the participant attendance list and CE
credits.
Whether the session occurred in multiple locations
Location
Course Name
Disciplines attending
Course ID and Title
Evaluation Template:
Course Specific:
o Course Objectives Before, After, and Needed for position rated novice, intermediate, or
expert
o  Explain how education could be improved to better meet any objective(s) not met;
Identify anything not covered in the presentation you need to care for your patients:
¢ Weighted rating - Scale: Strongly agree / Agree Disagree / Strongly Disagree / N/A
o The presenter was knowledgeable and effective
The presenter was responsive to participant questions
The education material was useful
The teaching and learning methods were effective
The activity was presented objectively and was free from commercial bias
The education contained opportunities for active learning
The post-test accurately measured what | fearned from the information
presented
The content learned from this activity will impact my practice
The activity promotes improvement in healthcare
| would recommend this activity to others
o Please elaborate if bias perceived
¢ Participant applicability response
o This activity will assist in the improvement of my: (Check all that apply)
» Competence
= Performance
= Patient outcomes
= | do not encounter these patients in my practice area
o | plan to make the following changes to my practice: (Check all that apply)
= Modify treatment plans
» Incorporate different diagnostic strategies into patient evaluation
» Use alternative communication methodologies with patients and families
= None; the activity validated current practice
= None; | do not encounter these patients in my practice area
o Whatis your level of commitment to making changes stated above?
= Very committed
*  Somewhat committed
»  Not very committed
» Do not expect to change practice
= | do not encounter these patients in my practice area
o What are the barriers you face in your current practice setting that may impact patient
outcomes? (Check all that apply)
= lack of evidence-based guidelines
= Lack of applicability of guidelines to my current practice/patients
= lackoftime
*  Organizational/Institutional

00000000 O0OO0

20f5

Accredo Health, Inc. ©* 11411 Strang Line Rd ¢ Lenexa i: Kansas I 66215  CNE/IV Therapy 72

SOP CE 45



Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

Insurance/Financial
Patient adherence/compliance
Treatment related adverse events
| do not encounter these patients in my practice area
= Other
e  Participant opinion
o Liked most
o Liked least
o Suggestions for future presentations
o Comments

1.2 Outcome Summary for CE Series presentations

Step  Action
Following each CE Series presentation, all data are compiled into a report. [45¢]
¢ Presentation details
o Participation
e Pretest aggregate results
o All participants
o Pharmacists only
o Posttest results
o Aggregate
o Results compared to pretest
o Knowledge gained evidence
e Personal objectives
s Course Objectives
e Expertise results: Before / After / Needed / Change / Goal
o Novice
o Intermediate
1 o Expert
« How education could be improved to better meet any objective(s) not met
« Identify anything not covered in the presentation you need to care for your patients / support your
clients:
¢ Evaluation results:
o Rating Average on scale 1 = Strongly Agree, 2 = Agree, 3 = Disagree, 4 = Strongly
disagree, 0 = N/A
¢  Participant Improvement r/t activity
« Participant changes to practice r/t activity
¢ Participant commitment level to change
e Barriers faced
s Responses to opinions separated in categories
o Liked most: e.g., presenter, format, content
o Liked least; e.g., length of time, amount of information
e Suggestions
Comments
CE Administrator and CE Committee
5 e Results are analyzed.

« Members will make suggestions for immediate or future changes.
¢ Changes documented in standard of practice, activity templates, and any other relevant location.

30of5

Accredo Health, Inc. [1 11411 Strang Line Rd 7 Lenexa [ Kansas 1166215  ~\c/iv Therany.73
SOP CE 45




Standard Operating Procedure

1.3 Analysis

Accredo

Step

Action

Results may be filtered by
¢ Presenter

Course

Location

Session

Discipline

Filtered session report saved in electronic file in the event need documentation for accreditation
boards. [45d]

Aggregate results analyzed by CEA, CE Committee, presenters, developers, and managers, no less
than annually. [45¢€]

Process Flow

The following Process Flows are to be used in conjunction with this SOP:

Not applicable

Reference Documents

Individuals using this procedure should become familiar with the following documents:

Attachment 45a: AHI SOP CE 1.3 Activity Development .6

Attachment 45b: Universal UPACE Evaluation template - Multi Discipline
Attachment 45c: Session Evaluation Results

Attachment 45d: Annual Evaluation Analysis Report

Attachment 45e: Outcome Summary Report Template

Document History

Document Location

This is an on-line document. Refer to the author if you are in any doubt about the accuracy of this document.

Revision History

Revision |Revision

Number |Date Summary’ of Changes Author

0 Original Laura Turner

1 10/30/2017 | Revised to reflect financial disclosure form in Survey Monkey Laura Turner
Added Outcome Summary to title,

2 12/03/2018 Revised footer address. Laura Turner

Corrected spelling of posttest.
1.1.1 added “requirements” after accreditation boards.

40f5

Accredo Health, Inc. ©* 11411 Strang Line Rd /i Lenexa Kansas 66215 CNE/IV Therapy 74

SOP CE 45




Standard Operating Procedure

Accredo

Changed post-test to posttest.

Changed from the Universal UPACE to appropriate course
3 02/04/2023 | Evaluation template.

Laura Turner

Subject Matter Expert (SME) Reviewers

This document was reviewed/edited by following SMEs:

Name Title Date Reviewed
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 07/09/2018
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 12/13/2018
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 02/06/2023
Approvals
This document requires following approvals:
Name | Title: ‘ Date Approved
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 07/09/2018
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/13/2018
Maureen McCullough | Director of Clinical Resources ~ Nursing 02/06/2023
50f5
Accredo Health, Inc. i1 11411 Strang Line Rd {1 Lenexa © Kansas | 66215

CNE/IN.-Therapv-Z5
NEFH-- e 1

SOP CE 45



Maureen McCullough
4190 Pre Emption Road
Himrod, NY 14842
Cell Phone number 973-476-9353
Work phone number 862-200-1206

Maureen.Mccullough@A ccredohealth.com

EDUCATION:

2013-2016- @ Thomas Edison State College, MSN in Nursing Administration
Thomas Edison State College, 101 West State Street, Trenton, NJ 08608

1982-1985 - William Paterson University, Wayne, N.J. BSN in nursing

1976-1979 Ann May School of Nursing, 1945 Corlies Ave, Neptune, NJ —Registered

Nurse

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Accredo Health Group
45 Route 46 East, Suite 609, Pine Brook, New Jersey, 07058
Employment dates: August 2012- Present

Position: Director or Clinical Resources- Nursing

Responsibilities:
e Responsible for training and education of field nursing staff
Policy and Procedure review, development and updates
Development of new drug polices related to nursing
Accreditation responsibilities for URAC and TJC compliance for nursing
Liaison with Home Health Agencies related to establishing and adherence to
contracts
Clinical resources for nursing staff
Supervise team of 5 nurses and 5 administrative staff
e Liaison with manufacturers for Hereditary Angioedema and Enzyme replacement
drug therapies
e Participation in Quality Management committee, representing nursing division

CNE/IV Therapy 76




Assist with development and implementation of new technology

Oversee 20 RN 24 hr call center

Responsible for oversight for Continuing Education development to meet all
ACPE and Kansas Board of Nursing requirements

Accredo Health Group
45 Route 46 East, Suite 609, Pine Brook, New Jersey, 07058
Employment dates: November 2011- August 2012

Position: Regional Director of Nursing for the Northeast

Responsibilities:

e Responsibility for 13 branches Delaware to Maine

e Directs nursing operations with North-East for the full body of specialty infusion
products, leveraging resources, achieving 95% or greater in patient satisfaction

e Accountable for insuring nursing team is in compliance with Accredo nursing
care standards, TJC accreditation, quality and Performance Improvements in the
regions nursing operations, plus all local, state and federal regulations

e Assists with the evaluation, recommendation and implementation of new
technologies

e Works collaboratively with pharmacy operations and commercial business within
a matrix environment

e Manages programs to meet customer needs and impact sales productivity for
nursing services

e Collaborates with Quality Assurance and Training/Innovation teams to ensure that
optimal patient care is consistently delivered across all therapies

e Assists with development of nursing leadership, actively participates in nursing

recruitment, orientation and education. Serves as clinical and nursing operations
resource for the North East region

Accredo’s Hemophilia Health Services
45 Route 46 East, Suite 609, Pine Brook, New Jersey, 07058
Employment dates: March 2006- November 2011

Position: General Manager

Responsibilities:

Achieves financial goals for branch: pharmacy and nursing

Oversees daily activities to service over 600 clients successfully

Direct oversight managing 22 staff members (3 managers, 5 pharmacists, 5 nurses
and 11 ancillary staff)

Promotes clinical excellence to align with clients and strategic company goals

CNE/IV Therapy 77




e Liaison between local branch and all corporate departments, Accredo/Medco
Successfully obtained and maintained TJC accreditation, Internal Medco Audits
and adherence to all state and federal regulations

Plans budget to promote fiscal health of location

Manages payroll and expenses for location

Manages location Performance Improvement

Maintains effective communication with corporate leadership

Pediatric Service of America
Route 46 West, Fairfield, New Jersey
Employment dates: January 1993- March 2006

Position: Clinical Director
Responsibilities:

e Location start up for acute home care therapies

Directed clinical care for over 400 clients- Adults and Pediatrics
Managed staff of six nurses

Assured compliance to maintain state and federal regulations
Obtained and maintained TJC accreditation

Worked closely with sales and pharmacy partners

Developed policy and procedures for nursing

Responsible for payroll

ST. Josephs’ Hospital and Medical Center
703 Main Street Paterson, New Jersey
Employment dates: 1981- 1993

Position: Staff registered nurse in Pediatric Intensive Care Unit
Responsibilities:
e Primary care for 1-4 critically ill pediatric clients
PICU transport nurses
Preceptor for new staff nurses
Relief Charge Nurse

Provided education and discharge planning to families to care for chronically ill
children

Hackensack University and MedicalCenter

CNE/IV Therapy 78




Essex Street, Hackensack, NJ
Employment dates: 1980-1981

Position- Staff Registered nurse General Pediatric Unit

Responsibilities:

e Responsible for pediatric medical-surgical patients — daily care and discharge

planning

Utilized team nursing

Oversee all care, work with LPN’s and Nurse’s aides
Covered charge nurse when off

John’s Hopkins Medical Center
Baltimore, Maryland
Employment dates: 1979-1980

Position- Staff Registered nurse on pediatric Medical Unit

Responsibilities:

e Care of pediatric patients age 2-12, medical emphasis on oncology and cystic

fibrosis
e Provided primary nursing to clients.
e Provided discharge planning and education to patients and families

PERSONAL QUALITIES/INFORMATION:

Hobbies: dogs, walking, reading, and spending time with family and friends

Professional Memberships and Activities:

e Member of Infusion Nurses Society since 1993
e Certified Registered Nurse Infusion (CRNI) 1993~ Present

CNE/IV Therapy 79




ACCREDO HEALTH INCORPORATED

Certifies that

LAURA TURNER, RN

License Number: 13-62270061 State:KS
Date of Attendance: 12/15/2022

has completed the approved Continuing Education Course Offering

| (448) Age-related Macular Degeneration
Accredo Health, Incorporated is approved by the and Diabetic Macular Edema CE Sel'ieS

California Board of Registered Nursing, Provider Number
CEP 13048. This certificate must be retained by the
licensee for a period of four years after the course ends.

1.2 Contact Hours

Accredo Health, Incorporated is
approved as a provider of continuing
education by the Kansas State Board of
Nursing. Kansas State Board of Nursing -
Provider Number: 1.T0223-0538 '

Accredo Health Incorporated
Continuing Education
11411 Strang Line Road
lLenexa, KS 66215

. 1/5/2023

[

Date

CNE/IV Therapy 80




NURSE

(443) Myasthenia Gravis (MG) CE Series

Contact Hours:
RN/LPN: 1.5

Accredo Health, Inc.
Continuing Education
Attn: CE Specialist
11411 Strang Line Rd
Lenexa, KS 66215

Date:

Time:

Presenter:

Agency Name:

Contact Person:

Address: Phone:
City/St/Zip: Email:
License Number
Required for
Participant Name (Print) ST RNs and LPNs Participant Signature Contact Hours Awarded
APRN[_J/RN[_I/LPN[_] Late arrivall early
hrs | departure policy:
Address: Participants must attend
the entire presentation to
APRND/ RND/ LPND hrs | receive credit. No partial
credit will be given.
Address:
APRN[_J/RN[_I/LPN[] e
Address:
APRN[_J/RN[_I/LPN[_] e
Address:
APRN[_J/RN[_J/LPN[_] -
Address:
Address is required to receive completion certificate for contact hours.

Accredo Health, Incorporated, is approved as a provider of continuing education by the Kansas State Board of Nursing. Program Coordinator: Maureen McCullough, RN, MSN. This
course offering is approved for 1.5 contact hours applicable for APRN, RN, and LPN for relicensure. Kansas State Board of Nursing Provider Number: LT0223-0538.

CNE/IV Therapy 81




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO®O HEALTH, INCORPORATEHD

Continuing Education Review
Review instructions

Thank you for assisting with the Continuing Education review/approval process. The accreditation
boards Accredo Health, Inc. CE is accredited have standards we must meet. | have included
details to direct you to important details.

Documents for this presentation are in SharePoint: http://sharepoint.express-
scripts.com/sites/CEUArchive/CE%20Review%20for%20Approval/Forms/Allltems.aspx?RootFolde
r=%2Fsites%2FCEUArchive%2F CE%20Review%20for%20Approval%2F%28443%29%20MG&Folde
rCTID=0x012000C1A6127ECEB7894891432D3A0E4D32E58View=%7BB2D99447%2DFC2C%2D4B3
B%2D8DBE%2D1B6D59ADAA3B%7D&lnitialTabld=Ribbon%2EDocument&VisibilityContext=WSST
abPersistence#finplviewHashb2d99447-fc2c-4b3b-8dbe-
1b6d59adaa3b=FolderCTID%3D0x012000C1A6127ECEB7894891432D3A0E4D32E5-
InitialTabld%3DRibbon%252EDocument-VisibilityContext%3DWSSTabPersistence-
RootFolder%3D%252Fsites%252F CEUArchive%252FCE%2520Review%2520for%2520Approval%2
52F%2528443%2529%2520MG-SortField%3DModified-SortDir%3DAsc.

Each document is listed on the review sheet below with the matching number. The box before the
document title is checked for your convenience. The check means the document is ok as is.

o Place your pointer on the document and left click. Select "OK” to open the document and review.

e |fthe document is ok as is, you don’t have to do anything.

« Ifyou find an error, or something you think needs to be revised, uncheck the box, list the
document number in the table at the bottom of this form, describe the error and the
recommended revision under “edit suggestion.”

Example:

CORR
DOGUMENT # EDIT SUGGESTION EDIT ORRECTION | Epm

DATE _MADE BY

Please complete your review by Wednesday, September 14th. Contact me if you have any
questions.

Laura Turner, CE Administrator.

CNE/IV Therapy 82



CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDDO

HEALTH, |

NCORPORATETPD

Continuing Education Approval

Course Offering Title: (443) Myasthenia Gravis CE Series

REVIEWER INFORMATION:

Quality assurance review

Name: Laura
Turner

Title: Continuing Education
Administrator

Address: 11411 Strang
Line

City: Lenexa

State: KS

Zip:

66215

Phone: 913-708-0223

>

>
4
4

4
4
»

Email:

laura.turner@accredohealth.com 3
Clinical review »
Name: Adam Portik

Title: Senior Clinical Advisor

Address: 4
City: N
State:

Zip: 14
Phone:

Email: »

CE Committee Review

Name: Maureen McCullough
Address: PO Box 2011 - 45
US Hwy 46 East, Site 609
City: Pine

Brook

State: New Jersey
Zip: 07058

Phone: 862-200-
1206

Email:Maureen.mccullough@accredohealth.com

The Quality Assurance review consists of the following:

The function of the Clinical Review is:

The function of the Committee is:

To assess the need for Continuing Education course offerings
by:

Inclusion of all required course offering documents
Documents meet Continuing Education guidelines
Terminology meets Continuing Education guidelines
Course Offering meets definition of Continuing Education

Accuracy of pathophysiology of disease
Accuracy of terminology
Accuracy of drug information

A new product or disease state serviced by Accredo
Health, Inc.

A formal needs assessment based on areas identified by
the CE Advisory Committee, Continuous Quality
Improvement Committee, or Management as high-risk,
high-volume, high-cost, or problem prone.

A biannual formal needs assessment utilizing a formal
survey questionnaire.

Formal recommendations from the Continuous Quality
Improvement Committee.

Informal suggestions from professionals requesting
education in a specified area.

A member of the Committee will perform the final
evaluation of the proposed course offering, assuring the
offering meets the needs of the company. Approval
requires the signature of one committee member.

CNE/IV Therapy 83



CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO HEALTH, I NCORPORATED
Faculty Discipline Title Disclosure signature date
Adam Portik PharmD Senior Clinical Advisor 12/20/2021

Jennifer Johnson

RN, BSN, CRNI

Senior Clinical Program Advisor

12/21/2021

Laura Turner BS, RN Continuing Education Administrator 1212712021

Adam Portik PharmD Senior Clinical Advisor 12/20/2021

Maureen McCullough | MSN, RN, CRNI Director of Clinical Resources, Nursing / 1/3/2022
Continuing Education Program Coordinator

Erica Harris Non-clinical Continuing Education Specialist 11/18/2021

The following must be reviewed for accuracy and completeness:

Developer / Presenter / Reviewer Documents:
X1 1.0 Financial Agreement and Presenter Approval (if appropriate) — on file where dates noted
Xl 1.0A Course Developer
X - Jennifer Johnson - Dev Content Validity Attestation — 09/10/2022

X 1.0B Course Reviewers / Approvers — See above

X - QA Reviewer — Laura Turner

- Adam Portik — Clinical Review_Valid Content Attestation — 9/9/2022

X - CE Committee — Maureen McCuilough
- Erica Harris — Administrative support

Course Offering Documents:
X 2.0 CE Needs assessment and learning needs / Summary of Planning
DX 3.0 Education Design | Documentation Format (EDDF) / 4.0 Bibliography

X * Objectives

X * Content

* Time Frame

* Presenter requirements

X * Teaching strategies

4.0 Bibliography
Xl References

X Product Reference Resources

Presentation Documents:

CNE/IV Therapy 84



CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDDO HEALTH, I NCORPORATETD
5.0 CE Program Description (Brochure)

Course Title
XI ACPE Universal Activity Number (UAN) - 0386-0000-22-015-L01-P

Appropriate target audience designation (‘P’ for pharmacist or ‘T’ for pharmacy technician) — last
letter of UAN — Pharmacist only

X Amount of CPE credit in contact hours per discipline

Faculty (names, degree, title/position)

Fee — AHI does not charge a fee for its presentations

Registration process — space provided for contact information

Summary of Planning / Intended outcome / Major Activity objective / Activity overview
Target audience

Learning objectives

Schedule / agenda

Full description of all requirements established for successful completion of the CPE activity and
subsequent awarding of credit

Assessment method
Statement of credit information

X Official ACPE logo with statement: "Accredo Health, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation
Council for Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education.”

Acknowledgement of any organization(s) providing financial support for any component of the
educational activity — AHI disclosure policy

Faculty disclosure(s)
X] 6.0 PPT Presentation
X 7.0 Posttest/Answer Key
Xl 7A Posttest
X 7B Answer Key with rationale
[X] 8.0 Attendance Roster
Xl 8A * RPh Attendance Roster
X 8B * RN Attendance Roster
[X] 9.0 Evaluation
9A * Objectives_Eval
9B * Survey Monkey Pretest Reg_Posttest_Participant Info
XI 10.0 ACPE Activity Description Form (ADF) — input into ACPE website.

MRXXXKXKXX

QA REVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS:

CORRECTION EpiT

DOCUMENT # EDIT SUGGESTION EpiT DATE MADE BY

None at this time

CNE/IV Therapy 85



CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO HEALTH, |l NC ORPORATETD

| | | | | |

CLINICAL REVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS: ADAM PORTIK

CTION EDIT
DOCUMENT # EDIT SUGGESTION EpiT CORRECTIO

DATE MADE BY

None at this time

CE COMMITTEE REVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS: MAUREEN MCCULLOUGH

CORRECTION EpiT

DOCUMENT # EDIT SUGGESTION DATE MADE BY

APPROVED:

QA Reviewer: Louvraw Turner, RN 9 Septembesr 2022
Signature Date

Clinical Reviewer 4dam Portik, Pharmb 9 September 2022
Signature Date

CE Committee Reviewer: Mawreen Me Cullouglh, RN, MSN 12 Sepfewber 2022
Signature Date

Final Approval: Louwar Turneyr, RN 12 September 2022
Signature Date

CNE/IV Therapy 86



Accredo Continuing Education
Content Validity Attestation

Course: (443) Myasthenia Gravis (MG)

Agree | Disagree

N/A

Faculty Attestations

X

All recommendations involving clinical medicine related to my content will
be based on evidence that is accepted within the profession of medicine as
adequate justification for their indications and contraindications in the care
of patients.

All scientific research referred to, reported, or used in my content in
support or justification of a patient care recommendation will conform to
the generally accepted standards of experimental design, data collection
and analysis. To help learners judge the quality of data provided, | will
present the source and type of evidence (i.e. animal study, randomized
controlled trial, meta-analysis, etc.)

Research findings and therapeutic recommendations in my content will be
based on scientifically accurate, up-to-date information and be presented
in a balanced, objective manner.

For any drug/product discussed, the data must be objectively selected and
presented, both favorable and unfavorable information about the
drug/product must be fairly presented, and | will include information about
reasonable alternative treatment options. Where there is a suggestion of
superiority of one drug/product over another, this suggestion need to be
supported by evidence-based data.

If 1 am discussing specific healthcare products or services, | will use generic
names to the extent possible. If | need to use trade names, | will use trade
names from several companies when available, and not just trade names
from a single company. My educational materials will not contain any
advertising, unnecessary trade names or product group messages.

If | am discussing any drug/product use that is unlabeled or investigational,
| will disclose that the use or indication in question is not currently
approved by the FDA.

Date: 9/10/2022

Signature: Jennifer Johnson, RN, BSN, CRNI

Jennifer Johnson, RN, BSN, CRNI-typed by Jennifer Johnson

CNE/IV Therapy 87



Guidance for Planners, Authors, and Faculty: Ensuring Clinical Content is Valid

As an important contributor to our accredited education, we would like to enlist your help to ensure
educational content is fair and balanced, and that any clinical content supports safe, effective patient
care. This includes:

All recommendations for patient care in accredited continuing education must be based on current
science, evidence, and clinical reasoning, while giving a fair and balanced view of diagnostic and
therapeutic options.

All scientific research referred to, reported, or used in accredited education in support or
justification of a patient care recommendation must conform to the generally accepted standards of
experimental design, data collection, analysis, and interpretation.

Although accredited continuing education is an appropriate place to discuss, debate, and explore
new and evolving topics, these areas need to be clearly identified as such within the program and
individual presentations. It is the responsibility of accredited providers to facilitate engagement with
these topics without advocating for, or promoting, practices that are not, or not yet, adequately
based on current science, evidence, and clinical reasoning.

Content cannot be included in accredited education if it advocates for unscientific approaches to
diagnosis or therapy, or if the education promotes recommendations, treatment, or manners of
practicing healthcare that are determined to have risks or dangers that outweigh the benefits or are
known to be ineffective in the treatment of patients.

These expectations are drawn from Standard 1 of the ACPE Standards for Integrity and Independence in
Accredited Continuing Education.

Consider using the following best practices when presenting clinical content in accredited CE:

Clearly describe the level of evidence on which the presentation is based and provide enough
information about date (study dates, design, etc.) to enable learners to assess research validity.
Ensure that, if there is a range of evidence, that the credible sources cited present a balanced view
of the evidence.

If clinical recommendations will be made, include balanced information on all available therapeutic
options.

Address any potential risks or adverse effects that could be caused with any clinical
recommendations.

Course: (443) Myasthenia Gravis (MG)

Please answer the following questions regarding the clinical content of the education.

CNE/IV Therapy 88




”

To check box yes or no, double click on the appropriate box to open “Check box form field options
window. Default value is “not checked.” Select “Checked” then “OK.”

Are the recommendations for patient care based on current science, evidence, and |

Comments:

Signature: L)?’%//ﬂ/ %)//2/5 %{M/ﬁ@. @

Date: 9/9/2022

CNE/IV Therapy 89



Number:

AHI SOP CE 4 9 06/03/2005

Revision; | Effective Date:

Title: Independent Learning Contact Hour

Determination via Pilot Test (1CCTel Z{ )

Department: Continuing Education

Program

: General

Purpose

The purpose of the Pilot Test for Independent Learning Contact Hour Determination procedure is to
provide a standardized process for determination of contact hours for courses that are not given by a

presenter.

Scope

This procedure is applicable to Accredo Health, Inc. Continuing Education (AHI CE). It should be
referenced by all individuals responsible and/or involved in AHI CE course approval from development
through pilot test approval.

Definitions
AHI — Accredo Health, inc.

CE — Continuing Education

Home study and other mediated activities - printed, recorded or computer assisted instructional
activities that do not provide for direct interaction between faculty and participants.

Independent learning - a self-paced learning activity undertaken by the participant in an unstructured
setting under the guidance of, and monitored by, an approved provider. This term may include self-study

programs,

distance learning, and authorship.

Procedure

It is your responsibility to ensure that you understand this procedure before performing the following
tasks. Contact the document author if you have any questions about this procedure.

Contact hours for home study or independent learning will be determined by performing a pilot test using 3-5
participants representing the intended target audience for whom the activity was developed.

Pilot Test Development and Completion Process

Step  Action ; ; ; ,
1 Develop activity following AHI SOP CE 1: Continuing Education Process up to approval process.
5 Quality Assurance and Clinical reviewers will review and approve information and format prior to
pilot test.
CE Administrator will create pilot test instructions explaining the intent of the process, the pilot test
requirements (tracking time required to complete course and passing post test, CE — nonCE split),
and form to document the following:
3 s Participant name
e Participant state and license number (license number required for nurses only)
e Completion date
e Completion time
e Testresult -
4 Pilot test must be completed by clinicians for whom the course will be approved. Example: a home
study activity for nursing CE will be pilot tested by nurses. Completion time must be a minimum of:

CNE/IV Therapy 90




+ 15 minutes for pharmacist, pharmacy technician activities
¢ 60 minutes for activities approved for nurses
e 60 minutes for activities approved for case managers.

Following initial pilot test, results are reviewed to determine activity completion time meets

5 continuing education contact hour minimum requirements. In addition, comments or feedback are
evaluated. Identified items are returned to course developer to address and revise.
6 Once revisions are made, proceed with 2" pilot test. If additional revisions to content are required,

additional pilot tests will be performed so results are determined from final format.
Upon completion of pilot test, determine the average completion time only using results of those

! successfully passing the posttest.
Create a pilot test results synopsis including participants’ names, license, discipline, completion

8 time, test score, and average time to complete the activity. Include this and pilot test
documentation with the other course documents on file for the life of the course offering.

9 Review evaluation comments and determine if any changes are required to course material prior
to approval review.

10 | Complete course approval process (See AHI SOP CE 1: Continuing Education Process .

11 Upon approval, issue certificates to pilot test participants who successfully passed posttest.

Process Flow
The following Process Flows are to be used in conjunction with this SOP:

¢ Not applicable

Reference Documents
Individuals using this procedure should become familiar with the following documents:
+ AHI SOP CE 1: Continuing Education Process

Document History

Document Location

This is an on-line document. Refer to the author if you are in any doubt about the accuracy of this
document.

Revision History

ﬁixﬁ;g;’ g:;/eismn Summary of Changes Author

0 06/03/2005 | Original Lisa Havens
1 01/30/2006 Laura Turner
2 04/28/2008 lL.aura Turner
3 10/27/2009 Laura Turner
4 10/13/2014 Laura Turner
5 09/29/2015 | Header/footer. Clinical reviewer terminology. Laura Turner
6 09/23/2016 | Corrected effective date; added AHI reference Laura Turner
7 10/30/2017 | Revised minimum course time requirements per discipline Laura Turner
8 11/14/2018 | Corrected address in footer. Laura Turner

CNE/IV Therapy 91




Revised SOP 1 title.
Added Quality Assurance to step 2 review.

Changed minimum completion time for nurse and case manager

activities to 60 minutes.
Revised post test to posttest.

9 02/08/2023

No change

Laura Turner

Subject Matter Expert (SME) Reviewers

This document was reviewed/edited by following SMEs:

Name Title Date Reviewed
Bette Murrell Continuing Education Specialist 11/18/2009
Karin Everett Clinical Coordinator 12/02/2009
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/13/2014
Laura Turner Continuing Education Administrator 10/13/2014
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/12/2015
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 09/27/2016
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 10/31/2017
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 11/15/2018
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 02/08/2023
Approvals
This document requires following approvals:
Name ‘ Title : Date Approved
Mary Ann Anderson Director of Manufacturer Services 01/31/2011
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 10/13/2014
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources — Nursing 12/07/2015
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/29/2016
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 11/06/2017
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 11/15/2018
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 02/03/2023

CNE/IV Therapy 92




Effective Date:
12/11/2017

Number: Revision:

AHI SOP CE 43 1

Title: AHI CE via WebEx I (ACCTE }{f ga

Department: Contmumg Educatlon

~ Program: General

Purpose

To provide a standardized process to present AHI CE via WebEx.

Scope

This procedure is applicable to AHI CE. All individuals who will be scheduling, presenting, and editing for
live and self-study AHI CE should reference it.

Definitions

ACPE — Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education
AHI — Accredo Health, Inc.

CE - Continuing Education

CEA - Continuing Education Administrator

CES - Continuing Education Specialist

CPE - Continuing Pharmacy Education

RN - Registered nurse

RPh — Registered Pharmacist

PharmD - Doctor of Pharmacy

Procedure

It is your responsibility to ensure that you understand this procedure before performing the following
tasks. Contact the document author if you have any questions about this procedure.

All CPE credit must be reported in CPE Monitor continuing pharmacy education tracking service within 60
days of the presentation date.

11 Presenter mstructlon

Step : Actlon ,
1. | Presenter, toplc and presentation date determmed by CE Series committes.
Continuing education specialist determines if presenter is approved to present topic. If not, CES

initiates presenter approval — see SOP 2 [433]

CEA provides presenter with instructions, templates and examples: [SOP 1] [43b]

« Faculty Guidance checklist link (found in Survey Monkey)

» Current PPT template including the CE disclosure slides, instructions for each discipline,
objective slide, knowledge check slide pair, and reference slides.

3. » Needs assessment template

* Objectives

* Bibliography

» Minimum 10 question pre- / posttest answer key with rationale (multiple choice, matching, and
true / false)

CNE/IV Therapy 93




+ 3-5 knowledge checks with correct answer marked

‘4.

CEA and presenter review CE Series Document checklist and determine due dates. Dates added

to form and the CEA and the presenter keep a copy. [CE Series Doc Checklist] [43c]

1.2 CEA Document Development, review, and approval

[[] Recurring single-session class (attendees
register for one session)

[J Multiple-session course (attendee register for
entire sequence)

[] Schedule irregular sessions (each session may
be edited separately later)

Step Actlon
y CEA develops the following documents per SOP #1: [43d]
* Registration instruction announcement
CEA develops the following using presenter-developed content:
+ Summary of planning
+  Education document / Documentation format
+ Bibliography
« Save the Date announcement
+  CE Program Description Brochure
2 » CE Program Pretest and Registration
» Pretest/ registration, posttest / evaluation / participant information / 2nd attempt posttest (in
Survey Monkey)
*  Pretest/ posttest
+  Pretest/ posttest answer key with rationale
+ Knowledge checks
; « Attendance rosters (RPh and RN)
3 ACPE UAN and activity type created per SOP 11 [43e]
4 Course and presentation date entered in ACPE Provider Web tool; course information submitted
to ACPE, per SOP 12 [431]
5 Review and approval performed per SOP 1. [43g]
1.3 WebEX Schedule Training Session (See WebEx Teaching Tool) [43h]
Step  Action ”
Select “Training Center.” Enter information requested
5 Topic: Insert presentation title
Set session password: ahice
: This training session is; Check appropriate boxes.
‘1 X Listed on public calendar Make sure automatically delete
[[] Listed for signed in users session is unchecked if you want to
[[] This session will have over 500 attendees keep recording for future use.
] Automatically delete session after it ends -
uncheck
Xl Send a copy of the attendee invitation to me
Audio Conference Settings
Select conference type: Select WebEx Audio
X Display toll-free number Mute attendees if you are recording
2. (Toll number is always displayed) session.
[] Display global call-in numbers
X Mute attendees upon entry
Entry and exit tone: Select "No Tone”
Date and Time ~
Starting time: | Month / Date / Year Add info to fields.
Hour / Minute/ am /pm
Time zone: | Select appropriate time zone Check request to present to see what
[C] Attendees can join ___ minutes before the start | time zone used, and ensure the time
time (auto-populate to 5) is correct for your time zone.
3. Occurrence: | [X Single- session class Select appropriate category.

Estimated duration:

Hours / minutes

Add info to fields

CNE/IV Therapy 94




Registration

Attendees
Invited attendees: 1 do not use this.
4 Attendees register in Survey Monkey.
’ CES creates an Outlook Meeting with
invitation information, attaches PPT
handout, and adds registrants to
meeting.
Presenters
Invited presenters Select: Invite Presenters
Hexpiessacripts.webeccom/t 30D enter/scheduler/ /Frame/ing zs.dofachionFlag=listimit "\‘(er}
Invite Presenters
Provide new presenter information here or select contacts from your address book.
Presenters to Invite [ Select Contacts.i
Name Email address Phone number Language Time Zone Locale
No contacts selected.
New Presenter
¥ Requirnd ficld
5.

+ Fuli name:

+ Email address:

s

HNumber (with area’city code)

Phone number: 1

Time Zone: 'Chicago (Central Daylight Time, GMT-05:00)  ~
Language: _English ~.

Locale: U.S. .

[T Add presenter as altendee in my address book
I3 Invite as alternate host

New Presenter: Add individual’s information in New Presenter template. Press “Add Presenter.”

CNE/IV Therapy 95




Select Contacts

j’ Viaw:. . Personal Contacts
Search for:

index:
Mame

Email address

Select one ol more groups or contacts that you wanl to invite to your session

Phone number

ripts com 1-852-837-7681 Engssh

andrea | p fiplscom  1-901-435-2391 Englsh
anna_zulali@express-scripls com 1-347-768-7241 Engssh

Catny Hathar cathy edoLom 1-386-266-9873 Engssh
{rysiat Blankensnp crystat com 1-(616) 3354741 Engish
< P scripls.com 1-760-814-2456 Engssh

erica com 1- Engfish

gai bridges@accredohealthy com 1-801.381.7400 Engish

joutier@shpry otg 4-212-801-3200 English

ken.spic ripts.com 1-407-852-4933 Engish
kevin_biackbum@erpress-sceipts com  1-702/547-7105 Engiish

kgrat2 fpts com 1-4807362157  Engish

jestey d'atbini@accredo com 1-912-634.0662 English

testie. P npts.com 1-407-047-5842 Engish
mary_dorhot@express-scripts com 1-763:420.3760  Engish

nancy.tew tom 1-702-528-5495  Engish

stefanle pitis@accredonizalth com 1-801/381-7400 Engish
yvonne_viteri@express-scripls com 1-201/269-4092 English

|
|
|
|
|

[ add as kermate o | [ add ressoter |- setec at ] [cionr i | [ cancet |

Language Nime Zone

Lota
Chkago Time US
Chicago Time US
Indiana Time US.
Chicago Time US
Chicago Time U.S
Chicago Time U.S
Chicage Time US,
Chicago Time U'S.
HewYork Tme US
Chicago Time US
Chicago Time US
Chicago Time US_ HE
Chicago Time 0.8 !

Hew York Time US |
Chicago Time 4.8
Chicago Time US
Chicago Tine US
Chicago Tune U.S

Previously entered presenter:

Under “Invite Presenters,” press “Select Contacts.” Individuals will be listed.

Check the box before the name of those you want to invite.

Press "Add Presenter.”

Invite Presenters
Provide raw presenter informabon hersg of select conlacts from your address book

Prasenters 1o invite

Hame Emait addrass Phone numbar tanguaga
2 ANBAESONDENHESS-SEIPLs com 1-952-537-7861 Engith
i erka hams@accredoheath (om 1 Engash
New Presenter
- Fulname

© Emad adoress

Phone numtier
Twne Zone
Language

Leease

25 Mt

o 4 oy ey

1

Cheengs (Centrst Dxight Time, GHT-05:09)

Engish v

v -

3 A Preseiier as aUEnae in My d007¢53 DOOK
£ imite a3 atemate host

[ 5ot Contots. |
hma Zone Locale
Chitayo Tt us
Chicago Tame us

ik

a1 | cos M ] petete. )| conce

* Ragisad fatg

Selected names will appear on under “Invite Presenters” on previous page.

Check box before names.
Press “Invite.”

An invitation will be sent with meeting information that may be added to

Outlook Calendar.

Session Options

Available features:

CNE/IV Therapy 96




Session Optlions
Tralning setsion options

2 Chay i
4 File ranstes

i Enabia hagh-guaity vides
¢ Enable high-delindicn video
1 e vited thunbris

Attendee Privileges

beging.
sessions:
U Reconding ¥ Humzer of altendees
1 geng vidio i Adendes tst
Datuments;

1 Anndtate

L] Thienbngs

Security

o Exgiede password from emags sent 1o allendees
1 Atlerdess musl have an accaunl ob 1S 89606 1o ANlEnd se358n

Uncheck options you do not want:

. File transfer

¢ Video

. Send video
Check:

. Chat

. Number of attendees
¢  Recording

. Attendee list

Select “Save.”

Setect opfions thal wou wan! parlicipants 10 have whaa 3 fralnag session begins

Solect the atlendee prvieges that you wand all altendees to have when a fraling session

23 Hext or previous page

Evitd Cemtar - Sappeet Cantan,

Nerws Use ficterpre ‘ Yot présenders
v Anend 2 Seson
e Sessions

R e Seiipons

Urimted Swrnoes

v Hosl 2 Session $ession Optisns

Sabedidie Tncsrsy Avadabia features
atunt S
Handds T s
tens L avary
My Trairieg Rocordeqs
- Setip
Trwriog Warngss
Profecernes
My Protia

Greetig missige

Breabout SA4310n Atsigaments Jatungs

[ ete Prasenters. - |

i T
3,903 Vi2As, Anterdes o
Zian, Fits

U
DRSTARNN A35843 (Uﬁl) AN S8

2
Bt

 Suppadt

Vi sesson assgaments (SUDMATE 06 MARUR SR BISGAMECES 00nNJ U4 SESSN) ¥R ahsays Ivadatia

Furtepuards 00 3o molik SReed Ginngd Jobt breakoid sedsang

MyRariarin Optns FiEnabi Pro Sénsion Assgoment (4pes £y auttmall of manual atiendee assgrmats belol st e seasion)
[T G Aytomat sy 25000 wtterdhes durng the seswcn

FE e

Destination address (URL) after seééion:Survey Monkey Web link

| Greeting message:

CNE/IV Therapy 97




10.

11.

Customize greeting message when audience joins.

Welcome to Accredo Specialty CE presentation. We are recording this presentation. All phones are muted. Please send

questions to Host via chat. The presenter will address them at the end of the presentation.
Check box “Display this message when attendees join the session.”

. Breakout Session Assignments Settings, etc. These do not apply at this time

Select: Schedule / Start Session / Cancel Schedule.

Ok / Add to my Calendar / Edit | Select:

Qutlook Calendar.

Add to my calendar. You will receive the option to add session to your

Will also receive 2 emails:
one for the host, and one that
you may forward to
attendees.

If everything is correct,
accept to add to calendar. If
incorrect, close and select
“edit.”

Revise and accept meeting
Close window.

**** You can forward this email invitation to attendees ****
Hello ,

Laura Turner invites you to participate as an attendee in the following online training
session:

Forward to CE Specialist.

CNE/IV Therapy 98




Topic: test

Host: Laura Turner

Date; Friday, October 14, 2016

Time: 2:00 pm, Central Daylight Time (Chicago, GMT-05:00)
Session number: 927 074 427

Session password: ahice

CE Specialist will create Meeting in Outlook with the email information (above). As
people register in Survey Monkey, CES will add them to the meeting to provide access
information and presentation handout.

1.4 Knowledge Checks
Step Actlon R —

To Create Polling Questions

1. Select Polling Window Select Polling Window (Blue
2. Select “New” tab heading)
Poll Questions: Select “New” — first icon

1. Question

Types: Multiple choice Single answer
Short answer
New

Answer

Add Mark as correct

4 Copy and paste question to box
under poll questions.

Add response options.

Select “Mark Correct” for
carrect response. A red check
mark will appear before this
response.

3. Choote the intorredt sentence dewniing Fylii and 74
4 They aze 136 ontibadies ditectad sgainst EVII/TY
b, They afe antibodies that peotralize the exogent
¢ B ave abways vansient

d. They generaly devetop within the first 20 caposs

Ratanate: They can be both transient and pesgistent SHDE 4

e 2. Inhibitor measurdment is teponad in Bethesds Uity

Create folder (| save them on my desktop) and save each question.

4 Accessing poll questions

CNE/IV Therapy 99




.:c:::(::::w — e 2.8 On presentation day, choose
" i “New.”
Choose “Open.”
m;m Find folder poll questions are
Aan ! saved.
&>
. Choose the correct pol!
Tareite B Resnind
question. They are named
“polli.atp,””poli2.atp,” etc.
b Question will appear in the poll
window.
e e Select “save.”
B o Repeat for each poll question.
1.5 Starting Training Session
Step  Action
Session Day
To start the session:
1. Goto Start now.
1 https://expressscripts.webex.com/expressscripts/k2/i.php?MTID=t0d2e2338665042572 | If knowledge checks have not
’ 19e3858a2fe9ae. been created, do so now.
2. login to your account.
3. Click “Start Now”.
4.  Follow the instructions that appear on your screen.
Audio conference information
To receive a call back, provide your phone number when you join the training session, or call Select “t will call in.”
the number below and enter the access code,
Call-in toll-free number (US/Canada):1-877-668-4490 ‘:’he" presenter hag Welb‘E’I‘ call
Call-in toll number (US/Canada):1-408-792-6300 e;',"",e experienced multiple
Show toli-free dialing restrictions: https://www.webex.com/pdf/tollfree restrictions.pdf audio interruptions.
Access code: 927 074 427

CNE/IV Therapy 100




Giving presenter control
Participant window:

3 When presenter arrives, change role to presenter:

. Share his/her screen
. Advance slides
e Open knowledge checks

CES
) 4 Assists participants unable to access WebEx, have not received handout, etc.

Host:

. Monitors “Chat” box

. Starts “Record”

. Explains CE requirements
(posttest, evaluation,
participant information,
etc.)

5

1.6 Edit WebEx Recorded Session for Self-study format

Step  Action

Go to “My Training Recordings.” Select the training by selecting the link.
tew bserRoterance 2] My Training Recordings

w Attend a Session = | Search ! Total 2 recordings

Liva S&ssiony

Recorded Seasions Yoplc. Presenter Type  .Dates size” Duratlon Format
' . . CFE Serias: Heraditary
Unlisted Sessions o inede.na INAE )
1 . &_g_.______[_,l_“ 7‘ "” - Laura Tumar Prvats  July 312014 4733418 1 hour 22 minules ARF
w Host a Session [ Lﬁ!é&fﬂwjé_l
Schedule Tesining : CE Serins {257} HAE . i
fos o Practice Session. 20140723 Laura Tumer Pivate July 31. 2014 3089148 39 minutes ARF JJ@W e
astant Session 1457'1“‘“

Hands-On tab

Test Library e A&daRecording, 1 @ Dissbled Registeation requited @p d required i Uploading in progress
My Training k
Recordings o Shesiele ug W SRS TLR B0 LOUNES T0E 0TAn i B0 s

Takes you to: Recording Information: CE Series: Hereditary Angioedema (HAE)-20140731 1724-1 (see screen shot below)
1. Select Streaming-recording link.
2. Llisten to audio to determine start and stop times.
3, Go back to previous screen and select “Modify.” Will take you to “Edit Recording.” Note: You may only edit the beginning
and end of the recording. it is not possible to edit other parts of the recording.
2. 4.  Under “Recording File,”
5 a. unclick “Panel Display Options”

b Select “Partial Playback” and enter Start and End times

¢.  Select “Save”

d.  Listen to audio by selecting Streaming-recording link to make sure it starts and ends where desired.
e

1f ok, select H% icon following the link to make a copy of the link.

CNE/IV Therapy 101




AULGU, Caua et perTETTR Y

Email address:  laura.tumer@ do com Play Recorded Meeting Now

Lost modified:  Tussday. August £. 2014 12.46 pmi You can sew your tecordad mesting by chicking
Date: Thursday. July 31. 2014 Play How

Duration: 1 hour 22 minutes

Description: HA - : 4 -

Agenda: If you vvant to downtoad the racording. chiok harg
File size: 47.33 M? Share My Recording

Password: {lot requited , " y
ViewfDownload: Attendeas eaniew and dovmload 1his tweording :":g ;?:;:g‘:‘ a? “’?‘3"5"’ shara your recording
SCORM data: ,

Sueaming
racording fink:

i you want to use your local email cliznt to send
the email. click hare

tand

recording link:

* Click the Briconto copy the URL. which you can paste to an
emaif instant message. of Yeb site Eid

iy | oEabe ] Bskie s ]

1.7 Creating Pretest / Registration, Posttest / Evaluation / Participant Information, and 2nd

Attempt Posttest
Step  Action
1. ) Access “CE Series: Pretest, WebEXx presentation, stttest, and evaluation” in Survey Monkkeky
2. Select “Design Survey”
3. . Under “1. Choose course” select “edit.” Add course 1D and course title. Select “Save.”

. Scroll to the last pretest before the one being added. Under “More actions” select “Copy Page.” Edit to appropriate test
4. questions, including “I don’t know.”

5. Under Options, select “Require an Answer to this question.”

6. After final question, add "What is your discipline?” Add RPh, RN, Other with text box.

- List presentation title Presentation WebEx recording: Select link below to view presentation (left click actual link)> Note: It
may take a few moments to open. Add link below. (Link is from WebEXx)

15. Rare Diseases and Orphan Drugs Presentation WebEx recording: Select link below to view presentation (left click actuat
fink). Note: It may take a few moments to open.

7. ; hitps:/turidelense proofpoint. comiv2/uri?u=hitps-3A__expressseripts webex.com_expressscripts_Isr.php-3FRCID-
H 309d2040c111cbes6ab7db3beac 1796b0d&d=BOMGaQ8c=TRM22a2¢2ENZDxd7 MNZ-0IFGs_booxiwig LOUWEZX0S8
r=Ln0B8My_LI777VQ2Q0s1DYDqRA7AYILOBXBIbOWEUIGM=mTY1_HHImeCF86qagssl0ol_volikiE22iKzp5iSiivwd
£=Yq0bsOriPIT1AQbRIMXK4KEN2GISDWSX3QUayIXIMIZe=

8 Copy pretest page. Edit name to "Posttest and evaluation.” Remove option “l don't know.”

’ Copy evaluation questions from another course. Revise objectives.

CNE/IV Therapy 102




20. Please rate your laval of expartise for sach objective before and after the ton, and what is required for your
position
Bolow Education At Education Heeded 1 postion
Dt the tenn *orphin
drug a5 wed 35 docuss Tt { { at
provisions and mpactof LD Y | | R
Orptian Dy ALt ot 1883

@

Recognize characienstics of

Urea Cyeie Disordess.

Hephiupating Cystindsis, s R

B4 PRenyikelonuna. $ r

prevatence. eticlogy, chnicat e -
303 and symptoms. and

burden of disease.

3
2]

idenbly avatable lreatments -
10 I AbGVE aisrases, T
INCIAY PN OrUgs, heit L
indations and side eferls

o of
respurces for patients win
rare dieaves.

«
1,";

EXPRN Dok S ANIN COUE D Hmprovest 10 Detter mee! 3ny Ghjaxtive(s) not met.

30, dentify hing not dinthe p tation you need to care for your patients:

I ' -

i - - H

Logic: Go to page 1 and select’Logic.” After course title, scroll down to course pretest page in the first drop box. Select
“Top of Page in the second drop box. Select "Save.”

10 . e ; r
Honsweris. @ Thenskipto .. @ : : Clear All
(284} Rare Diseases & Orphan ‘
Drugs Self Study - :
recoiding by Stefanie Fitts, P2: {284} Rare Diseases & Orpha... « ]gTop of paga - Clzar
PharmD, Sr. Manager-Clinical R
Programs
Page Skip Logic: At top of pretest page, select “Page Skip Logic.” Scroll to appropnate course post test and evaluation
page and select “Apply.”
pago Skip Lugic. B0 Randoizaton. éqg«mnmrnarg:i{ ‘
Ao 04 Cuirant page 8 e A @ : : . f e
P3.{284) Rare Dis93s 84 & Lrphah Drugs Portiast and svatuaion i
1 1 Cancat
CE Seties Sell Study - Session info: Pretestiregistration, Post Test, Evaluation, Participant Infermalion
Page Sklp Logic: At top of posttest and eva|uatlon scroll to “Presenter and content evaluation” and select “Apply.” This part
of the evaluation is the same for all courses.
Page Sllplngir: b
Afler tha cutriod page o , k, sge 3 : ‘ % g : : ‘!:‘Ses,r
P EFLentar s Conténd wiakiatan -
12 o
[ teast
13 p Logic: Presenter and content evaluation is followed by “Participant and Continuing Education Credit information,

the final page of the survey.

CNE/IV Therapy 103




14

15

. Page Skip Logic et iz ‘ ‘Pa:je‘ﬁund:omi

After the current page §s complated, skip to thls page.. 0 &

P15: Pasticipant and Ci tion Credit j -

CE Serles Self Study - Session info; Pretest/registration, Post Test, Evaluation, Participant Information

Select "Preview and Test” to determine logic is correct. Select most recently added course, and complete pretest, check
WebEx link, complete posttest, evaluation, and participant information. Correct any errors, non-working logic, etc. Ask
someone else to trial also.

Summary [ Design Survey | ColicciRohponses | Anahyzs Resins

'_'—_> i e Provievs & Test . 55 Print

{ Page Logic v 1§/ More Actions v | PA:CE Series: P =i eiiy. !

+ Add Logo

CE Series Self Study - Session info: Pretest/registration, Post Test, Evaluation, Participant Information

CE Serles: Pretest, WebEx presentation, post test, and evaluation

Instructions: Select the course you want to complete for continuing education credit. Complete the pre-test so we can measure your
knowledge belore the education. View the recorded WebEx (PPT and audio). Complels the post-test. Passing grade is shown. We will
let you know if you don't pass the first time, and give you another chance to pass, Complete the evaluation and padicipant information.
We will send you a certificate of credit wilhin 3 weeks of completing all requirements, We will submit pharmacist CE credit lo CPE
Monitor within 30 days of course completion.

1. Choose course
oy {284) Rare Diseases & Orphan Drugs Self Sludy - presentation recording by Stefanie Pitts, PharmD, Sr. Manager-Chnical Programs

i 1 {286) Immunotherapy for the oncology patient Sell Study - presentation recording by Andrea Holiiday, PharmD, Senior Manager, Clinkcal Program
Management-Oncology

201} Primary immune deficlency, Intravenous immune Globulin, and Subculaneous Immune Globulin Seif Study - presentation recording by Lesley
D'Abini, PharmD, BCPS, Senior Clinicat Practice Manager [PAH and 1D TRCs}

7 3 (292) Disease Modifying Treatment Oplions in Muitiple Sclerosis Setf Study - presentation recording by Gall Bridges, Pharm, Sr. Clinicat
Consuitant, Speciaity

_3 (298} tmmunosuppressive Therapy in Solid Organ Transplant- presentation recording by Yvonne Vitert, Pham, Sr. Ciinical Consultant

(j (306) Speciatty for if - i by Stelanie Pitts, PharmD, Senior Clinlcal Consultant

Add course title fo C’E éeries recorded presentations Instructions document under section héaded, “The follbwing courses
are available in Survey Monkey.”

CNE/IV Therapy 104




%
1
;
}
;
;
§
E

CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

AT CR E DO H e A LT H MG ORPORATEDRD

CE Series Recorded Presentations
The CE Series WebEXx recordings are available in LMS and in Survey Monkey

If you were not able to attend the live presentation, the recorded presentations are now
available for continuing education credit

The following courses are available in LMS (in HR Expressway):

CE Series — (259} Hereditary Angioedema Self Study

CE Series —{260) HIV in the United States: An updated perspective Seif S!udy
CE Series — {265} Growth Hormone Deficlency (GHD) Self Study

CE Series — (278) ialty Phar icals in Develor Self Study

*Enter “CE Series” into Search to locate all courses. Follow instructions given in LMS.

The following courses are available in Survey Monkey

« (284} Rare Diseases & Orphan Drugs Self Study

e (286} ) herapy for the logy patient Self Study

o (281) Primary Jeficiency, Intr | lobulin, and Sub i fobulin Self Study
.

.

{292) Disease Modifying Treatment Options in Multiple Sclerosis Self Study
(298) Immunosuppressive Therapy in Sofid Qrgan Transplant Self-study

*Select: hitps://www.surveymonkey.com/r/CESeriesSelfStudy
1. Select the presentation
2. Complete the pretest, view the recording, complete the post-test, evaluation, and participant information.

Upon completion of al requirements in LMS or Survey Monkey, nurses will receive a continuing education certificate by mail
within 3 weeks. Pharmacist continuing education credit will be reporied to GPE Monitor within 60 days of the presentation date.
A statement of credit will be issued upon request.

For questions or assistance, contact:
« Erica Harris at Erica harris@accredohealth.com or (877)239-7156 extension 254420, or
« Laura Tumer at laura.turner@accredohealth.com or (877)2397156 extension 254419

Add answer key answers and minimum passing score to “Master Self-study scores” Excel spreadsheet located CE/CE
Series Survey Monkey/ Participant Reports/ Master self -study scores [43i]

16
17 PDF the answer key and add it to CE/CE Series Survey Monkey/ Participant Reports/ answer keys

E

After participant completes self-study, CES scores pre- and posttest, and records scores on Master Self-study Scores
18 spreadsheet CE/CE Series Survey Monkey/ Participant Reports/ participant results. CE credit given if participant passed

posttest

CNE/IV Therapy 105




Process Flow
The following Process Flows are to be used in conjunction with this SOP:

* Not applicable

Reference Documents

Individuals using this procedure should become familiar with the following documents:
¢ SOP CE 1: Continuing Education Course Development and Approval
e SOP CE 16: Post Presentation Process

¢ WebEx Schedule Training Session Teaching Tool

Document History

Document Location

This is an on-line document. Refer to the author if you are in any doubt about the accuracy of this
document.

Revision History

Revision |Revision

Number | Date Summary. of Changes Author

0 12/11/2017 | Original Laura Turner
1 01/30/2006 | Changed pre-test and post-test to pretest and posttest Laura Turner

Subject Matter Expert (SME) Reviewers
This document was reviewed/edited by following SMEs:

Name Title Date Reviewed
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 12/13/2017
Erica Harris Continuing Education Specialist 02/06/2023
Approvals
This document requires following approvals:
‘Name Title Date Approved
Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 12/06/2017

CNE/IV Therapy 106



Maureen McCullough Director of Clinical Resources - Nursing 02/06/2023

CNE/IV Therapy 107




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING
A CCREDO HEALTH, I NCORPORATED

Title: (443) Myasthenia Gravis (MG)

ACPE 1.25 RPh contact hours KSBN 1.5 RN contact hours CCMC 1.25 CM contact hours Activity length: 75 minutes
UAN: 0386-0000-22-011-L01-P Release date: 9/22/2022 Planned expiration date: 9/22/2025 CE Approved: 9/12/2022

Learning objectives
¢  Review Myasthenia Gravis (MG) symptoms, clinical presentation and pathophysiology
¢  Review MG diagnostic process
e Discuss MG interventions: pharmacotherapy, non-drug and surgical

Agenda

Myasthenia Gravis Overview
Treatment and Management
Pharmacotherapy Intervention
Non-drug Intervention
Surgical Intervention

Barriers to Care

Patient and Caregiver Experience
Questions

Posttest

Evaluation

® & © © ¢ 5 & o o o

Major Activity Objective
The program will provide the attendees with an overview of myasthenia gravis, its complications, and therapy strategies. Discussion includes the
variables influencing resuits, the treatment, and management of side effects appropriately.

Needs assessment:
Gaps between Current and Desired State:

«  Attendees may not be familiar with the details and types of MG, the recommended treatment, or its complex clinical management. This
provides the most recent guidelines for treating MG, a comprehensive overview of drug therapy, and discusses the different treatment options
available specific to the various types of MG.

Benefit of Desired State:

« Attendees will be more conversant in identification, classification and clinical course of MG and the appropriate management of this disorder.

They will be able to incorporate the information learned into external conversations as well as our own product and materials development.

Intended outcome
Clinicians who attend this presentation and successfully complete requirements will be more conversant in myasthenia gravis, currently available agents,
indication, drug profile elements, clinical efficacy and current guidelines.

Activity overview:
This live activity consists of a75-minute presentation.

Target Audience:

This continuing professional education learning activity is designed for pharmacists and nurses who may encounter patients diagnosed with myasthenia
gravis; clinicians who counsel patients on their drug therapy, answer questions, or make pharmacotherapy recommendations on behalf of these patients
to treating physicians.

Continuing Education Information and Requirements per discipline:

This continuing education activity is approved for pharmacists and nurses.

« Nurses must complete a pretest, pass a posttest, complete an evaluation and attendance roster, including their license number(s) and signature, to
receive course credit.

e  Pharmacists must complete a pretest, pass a posttest, complete an evaluation and attendance roster, including their NABP e-profile ID and date of
birth (MMDD), to receive course credit.

Continuing Education Information:
The continuing education activity number, requirement, and credit for this knowledge-based activity in included with the continuing education activity
description.

Registered Pharmacists (RPh)
Accredo Health, Incorporated is accredited by the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy
education. UAN: 0386-0000-22-51.01-P. Release date: 9/22/2022

Activity type: Knowledge Contact hours: 1.25

(443) Myasthenia Gravis (MG) Announcement and Requirements
Page 1 of 2
©2022. Accredo Healthcare, an Express Scripts company.

CNE/IV Therapy 108




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

ACCREDO HEALTH, INCORPORATED

Advance Practice Registered Nurses {APRNs), Registered Nurses (RNs), & Licensed Practical Nurses (LPNs)

Accredo Health, Incorporated is approved as a provider of continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board of Nursing. This
course offering is approved for 1.5 contact hours applicable for APRN, RN, or LPN relicensure. Kansas State Board of Nursing provider
number LT0223-0538.

Assessment Method:
Participants will complete the posttest. The participant must pass the posttest with a score of 70% or greater. He/she may attempt the test a 2™ time to
receive course credit. Participants will be given a copy of the answer key for future reference.

Faculty
¢ Developer(s)
. Jennifer Johnson, RN, BSN, CRNI, Senior Clinical Program Advisor
e  Continuing Education Reviewers
. Laura Turner, RN, Continuing Education Administrator
+  Adam Portik, PharmD, Senior Clinical Advisor
. Maureen McCullough, MSN, RN, CRNI, Director of Clinical Resources, Nursing / Continuing Education Program Coordinator

Disclosure Declaration

Accredo Health Group, Incorporated, and its subsidiaries dispense medications and provide services discussed in this presentation. Every effort has
been made to include all approved treatment options currently used for the treatment of this disease state; to present each therapy equally, objectively,
and without bias; and to avoid promotion of one therapy over another.

No commercial support was received for this activity. No compensation was received for planning, development, approval, or presentation of this
activity.

All persons considered to plan, develop, or review/approve content of an education activity must disclose all relevant financial relationships (RFRs) with
any ineligible company(ies).” If any RFRs were disclosed, steps will be taken to mitigate the relationship. Disclosure and mitigation will be kept on file,
and will be disclosed to the participants.

*Ineligible company: One whose primary business is producing, marketing, selling, re-selling or distributing healthcare products used by or on patients.

There is no commercial support for this course offering.

Accredo Health, Incorporated develops continuing education presentations for pharmacists, nurses, and case managers that provide an in-depth
presentation with fair, full disclosure, and equitable balance. Topics and learning objectives will not be promotional or appear to be intended for the
purpose of endorsing a specific commercial drug or a specific commercial service. All educational programs and associated materials will be free from
promotional influence and/or content. Written agreements will be used in the event of external support. Any relevant relationship between funding
organization(s) and program faculty will be disclosed. Accredo will avoid promotional activities or materials as an integral part of the program or program
materials, or in any manner that interferes with or interrupts the educational activity. Disclosure will be made of limitations on information including but
not limited to:

Data that represents ongoing research

Interim analysis

Preliminary data

Unsupported opinion

Opinions or approaches to care that, while supported by some research studies, do not represent the only opinion or approach to care supported
by research.

e  Off label use

Relevant financial disclosure
No persons in control of content had relevant financial relationships.

Participant information
Participant names and contact information are retained by the continuing education department and only shared with appropriate accreditation boards
for the purpose of providing continuing education credit.

There is no fee for this activity

Registration process:

Registration instructions including a link to Survey Monkey are sent via email to participant distribution list. Participants complete a pretest and provide
identification (name, email). Registrants are sent access information to WebEx for the presentation day, along with the presentation handout.

Statements of Credit:
Continuing education credit for pharmacists is submitted to CPE Monitor within 60 days of presentation date.

CE Certificate / Verification of Completion
Nurses will receive a CE certificate by mail within 3 weeks.

(443) Myasthenia Gravis (MG) Announcement and Requirements
Page 2 of 2
©2022. Accredo Healthcare, an Express Scripts company.

CNE/IV Therapy 109



9/12/2022

Myasthenia Gravis (MQG)

Clinical Education Course

accredos

Confidential Information

2 2002 Aceredo H
rtos are

Fizsies 5

1

23 fix

Accredo Disclosure Policy

Accredo Health, Incorporated, will develop continuing education presentations for
nurses, pharmacists, and case managers that provide in-depth presentation with
fair, full disclosure and equitable balance. Topics and learning objectives will not be
promotional or appear to be intended for the purpose of endorsing a specific
commercial drug or a specific commercial service. All educational programs and
associated materials will be free from promotional influence and/or content. Written
agreements will be used in the event of external support. Any relevant relationship
between funding organization(s) and program faculty will be disclosed.

Confidential information

2523 Aisredo Hiath Crovg, mé 1 4 Expecss Sciipts Concin MR e o H : S G i (ZCO]”Q(ZO‘ 2

CNE/IV Therapy 110




9/12/2022

Accredo Disclosure Policy

° Accredo will avoid promotional activities or materials as an integral part of the
program or program materials, or in any manner that interferes with or interrupts
the educational activity. Disclosure will be made of limitations on information
including but not limited to:

» Data that represents ongoing research
¢ Interim analysis

» Preliminary data

»  Unsupported opinion

¢ Opinions or approaches to care that, while supported by some research studies, do not
represent the only opinion or approach to care supported by research

o Off-label use

onfidential information

TLOLE A0 Haakth Greay, tne | A Express Sedps’ Comishng A RIZvs Resavad (chlﬂe(l() ! s

Accredo Disclosure Declaration

* Accredo Health Group, Incorporated, and its subsidiaries dispense medications
and provide services discussed in this presentation. Every effort has been made
to include all approved treatment options currently used for the treatment of this
disease state; to present each therapy equally, objectively, and without bias; and
to avoid promotion of one therapy over another.

° No commercial support was received for this activity. No compensation was
received for planning, development, approval, or presentation of this activity.

° All persons considered to plan, develop, or review/approve content of an
education activity must disclose all relevant financial relationships (RFRs) with
any ineligible company(ies).* If any RFRs were disclosed, steps will be taken to
mitigate the relationship. Disclosure and mitigation will be kept on file, and will be
disclosed to the participants.

*Ineligible company: One whose primary business is producing, marketing, selling, re-selling or distributing healthcare products used by or on patients.

wnfidential information

2022 Konprdo Hew i Broug, g | A Eipress Sorots Conmpatsy, Al RN Resariad] (IC C) ”6(]0 : 4

CNE/IV Therapy 111 2



9/12/2022

References

1. Image: Central and Peripheral Nervous System. (via NonCommercial-ShareAlike 4.0 International License, except where

otherwise noted), Image can be found at: http://library.open.oregonstate.edu/aandp/chapter/12-1-structure-and-
function-of-the-nervous-system/. Accessed 7.30.2021

2. Image can be found at: http://www.humanbrainfacts.org/neurons-in-the-brain.php. Used with permission. Accessed
7.30.2021

3. Image: Looie496 created file, US National Institutes of Health, National Institute on Aging created original [Public
domam], via Wlkumed|a Commons Image can be found at:

: Jpg. Accessed 7.30.2021.

4, Narayanaswam1 P Sanders DB Wolfe G, et al. International Consensus Guidance for Management of Myasthenia
Gravis. 2020 Update. Neurology Jan 2021, 96 (3) 114-122; DOI: 10.1212/WNL.0000000000011124.
https://n.neurology.org/content/96/3/114.

5. Dresser L, Wlodarski R, Rezania K, Soliven B. Myasthenia Gravis: Epidemiology, Pathophysiology and Clinical
Manifestations. J Clin Med. 2021 May 24;10(11):2235. doi: 10.3390/jcm10112235, PMID: 34064035; PMCID:
PMC8196750. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC8196750/.

6. Image: The thymus gland. Open Domain. Image can be found at:

://commons.wikimedia.org/w/index.php?eurid=1394454. Accessed 8.1.2022.

7. Myasthenia Gravis Foundation of America. MGFA. Clinical Classification.
https://myasthenia.org/Portals/0/MGFA%20Classification.pdf.

8. Image Strabismus m MG By James Heilman, MD Own work, CC BY-SA 3.0, Available at:

L& -Confidential information S ; : i ; yo
g SR bekieke Basah Grot Tae 15 Eupress Sciipts. Commany, AU etis Fesariat | A : Lo e = (ZCG)"Q(ZO a2

Referenoes

Image: Cogan’s sign {ocular MG). MedicineNet. ©2016, WebMD, LLC. All rights reserved. Link to terms of use:

https://www.medicinenet.com/script/main/art.asp?articlekey=12596. Citation: MedicineNet. Life Expectancy of a

Person With Myasthenia Gravis. Available at:

www.medicinenet.com/life_expectancy of a_person with_myasthenia_gravis/article.ntm. Accessed 8.1.2022.

10. Image: Facial droop in MG. Copyright @ 2020 Elnazeir, Narayanan, Badugu, Hussain, Tareen, Hernandez, Liu, Palade
and Brown. This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (CC
BY). Citation: Elnazeir M, Narayanan S, Badugu P, Hussain A, Tareen T, Hernandez AR, Liu W, Palade AE and Brown ME
(2020) Myasthenia Gravis Masquerading as an Idiopathic Unilateral Facial Paralysis (Bell's Palsy)—A Very Rare and
Unique Clinical Find. Front. Neurol. 11:709. Link to article and licensing:
https://www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fneur.2020.00709/full.

11. StatPearls [Internet]. Treasure Island (FL): StatPearls Publishing; 2022 Jan-. Myasthenia Gravis. Last Update: December
15, 2021. Accessed 7.12.2022.

12. Image: Motor End-Plate and Innervation. Chapter 10. Authored by: OpenStax College. Provided by: Rice
University. Located at: https://cnx.org/contents/14fb4ad7-39al-4eee-abbe-36f2482e3e22@7.1@7.1.. Project:
Anatomy & Physiology. License: CC BY: Attribution. License terms: Download for free at
http://cnx.org/content/col11496/latest/.

13. Howard, J.F, Jr. (2018), Myasthenia gravis: the role of complement at the neuromuscular junction. Ann. N.Y. Acad. Sci.,
1442: 113-128. https://doi.org/10.1111/nyas.13522.

14. Image: The Motor Unit. Science online by Heba Soffar is licensed under CC by 4.0 International License.
Based on a work at /https://www.online-sciences.com/. https://www.online-sciences.com/creative-commons/. Image
available at: https://www.online-sciences.com/biology/mechanism-of-muscle-contraction-motor-unit-muscle-fatigue-

huxelys-theory-of-sliding-filaments/. Accessed 7.30.2021

- Confidential information i : S : : : d : Vi e
CF Comoenelinometon , . = accredo

CNE/IV Therapy 112

25




9/12/2022

References

15. Alcantara, M., Sarpong, E., Barnett, C., Katzberg, H. and Bril, V. (2021), Chronic immunaoglobulin maintenance therapy in
myasthenia gravis. Eur J Neurol, 28: 639-6486. https://doi.org/10.1111/ene.14547. Purchased PDF.

16. Constantine Farmakidis MD | Mazen M. Dimachkie MD | Mamatha Pasnoor MD | Richard J. Barohn MD.
Immunosuppressive and immunomodulatory therapies for neuromuscular diseases. Part I: Traditional agents. Muscle &
Nerve, 2020,61:5-16. Purchased PDF,

17. Burakgazi AZ. Immunoglobulin Treatment in Neuromuscular Medicine. J Clin Neuromuscul Dis, 2019 Jun;20(4):182-193.
doi: 10.1097/CND.0000000000000235. Purchased PDF.

18. Chen, Y, Wang, C., Xy, F.,, Ming, F., & Zhang, H. (2019). Efficacy and tolerability of intravenous immunoglobulin and
subcutaneous immunoglobulin in neurologic diseases. Clinical Therapeutics, 41(10), 2112-2136. Purchased PDF.

19. Dalakas, M.C. Update on Intravenous Immunoglobulin in Neurology: Modulating Neuro-autoimmunity, Evolving Factors on
Efficacy and Dosing and Challenges on Stopping Chronic IVIg Therapy. Neurotherapeutics 18, 2397-2418 (2021).
https://doi.org/10.1007/513311-021-01108-4. https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s13311-021-01108-4 #citeas.

20. Grayson Beecher, Dustin Anderson, Zaeem A. Siddigi. Subcutaneous immunoglobulin in myasthenia gravis exacerbation.
A prospective, open-label trial. Neurology Sep 2017, 89 (11) 1135-1144; DOI: 10.1212/WNL.0000000000004365.
https://n.neurology.org/content/89/11/1135,

21. Soliris® (eculizumab) injection. [Package insert]. Boston, MA: Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc..; Nov 2020. Located at:

https://solirispro.com/pdf/Saliris USPL.pdf, Accessed 7.22.2022

22. Ultomiris® (ravulizumab-cwvz) injection. [Package insert]. Boston, MA: Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc..; July 2022. Located

at: https://alexion.com/documents/ultomiris _uspi. Accessed 8.1.2022
23. Vyvgart® (efgartigimod aifa-fcab) injection. [Package insert]. Boston, MA: Argenx US, Inc.; Apr 2022.

https://www.argenx.com/product/vyvgart-prescribing-information.pdf. Accessed 7.22.2022.

onfidential information i
accredo *

References

24. Howard, J, Brit V, Vu T, Karam C, Peric S, Margania T, et al. Safety, efficacy, and tolerability of efgartigimod in patients
with generalised myasthenia gravis (ADAPT): a multicentre, randomised, placebo-controlied, phase 3 trial. The Lancet
Neurology. VOLUME 20, ISSUE 7, P526-536, JULY 01, 2021. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1016/S1474-4422(21)00159-.

25. Gronseth GS, Barohn R, Narayanaswami P. Practice advisory: Thymectomy for myasthenia gravis (practice parameter
update): Report of the Guideline Development, Dissemination, and Implementation Subcommittee of the American
Academy of Neurology. Neurology. 2020 Apr 21;94(16):705-709. doi: 10.1212/WNL.0000000000009294. Epub 2020
Mar 25. PMID: 32213645.

26. Myasthenia Gravis Foundation of America. CLINICAL OVERVIEW OF MG. https;//myasthenia.org/For
Professionals/Clinical-Overview-of-MG. Accessed 7.30.2021

27. National Institute of Neurological Disorders and Stroke. Myasthenia Gravis fact sheet.
https://www.ninds.nih.gov/Disorders/Patient-Caregiver-Education/Fact-Sheets/Myasthenia-Gravis-Fact-Sheet. Accessed
7.31.2021

28. National Organization of Rare Disorders. Myasthenia Gravis. https://rarediseases.org/rare-diseases/myasthenia-
gravis/. Published 2021. Accessed 7.30.2021

29. Dong, D., Chong, M.Kc., Wu, Y. et al. Gender differences in quality of life among patients with myasthenia gravis in
China. Health Qual Life Outcomes 18, 296 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1186/512955-020-01549-z

30. Sanders D, Wolfe G, Benatar M, Evoli A, et al. Executive Summary: International consensus guidance for management of
myasthenta gravis. Neurology. 2016;87:419-425. Available at:
fite:///U:/CE%20presentations/ID%20TRC/Neuro%201g/2020/2016-
MYASTHENIA%20GRAVIS%20TREATMENT%20GUIDELINES. pdf. Accessed 7.23.2021

9
-~ Confidential Information ~ ] ©ilis2
B2BEIAsErado Hixth Brony, Ine |8 Eaptess Soints, Convasiiy, AT fezi stond (lCCl 8( 0

CNE/IV Therapy 113

26



9/12/2022

References

31.

32.

33.
34.

35.
36.

37.

%g Confidential information

Bogdan, A., Barnett, C., Ali, A., AlQwaifly, M., Abraham, A., Mannan, S., Ng, E. and Bril, V. (2020}, Chronic stress,
depression and personality type in patients with myasthenia gravis. Eur J Neurol, 27: 204-

209. https://doi.org/10.1111/ene.14057. Accessed 8.30.2021

Sheikh S, Alvi U, Soliven B and Rezania K. Drugs That Induce or Cause Deterioration of Myasthenia Gravis: An Update. J.
Clin. Med. 2021, 10, 1537. https://doi.org/10.3390/Jcm10071537.
file:///U:/CE%20presentations/ICC%20TRC/Neuro%20l1g/References/Myasthenia%20Gravis%20(MGY/2021-Sheikh-
Drugs%20than%20induce%200r%20cause%20detioration%200f%20MG.pdf.

Krenn M, Grisold A, Wohlfarth P, Rath J, Cetin H, Koneczny |, Zimprich F. Pathomechanisms and Clinical Implications of
Myasthenic Syndromes Exacerbated and Induced by Medical Treatments. Front Mol Neurosci. 2020 Aug 14;13:156.
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pme/articles/PMC7457047/.

Wolfe GI, Kaminski HJ, Aban IB, et al. MGTX Study Group. Randomized Trial of Thymectomy in Myasthenia Gravis. N Engl
J Med. 2016 Aug 11;375(6):511-22. doi: 10.1056/NEJM0a1602489. Erratum in: N Engl J Med. 2017 May
25;376(21):2097. [Dosage errot in article text]. https://www.nebi.nlm.nih.gov/pme/articles/PMC5189669/.

U.S. Food & Drug Administration. Understanding Unapproved Use of Approved Drugs "Off Label”.
https://www.fda.gov/ForPatients/Other/OffLabel/default.htm. Accessed 7.30.2022

Dalakas MC. Intravenous immunoglobulin in autoimmune neuromuscular diseases. JAMA. 2004 May 19;291(19):2367-
75. doi: 10.4001/jama.291.19.2367. PMID: 15150209. Accessed 7.30.2022

Liinemann JD, Quast [, Dalakas MC. Efficacy of Intravenous Immunoglobulin in Neurological Diseases.
Neurotherapeutics. 2016 Jan;13(1):34-46. doi: 10.1007/s13311-015-0391-5. PMID: 26400261; PMCID:
PMC4720677. Accessed 7.30.2022

L Douanaree teatn Bk e | Eapress Scrins Coten A Tens Reserie : L i o i acc)ﬂe(lo" 53

References

38.
39.
40.

41.

42.

43.

Confidential Information : . oo Z . 54
000 BiTEde Hexth Brows ine. 14 Eapress Scrints Conwamy, A RiZns Reserdd i : : & = (ICCI 15/8[6F :

Perez EE, Orange JS, Bonilla F, Chinen J, Chinn IK, Dorsey M, E-Gamal Y, Harville TO, Hossny E, Mazer B, Nelson R,
Secord E, Jordan SC, Stiehm ER, Vo AA, Ballow M. Update on the use of immunoglobulin in human disease: A review of
evidence. J Allergy Clin Immunol. 2017 Mar;139(3S):S1-546. doi: 10,1016/].jaci.2016.09.023. Epub 2016 Dec 29.
PMID: 28041678. Accessed 7.30.2022.

Image: Fc Rn Receptor and IGg. Frontiers in Neurology. This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of
the Creative Commons Attribution License (CC BY). Citation: Pyzik M, Sand KMK, Hubbard JJ, Andersen JT, Sandlie | and
Blumberg RS (2019) The Neonatal F¢ Receptor (FcRn): A Misnomer? (Figure 1) Front. Immunol. 10:1540. doi:
10.3389/fimmu.2019.01540. Available at: https://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pme/articles/PMC6636548/.

Image: Mab/C5. This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License
(CC BY). Citation: Holmay, T., Heglund, R.A,, liles, Z. et al. Recent progress in maintenance treatment of neuromyelitis
optica spectrum disorder. J Neurol 268, 4522-4536 (2021). https://doi.org/10.1007/s00415-020-10235-5. Link to
license: https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s00415-020-10235-5.

Image: Modified. C5 representation. This open access article is distributed under Creative Commons Attribution License
4.0 (CC BY). Copyright © 2020 the Author(s). Published by PNAS, Citation: Reichhardt MP, Johnson S, Tang T, Morgan T,
Tebeka N, Popitsch N, Deme JC, Jore MM, Lea SM. An inhibitor of complement C5 provides structural insights into
activation. Proc Natl Acad Sci U S A. 2020 Jan 7;117(1):362-370. doi: 10.1073/pnas.1909973116, Epub 2019 Dec 23.
PMID: 31871188; PMCID: PMC6955305. Available at: https://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pme/articles/PMC6955305/.
Thomsen JLS, Andersen H. Outcome Measures in Clinical Trials of Patients With Myasthenia Gravis. Front Neurol. 2020
Dec 23:11:596382. doi: 10.3389/fneur.2020.596382. PMID: 33424747, PMCID: PMC7793650.

Lazaridis K, Tzartos SJ. Autoantibody Specificities in Myasthenia Gravis; Implications for Improved Diagnostics and
Therapeutics. Front Immunol. 2020 Feb 14;11:212. doi: 10.3389/fimmu.2020.00212. PMID: 32117321; PMCID:
PMC7033452.

CNE/IV Therapy 114

27




9/12/2022

Resources

¢ Myasthenia Gravis Foundation. http://www.myasthenia.org/

* The National Center for Biotechnology Information.
https://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pme/

» The National Institute of Neurological Disorders and Stroke.
https://www.ninds.nih.gov/Disorders

e National Organization for Rare Disorders. https://rarediseases.org/

* Orphanet. https://www.orpha.net

onfidential Information

£ ROUT RS A0 HRadh GrmipInti | Eprees Soipis’ Comnaiy. M Rezime Baderiai

dccreco: *

accredo

Tdential Information
S 2300 Airds HEGTh Grons, mes | A0 E4puess Sorips Company, Al Rizs Resiridd

56

CNE/IV Therapy 115 28



CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDD HEALTH, I NCORPORATED
Continuing Education Development Tools

Session Planning Worksheet: Practice Gaps and Learning Needs
(443) Myasthenia Gravis
Use this template to reflect on practice gaps and learning needs for your educational activity

1. Identify recent work-related situation(s) that you think require additional knowledge/skills to better
manage similar situations in the future.
Why this topic? Why our pharmacists and nurses?

The Myasthenia Gravis Foundation of America publishes evidence-based guidelines on the treatment
and management of Myasthenia Gravis (MG). There are additional guidelines by the American
Academy of Neurology (AAN) regarding use of thymectomy in MG patients. Many health care
providers may not be aware there are now several therapies with FDA indication for generalized MG
(gMG) with anti-acetylcholine receptor (AchR) antibodies, or be aware that many formally
recommended therapies for MG are off-label. The guidelines summarize the evidence and makes
recommendations regarding treating patients with Myasthenia Gravis using FDA approved, off-label,
non-pharmacotherapeutic and surgical interventions.

2. List areas of improvement that your department, organization, health-system, and/or community
have identified that you think require additional knowledge/skills to optimize the delivery of care and
patient health.

A comprehensive management strategy that incorporates the patient, payer, and healthcare provider
can result in better outcomes and help prevent complications.

3. Identify recent research, expert opinion, national guidelines, regulations, or other data that may
require additional knowledge/skills to better manage the work-related situations or improvement
areas listed above in 1 and 2. (Use Needs Assessment Justification template)

This program will provide information about MG and how we can best manage symptoms, level of
disability and disease. References include Myasthenia Gravis Foundation of America (MGFA), AAN,
additional literature, and additional peer-reviewed scientific journal articles. These are the evidence
based treatment recommendations neurologists follow to make treatment decision for their patients.

4, List any specific gaps in knowledge/ skills based upon your reflections (above, 1-3) and the
anticipated benefit from addressing them.

Gaps between Current and Desired State
The attendees may not be familiar with the
details and types of MG, the recommended
treatment, or its complex clinical management.
This provides the most recent guidelines for
treating MG, a comprehensive overview of drug
therapy, and discusses the different treatment
options available specific to the various types of
MG.

Benefit of Desired State
Attendees will be more conversant in
identification, classification and clinical course of
MG and the appropriate management of this
disorder. They will be able to incorporate the
information learned into external conversations
as well as our own product and materials
development.

CNE/IV Therapy 116




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO

HEALTH, I

NCORPORATEDHD

Continuing Education Development Tools

5. Describe the target audience that will benefit from the education activity.

Healthcare providers who interact, or may interact with clients with MG.

6. Summarize how the education activity will fill the above gaps listed in 4.

The program will provide the attendees with an overview of neuromuscular disorders, its
complications, and therapy strategies. Discussion includes the variables influencing results, the
treatment, and appropriate management of side effects.

Needs Assessment Justification Template

Basis of Need

Name of expert, guideline, research, survey, etc.

What the expert / guideline /
research says that supports the
need (include approximate date)
*use additional space if needed

| Expert Opinion

Referenced in guidelines

National
Guidelines

Myasthenia Gravis Foundation of America.
Narayanaswami P, Sanders D, Wolfe G, et al.
International Consensus Guidance for
Management of Myasthenia Gravis. 2020
Update. Neurology Jan 2021, 96 (3) 114-

122; https://n.neurology.org/content/96/3/114..

Sussman J, Farrugia ME, Maddison P, Hill M, Leite
MI, Hilton-Jones D. The Association of British
Neurologists' myasthenia gravis guidelines. Ann N
Y Acad Sci. 2018 Jan;1412(1):166-169. doi:
10.1111/nyas.13503.
https://pn.bmj.com/content/practneurol/15/3/1

99.full.pdf..

American Academy of Neurology.

Gronseth GS, Barohn R, Narayanaswami P.
Practice advisory: Thymectomy for myasthenia
gravis (practice parameter update): Report of the
Guideline Development, Dissemination, and
Implementation Subcommittee of the American

Guidelines regarding appropriate
use of recommended therapies for
the different types/severity levels
of MG including pharmacotherapy,
non-pharmacotherapy
intervention and surgical
intervention (thymectomy).

British guidelines included as they
add some detail not seen in the
American guidelines.

Recommendations regarding
appropriate therapeutic
thymectomy with/without
thymoma.

CNE/IV Therapy 117




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

ACCREDO®O HEALTH, I NCORPORATETD

Continuing Education Development Tools

| Academy of Neurology. Neurology. 2020 Apr

21;94(16):705-709. doi:
10.1212/WNL.0000000000009294. Epub 2020
Mar 25. PMID: 32213645,

Government /
Regulatory
Requirement

The Food and Drug Administration.
https://www.fda.gov/ForPatients/Other/OffLabe

|/default.htm.

The Food and Drug Administration.
https://www.fda.gov/BiologicsBloodVaccines/Blo
odBloodProducts/ApprovedProducts/LicensedPr
oductsBLAs/FractionatedPlasmaProducts/ucmi3
3691.htm.

Research
Findings

Sheikh S, Alvi U, Soliven B and Rezania K. Drugs
That Induce or Cause Deterioration of

1 Myasthenia Gravis: An Update. J. Clin. Med.

2021, 10, 1537.
https://doi.org/10.3390/Jcm10071537.
file:///U:/CE%20presentations/ICC%20TRC/Neur
0%20Ig/References/Myasthenia%20Gravis%20(M
G)/2021-Sheikh-
Drugs%20than%20induce%200r%20cause%20det
ioration%200f%20MG.pdf.

Wolfe Gl, Kaminski Hl, Aban IB, et al. MGTX Study
Group. Randomized Trial of Thymectomy in
Myasthenia Gravis. N Engl J Med. 2016 Aug
11;375(6):511-22. doi: 10.1056/NEJM0al1602489.
Erratum in: N Engl ] Med. 2017 May
25;376(21):2097. [Dosage error in article text].

| https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC

5189669/..

Peer-reviewed
Literature

* HalC, Richman DP. Myasthenia gravis and
related disorders: Pathophysiology and
molecular pathogenesis. Biochim Biophys
Acta. Apr2015;1852(4): 651-7.

| ¢ Lomen-Hoerth Catherine, Messing Robert O,

"Chapter 7. Nervous System Disorders”
(Chapter). McPhee, SJ, Hammer, GD:
Pathophysiology of Disease: An Introduction
to Clinical Medicine, 6e:
http://www.accesspharmacy.com/content.a
spx?alD=5368376..

*Some of the references listed are
>5years old. The disease states
covered are rare; there is little
available literature regarding this
topic.

CNE/IV Therapy 118




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO HEALTH, I NCORPORATEPD

Continuing Education Development Tools

« Dresser L, Wlodarski R, Rezania K, Soliven B.
Myasthenia Gravis: Epidemiology,
Pathophysiology and Clinical Manifestations.
1 Clin Med. 2021 May 21;10(11):2235. doi:
10.3390/jcm10112235. PMID: 34064035;
PMCID: PMC8196750.
https://www.ncbhi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/
PMC8196750/..

+  StatPearls {Internet]. Treasure Island
(FL): StatPearls Publishing,; 2022 Jan-.
Myasthenia Gravis. Last Update: December
15, 2021. Accessed 7.12.2022.

+ Howard, L.F., Ir. (2018), Myasthenia gravis:
the role of complement at the
neuromuscular junction. Ann. N.Y. Acad. Sci.,
1412:113-

128. https://doi.org/10.1111/nyas.13522..

* Alcantara, M., Sarpong, E., Barnett, C,,
Katzberg, H. and Bril, V. (2021), Chronic
immunoglobulin maintenance therapy in
myasthenia gravis. Eur J Neurol, 28: 639-
646. https://doi.org/10.1111/ene.14547..
Purchased PDF.

¢ Constantine Farmakidis MD | Mazen M.
Dimachkie MD | Mamatha Pasnoor MD |
Richard J. Barohn MD. Immunosuppressive
and immunomodulatory therapies for
neuromuscular diseases. Part |: Traditional
agents. Muscle & Nerve. 2020;61:5-16.
Purchased PDF.

*  Burakgazi AZ. Immunoglobulin Treatment in
Neuromuscular Medicine. J Clin Neuromuscul
Dis. 2019 Jun;20(4):182-193. doi:
10.1097/CND.0000000000000235.
Purchased PDF.

* Chen, Y., Wang, C., Xu, F., Ming, F., & Zhang,
H. (2019). Efficacy and tolerability of
intravenous immunoglobulin and
subcutaneous immunoglobulin in neurologic
diseases. Clinical Therapeutics, 41(10), 2112-
2136. Purchased PDF.

* Dalakas, M.C. Update on Intravenous
Immunoglobulin in Neurology: Modulating
Neuro-autoimmunity, Evolving Factors on
Efficacy and Dosing and Challenges on

CNE/IV Therapy 119




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO HEALTH, I NCORPORATED

Continuing Education Development Tools

Stopping Chronic IVIg

Therapy. Neurotherapeutics 18, 2397-2418
(2021). https://doi.org/10.1007/s13311-021-
01108-4..
https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s1
3311-021-01108-44citeas..

*  Sheikh S, Alvi U, Soliven B and Rezania K.
Drugs That Induce or Cause Deterioration of
Myasthenia Gravis: An Update. J. Clin. Med.
2021, 10, 1537.
https://doi.org/10.3390/Jcm10071537.
file:///U:/CE%20presentations/ICC%20TRC/N
euro%20lg/References/Myasthenia%20Gravi
s%20{MG)/2021-Sheikh-
Drugs%20than%20induce%200r%20cause%2
Odetioration%200f%20MG.pdf.

» Llazaridis K, Tzartos SJ. Autoantibody
Specificities in Myasthenia Gravis;
Implications for improved Diagnostics and

Therapeutics. Front Immunol. 2020 Feb

14;11:212. doi: 10.3389/fimmu.2020.00212.
PMID: 32117321; PMCID: PMC7033452.

Surveys
Other Study and literature reviews:
(Describe) e Thomsen JLS, Andersen H. Outcome

Measures in Clinical Trials of Patients With
Myasthenia Gravis. Front Neurol. 2020 Dec
23;11:596382. doi:
10.3389/fneur.2020.596382. PMID:
33424747; PMCID: PMC7793650.

| National Foundations:

| « Myasthenia Gravis Foundation of America.
https://nationalhealthcouncil.org/member/
myasthenia-gravis-foundation-of-america/..
e Muscular Dystrophy Association.

o 161 N. Clark
o Suite 3550

CNE/IV Therapy 120




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO HEALTH, I NCORPORATEHD

Continuing Education Development Tools

Chicago, IL 60601 USA
Phone: (520) 529-2000
Toli-free; (800) 572-1717
Email: ResourceCenter@mdausa.org
o Website: hitp://www.mda.org/.
e Autoimmune Association.
o 19176 Hall Road, Suite 130
Clinton Township, Ml 48038 USA
Phone: (586) 776-3900
Toll-free; (888) 852-3456
Email: hello@autoimmune.org.
Website: .https://autoimmune.org.

O 0 0O

O 0 0 0 0

e Patient experiences:
Myasthenia Gravis Foundation of
America. The MG Experience.
https://myasthenia.org/MG-
Community/The-MG-Experience..

Government sponsored organizations:

s The National Center for Biotechnology
Information.
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/.

* GARD (Genetic and Rare Disease information
center)
https://rarediseases.info.nih.gov/diseases/7
122/myasthenia-gravis.

e The National Institute of Neurological
Disorders and Stroke.
https://www.ninds.nih.gov/Disorders.

e National Organization for Rare Disorders.
https://rarediseases.org/.

e Orphanet. https://www.orpha.net.

CNE/IV Therapy 121




Education Design | Documentation Format

Title: (443) Myasthenia Gravis (MG
CRP approved: N/A

__ (CE Series)

Activity Type: Knowledge

CE approved: 09/12/2022

Presentation:time is 1 hour 15 minutes

Contact hours: ACPE: 1.25 RPh

KSBN: 1.5RN

CCMC: N/A

ACPE UAN 0386-0000-22-015-L01-P

Release date: 09/22/2022

Planned Exp date: 09/22/2025

Adam Portik

Discipline

| Title

Senior Clinical Adwsor

| Disclosure signature date

Presenter: Only a properly licensed Express Scripts clinician may provide Program content to non-Express Scripts Healthcare Professionals. For sake of clarity, sales or marketing personnel, including
clinicians who report through a sales or marketing organization, may not determine, write, fund, or deliver program content.

Experienced RN or RPh gresenter meetmg compa y presenter policy. RN or RPH with 2 years experience with bleeding disorders.

PharmD 12/20/2021
Jennifer Johnson RN, BSN, CRNI Senior Clinical Program Advisor 12/21/2021
Laura Tumner BS, RN Continuing Education Administrator 122712021
Adam Portik PharmD Senior Clinical Advisor 12/20/2021
Director of Clinical Resources, Nursing / Continuing Education
Maureen McCullough MSN, RN, CRNI Program Coordinator 1/3/2022
Erica Harris Non-clinical Continuing Education Specialist 11/18/2021

n internal Information

CNE/IV Therapy 122




Content (Topics)

Objectives:

* Review Myasthenia Gravis (MG) symptoms, clinical presentation and pathophysiology
¢ Review MG diagnostic process
e Discuss MG interventions: pharmacotherapy, non-drug and surgical

Agenda

Myasthenia Gravis Overview
Treatment and Management
Pharmacotherapy Intervention
Non-drug Intervention
Surgical Intervention

Barriers to Care

Patient and Caregiver Experience
Questions

Posttest

Evaluation

Knowledge Checks
Knowledge Check #1

Myasthenic crisis is a serious, life-threatening, rapid worsening of MG and potential airway compromise from ventilatory or bulbar dysfunction.

True or False?
A. True
B. False

Rationale: A. True. It is defined as “Worsening of myasthenic weakness requiring intubation or noninvasive ventilation to avoid intubation, except when these
measures are employed during routine postoperative management.”

Knowledge Check #2

Most people with Myasthenia Gravis (MG) have which type of antibodies present at the neuromuscular junction?
40% correction daily for 2 days, then 20% correct daily for 5 days

A. Anti-MuSK antibodies

B. FcRn antibodies

C. Anti-Lrp-4 antibodies

D. Anti-AChR antibodies

Rationale: D. Anti-AchR antibodies. These antibodies are identifiable in ~85% of gMG patients.

n Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 123




Knowledge Check #3

Which of the following pharmacotherapies does not have an FDA indication {approval) for MG?

A. Ultomiris® (ravulizumab)

B. Rituxan® (rituximab)

C. Mestinon® (pyridostigmine)
D. Vyvgart® (efgartigimod)

Rationale: B. Soliris, Ultomirs, Vyvgart and Pyridostigmine have an FDA indication for MG. Corticosteroids, immunosuppressants, Rituxan and immunoglobulin
do not have an FDA indication for MG, although they are recommended for use and included in management guidelines.

Teaching | ¢ PowerPoint Presentation

Strategies | * Handout
e lecture

¢ Pre-test and/or Postiest Answer review (required for RPhs)

Content | Outline
(Topics) Accredo Disclosure Policy
Accredo Disclosure Declaration
Faculty Disclosure

Course Requirements per discipline

Objectives

References

1. Image: Central and Peripheral Nervous System. (via NonCommercial-ShareAlike 4.0 International License, except where otherwise
noted), Image can be found at: http://library.open.oregonstate.edu/aandp/chapter/12-1-structure-and-function-of-the-nervous-
system/. Accessed 7.30.2021

2. Image can be found at: http://www.humanbrainfacts.org/neurons-in-the-brain.php. Used with permission. Accessed 7.30.2021

3. Image: Looie496 created file, US National Institutes of Health, National Institute on Aging created original [Public domain], via
Wikimedia Commons. Image can be found at: https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Chemical_synapse_schema_cropped.jpg.
Accessed 7.30.2021.

u Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 124




4. Narayanaswami P, Sanders DB, Wolfe G, et al. International Consensus Guidance for Management of Myasthenia Gravis. 2020 Update.
Neurology Jan 2021, 96 (3) 114-122; DOI: 10.1212/WNL.0000000000011124. https://n.neurology.org/content/96/3/114.

5. Dresser L, Wlodarski R, Rezania K, Soliven B. Myasthenia Gravis: Epidemiology, Pathophysiology and Clinical Manifestations. J Clin
Med. 2021 May 21;10(11):2235. doi: 10.3390/jcm10112235. PMID: 34064035; PMCID: PMC8196750.
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC8196750/.

6. Image: The thymus gland. Open Domain. Image can be found at: https://commons.wikimedia.org/w/index.php?curid=1394154.
Accessed 8.1.2022.

7. Myasthenia Gravis Foundation of America. MGFA. Clinical Classification.
https://myasthenia.org/Portals/0/MGFA%20Classification.pdf.

8. Image: Strabismus in MG. By James Heilman, MD - Own work, CC BY-SA 3.0, Available at:
https://commons.wikimedia.org/w/index.php?curid=17978809. Barton CA, Bierman J. Factor Products. In: Murphy JE, Lee MW, eds.
Pharmacotherapy Self-Assessment Program, 2018 Book 2. Hematology/Immunology/Oncology. Lenexa, KS: American College of
Clinical Pharmacy, 2018:7-26.

9. Image: Cogan’s sign {ocular MG). MedicineNet. ©2016, WebMD, LLC. All rights reserved. Link to terms of use:
https://www.medicinenet.com/script/main/art.asp?articlekey=12596. Citation: MedicineNet. Life Expectancy of a Person With
Myasthenia Gravis. Available at: https://www.medicinenet.com/life_expectancy_of_a_person_with_myasthenia_gravis/article.htm.
Accessed 8.1.2022.

10. Image: Facial droop in MG. Copyright © 2020 Elnazeir, Narayanan, Badugu, Hussain, Tareen, Hernandez, Liu, Palade and Brown. This is
an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (CC BY). Citation: Elnazeir M,
Narayanan S, Badugu P, Hussain A, Tareen T, Hernandez AR, Liu W, Palade AE and Brown ME (2020) Myasthenia Gravis Masquerading
as an Idiopathic Unilateral Facial Paralysis (Bell's Palsy})—A Very Rare and Unique Clinical Find. Front. Neurol. 11:709. Link to article and
licensing: https://www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fneur.2020.00709/full.

11. StatPearls [Internet]. Treasure Island (FL): StatPearls Publishing; 2022 Jan-. Myasthenia Gravis. Last Update: December 15, 2021.
Accessed 7.12.2022.

12. Image: Motor End-Plate and Innervation. Chapter 10. Authored by: OpenStax College. Provided by: Rice University. Located
at: https://cnx.org/contents/14fb4ad7-39al-4eee-abbe-3ef2482e3e22@7.1@7.1.. Project: Anatomy & Physiology. License: CC BY:
Attribution. License terms: Download for free at http://cnx.org/content/col11496/latest/.

13. Howard, I.F., Jr. (2018), Myasthenia gravis: the role of complement at the neuromuscular junction. Ann. N.Y. Acad. Sci., 1412: 113-
128. https://doi.org/10.1111/nyas.13522.

n Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 125




14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Image: The Motor Unit. Science online by Heba Soffar is licensed under CC by 4.0 International License.

Based on a work at /https://www.online-sciences.com/. https://www.online-sciences.com/creative-commons/. Image available at:
https://www.online-sciences.com/biology/mechanism-of-muscle-contraction-motor-unit-muscle-fatigue-huxelys-theory-of-sliding-
filaments/. Accessed 7.30.2021

Alcantara, M., Sarpong, E., Barnett, C., Katzberg, H. and Bril, V. (2021), Chronic immunoglobulin maintenance therapy in myasthenia
gravis. Eur J Neurol, 28: 639-646. https://doi.org/10.1111/ene.14547. Purchased PDF.

Constantine Farmakidis MD | Mazen M. Dimachkie MD | Mamatha Pasnoor MD | Richard J. Barohn MD. Immunosuppressive and
immunomodulatory therapies for neuromuscular diseases. Part I: Traditional agents. Muscle & Nerve. 2020;61:5-16. Purchased PDF.

Burakgazi AZ. Immunoglobulin Treatment in Neuromuscular Medicine. J Clin Neuromuscul Dis. 2019 Jun;20(4):182-193. doi:
10.1097/CND.0000000000000235. Purchased PDF. '

Chen, Y., Wang, C., Xu, F., Ming, F., & Zhang, H. (2019). Efficacy and tolerability of intravenous immunoglobulin and subcutaneous
immunoglobulin in neurologic diseases. Clinical Therapeutics, 41(10), 2112-2136. Purchased PDF.

Dalakas, M.C. Update on Intravenous Immunoglobulin in Neurology: Modulating Neuro-autoimmunity, Evolving Factors on Efficacy
and Dosing and Challenges on Stopping Chronic IVIg Therapy. Neurotherapeutics 18, 2397-2418 (2021).
https://doi.org/10.1007/s13311-021-01108-4. https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s13311-021-01108-4#citeas.

Grayson Beecher, Dustin Anderson, Zaeem A. Siddigi. Subcutaneous immunoglobulin in myasthenia gravis exacerbation. A prospective,
open-label trial. Neurology Sep 2017, 89 (11) 1135-1141; DOI: 10.1212/WNL.0000000000004365.
https://n.neurology.org/content/89/11/1135.

Soliris® (eculizumab) injection. [Package insert]. Boston, MA: Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc..; Nov 2020. Located at:
https://solirispro.com/pdf/Soliris_USPI.pdf. Accessed 7.22.2022

Ultomiris® {ravulizumab-cwvz) injection. [Package insert]. Boston, MA: Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc..; July 2022. Located at:
https://alexion.com/documents/ultomiris_uspi. Accessed 8.1.2022

Vyvgart® (efgartigimod alfa-fcab) injection. [Package insert]. Boston, MA: Argenx US, Inc.; Apr 2022.
https://www.argenx.com/product/vyvgart-prescribing-information.pdf. Accessed 7.22.2022 .

Howard, J, Bril V, Vu T, Karam C, Peric S, Margania T, et al. Safety, efficacy, and tolerability of efgartigimod in patients with generalised
myasthenia gravis (ADAPT): a multicentre, randomised, placebo-controlled, phase 3 trial. The Lancet Neurology. VOLUME 20, ISSUE
7, P526-536, JULY 01, 2021. DOl:https://doi.org/10.1016/51474-4422(21)00159-9.

n Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 126




25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Gronseth GS, Barohn R, Narayanaswami P. Practice advisory: Thymectomy for myasthenia gravis (practice parameter update): Report
of the Guideline Development, Dissemination, and Implementation Subcommittee of the American Academy of Neurology. Neurology.
2020 Apr 21;94(16):705-709. doi: 10.1212/WNL.0000000000009294. Epub 2020 Mar 25. PMID: 32213645.

Myasthenia Gravis Foundation of America. CLINICAL OVERVIEW OF MG. https://myasthenia.org/For Professionals/Clinical-Overview-
of-MG. Accessed 7.30.2021

National Institute of Neurological Disorders and Stroke. Myasthenia Gravis fact sheet. https://www.ninds.nih.gov/Disorders/Patient-
Caregiver-Education/Fact-Sheets/Myasthenia-Gravis-Fact-Sheet. Accessed 7.31.2021

National Organization of Rare Disorders. Myasthenia Gravis. https://rarediseases.org/rare-diseases/myasthenia-gravis/. Published
2021. Accessed 7.30.2021

Dong, D., Chong, M.Kc., Wu, Y. et al. Gender differences in quality of life among patients with myasthenia gravis in China. Health Qual
Life Outcomes 18, 296 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1186/s12955-020-01549-z

Sanders D, Wolfe G, Benatar M, Evoli A, et al. Executive Summary: International consensus guidance for management of myasthenia
gravis. Neurology. 2016;87:419-425. Available at: file:///U:/CE%20presentations/ID%20TRC/Neuro%201g/2020/2016-
MYASTHENIA%20GRAVIS%20TREATMENT%20GUIDELINES.pdf. Accessed 7.23.2021

Bogdan, A,, Barnett, C,, Ali, A,, AlQwaifly, M., Abraham, A., Mannan, S., Ng, E. and Bril, V. (2020), Chronic stress, depression and
personality type in patients with myasthenia gravis. Eur ) Neurol, 27: 204-209. https://doi.org/10.1111/ene.14057. Accessed 8.30.2021

Sheikh S, Alvi U, Soliven B and Rezania K. Drugs That Induce or Cause Deterioration of Myasthenia Gravis: An Update. J. Clin. Med.
2021, 10, 1537. https://doi.org/10.3390/Jcm10071537.
file:///U:/CE%20presentations/ICC%20TRC/Neuro%20lg/References/Myasthenia%20Gravis%20(MG)/2021-Sheikh-
Drugs%20than%20induce%200r%20cause%20detioration%200f%20MG.pdf.

Krenn M, Grisold A, Wohlfarth P, Rath J, Cetin H, Koneczny |, Zimprich F. Pathomechanisms and Clinical Implications of Myasthenic
Syndromes Exacerbated and Induced by Medical Treatments. Front Mol Neurosci. 2020 Aug 14;13:156.
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC7457047/.

Wolfe GI, Kaminski HJ, Aban IB, et al. MGTX Study Group. Randomized Trial of Thymectomy in Myasthenia Gravis. N Engl J Med. 2016
Aug 11;375(6):511-22. doi: 10.1056/NEJM0al602489. Erratum in: N Engl J Med. 2017 May 25;376(21):2097. [Dosage error in article
text]. https://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5189669/.

U.S. Food & Drug Administration. Understanding Unapproved Use of Approved Drugs "Off Label”.
https://www.fda.gov/ForPatients/Other/OffLabel/default.htm. Accessed 7.30.2022

n Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 127




36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

Dalakas MC. Intravenous immunoglobulin in autoimmune neuromuscular diseases. JAMA. 2004 May 19;291(19):2367-75. doi:
10.1001/jama.291.19.2367. PMID: 15150209. Accessed 7.30.2022

Liinemann JD, Quast |, Dalakas MC. Efficacy of Intravenous Immunoglobulin in Neurological Diseases. Neurotherapeutics. 2016
Jan;13(1):34-46. doi: 10.1007/s13311-015-0391-5. PMID: 26400261; PMCID: PMC4720677. Accessed 7.30.2022

Perez EE, Orange IS, Bonilla F, Chinen J, Chinn IK, Dorsey M, El-Gamal Y, Harville TO, Hossny E, Mazer B, Nelson R, Secord E, Jordan SC,
Stiehm ER, Vo AA, Ballow M. Update on the use of immunoglobulin in human disease: A review of evidence. J Allergy Clin Immunol.
2017 Mar;139(3S):51-546. doi: 10.1016/j.jaci.2016.09.023. Epub 2016 Dec 29. PMID: 28041678. Accessed 7.30.2022.

Image: Fc Rn Receptor and 1Gg. Frontiers in Neurology. This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative
Commons Attribution License (CC BY). Citation: Pyzik M, Sand KMK, Hubbard JJ, Andersen JT, Sandlie | and Blumberg RS (2019) The
Neonatal Fc Receptor (FcRn): A Misnomer? (Figure 1) Front. Immunol. 10:1540. doi: 10.3389/fimmu.2019.01540. Available at:
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6636548/.

Image: Mab/C5. This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (CC BY).
Citation: Holmgy, T., Hgglund, R.A., llles, Z. et al. Recent progress in maintenance treatment of neuromyelitis optica spectrum
disorder. J Neurol 268, 4522-4536 (2021). https://doi.org/10.1007/s00415-020-10235-5. Link to license:
https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s00415-020-10235-5.

Image: Modified. C5 representation. This open access article is distributed under Creative Commons Attribution License 4.0 (CC BY).
Copyright © 2020 the Author(s). Published by PNAS. Citation: Reichhardt MP, Johnson S, Tang T, Morgan T, Tebeka N, Popitsch N,
Deme JC, Jore MM, Lea SM. An inhibitor of complement C5 provides structural insights into activation. Proc Natl Acad Sci U S A. 2020
Jan 7;117(1):362-370. doi: 10.1073/pnas.1909973116. Epub 2019 Dec 23. PMID: 31871188; PMCID: PMC6955305. Available at:
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6955305/.

Thomsen JLS, Andersen H. Outcome Measures in Clinical Trials of Patients With Myasthenia Gravis. Front Neurol. 2020 Dec
23;11:596382. doi: 10.3389/fneur.2020.596382. PMID: 33424747; PMCID: PMC7793650.

Lazaridis K, Tzartos SJ. Autoantibody Specificities in Myasthenia Gravis; Implications for Improved Diagnostics and Therapeutics. Front
Immunol. 2020 Feb 14;11:212. doi: 10.3389/fimmu.2020.00212. PMID: 32117321; PMCID: PMC7033452.

Resources

e Myasthenia Gravis Foundation. http://www.myasthenia.org/
e The National Center for Biotechnology Information. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/

e The National Institute of Neurological Disorders and Stroke. https://www.ninds.nih.gov/Disorders

n Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 128




* National Organization for Rare Disorders. https://rarediseases.org/

® Orphanet. https://www.orpha.net

n Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 129




ADAM PORTIK, PHARM.D.

Phone: (724) 493-7166 318 Samuel Drive
Adam.Portik@AccredoHealth.com. Cranberry Township, PA
16066

adamportik@gmail.com.

EDUCATION

PharmD

University of Duquesne, Mylan School of Pharmacy : May 2010

LICENSE

RP-445395

Pennsylvania State Board of Pharmacy Expires 9/30/2022
PH-236368

Massachusetts State Board of Pharmacy Expires 12/31/2022
PD-14718

Arkansas State Board of Pharmacy Expires 12/31/2023

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Accredo, Inc. Virtual March 2022 to Current

Senior Clinical Advisor, Specialty Clinical programs for the Advanced Pulmonary Conditions
Therapeutic Resource Center and Immune and Complex Conditions Therapeutic Resource Center

¢ Pharmacotherapy subject matter expert for specialty medications assigned to the Advanced
Pulmonary Conditions (APC) TRC
o Infused, Inhaled, and Oral Prostacyclins
o Endothelin Receptor Antagonists
o Phosphodiesterase type 5 inhibitors and sGC stimulators
o IPF pharmacotherapy
e Pharmacotherapy subject matter expert for specialty medications assigned to the Inmune and
Complex Conditions (ICC) TRC
o Infused Immune Globulin (intravenous and subcutaneous)

CNE/IV Therapy 130



o Infused Alpha-1 Antitrypsin therapies

o Infused and oral Lysosomal Storage Disorder therapies

o Infused Myasthenia Gravis therapies

o Duopa for Parkinson’s Disease
Complete clinical education training on APC and ICC TRC medications and disease states across
multiple clinical and non-clinical groups to ensure understanding of new drug launches and new
therapy indications
Meet with Pharma and Payer groups to provide clinical expertise on products supported with the
Advanced Pulmonary Conditions TRC as well as introduce the companies’ clinical value props
Report to Therapeutic Assessment Committee annually and ad hoc to provide detail around
clinical program updates, new therapeutic options, and different programs the Advanced
Pulmonary Conditions and Immune and Complex TRCs offer
Construct and approve continuing education courses for our operational clinical pharmacists in
the APC TRC and ICC TRC
Attend Quarterly Business Review meetings with external pharma clients with the goal of
collaborating on programs that best serve the PAH patient population and various other disease
states covered under the APC TRC and ICC TRC.

Accredo, Inc. Virtual 2020 to March 2022

Senior Clinical Advisor, Specialty Clinical programs for Pulmonary Arterial Hypertension and Idiopathic
Pulmonary Fibrosis

Pharmacotherapy subject matter expert for specialty medications assigned to the Advanced
Pulmonary Conditions (APC) TRC

o Infused, Inhaled, and Oral Prostacyclins

o Endothelin Receptor Antagonists

o Phosphodiesterase type 5 inhibitors and sGC stimulators

o IPF pharmacotherapy
Complete clinical education training on PAH and ILD across multiple clinical and non-clinical
groups to ensure understanding of new drug launches and new therapy indications
Meet with Pharma and Payer groups to provide clinical expertise on products supported with the
Advanced Pulmonary Conditions TRC as well as introduce the companies’ clinical value props
Report to Therapeutic Assessment Committee annually and ad hoc to provide detail around
clinical program updates, new therapeutic options, and different programs the Advanced
Pulmonary Conditions TRC offers
Construct and approve continuing education courses for our operational clinical pharmacists in
the APC TRC :
Attend Quarterly Business Review meetings with external pharma clients with the goal of
collaborating on programs that best serve the PAH patient population

Accredo, Inc., Virtual 2019 to 2020

Senior Clinical Advisor, Clinical Product Reporting

Provided analysis for all Therapeutic Resource Centers at Accredo

CNE/IV Therapy 131



e Ensured clinical education across all TRCs was tracked with emphasis of meeting internal clinical
education goals

e Analyzed quarterly Cigna Board of Director metrics for Clinical Engagement across all Accredo
TRCs

e Conducted quarterly and ad hoc Blood Disorder audits for over 60 payer groups to ensure
company goals met in relation to precision dispensing and treatment summary reports

e Collaborated with 3™ party analytics company to provide in-depth clinical data in Hemophilia,
Multiple Sclerosis, Pulmonary Hypertension, and Immune deficiencies areas

Accredo, Inc., Warrendale, PA v v 2015 t0 2019
Pulmonary Arterial Hypertension — Operations Supervisor

e Management of 16 regional pharmacists across the United States

¢ Focused on process improvement initiatives to streamline solutions for physicians, payers,
pharma, and patients.

e Met virtually and in-person with prescribers across the country to collaborate on best practices to
ensure optimal patient benefit

e Involved in over 5 Kaizen events with multi-functional teams and work streams to evolve current
practice internally into future state solutions

Aceredo, Inc., Warrendale, PA 2011 to 2015
Clinical Pharmacist — Pulmonary Arterial Hypertension TRC

e Perform initial clinical assessment and reassessments of patients receiving specialty medications
for the management of Pulmonary Arterial Hypertension
o Drug utilization review
o Pharmacy care planning
e Dispensing specialty pharmaceuticals for Pulmonary Arterial Hypertension across all 50 states
e Collaborated with key opinion leaders and prescribers across the country for onboarding of
patients taking any PAH medication
PUBLICATIONS

Conference Abstracts/Posters

D’Albini LD, Portik A, Bloor C. Converting from Brand to Generic Treprostinil (Intravenous):
Aggregate Cohort Data from One Specialty Pharmacy. Pulmonary Hypertension Professional
Network Symposium. Sept 2019; Washington D.C.

Portik A, Benninger J, Bonkosky A, Vitangeli, M. WellBeing WatchSM: A Dedicated Focus on
Whole-person Health for Patients Diagnosed with Pulmonary Arterial Hypertension. Pulmonary
Hypertension Professional Network Symposium. Sept 2021; Virtual.

Portik A, D’Albini LD, Julian DS, Bloor C, Mager D. Impact of a Specialty Pharmacy-Prepared
Infused Prostacyclin Admixture Program on Central Venous Catheter Infections in Patients with
Pulmonary Arterial Hypertension. American Thoracic Society. May 2022; San Francisco.

CNE/IV Therapy 132




REFERENCES

Available on request

CNE/IV Therapy 133



Jennifer Johnson
3019 Cloverdaie Dr.
League City, TX 77573
Phone: 913.271.6652
Email: Jennifer.Johnson2@Accredohealth.com

Qualifications:

+ Registered Nurse with 21 yrs. clinical experience; 14 yrs. specialty infusion
experience

« Strong leadership ability and interpersonal skills

« Passion and drive to meet challenges for numerous stakeholders

+ Completely autonomous and equally adept in groups

+ Experience presenting/developing/ implementing education for health care
providers, patients and community members

» Positive and creative problem resolution _

»  Experienced partner and resource for referral sources, patients and sales team

Education: Bachelor of Science in Nursing, 2001
MidAmerica Nazarene University, Olathe, Kansas

Experience:
Accredo August 2008-Present
Current position-Sr. Advisor, Pharmacy Clinical Consulting-Clinical educator
Previous position-Nurse Manager for 16 Registered Nurses
. Presentations/Training/Educational support for clinicians and community

members- Pulmonary Hypertension, Bleeding Disorders, Primary Immune
Deficiency, Neuromuscular diseases, Hereditary Angioedema and other chronic
diagnoses. Assist with staff competency, ongoing basis.

. Clinical Sales Support-Visit physicians in conjunction with Account Executives (AE)
as clinical resource.

. Contact with referral sources as need in coordination of clinical training.

. Attendance at national conferences related to stay abreast of new research or
consensus regarding disease states covered.

. Clinical resource for AEs, PH centers.

. Analyze and identify needs of advanced therapy therapeutic resource centers

(TRC) for annual pharmacist education to meet URAC guidelines in collaboration
with clinical product pharmacists.

Craig Homecare September 2006-August, 2012
Private Duty Pediatric Nursing
¢ Total care and management of complex pediatric patients requiring technology to
sustain life.
¢ Central catheter care, infusion therapy, enteral and wound management

Kid-Screen, LLC March 2004-September, 2007
Contract Case Manager for Kansas Medicaid
» Medical Case Management for technology dependent and medically fragile children
up to age 21yrs.

CNE/IV Therapy 134




« Collaboration with all professionals for each child’s health care team

« Coordination of cost effective approach to meeting needs of the client.

« Implementation of state and federal mandated regulations in conjunction with each
child's care.

Johnson County Govt. September 2001-March, 2004

« Coordination of Pediatric well child clinics for visiting physicians

« Autonomous completion of well child exams/STD testing for adolescent
clients

« Clinician-OB/well woman clinics

» Clinician-WIC clinic

« Clinician-STD/birth control clinic.

Licensure/Certification:
+ Kansas RN
+ Texas RN
« CRNI
« Current CEUs for all licensure/certifications

2012-KU Nursing Heart of Healthcare Award Recipient

CNE/IV Therapy 135




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO®O HEALTH,6 |

(443) Myasthenia Gravis (MG)

Name: Date: .

NCORPORATETD

Organization:

Discipline: [JRN DLPN [(JRPh [JCM []Other

City/State: .

COURSE OFFERING OBJECTIVES AND EVALUATION

Please rate your level of expertise for each objective before Before After Education Required for
and after the education, and what is required for your Education Position
position
] . _ o [ INovice [INovice [INovice
Review Myasthenia Gravis (MG) symptoms, clinical Dlintermediate Clintermediate Mintermediate
presentation and pathophysiology
[Expert [CExpert [CExpert
[ INovice [CINovice [INovice
Review MG diagnostic process Clintermediate Ointermediate Ointermediate
[lExpert [CExpert [JExpert
) ] . [INovice [INovice [INovice
Discuss MG interventions: pharmacotherapy, non-drug and Clintermediate Clintermediate intermediate
surgical
CExpert CExpert CEexpert
Explain how education could be improved to better meet any objective(s) not met:
Identify anything not covered in the presentation you need to care for your patients:
1

CNE/IV Therapy 136




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO HEALTH,

NCORPORATETD

Please evaluate

Strongly
Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly N/A
Disagree

The presenter was knowledgeable and
effective

The presenter was responsive to participant
questions

The education material was useful

The teaching and learning methods were
effective

The activity was presented objectively and
was free from commercial bias

The education contained opportunities for
active learning

The posttest accurately measured what |
learned from the information presented

The content learned from this activity will
impact my practice

The activity promotes improvement in
healthcare

I would recommend this activity to others

Please elaborate if bias perceived:

This activity will assist in the improvement of my: (Check all that apply)

1 Competence
] Performance

[] Patient outcomes

| plan to make the following changes to my practice; (Check all that apply)

[1 Modify treatment plans

[.1 Incorporate different diagnostic strategies into patient evaluation

[ Use alternative communication methodologies with patients and families

[C] None; the activity validated current practice

Other (please specify):

CNE/IV Therapy 137



CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO HEALTMH, I NC ORPORATETD
What is your level of commitment to making changed stated above?

] Very committed
[] Somewhat committed
] Not very committed

[[] Do not expect to change practice

What are the barriers you face in your current practice setting that may impact patient outcomes? (Check
all that apply)

[] Lack of evidenced-based guidelines

[ Lack of applicability of guidelines to my current practice/patients
] Lack of time

[[] Organizational/institutional

[ Insurance/Financial

[] Patient adherence/compliance

[[] Treatment-related adverse events

Other (please specify):

What did you like most about the presentation?

What did you like least about the presentation?

Suggestions for future presentations:

Comments:

CNE/IV Therapy 138




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING
A CCREDDO HEALTH, I NCORPORATETD

Title: (448) Age-related Macular Degeneration and Diabetic Macular Edema
Overview and Treatment

ACPE 1.0 RPh contact hours KSBN 1.2 RN contact hours CCMC N/A Activity length: 60 minutes
UAN: 0386-0000-22-019-L01-P Release date: 12/6/2022 Planned expiration date: 912/6/2025 CE Approved: 9/12/2022

Learning objectives
Recall characteristics of age-related macular degeneration (AMD) and diabetic macular edema (DME): prevalence, etiology, genetics,
detection, clinical manifestations, and assessment
2. Discuss guideline recommendations for treatment standards
3. Identify specialty medications used to treat AMD and DME including: risks and benefits of these therapies, patient selection, adverse effects
and appropriate monitoring
Debate financial considerations and effect on treatment options
Recall the AMD and DME medication pipeline

o~

Agenda

Age-related Macular Degeneration (AMD) Overview
Diabetic Macular Edema (DME) Overview
Therapeutic Treatment Options

Treatment Pipeline

References

Product References (Accessed October 26, 2022)
Questions

Posttest

Evaluation

® & & @ © o & ° o

Major Activity Objective
The program will provide review of AMD/DME disease states, currently available agents, indication, drug profile elements, clinical efficacy and current
guidelines as well as upcoming potential pipeline agents.

Needs assessment:

Gaps between Current and Desired State:
° New therapies with new, unfamiliar mechanisms of action.
. Increasing numbers of available agents for the treatment of AMD/DME leading to confusion on the best initial treatment option
. Updated guidelines for treatment of AMD/DME patients

Benefit of Desired State:

e  Become familiar with newly approved agents.
Gain understanding of currently available agents and their optimal utilization.
Understand how pipeline product approvals could change the treatment landscape
Become familiar with various practice guidelines

Intended outcome
Pharmacists and nurses who do or may encounter this patient population will gain up- to -date knowledge on disease basics, currently available agents,
their appropriate use, anticipated efficacy and known safety concerns.

Activity overview:
This live activity consists of a 60-minute presentation.

Target Audience: —. )

This continuing professional education learning activity is designed for pharmacists and nurses who may encounter patients diagnosed with AMD and
DME; clinicians who counsel patients on their drug therapy, answer questions, or make pharmacotherapy recommendations on behalf of these patients to
treating physicians.

Continuing Education Information and Requirements per discipline:

This continuing education activity is approved for pharmacists and nurses.

o  Nurses must complete a pretest, pass a posttest, complete an evaluation and attendance roster, including their license number(s) and signature, to
receive course credit.

e  Pharmacists must complete a pretest, pass a posttest, complete an evaluation and attendance roster, including their NABP e-profile ID and date of
birth (MMDD), to receive course credit.

Continuing Education Information:
The continuing education activity number, requirement, and credit for this application-based activity in included with the continuing education activity
description.

(447) AMD and BME Announcement and Requirements
Page 1 of 3
©2022. Accredo Healthcare, an Express Scripts company.

CNE/IV Therapy 139




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

ACCREDO HEALTH, INCORPORATED

Registered Pharmacists (RPh)
Accredo Health, Incorporated is accredited by the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy
education. UAN: 0386-0000-22-019-1.01-P. Release date: 12/6/2022

Activity type: Knowledge Contact hours: 1.0

Advance Practice Registered Nurses (APRNs), Registered Nurses (RNs), & Licensed Practical Nurses (LPNs)

Accredo Health, Incorporated is approved as a provider of continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board of Nursing. This
course offering is approved for 1.0 contact hours applicable for APRN, RN, or LPN relicensure. Kansas State Board of Nursing provider
number LT0223-0538.

Assessment Method:
Participants will complete the posttest. The participant must pass the posttest with a score of 70% or greater. He/she may attempt the test a 2" time to
receive course credit. Participants will be given a copy of the answer key for future reference.

Faculty
. Developer(s) / Presenter
. Eric Fairbrother, PharmD, Sr. Clinical Advisor, Specialty Clinical Programs (Developer / Presenter)
. Barbara Hockaday, RN, Clinical Specialist (Developer)
e  Continuing Education Reviewers
. Laura Turner, RN, Continuing Education Administrator
. Gail Bridges, PharmD, Director, Specialty Clinical Product
. Maureen McCullough, MSN, RN, CRNI, Director of Clinical Resources, Nursing / Continuing Education Program Coordinator

Disclosure Declaration

Accredo Health Group, Incorporated, and its subsidiaries dispense medications and provide services discussed in this presentation. Every effort has
been made to include all approved treatment options currently used for the treatment of this disease state; to present each therapy equally, objectively,
and without bias; and to avoid promotion of one therapy over another.

No commercial support was received for this activity. No compensation was received for planning, development, approval, or presentation of this
activity.

All persons considered to plan, develop, or review/approve content of an education activity must disclose all relevant financial relationships (RFRs) with
any ineligible company(ies).* If any RFRs were disclosed, steps will be taken to mitigate the relationship. Disclosure and mitigation will be kept on file,
and will be disclosed to the participants.

*Ineligible company: One whose primary business is producing, marketing, selling, re-selling or distributing healthcare products used by or on patients.

There is no commercial support for this course offering.

Accredo Health, Incorporated develops continuing education presentations for pharmacists, nurses, and case managers that provide an in-depth
presentation with fair, full disclosure, and equitable balance. Topics and learning objectives will not be promotional or appear to be intended for the
purpose of endorsing a specific commercial drug or a specific commercial service. All educational programs and associated materials will be free from
promotional influence and/or content. Written agreements will be used in the event of external support. Any relevant relationship between funding
organization(s) and program facuity will be disclosed. Accredo will avoid promotional activities or materials as an integral part of the program or program
materials, or in any manner that interferes with or interrupts the educational activity. Disclosure will be made of limitations on information including but
not limited to:

Data that represent ongoing research

Interim analysis

Preliminary data

Unsupported opinion

Opinions or approaches to care that, while supported by some research studies, do not represent the only opinion or approach to care supported
by research.

o  Offlabel use

Relevant financial disclosure
No persons in control of content had relevant financial relationships.

Participant information i
Participant names and contact information are retained by the continuing education department and only shared with appropriate accreditation boards
for the purpose of providing continuing education credit.

There is no fee for this activity

(447) AMD and DME Announcement and Requirements
Page 2 of 3
©2022. Accredo Healthcare, an Express Scripts company.

CNE/IV Therapy 140




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

ACCREDO HEALTH, INCORPORATED

Registration process:
Registration instructions including a link to Survey Monkey are sent via email to participant distribution list. Participants complete a pretest and provide

identification (name, email). Registrants are sent access information to WebEx for the presentation day, along with the presentation handout.

Statements of Credit:
Continuing education credit for pharmacists is submitted to CPE Monitor within 60 days of presentation date.

CE Certificate / Verification of Completion
Nurses will receive a CE certificate by mail within 3 weeks. Other participants will be receive a certificate of participation by mail within 3 weeks.

(447) AMD and DME Announcement and Requirements
Page 30f3

©2022. Accredo Healthcare, an Express Scripts company.

CNE/IV Therapy 141




11/28/2022

Age-related Macular Degeneration and Diabetic
Macular Edema: Overview and Treatment Options

accredo

iy £:9022 Avreds Heath Group, ng, | An Bxvass Scrpts Carpany, M Rights Resensed, Attredo ks & trademarh of Express Seribts Stealegic Devstapment, Int. Al OINer Ha0emarhs ot the Droperty of 100 respective eners.
*%;g! Costptansial Mikmiton

{32311 835

1

e oSS D1k 10 Aot dapict on actusl potient.

Accredo Disclosure Policy

Accredo Health, Incorporated, will develop continuing education presentations for
nurses, pharmacists, and case managers that provide in-depth presentation with
fair, full disclosure and equitable balance. Topics and learning objectives will not be
promotional or appear to be intended for the purpose of endorsing a specific
commercial drug or a specific commercial service. All educational programs and
associated materials will be free from promotional influence and/or content. Written
agreements will be used in the event of external support. Any relevant relationship
between funding organization(s) and program faculty will be disclosed.

S e = ‘ f - accredo ®

CNE/IV Therapy 142 1




11/28/2022

Accredo Disclosure Policy

* Accredo will avoid promotional activities or materials as an integral part of the
program or program materials, or in any manner that interferes with or interrupts
the educational activity. Disclosure will be made of limitations on information
including but not limited to:

* Data that represent ongoing research
* Interim analysis

* Preliminary data

» Unsupported opinion

» Opinions or approaches to care that, while supported by some research studies, do not
represent the only opinion or approach to care supported by research

» Off-label use

Accredo Disclosure Declaration

¢ Accredo Health Group, Incorporated, and its subsidiaries dispense medications
and provide services discussed in this presentation. Every effort has been made
to include all approved treatment options currently used for the treatment of this
disease state; to present each therapy equally, objectively, and without bias; and
to avoid promotion of one therapy over another.

° No commercial support was received for this activity. No compensation was
received for planning, development, approval, or presentation of this activity.

* All persons considered to plan, develop, or review/approve content of an
education activity must disclose all relevant financial relationships (RFRs) with
any ineligible company(ies).* If any RFRs were disclosed, steps will be taken to
mitigate the relationship. Disclosure and mitigation will be kept on file, and will be
disclosed to the participants.

*|neligible company: One whose primary busi is producing, ing, selling, {ling or distributing healthcare products used by or on patients.

accredo *

CNE/IV Therapy 143 2



11/28/2022

References

1. Normal fundus of the eye image. Wikipedia.org. Medical gallery of Mikael Haggstrom 2014. WikiJournal
of Medicine. DOI:10.15347/wim/2014.008. ISSN 2002-4436. Published 2012. Permission Public
Domain. https://creativecommons.org/publicdomain/zero/1.0/deed.en. Accessed October 31, 2022.

2. Anatomy of eye image. Wikipedia.org. Medical gallerof of Blausen Medical 2014. WikLlournal of
Medicine. DOI:10.15347/wim/2014.010. ISSN 2002-4436. Published 2013. Permission Creative
Commons 3.0. hitps://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/. Accessed October 31, 2022.

3. Feldman B.H., Shah V.A., Kim L. A,, et al. Age-Related Macular Degeneration. American Academy of
Ophthamology®. EyeWiki. hitps://eyewiki.org/Age-Related Macular Degeneration. Updated May 30,
2022. Accessed September 22, 2022,

4. Age-related Macular Degeneration (AMD). National Eye Institute. https://www.nei.nih.gov/learn-about-
eve—health/e_ve‘conditions-and-diseases/age—reIated-macular-de,qeneration. Updated June 22, 2021.
Accessed September 22, 2022.

5. Michalska-Miteka K, Kabiez A, Nowak M, Spiewak D. Age-related macular degeneration - challenge for
future: Pathogenesis and new perspectives for treatment. European Geriatric Medicine. 2015;6:69-75.
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eurger.2014.09.007. Accessed September 28, 2022.

Gommmne ; . accredo ©

References

6. Ruia, S. Macular Degeneration. StatPearls.
https://www.statpearls.com/ArticleLibrary/viewarticle/24630#/. Updated 8/3/2022. Accessed
September 28, 2022.

7. llustration macular degeneration. Wikimedia Commons.
https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Macular_Degeneration.png. License Creative Commons 4.0
https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Macular_Degeneration.png. Published June 2017. Accessed
September 28, 2022.

8. Jacoba CM P, Mitzner MG, Bhaagat N, et al. Diabetic Macular Edema. American Academy of
Ophthamology®. EyeWiki. https://evewiki.org/Diabetic Macular Edema. Reviewed June 6, 2022.
Accessed September 28, 2022.

9. Elyasi N, Hemmati HD, Diabetic Macular Edema: Diagnosis and Management. American Academy of
Ophthamology®. hitps://www.aa0.org/evenet/article/diabetic-macular-edema-diagnosis-and-
management. Published May 2021. Accessed September 28, 2022.

10. Classification of DME illustration. Keep Eyes In Sight. https://www.keepeyesinsight.co.za/diabetic-
macular-oedema. Permission to use https://www.keepevesinsight.co.za/terms-use. Accessed October
6, 2022.

7 Canhiders hictmaton T Eiieis S Cansny AR Risint Resinit : : : i 3 (ZCC] ”@(ZO' 28

Gz eccreio Hagth Greg

CNE/IV Therapy 144

19




11/28/2022

References

11. Diabetic Macular Edema (DME). Retina Atlas. https://atlas.asrs.org/article/diabetic-macular-edema-
dme-69. Updated 2021. Accessed October 6, 2022.

1.2. Diabetic Macular Edema Epidemiology Analysis and Forecast, 2021-2031. Report Linker.
https.//www.reportlinker.com/p06317704/Diabetic-Macular-Edema-Epidemiology-Analysis-and-
Forecast-2031.htmi?utm _source=GNW. Published July 2022. Accessed October 21, 2022.

13. Mavrikakis E. Macular Edema in Diabetes. Medscape.
https://emedicine.medscape.com/article/1224138-overview#a5. Updated October 4, 2021. Accessed
October 10, 2022.

14. Duphare C, Desai K, Gupta P, Patel B C. Diabetic Macular Edema. StatPearls.
https://www.statpearls.com/ArticleLibrary/viewarticle/24631. Updated May 2022. Accessed October
10, 2022.

15. Diabetic macular edema illustration. Flikr photostream.
https://www.flickr.com/photos/communityeyehealth/17213861197/in/photostream/. Permission to
use license https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/2.0/. Published 2014.Accessed October 10,
2022.

e accredo: ®

References

18. Fundus fluorescein angiography illustration. Wikimedia commons.
https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Fluorescein angiogram_of_patient with _central retinal arter
y_occlusion %28CRA0%29.ipg. Permission to use https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-
sa/4.0/deed.en. Published November 2019. Accessed October 11, 2022.

17. Optical coherence tomography illustration. Openi.
https://openi.nim.nih.gov/detailedresult?img=PMC4273027 _dmj-38-416-
£002&query=diabetic%20macular%20edemad&it=xg&req=4&npos=9. Permission to use
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/3.0/. Published 2014. Accessed October 11, 2022.

18. Flaxel C J, Adelman R A, Bailey ST, et al. Age-related Macular Degeneration Preferred Practice Pattern®.
Ophthamology. 2019;127(1):1-65. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ophtha.2019.09.024. Accessed
October 11, 2022.

19. IDF Clinical Practice Recommendations for Managing DME. International Diabetes Federation.
https://www.idf.org/e-library/guidelines/161-dme-clinical-practice-recommendations.html. Accessed
October 21, 2022.

20. Turbert D. Anti-Vegf's Treatments. American Academy of Ophthalmology. https://www.aao.org/eye-
health/drugs/anti-vegf-treatments. Published March 2, 2019. Accessed October 11, 2022.

e accredo: ®

CNE/IV Therapy 145

20



11/28/2022

References

21. Lim J 1, Karth P A. Photodynamic Therapy (PDT). EyeWiki®. American Academy of Ophthalmology.
nhttps://evewiki.org/Photodynamic_Therapy (PDT). Published August 4, 2017. Accessed October 11,
2022.

22. Snelien eyechart illustration. Wikimedia Commons.
https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Snellen06.png, Permission to use Public Domain
https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Snellen06.png. Published 2006. Accessed October 11, 2022.

23. Turbert, D. Anti-VEGF Treatments. American Academy of Ophthalmology®. https://www.aao.org/eye-
health/drugs/anti-vegf-treatments. Reviewed March 2, 2019. Accessed October 11, 2022,

24. Lim J I, Karth P A. Photodynamic Therapy (PDT). EyeWiki®. American Academy of Ophthalmology®.
https://evewiki.org/Photodynamic_Therapy (PDT). Reviewed August 4, 2017. Accessed October 25,
2022,

25. IV hand image. Wikimedia Commons.
https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Intravenous therapy 2007-SEP-13-Singapore.JPG. License
Creative Commons 3.0. https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/deed.en. Published 2007.
Accessed October 25, 2022.

o

Tﬂ;&r.u;_i;és; ;;xsxﬁzass@ﬁns (:om;z.iy..\gfég:a:s&-:ﬁenéi' e S g . i (‘ICC]’.Q(Z()~ a2

References

26. Griocanti-Auregan A, Garcia-Layana A, Peto T, et al. Drivers of and Barriers to Adherence to Neovascular
Age-Related Macular Degeneration and Diabetic Macular Edema Treatment Management Plans: A
Multinational Qualitative Study. Patient Prefer Adherence. 2022;16;587-604.
doi: 10.2147/PPA.S347713. Published March 3, 2022. Accessed October 26, 2022.

27. Holekamp N M, Lanar S, Lambert J, et al. Barriers to adherence to age-related macular degeneration
and diabetic macular edema management plans: A multi-national qualitative study. Investigative
Ophthalmology & Visual Science. 2021;16(8):1130.
https://iovs.arvojournals.org/article.aspx?articleid=2774876. Access October 26, 2022.

28. Blank, Christine. Pain, Anxiety Represent Barriers to Anti-VEGF Therapies for Costly Eye Conditions.
AIMC®, hitps://www.aimc.com/view/pain-anxiety-represent-barriers-to-anti-vegf-therapies-for-costly-eye-
conditions. Published November 17, 2021. Accessed October 26, 2022.

29. Outlook Therapeutics : Likely FDA Approval, Possible Buyout. OTLK_Investors.
nttps://www.reddit.com/r/OTLK Investors/comments/s9q61c/otlk outlook therapeutics likely fda ap
proval/. Published January 2022, Accessed October 26, 2022, .

30. Wells JA, Glassman AR, Ayala AR, et al. Aflibercept, bevacizumab, or ranibizumab for diabetic macular
edema. The New England Journal of Medicine. 2015;372(13):1193-1203.
https://www.neim.org/doi/full/10.1056/nejmoal414264. Accessed October 26, 2022,

T cahnts Wiparon : i ' ‘ - : fis ' ; - y Z s 42
g hecrens Has th Grom, o] &h Expross Serpts Conmsny, A% Rizhts Resarsid : : L - accredo 2

CNE/IV Therapy 146

21




11/28/2022

Plf’Od U Ct Refe Ffences (Accessed October 26, 2022)

Avastin® (bevacizumab) [package insert]. South San Franscisco, CA: Genentech, Inc.;
Revised September 2022. https://www.gene.com/download/pdf/avastin_prescribing.pdf.

Beovu® (brolucizumab-dbll) [package insert]. East Hanover, NJ: Novartis Pharmaceuticals
Corp.; Revised May 2022, https://www.novartis.com/us-
en/sites/novartis us/files/beovu.pdf.

Byooviz™ (ranibizumab-nuna) [package insert]. Cambridge, MA: Biogen, Inc.; Revised June
2022. https://www.biogencdn.com/us/biosimilars/BYO-pi.pdf.

Eylea® (aflibercept) [package insert]. Tarrytown, NY: Regeneron Pharmaceutical, Inc.;
Revised August 2022. https://www.regeneron.com/downloads/evlea fpi.pdf.

lluvien® (fluocinolone acetonide) [package insert]. Alpharetta, GA: Alimera Sciences, Inc.;
Revised November 2016. https://hcp.iluvien.com/pi/.

. accredo *#

Pl’Od u Ct Refe frences (Accessed Octoher 26, 2022)

Lucentis® (ranibizumab) [package insert]. South San Francisco, CA: Genentech, Inc.;
Revised March 2018. https://www.gene.com/download/pdf/lucentis_prescribing.pdf.

Ozurdex® (dexamethasone) [package insert] Madison, NJ: Allergan; Revised October 2020.
https://www.rxabbvie.com/pdf/ozurdex pi.pdf.

Retisert® (fluocinolone acetonide) [package insert]. Bridgewater, NJ: Bausch and Lomb, a
division of Bausch Health, LLC US; Revised January 2021.
https://www.bauschretinarx.com/siteassets/retisert/pdf/retisert-prescribing-

information.pdf.

Susvimo™ (ranibizumab) [package insert]. South San Francisco, CA: Genentech, Inc.;
Revised April 2022. https://www.gene.com/download/pdf/susvimo_prescribing.pdf.

s accreco *

CNE/IV Therapy 147

22



11/28/2022

P FOd u Ct Refe Ffences (Accessed October 26, 2022)

« Triesence® (triamcinolone acetonide) [package insert]. Fort Worth, TX: Alcon Laboratories,
Inc.; Revised December
2016. https://dailymed.nim.nih.gov/dailymed/druginfo.cfm?setid=3f045347-3e5e-4bbd-
90f8-6¢3100985cab.

> Vabysmo® (faricimab-svoa) [package insert]. South San Francisco, CA: Genentech, Inc.;
Revised January 2022. https://www.gene.com/download/pdf/vabysmo_prescribing.pdf.

s Visudyne® (verteporfin) [package insert]. Charleston, SC: Alcami Carolinas Corporation;
Revised July 2021.
https://www.bausch.com/globalassets/pdf/packageinserts/pharma/visudyne-prescribing-

information.pdf.

L - o . accredo *

accredo

%é?mm‘ e 46

Gras E : :
S5 Haeth Grom i | An Trpross Sedints. Contiony, AY Rizits Aeseriad

CNE/IV Therapy 148

23




11/28/2022

Anti-VEGFs Indications Administration frequency Formulation Route
Aflibercept AMD Every 4 weeks x 3 months then every 4-12 Single dose pre-filled syringe or vial Intravitreal
(Eylea®) DME weeks
brolucizumab-dbli AMD Every 4 weeks x 3 months then every 8-12 Single dose pre-filied syringe or vial Intravitreal
(Beovu®) DME weeks
ranibizumab AMD Every 6 months Single dose vial Qcular
(Susvimo™) implant
ranibizumab AMD Every 4 weeks x 3-4 months then every 4-12 Single dose pre-filied syringe or vial intravitreal
(Lucentis®) DME weeks
ranibizumab-nuna AMD Every 4 weeks x 3-4 months then every 4-12 Single dose vial Intravitreal
(Byooviz” DME weeks
ranizumab-eqgrn AMD Every 4 weeks x 3-4 months then every 4-12 Single dose vial Intravitreal
(Cimerli™) DME weeks
faricimab-svoa AMD Every 4 weeks X 4 months then every 4-12 Single dose vial Intravitreal
(Vabysmo®) weeks
f "cf;:z i 1 G, b | Eafaes Soios . Comiatng, A REE e Redred, (lCCl?(]O Y
Photo-enhancer Indications Administration frequency Formulation Route

Verteporfin AMD Every 12 weeks Single dose vial Intravenous
(Visudyne®)

Steroids Indications Administration frequency Formulation Route
flugcinolone . DME* Every 36 months* Implant Intravitreal
acetonide (lluvien:)
fluocinolone ® DME* * Implant Intravitreal
acetonide (Retisert )

Dexamethasone DME* * Implant Intravitreal

(Ozurdex:)

triamcinolone DME* * Single dose vial Intravitreal

acetonide ®

(Triesence )

triameinolone DME* * Single dose vial Suprachoroidal

acetonide (Xipere')

L

accredo *®

CNE/IV Therapy 149

24



CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

ACCREDO HEALTH, INCORPORATED

(448) Age-related Macular Degeneration and Diabetic Macular Edema:
Overview and Treatment Options 2022

SUMMARY OF PLANNING

Needs assessment

1. Identify recent work-related situation(s) that you think require additional knowledge/skills to better manage
similar situations in the future.

Age-related macular degeneration and diabetic macular edema are two of the lesser known disease states treated
within specialty pharmacy. New therapy approvals and labeling updates have occurred within the space in the past
few years. A richer variety in therapeutic options has created a question of therapy choice. Understanding
appropriate therapy selection and the risks and benefits of these options is crucial to an informed understanding of
the AMD/DME treatment landscape.

2. List areas of improvement that your department, organization, health-system, and/or community have
identified that you think require additional knowledge/skills to optimize the delivery of care and patient health.

Overall disease knowledge and treatment considerations for AMD and DME and understanding the risks and
benefits of each treatment option.

3. Identify recent research, expert opinion, national guidelines, regulations, or other data that may require
additional knowledge/skills to better manage the work-related situations or improvement areas listed above in 1
and 2. (Use Needs Assessment Justification template)

American Society of Retinal Specialist / American Academy of Ophthalmology / International Diabetes
Federation/British Journal of Ophthalmology published guidelines.
Study results from Age-related Eye Disease Study(AREDS) / AREDS2

4. List any specific gaps in knowledge/ skills based upon your reflections (above, 1-3) and the anticipated benefit
from addressing them.

Gaps between Current and Desired State Benefit of Desired State

e New therapies with new, unfamiliar e Become familiar with newly approved agents.
mechanisms of action. e Gain understanding of currently available

e Increasing numbers of available agents for the agents and their optimal utilization.
treatment of AMD/DME leading to confusion e Understand how pipeline product approvals
on the best initial treatment option could change the treatment landscape

o Updated guidelines for treatment of AMD/DME o Become familiar with various practice
patients ’ guidelines

5. Describe the target audience that will benefit from the education activity.

Pharmacists and nurses who do or may encounter this patient population will gain up- to -date knowledge on
disease basics, currently available agents, their appropriate use, anticipated efficacy and known safety concerns.

6. Summarize how the education activity will fill the above gaps listed in 4.

Will provide review of AMD/DME disease states, currently available agents, indication, drug profile elements,
clinical efficacy and current guidelines as well as upcoming potential pipeline agents.

CNE/IV Therapy 150



CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO

HEALTH, I

NCORPORATETD

Basis of Need

Name of expert, guideline, research, survey, etc.

What the expert / guideline / research says
that supports the need (include approximate
date) *use additional space if needed

Requirement

Expert Opinion ¢  AAO/ASRS s  Supports the use of anti VEGF therapy
as first line treatment (2022).
National 1. American Academy of Ophthaimology® » 18 G Refidisncertorguidiigasgiaidiitbead in
Guidelines (-hitps://www.aao.org/.) » 201Rdaorfinemhdestandirdingithebased
2. American Society of Retina Specialist appovasirfioptipgokasoMBe disease
(-https://www.asrs.orgl.) 3-5) Update and complement AAN
1. International Diabetes Federation (https://www.idf.org/e- guidelines in regard to more detailed
library/quidelines/161-dme-clinical-practice- therapy selection, switching, and
recommendations.html.) stopping considerations in MS
1. British journal ophthalmology (-https:/bjo.bmj.com/) 6) establish clear diagnostic criteria that
distinguish NMOSD (including MOG and
antibody- disease from other neuro-immune
disorders, like MS)
Government / FDA New product [abeling/ REMS & ETASU
Regulatory requirements

Research Findings

. Phase Il study findings from FDA approved
therapies

Giviveefficatrasiinehsantesddtios ofpes of
Wtiidesarpskiats based on annualized
relapse, no evidence of disease activity and
slowing progression of disability.

Peer-reviewed

AREDS / AREDS 2 research group

+  One of the first and only studies to look

Literature (-https://www.aaojournal.org/article/S0161- at natural disease history and
6420(19)32091-3/pdf). progression of AMD and examine
Griocanti-Auregan A, Garcia-Layana A, Peto T, et supplements treatment effect (1992-
al. Drivers of and Barriers to Adherence to 2006)
Neovascular Age-Related Macular Degeneration ¢ Provides treatment
and Diabetic Macular Edema Treatment considerations/dynamics that influence
Management Plans: A Multinational Qualitative pipeline product development
Study. Patient Prefer Adherence. 2022;16;587-604.
doi: 10.2147/PPA.S347713.. Published March 3,
2022. Accessed October 26, 2022.

Surveys

Other (Describe) |

Target audience

This continuing professional education activity is designed for pharmacists, nurses, and case managers who may encounter patients
diagnosed with MS; clinicians who counsel patients on their drug therapy, answer questions, or make pharmacotherapy recommendations on
behalf of these patients to treating physicians.

Summary of Planning

Gaps between Current and Desired State: Attendees are not familiar with new therapies with new, unfamiliar mechanisms of action. There are
increasing numbers of available agents for MS treatment leading to confusion and complexity in regimen selection.

Benefit of Desired State: Attendees will become familiar with newly approved agents. They will gain understanding of currently available
agents and their optimal utilization.

Intended outcome

Pharmacists and nurses will gain up- to -date knowledge on disease basics, currently available agents for MS disease modification, their
appropriate use, anticipated efficacy and known safety concerns.
Clinicians who attend this presentation and successfully complete requirements will be more conversant in multiple sclerosis disease state,
currently available agents, indication, drug profile elements, clinical efficacy and current guidelines. They will be able to incorporate the
information learned into external conversations as well as our own product and materials development.

CNE/IV Therapy 151




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING
A CCREDO HEALTH, I NC ORPORATED

Objectives
Upon completion of this educational activity, the participant should be able to:
1. Recall characteristics of age-related macular degeneration (AMD) and diabetic macular edema
(DME): prevalence, etiology, genetics, detection, clinical manifestations, and assessment
Discuss guideline recommendations for treatment standards
Identify specialty medications used to treat AMD and DME including: risks and benefits of these therapies, patient
selection, adverse effects and appropriate monitoring
Debate financial considerations and effect on treatment options
Recall the AMD and DME medication pipeline

ok wn

CNE/IV Therapy 152




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING
ACCREDO HEALTH, INCORPORATED

Title: (448) Age-related Macular Degeneration and Diabetic Macular Edema
Overview and Treatment

ACPE 1.0 RPh contact hours KSBN 1.2 RN contact hours CCMC N/A Activity length: 60 minutes
UAN: 0386-0000-22-020-L01-P Release date: 12/6/2022 Planned expiration date: 12/6/2025 CE Approved: 11/28/2022

Learning objectives

1. Recall characteristics of age-related macular degeneration (AMD) and diabetic macular edema (DME): prevalence, etiology, genetics,
detection, clinical manifestations, and assessment

2. Discuss guideline recommendations for treatment standards

3. Identify specialty medications used to treat AMD and DME including: risks and benefits of these therapies, patient selection, adverse effects
and appropriate monitoring

4. Debate financial considerations and effect on treatment options

5. Recall the AMD and DME medication pipeline

Agenda

Age-related Macular Degeneration (AMD) Overview
Diabetic Macular Edema (DME) Overview
Therapeutic Treatment Options

Treatment Pipeline

References

Product References (Accessed October 26, 2022)
Questions

Posttest

Evaluation

Major Activity Objective
The program will provide review of AMD/DME disease states, currently available agents, indication, drug profile elements, clinical efficacy and current
guidelines as well as upcoming potential pipeline agents.

Needs assessment:

Gaps between Current and Desired State:
. New therapies with new, unfamiliar mechanisms of action.
. Increasing numbers of available agents for the treatment of AMD/DME leading to confusion on the best initial freatment option
. Updated guidelines for treatment of AMD/DME patients

Benefit of Desired State:
. Become familiar with newly approved agents.
. Gain understanding of currently available agents and their optimal utilization.
. Understand how pipeline product approvals could change the treatment landscape
. Become familiar with various practice guidelines

Intended outcome
Pharmacists and nurses who do or may encounter this patient population will gain up- to -date knowledge on disease basics, currently availabie agents,
their appropriate use, anticipated efficacy and known safety concerns.

Activity overview:
This live activity consists of a 60-minute WebEx presentation.

Target Audience:

This continuing professional education learning activity is designed for pharmacists and nurses who may encounter patients diagnosed with AMD and
DME; clinicians who counsel patients on their drug therapy, answer questions, or make pharmacotherapy recommendations on behalf of these patients to
treating physicians.

Continuing Education Information and Requirements per discipline:

This continuing education activity is approved for pharmacists and nurses.

+  Nurses must complete a pretest, pass a posttest, complete an evaluation and attendance roster, including their license number(s) and signature, to
receive course credit.

«  Pharmacists must complete a pretest, pass a posttest, complete an evaluation and attendance roster, including their NABP e-profile ID and date of
birth (MMDD), to receive course credit.

Continuing Education Information:
The continuing education activity number, requirement, and credit for this application-based activity in included with the continuing education activity
description.

(448) AMD and DME Announcement and Requirements
Page 1 of 3
©2022. Accredo Healthcare, an Express Scripts company.

CNE/IV Therapy 153



CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

ACCREDO HEALTH, INCORPORATEHD

Registered Pharmacists (RPh)
Accredo Health, Incorporated is accredited by the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy
education. UAN: 0386-0000-22-020-L01-P. Release date: 12/6/2022

Activity type: Application Contact hours: 1.0

Advance Practice Registered Nurses (APRNs), Registered Nurses (RNs), & Licensed Practical Nurses (LPNs)

Accredo Health, Incorporated is approved as a provider of continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board of Nursing. This
course offering is approved for 1.0 contact hours applicable for APRN, RN, or LPN relicensure. Kansas State Board of Nursing provider
number LT0223-0538.

Assessment Method:
Participants will complete the posttest. The participant must pass the posttest with a score of 70% or greater. He/she may attempt the test a 2™ time to
receive course credit. Participants will be given a copy of the answer key for future reference.

Facuity
¢  Developer(s) / Presenter
. Eric Fairbrother, PharmD, Sr. Clinical Advisor, Specialty Clinical Programs (Developer / Presenter)
. Barbara Hockaday, RN, Clinical Specialist (Developer)
¢  Continuing Education Reviewers
. Laura Turner, RN, Continuing Education Administrator
+ . Gail Bridges, PharmD, Director, Specialty Clinical Product
. Maureen McCullough, MSN, RN, CRNI, Director of Clinical Resources, Nursing / Continuing Education Program Coordinator

Disclosure Declaration

Accredo Health Group, Incorporated, and its subsidiaries dispense medications and provide services discussed in this presentation. Every effort has
been made to include all approved treatment options currently used for the treatment of this disease state; to present each therapy equally, objectively,
and without bias; and to avoid promotion of one therapy over another.

No commercial support was received for this activity. No compensation was received for planning, development, approval, or presentation of this
activity.

All persons considered to plan, develop, or review/approve content of an education activity must disclose all relevant financial relationships (RFRs) with
any ineligible company(ies).* If any RFRs were disclosed, steps will be taken to mitigate the relationship. Disclosure and mitigation will be kept on file,
and will be disclosed to the participants.

*Ineligible company: One whose primary business is producing, marketing, selling, re-selling or distributing healthcare products used by or on patients.

There is no commercial support for this course offering.

Accredo Health, Incorporated develops continuing education presentations for pharmacists, nurses, and case managers that provide an in-depth
presentation with fair, full disclosure, and equitable balance. Topics and learning objectives will not be promotional or appear to be intended for the
purpose of endorsing a specific commercial drug or a specific commercial service. All educational programs and associated materials will be free from
promotional influence and/or content. Written agreements will be used in the event of external support. Any relevant relationship between funding
organization(s) and program faculty will be disclosed. Accredo will avoid promotional activities or materials as an integral part of the program or program
materials, or in any manner that interferes with or interrupts the educational activity. Disclosure will be made of limitations on information including but
not limited to:

Data that represent ongoing research

Interim analysis

Preliminary data

Unsupported opinion

Opinions or approaches to care that, while supported by some research studies, do not represent the only opinion or approach to care supported
by research.

»  Off label use

Relevant financial disclosure

No persons in control of content had relevant financial relationships.

Participant information '

Participant names and contact information are retained by the continuing education department and only shared with appropriate accreditation boards
for the purpose of providing continuing education credit.

There is no fee for this activity

(448) AMD and DME Announcement and Requirements
Page 2 of 3
©2022. Accredo Healthcare, an Express Scripts company.

CNE/IV Therapy 154




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

ACCREDO HEALTH, INCORPORATEHD

Registration process:
Registration instructions including a link to Survey Monkey are sent via email to participant distribution list. Participants complete a pretest and provide

identification (name, email). Registrants are sent access information to WebEx for the presentation day, along with the presentation handout.

Statements of Credit:
Continuing education credit for pharmacists is submitted to CPE Monitor within 60 days of presentation date.

CE Certificate / Verification of Completion
Nurses will receive a CE certificate by mail within 3 weeks. Other participants will be receive a certificate of participation by mail within 3 weeks.

(448) AMD and DME Announcement and Requirements
Page 3 of 3

©2022. Accredo Healthcare, an Express Scripts company.

CNE/IV Therapy 155



Education Design | Documentation Format

| Title: (448) Age-related Macular Degeneration and Diabetic Macular Edema: Overview and Treatment Options CE Series
CRP approved: 11/28/2022

Presentation time is' 1 hour

Activity Type: Application

CE approved: 11/28/2022

Contact hours: ACPE: 1.0 RPh

KSBN: 1.2 RN

CCMC: N/A

ACPE UAN 0386-0000-22-020-1.01-P

Release date: 12/6/2022

Planned Exp date: 12/6/2025

Presenter: Only a properly licensed Express Scripts clinician may provide Program content to non-Express Scripts Healthcare Professionals. For sake of clarity, sales or marketing personnel, including
clinicians who report through a sales or marketing organization, may not determine, write, fund, or deliver program content.
Experienced RN or RPh presenter meeting company presenter policy. RN or RPH with 2 years experience with opthalmic disorders.

Discipline = . | Tille :

Disclosure signature date ]

Eric Fairb

rother

PharmD

Sr. Clinical Advisor, Sypecialty Clinical Programs

12/20/2021

Barbara Hockaday

Laura Turner

RN

Clinical Specialist

Continuing Educatidn Administratér

12/21/2021

12127/2021

BS, RN

Gail Bridges PharmD Director, Specialty Clinical Product 12/20/2021
Maureen McCullough MSN, RN, CRNI g;;zcrt;)r;oégggic::;g?sources, Nursing / Continuing Education 1/3/2022
Erica Harris Non-clinical Continuing Education Specialist 11/18/2021
Doug Lang RPh Managing Director — Direct Care Compliance 1/3/2022
Greg Gamble RPh Director Specialty Operations Front End 1/20/2022
Amanda Prince PharmD Sr. Pharmacy Manager, Pharmacy Practice 12/20/2021
Cara Bast PharmD Director of Pharmacy Practice 12/21/2021
Mary Dorholt PharmD Sr. Director & Clinical Practice Lead, Specialty 12/20/2021
Mary Jane Wiseman MSN, RN Sr. Director, Clinical Infusion Patient Care Services 1/3/2022
Jeanne Serra RN, BSN, JD Associate Senior Counsel, Regulatory Law 1/4/2022
Alma Merabet Trademark Paralegal Sr, Legal Assistant

12/20/2021
Susan Goen Marketing Communications Advisor 6/28//2022
Wendy Anton Privacy Compliance Manager 1/3/2022
Jennifer Rodriguez Executive Assistant Pharm Strategy and Contracting 1/3/2022

u Internal Information

CNE/IV Therapy 156




Content (Topics)

Objectives:

e Recall characteristics of age-related macular degeneration (AMD) and diabetic macular edema (DME): prevalence, etiology, genetics, detection, clinical
manifestations, and assessment

¢ Discuss guideline recommendations for treatment standards

+ Identify specialty medications used to freat AMD and DME including: risks and benefits of these therapies, patient selection, adverse effects and appropriate
monitoring

» Debate financial considerations and effect on treatment options

¢ Recall the AMD and DME medication pipeline

Agenda

Age-related Macular Degeneration (AMD) Overview
Diabetic Macular Edema (DME) Overview
Therapeutic Treatment Options

Treatment Pipeline

References

Product References (Accessed October 26, 2022)
Questions

Posttest

Evaluation

Knowledge Checks

Knowledge Check #1
Which of the following factors has been associated as an increased risk of AMD?

Which of the following factors has been associated to be an increased risk of AMD?
a. Never smoker

Hypotension

Family history of AMD

Low body weight

oo o

Rationale: C - Increased risk for AMD includes 55 years and older, family history, Caucasian, smoker, cardiovascular disease, hypertension, high cholesterol,
and obesity.

Knowledge Check #2

Which of the following descriptions is true?
a. Retinal thickening and hard exudates are present in the posterior pole and > than 10,000 um outside the central macular subfield in mild DME.
b. Retinal thickening and hard exudates are present within the central subfield of the macula but do not involve the center in moderate DME.
c. Eating excess sugar causes increased swelling in the retina. :

n Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 157

Y]



d. DME is a complication of diabetic neuropathy.

Rationale: B - Retinal thickening and hard exudates are present within the central subfield of the macula and but do not involve the center. Mild is >1,000 um
outside the central macular subfield. Excess fluid causes swelling in the retina. DME is a complication of diabetic retinopathy.

Knowledge Check #3

Based on current available anti-vegf therapy, what is the least amount of times to come in-office for treatment per year?

12 in-office treatments
8 in-office treatments
2 in-office treatments
1 in-office treatments

Q.0 oo

Rationale: C — Treatments vary from every 6 months to every 4 weeks.

Teaching | ¢ PowerPoint Presentation

Strategies | * Handout
o Lecture

e Pre-test and/or Posttest Answer review (required for RPhs)

Content | Outline
(Topics) Accredo Disclosure Policy
Accredo Disclosure Declaration
Faculty Disclosure

Course Requirements per discipline

Objectives

References

1. Normal fundus of the eye image. Wikipedia.org. Medical gallery of Mikael Haggstrom 2014. Wikilournal of
Medicine, .D0I.:10.15347/wim/2014.008. ISSN. 2002-4436.. Published 2012. Permission Public Domain.
_https://creativecommons.org/publicdomain/zero/1.0/deed.en.. Accessed October 31, 2022.

n Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 158




2. Anatomy of eye image. Wikipedia.org. Medical gallerof of Blausen Medical 2014. WikiJournal of Medicine.
D0I1:10.15347/wim/2014.010. ISSN. 2002-4436.. Published 2013. Permission Creative Commons 3.0.
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/.. Accessed October 31, 2022.

3. Feldman B.H., Shah V.A,, Kim L. A., et al. Age-Related Macular Degeneration. American Academy of Ophthamology’. EyeWiki.
https://eyewiki.org/Age-Related Macular Degeneration.. Updated May 30, 2022. Accessed September 22, 2022.

4. Age-related Macular Degeneration (AMD). National Eye Institute. https://www.nei.nih.gov/learn-about-eye-health/eye-conditions-
and-diseases/age-related-macular-degeneration. Updated June 22, 2021. Accessed September 22, 2022.

5. Michalska-Miteka K, Kabiez A, Nowak M, Spiewak D. Age-related macular degeneration — challenge for future: Pathogenesis and new
perspectives for treatment. European Geriatric Medicine. 2015;6:69-75. .https://doi.org/10.1016/j.eurger.2014.09.007.. Accessed
September 28, 2022.

6. Ruia, S. Macular Degeneration. StatPearls. .https://www.statpearls.com/ArticleLibrary/viewarticle/246304/.. Updated 8/3/2022.
Accessed September 28, 2022.

7. Hlustration macular degeneration. Wikimedia Commons. https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Macular Degeneration.png..
License Creative Commons 4.0 https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Macular Degeneration.png.. Published June 2017. Accessed
September 28, 2022.

8. Jacoba CM P, Mitzner MG, Bhaagat N, et al. Diabetic Macular Edema. American Academy of Ophthamology’. EyeWiki.
https://eyewiki.org/Diabetic Macular Edema.. Reviewed June 6, 2022. Accessed September 28, 2022.

9. Elyasi N, Hemmati HD, Diabetic Macular Edema: Diagnosis and Management. American Academy of Ophthamology”.
https://www.aao.org/eyenet/article/diabetic-macular-edema-diagnosis-and-management.. Published May 2021. Accessed September
28, 2022.

10. Classification of DME illustration. Keep Eyes In Sight. https://www.keepeyesinsight.co.za/diabetic-macular-oedema.. Permission to use
https://www.keepeyesinsight.co.za/terms-use. Accessed October 6, 2022.

11. Diabetic Macular Edema (DME). Retina Atlas. .https://atlas.asrs.org/article/diabetic-macular-edema-dme-69.. Updated 2021. Accessed
October 6, 2022.

12. Diabetic Macular Edema Epidemiology Analysis and Forecast, 2021-2031. Report Linker.
https://www.reportlinker.com/p06317704/Diabetic-Macular-Edema-Epidemiology-Analysis-and-Forecast-
2031.html?utm_source=GNW.. Published July 2022. Accessed October 21, 2022.

13. Mavrikakis E. Macular Edema in Diabetes. Medscape. .https://emedicine.medscape.com/article/1224138-overview#a5.. Updated
October 4, 2021. Accessed October 10, 2022.

u Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 159




14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

Duphare C, Desai K, Gupta P, Patel B C. Diabetic Macular Edema. StatPearls.
_https://www.statpearls.com/ArticleLibrary/viewarticle/24631.. Updated May 2022. Accessed October 10, 2022,

Diabetic macular edema illustration. Flikr photostream.
_https://www.flickr.com/photos/communityevehealth/17213861197/in/photostream/.. Permission to use license
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/2.0/.. Published 2014, Accessed October 10, 2022.

Fundus fluorescein angiography illustration. Wikimedia commons.

https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Fluorescein angiogram of patient with central retinal artery occlusion %28CRAQ%29.j
pg.. Permission to use https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/4.0/deed.en.. Published November 2019. Accessed October 11,
2022.

Optical coherence tomography illustration. Openj. https://openi.nim.nih.gov/detailedresult?img=PMC4273027 dmj-38-416-
g002&query=diabetic%20macular%20edema&it=xg&reg=4&npos=9.. Permission to use .https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-
nc/3.0/.. Published 2014. Accessed October 11, 2022.

Flaxel C J, Adelman R A, Bailey S T, et al. Age-related Macular Degeneration Preferred Practice Pattern’. Ophthamology. 2019;127(1):1-
65. DOl https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ophtha.2019.09.024.. Accessed October 11, 2022.

IDF Clinical Practice Recommendations for Managing DME. International Diabetes Federation. .https://www.idf.org/e-
library/guidelines/161-dme-clinical-practice-recommendations.html.. Accessed October 21, 2022.

Turbert D. Anti-Vegf’s Treatments. American Academy of Ophthalmology. https://www.aao.org/eye-health/drugs/anti-vegf-
treatments.. Published March 2, 2019. Accessed October 11, 2022.

LimJ 1, Karth P A. Photodynamic Therapy (PDT). EyeWiki’. American Academy of Ophthalmology.
https://eyewiki.org/Photodynamic_Therapy (PDT).. Published August 4, 2017. Accessed October 11, 2022.

Snellen eyechart illustration. Wikimedia Commons. https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Snellen06.png.. Permission to use Public
Domain .https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Snellen06.png.. Published 2006. Accessed October 11, 2022.

Turbert, D. Anti-VEGF Treatments. American Academy of Ophthalmology’. https://www.aao.org/eye-health/drugs/anti-vegf-

treatments.. Reviewed March 2, 2019. Accessed October 11, 2022.

Lim J 1, Karth P A. Photodynamic Therapy (PDT). EyeWiki’. American Academy of Ophthalmology’.
_https://eyewiki.org/Photodynamic Therapy (PDT).. Reviewed August 4, 2017. Accessed October 25, 2022.

IV hand image. Wikimedia Commons. https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Intravenous therapy 2007-SEP-13-Singapore.JPG..
License Creative Commons 3.0. .https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/deed.en.. Published 2007. Accessed October 25, 2022.

n Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 160




26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Griocanti-Auregan A, Garcia-Layana A, Peto T, et al. Drivers of and Barriers to Adherence to Neovascular Age-Related Macular
Degeneration and Diabetic Macular Edema Treatment Management Plans: A Multinational Qualitative Study. Patient Prefer
Adherence. 2022;16;587-604. doi: 10.2147/PPA.S347713 . Published March 3, 2022. Accessed October 26, 2022.

Holekamp N M, Lanar S, Lambert J, et al. Barriers to adherence to age-related macular degeneration and diabetic macular edema
management plans: A multi-national qualitative study. /nvestigative Ophthalmology & Visual Science. 2021;16(8):1130.
https://iovs.arvojournals.org/article.aspx?articleid=2774876.. Access October 26, 2022.

Blank, Christine. Pain, Anxiety Represent Barriers to Anti-VEGF Therapies for Costly Eye Conditions. AJIMC”.
https://www.aimc.com/view/pain-anxiety-represent-barriers-to-anti-vegf-therapies-for-costly-eye-conditions.. Published November
17, 2021. Accessed October 26, 2022.

Outlook Therapeutics : Likely FDA Approval, Possible Buyout. OTLK_Investors.

https://www.reddit.com/r/OTLK Investors/comments/s9g61c/otlk outlook therapeutics likely fda approval/. Published January
2022. Accessed October 26, 2022.

Wells JA, Glassman AR, Ayala AR, et al. Aflibercept, bevacizumab, or ranibizumab for diabetic macular edema. The New England
Journal of Medicine. 2015;372(13):1193-1203. https://www.nejm.org/doi/full/10.1056/nejmoal414264.. Accessed October 26, 2022.

Produce References (Accessed October 26, 2022)

Avastin® (bevacizumab) [package insert]. South San Francisco, CA: Genentech, Inc.; Revised September 2022.
https://www.gene.com/download/pdf/avastin prescribing.pdf.

Beovu’. (brolucizumab-dbll) [package insert]. East Hanover, NJ: Novartis Pharmaceuticals Corp.; Revised May 2022.
https://www.novartis.com/us-en/sites/novartis _us/files/beovu.pdf.

Byooviz" (ranibizumab-nuna) [package insert]. Cambridge, MA; Biogen, Inc.; Revised June 2022.
https://www.biogencdn.com/us/biosimilars/BYO-pi.pdf.

Eylea” (aflibercept) [package insert]. Tarrytown, NY: Regeneron Pharmaceutical, Inc.; Revised August 2022.
https://www.regeneron.com/downloads/eylea fpi.pdf.

lluvien® (fluocinolone acetonide) [package insert]. Alpharetta, GA: Alimera Sciences, Inc.; Revised November 2016.
https://hep.iluvien.com/pi/.

Lucentis” (ranibizumab) [package insert]. South San Francisco, CA: Genentech, Inc.; Revised March 2018.
https://www.gene.com/download/pdf/lucentis prescribing.pdf.

n Internal Information CNE/IV Therapy 161




» Ozurdex’ (dexamethasone) [package insert] Madison, NJ: Allergan; Revised October 2020.
‘https://www.rxabbvie.com/pdf/ozurdex_pi.pdf.

« Retisert’ (fluocinolone acetonide) [package insert]. Bridgewater, NJ: Bausch and Lomb, a division of Bausch Health, LLC US; Revised
January 2021. https://www.bauschretinarx.com/siteassets/retisert/pdf/retisert-prescribing-information.pdf.

*  Susvimo™ (ranibizumab) [package insert]. South San Francisco, CA: Genentech, Inc.; Revised April 2022.
_https://www.gene.com/download/pdf/susvimo_prescribing.pdf.

« Triesence’ (triamcinolone acetonide) [package insert]. Fort Worth, TX: Alcon Laboratories, Inc.; Revised December
2016. https://dailymed.nlm.nih.gov/dailymed/druginfo.cfm?setid=3f045347-3e5e-4bbd-90f8-6¢3100985¢a5..

»  Vabysmo® (faricimab-svoa) [package insert]. South San Francisco, CA: Genentech, Inc.; Revised January 2022.
https://www.gene.com/download/pdf/vabysmo _prescribing.pdf.

»  Visudyne® (verteporfin) [package insert]. Charleston, SC: Alcami Carolinas Corporation; Revised July 2021.
_https://www.bausch.com/globalassets/pdf/packageinserts/pharma/visudyne-prescribing-information.pdf.

n Internal Information ‘ CNE/IV Therapy 162




ERIC A. FAIRBROTHER

10895 Olivia Court, Indianapolis, IN 46234
(317) 430-3531-cell
eafairbrother@express-sctipts.com

EDUCATION
Doctor of Pharmacy Degree May 2011
Butler University Indianapolis, IN

LICENSING AND CERTIFICATIONS
Indiana Pharmacist Expires 06/24
o License number: 26024045A

PR E E
Senior Clinical Advisor April 2018-present
Accredo (Express Scripts/Cigna) Whitestown, IN

e Design and monitor all clinical content/programs for Cystic Fibrosis/Transplant/Asthma &
Allergy/Select Specialty Conditions TRCs (Therapeutic Resource Centers)
e Support and collaborate with Payer/Product/Pharma account management teams in
education/clinical knowledge/programs to drive access/value
o Develop and present internal as well as external presentations demonstrating the value of our
clinical programs both from a financial and outcomes-based perspective
o  Work in partnership cross-functionally on enterprise wide initiatives
» Initiate research strategies and present published work to demonstrate clinical expertise to
external audiences
e Research and advise on pipeline therapies and present summary/data to internal stakeholders
Lead Pharmacist September 2016-April 2018
Accredo (Express Scripts) Indianapolis, IN
» Train and develop all new employees/Update all operational processes
e Facilitate and run weekly team huddles/ Assign RPH tasks based on team WIP daily
s New therapy Program Manager (implementation and continual process improvement)
e Created and supervised the Cystic Fibrosis Concierge Program
Staff Pharmacist August 2014-September 2016
Accredo (Express Scripts) Indianapolis, IN
¢ Rx verification and DUR review
» Developed end of day process to reduce shipment failures
¢ Developed and trained end users in a new Rx processing system
Pharmacy Manager June 2012-August 2014
CVS/pharmacy Columbus,IN;Indianapolis, IN; North Vernon, IN;Saint Petersburg, FL.
¢ Responsible for business operations including managing staff hours, increasing script count and
profit, and reconciling inventory activity
o Manage a staff of up to 15 technicians and in charge of hiring/termination process
o 7 years of prior experience at CVS in a intern/staff pharmacist setting

COMMUNITY SERVICE AND LEADERSHIP ACTIVITIES

Volunteer Wrestling Coach August 2012-present
e Avon High School
INSPIRE Leadership Program February 2022-present

References Available Upon Request

CNE/IV Therapy 163



BARBARA HOCKADAY, RN

Ocean Isle Beach, NC 28469 336.687.3863
www.linkedin.com/in/barbarahockaday bobbiehock@gmail.com

HEALTHCARE / CLINICAL LIAISON
Clinical Training | Continuous Improvement

Experienced nurse with expertise in specialty pharmacy education and operations. Successful in achieving operational
and business goals. Exceptional customer service skills and disciplined in completion of work responsibilities, problem
solver and issue resolution. Registered Nurse in the State of North Carolina.

Clinical product development | Cross-Functional Team Leadership | Specialty Pharmacy | Performance Improvement
| Business Development | Performance Management | Mentoring | Process Redesign

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

ACCREDO HEALTH, INC., Greensboro, NC
Acquired by Medco in 2005 and by Express Scripts in 2012

Sr. Advisor, Pharmacy Clinical Consulting-Clinical educator 2017 to present
Member of clinical product team responsible for development and implementation of clinical products related to chronic
and rare diseases. Scope includes products for internal and external clinicians, and other stakeholders as needed (account
management and customer service, for example), reporting for clinical product team, development and revision of clini-
cal documentation in therapy management

® Provide clinical training in various formats including continuing education, disease and treatment overview to clini-
cians and / or account executives, new hire orientation for account managers for example— either live or virtually.

¢ [dentify and implement annual clinical training for pharmacy therapeutic resource centers to meet education and
accreditation requirements

® Collaborate with CE department for CE accreditation of new and existing training modules, process improvement,
and compliance to meet standards

® Partner with stakeholders to provide clinical education with new products or refresher in content needs

Regional Pharmacy Director 2012 to 2017

Selected to lead operations and prescription fulfillment through 5 branches in the southeastern US. Managed 20+ em-

ployees. Scope included “back end” fulfillment, regulatory compliance, quality improvement activities, and location op-

erations. Partnered with physician and Pharma sales and met directly with physicians, referral sources, and providers as

clinical resource or operations support.

e led organizational realignment to a centralized model and establishment of regional pharmacy operations, creating
savings through alignment and standardization.

s Collaborated with IT, Pharmacy, Billing, Legal, Compliance, and project managers, migrating medical records to elec-
tronic format and creating new SOPs for records management.

s Initiated and led project for IT system enhancements which provided ‘proof of delivery,” satisfying payers, ensuring
reimbursement, and preventing losses.

General Manager 2009 to 2012
Directed specialty pharmacy branch with 47+ employees. Managed operational, pharmacy, nursing, regulatory, and fi-
nancial activities.

¢ Teamed with physician and Pharma sales providing clinical and operations support for retention and new business,
increasing branch revenue in therapies distributed for Chronic and Coag division.

¢ Received Medco’s President’'s Award 2010 for leading integration of Accredo Health, Hemophilia Health Services,
and Critical Care Systems to function as 1 business unit with 1 management and operational team.

o Awarded National Hemophilia Branch of the Year 2010 for outstanding sales and retention.

CNE/IV Therapy 164




¢ Met or exceeded corporate quality improvement standards, resulting in successful accreditation with The Joint Com-
mission (TJC) and URAC.

Branch Manager 2007 to 2009
Promoted to manage operations in local branch with 25+employees. Oversaw Pharmacy, Nursing, and Customer Service,
supporting physician and Pharma sales and clearance / reimbursement activities.

e Streamlined branch processes and communication between all departments improving communication and morale
among staff and increasing patient and referral source satisfaction results.

e Led quality improvement program with process improvements, achieving TJC accreditation and met compliance audits.
e Awarded A.C.E. Award for excellence in customer service 10/07.

e Served as Continuing Education Unit (CEU) presenter for IG and Alpha | presentations to referral staff and insurance
case managers.

Nurse Manager 2003 to 2007
Managed approximately 20 field RNs. Ensured all staff maintained current credentials, completed in-services and up-
dated training / cross-training. Assisted with intake for new referrals, obtained complete and concise nursing orders from
MD office, and staffed patients for ordered infusion therapies. Contributed in marketing of infusion therapies and di-
rected clinical rounds with referring physicians.

e Met or exceeded Performance Improvement Audits by establishing process improvements, resulting in improvement
in Nursing delivery of care, documentation, and plan of treatment orders.

o  Met criteria for successful Joint Commission survey, achieving accreditation.
e Approved CEU presenter for Alpha | Antitrypsin Deficiencies and IVIG, contributing to staff development.

Per Diem RN 1998 to 2003
e Performed duties related to pharmacy fulfillment, pharmacy assessments, and medication compounding.
¢ Conducted referral intake, infusion visits, and nursing visit billing.

EDUCATION

- Nursing Degree Diploma, Presbyterian Hospital School of Nursing, Charlotte, NC (3 year program)

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
~ Introduction to Business, Guilford Technical Community College, Greensboro, NC
— Certified Registered Nurse Infusion (Expired), Intravenous Nurse Society, Self-Study/Exam
— Chemotherapy Course, Wake Forest Baptist Hematology / Oncology, Winston-Salem, NC
—  The Practical Coach, Accredo Health, Greensboro, NC
—  How to Become a More Effective Supervisor, Accredo Health, Greensboro, NC

—  The Manager Experience, Accredo Health, Memphis, TN
— Director Development, Express Scripts, St Louis, MO

LICENSES

— Registered Nurse, State of North Carolina, #085936

TECHNICAL SKILLS

— PowerPoint, Excel, Word, Outlook, Oracle, ADP Payroll, and SharePoint

CNE/IV Therapy 165




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDDO HEALTH,6 I

NCORPORATED

(448) Age-related Macular Degeneration and Diabetic Macular Edema:
Overview and Treatment Options (CE Series)

Name: Date: .

Organization: .

Discipline: [JRN [JLPN [JRPh [JCM []Other

City/State: .

COURSE OFFERING OBJECTIVES AND EVALUATION

Please rate your leve! of expertise for each objective before Before After Education Required for
and after the education, and what is required for your Education Position
position
Recall characteristics of age-related macular degeneration [INovice [INovice [INovice
(A_MD) and diapetic macwar edema (DME)T pre_valence, Cintermediate intermediate Cintermediate
chs)leosgs):],1 ggpetlcs, detection, clinical manifestations, and ClExpert ClExpert DlExpert
[INovice [ INovice [INovice
Discuss guideline recommendations for treatment standards | [lintermediate Cintermediate Cintermediate
[IExpert [JExpert [JExpert
[INovice [INovice [INovice

Identify specialty medications used to treat AMD and DME
including: risks and benefits of these therapies, patient

[Jintermediate

[lintermediate

[intermediate

selection, adverse effects and appropriate monitoring ClExpert ClExpert ClExpert
. . . . [INovice [INovice [INovice
Depate financial considerations and effect on treatment Clintermediate [intermediate Dintermediate
options
[Expert [JExpert [CIExpert
[INovice [ INovice [INovice
Recall the AMD and DME medication pipeline [Jintermediate [Jintermediate [lintermediate
[JExpert [JExpert [CExpert
Explain how education could be improved to better meet any objective(s) not met:
Identify anything not covered in the presentation you need to care for your patients:
1

CNE/IV Therapy 166




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDO HEALTH,

NCORPORATETD

Please evaluate

Strongly
Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly
Disagree

N/A

The presenter was knowledgeable and
effective

The presenter was responsive to participant
guestions

The education material was useful

The teaching and learning methods were
effective

The activity was presented objectively and
was free from commercial bias

The education contained opportunities for
active learning

The posttest accurately measured what |
learned from the information presented

The content learned from this activity will
impact my practice

The activity promotes improvement in
healthcare

I would recommend this activity to others

Please elaborate if bias perceived:

This activity will assist in the improvement of my: (Check all that apply)

[} Competence
[1 Performance

[] Patient outcomes

| plan to make the following changes to my practice; (Check all that apply)

(1 Modify treatment plans

[ Incorporate different diagnostic strategies into patient evaluation

[ Use alternative communication methodologies with patients and families

[C] None; the activity validated current practice

Other (please specify):

CNE/IV Therapy 167




CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE OFFERING

A CCREDDO HEALTH, I NCORPORATED
What is your level of commitment to making changed stated above?

[ Very committed
1 Somewhat committed
[[] Not very committed

[] Do not expect to change practice

What are the barriers you face in your current practice setting that may impact patient outcomes? (Check
all that apply)

L] Lack of evidenced-based guidelines

[ Lack of applicability of guidelines to my current practice/patients
[1 Lack of time

] Organizational/Institutional

['] Insurance/Financial

[7 Patient adherence/compliance

[ Treatment-related adverse events

Other (please specify):

What did you like most about the presentation?

What did you like least about the presentation?

Suggestions for future presentations:

Comments:

CNE/IV Therapy 168




Long Term CNE Provider Checklist

(K.AR. 60-9-107)

Name of Provider: Republic County Hospital

Name of Program Coordinator:

Date Received: 1/26/23

Date to CNE Committee; March 20233

Rebecca Brown, MSN, RN

Approved
Not Approved:
Date Notified:
Information Required Received NA
Completed application for initial approval or five-year renewal
for LT CNE providership shall be submitted at least 60 days X
before a scheduled board meeting
The name and address of the organization on the application X
The name and address of the department or unit within the
organization responsible for approving CNE, if different from X
the name and address of the organization
The name, education and experience of the program Rebecca Brown,
coordinator responsible for CNE MSN, RN
e Be a licensed professional nurse X
e Have three years of clinical experience X
e Have one year of experience in developing and
implementing nursing education X
e Have abaccalaureate degree (unless held this position
for the provider at least five years immediately prior X

to January 1, 1977)

Policies & Procedures:

Written policies and procedures, including at least the |
following areas:

Assessing the need and planning for CNE activities

Fee assessment

Advertisements  or  offering  announcements.
Published information shall contain the following
statement: “(name of provider) is approved as a
provider of continuing nursing education by the
Kansas State Board of Nursing. This course offering
is approved for contact hours applicable for APRN,
RN, or LPN relicensure. Kansas State Board of
Nursing provider number: ”?

Notice of change of coordinator or required policies
and procedures. The program coordinator shall notify
the board in writing of any change of the individual

1

CNE/IV Therapy 169




responsible for the providership or required policies
and procedures within 30 days

For long term providers, the policies and procedures for the |

offering approval process shall include the following;

¢ A summary of the planning | X
e  The behavioral objectives X
e The content, which shall meet the definition of CNE X
in KSA 65-1117
e The instructor’s education and experience, X
documenting knowledge and expertise in the content
area
e A current bibliography that is reflective of the
offering content. The bibliography shall include X

books published within the past 10 years, periodicals
published within the past five years, or both

An offering evaluation that includes each |

participant’s assessment of the following:

= The achievement of each objective

= The expertise of each individual presenter

An approved provider may award any of the following:

Contact hours as documented on an offering agenda
for the actual time attending, including partial credit
for one or more contact hours

Credit for fractions of hours over 30 mins to be
computed towards a contact hour

Instructor credit, which shall be twice the length of
the first-time presentation of an approved offering,
excluding an standardized, prepared curriculum

Independent study credit that is based on the time
required to complete the offering, as documented by
the provider’s pilot test results

Clinical hours

Documentation of Attendance

Each provider shall maintain documentation to verify that each |
participant attended the offering. The provider shall require |

each participant to sign a daily roster, which shall contain the
following information:

The provider’s name, address, provider number, and
coordinator

Not
addressed

The date and title of the offering, and the presenter or
presenters

The participant’s name and license number and the
number of contact hours awarded

Each provider shall maintain documentation to verify |

completion of each independent study offering, if applicable
To verify completion of an independent study offering, the
provider shall maintain documentation that includes the
following:

The provider’s name, address, provider number, and
coordinator

CNE/IV Therapy 170




e  The participant’s name and license number, and the
number of contact hours awarded

e  The title of the offering

e The date on which the offering was completed

o Either the completion of a posttest or a return
demonstration

Certificate of Attendance/CE Transcript

A certificate of attendance shall be awarded to each participant
after completion of an offering, or a CE transcript shall be
provided according to the policies and procedures of the long-
term provider

X
X
X
X

Each certificate and each CE transcript shall be complete
before distribution to the participant

Each certificate and each CE transcript shall contain the |

following information;

e The provider’s name, address and provider number X
e The title of the offering X
e  The date or dates of attendance or completion
X

e The number of contact hours awarded and, if

applicable, the designation of any independent study X

or instructor contact hours awarded
e The signature of the individual responsible for the

providership X

¢  The name and license number of the participant

Recordkeeping & Storage

For each offering, the approved provider shall retain the -

following for two years:

¢ A summary of the planning

e A copy of the offering announcement or brochure

o  The title and objectives

o The offering agenda or, for independent study, pilot
test results

e A bibliography

s A summary of the participants’ evaluations

¢ Each instructor’s education and experiences

s Documentation to verify completion of the offering

The record storage system used shall ensure confidentiality
and easy retrieval of records by authorized individuals

St 5 [ 5 5| 5[ 5| <]

Program Evaluation Plan

For long-term providers, a copy of the total program evaluation
plan

Two Proposed Offerings

The provider shall submit two proposed offerings, including |

the following:

CNE/IV Therapy 171




e A summary of planning X X
e A copy of the offering announcement or brochure X X
e  The title and behavioral objectives X X
e The offering agenda or, for independent study, pilot

test results X X
e Each instructor’s education and experience X X
e A current bibliography X X
e The offering evaluation form X X

12/2018

2/3/23 Application reviewed and approval checklist completed by Carol Moreland, MSN, RN

CNE/IV Therapy 172




BuddyData.com - Secure Site https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

www.buddydata.com Qv
RECEIVED - ~

By KSBN Education Department at 2:51.pm, Jan 2

:: www.ksbn.org :: back to forms index printable version

~ private and confidential decrypted data ~
Reference No.: 25350 Date submitted: Jan 24 17:33 2023

..............................................................................................................................................................................

www.ksbn.org

radio ~ Renewal

Providername ~ Republic County Hospital

providernum ~ LT0057-0338

legalbody ~ Great Plains of Republic County Inc.

address ~ 2420 G Street

adress2 ~ Belleville, KS 66935

telephone ~ 7855272254

email ~ rbrown@rphospital.org

coordinator ~ Rebecca Brown, MSN, RN

date ~ 01-24-2023

planningce ~ Republic County Hospital has a CNE advisory committee
comprised of the CNE coordinator (who is also CNO), the Director of
Nursing, ISB Manager, the Director of Risk Management and Quality
Improvement. We strive to recognize the desired and felt needs of our
nursing staff and the nurses within our community & surrounding
areas. Annually, a needs assessment is obtained from the nursing staff
and the CNE committee meets to review the findings and plan courses
for the upcoming year. Additionally, the committee compares needs to
responses issued by nurses attending CNE programs, issues/events
which have occurred within the facility and/or processes which are
changing and evolving with nursing practice. Programs may be selected
per the request of a departmental supervisor, community resource,
physician or by administration to enhance professional growth within
the organization and surrounding community. As such, the continuing
nursing education learning experiences do build upon the educational
and experiential bases of the registered professional and licensed
practical nurse for the enhancement of practice, education,
administration, and research or theory development to the end of
improving the health of the public. Republic County Hospital strives to
provide quality programming presented, whenever possible, by nurse
educators.

feeassessment ~ Republic County Hospital believes that our primary
audience is RNs and LPNs whom are members of our staff. Therefore,
courses which are offered at RCH are provided at no cost to our staff
members. Non-employee fees for educational offerings are derived at

CNE/IV Therapy 173

1of4 1/26/2023, 2:20 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

2 of4

through an estimated cost appraisal for each offering. However,
generally a fee of $6.00 per hour shall be charged for a course offering.
The source of financial support for the program shall be considered and
planning shall be done accordingly. Grants and company contributions
shall be utilized whenever possible. Cancellations may occur and unless
otherwise stated in program advertising, a full refund shall be given.
Refund fees may be established dependent upon course cost/expenses
and ability to fill vacancies, but shall be clearly stated in program
advertising. Insufficient fund checks have not been an issue for the
RCH education department. Being a small community, insufficient fund
issuers would be contacted and given the opportunity to make right by
submitting the correct fee. If at that point fees are still not paid the
hospital Chief Financial Officer shall handle the matter per Republic
County Hospital general policy.

advertisement ~ Program marketing is done via
brochures/announcements. The brochure/ announcement is mailed,
e-mailed and posted a minimum of one month prior to any CNE
offering to area medical facilities and nurses within the RCH data base.
The information shall include name of provider; title and objectives;
CNE hours offered with the KSBN approval statement and provider
information; place, date & time of program; cost; pre-registration
information and target audience. Additionally information on the
Republic County Hospital web page provides contact information for the
CNE coordinator as well as a general statement regarding CNE:
Republic County Hospital is an approved provider of continuing nursing
education by the Kansas State Board of Nursing and as such offers
courses for Continued Nursing Education (CNE). We also work closely
with Cloud County Community College and the Northwest Kansas Area
Health Education Center to provide for all our nursing education needs
as well as the needs of other members of our healthcare team
including physical and occupational therapy, respiratory therapy, and
radiology.

approvalprocess ~ At Republic County Hospital the education
coordinator utilizes a planning work sheet to verify and review all
information for each class. Information on the work sheet includes:
summary of planning; behavioral objectives review and that they are
appropriate for CNE meeting KSA 65-1117; review of instructor
credentials; instructor vitae is on file; review of bibliography for
relevancy and that it is up to date; and that development and review of
evaluation form including achievement of the objectives and the
expertise of the presenter.

contacthours ~ Contact hours will be approved based on 50 minutes
for one contact hour. Participants are expected to be on time and
remain until the end of the offering, when certificates are distributed.
CNE contact hours will be reduced for participants arriving late for the
offering or leaving early from the offering, and it shall be noted
accordingly on the sign in roster. Occasionally a special offering may be
developed that will consist of two or more sections with each section
independent of the other (serial). In this case partial credit would be

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 174

1/26/2023, 2:20 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

3o0f4

considered dependent upon the content and the time in attendance.
Partial credit will not be offered for less than one credit hour (50
minutes); increments over one hour will be offered in half hour
increments. Independent study credit is based on the time required to
complete the offering as documented by the provider’s pilot test result
or if credit had previously been determined for the independent study
by another state board or national accrediting agency, it shall be noted
as such on the pilot study form. A successful posttest or return
demonstration shall be completed and documented.

Each faculty member presenting a program for the first time may be
given double credit (2:1) for each hour of presentation. The certificate
issued will state plainly that this is a first time offering of that material,
and the presenter's name with double time will be placed on the roster.
Instructors for TNCC, ACLS, NRP and other courses with established
standardized curriculum will not receive instructor credit.

Certificate as well as the course roster shall indicate that instructor
credit is being awarded. A nurse may earn up to fifty percent (50%) of
the required CNE credits in this manner.

verifycompletion ~ The roster of attendance shall be computer
generated and will contain the name, address and license number for
the participants and shall be signed by the participant upon attendance
to the program with verification of their credentials and information.
Nurse names are typed-alphabetically by first name, as names are
listed as on the nursing license, nurse category (RN / LPN), and hours
of CNE to earned. The roster shall also list the title of the program,
date of the program, the names of instructor(s) and their credentials,
such as RN, BSN, MSN, PhD, etc. The name of hospital offering the
program as well as the name of the provider, Republic County Hospital
with the Republic County Hospital Provider number, LT 0057-0338.
recordkeeping ~ All information listed below shall be maintained in a
yearly file with a summation index in the Office of the Education
Director. The records to be included are: Planning
information/correspondence; copy of the brochure; program agenda;
signed roster; instructor vitae; program objectives; bibliography;
program evaluations - summarized; handouts (if applicable); and pilot
time testing results for independent study.

Attendance and corresponding program information shall be entered
into the computer log, so that an individual nurse’s attendance history
may be printed. At the conclusion of each program, an evaluation log
shall be completed for review by the CNE coordinator and for later
review by the CNE Advisory Committee.

All records are to be maintained in the education office files. The offices
shall be locked at the conclusion of each workday. Computers are
password protected. Records, for a minimum of 2 years, shall be
maintained in the education director / CNE coordinators office. After
that, all records shall be boxed and labeled and moved to the Republic
County Hospital locked record storage area for a period of up to 20
years.

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 175

1/26/2023, 2:20 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

4 of 4

noticeofchange ~ Republic County Hospital has a policy in place that
outlines the overall responsibilities of the continuing nursing education
coordinator. Said policy addresses that the KSBN shall be notified in
writing within 30 days of said action should a different coordinator
need appointed. Additionally, policy addresses that the coordinator
shall be a registered nurse with a valid Kansas nursing license, who is
educationally prepared and has experience in education.
programevaluation ~ A total program evaluation tool is utilized and
completed each year with a review by the CNE advisory committee.
The total program evaluation has proven useful in monitoring for
changes, needs and improvements to the CNE program here at RCH.
Submission date ~ 01-24-2023 17:33:33

Form ID ~ 1672730

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 176

1/26/2023, 2:20 PM




Rebecca Brown, MSN, RN

2041 1 St., Belleville, KS 66935 ¢ 785—766—3657 e rabrown64@gmail.com

EXPERIENCE

1984 — Present
2021 —Present |
2017 -2021
20102017
1997 -2010
1989 —1997
1985~ 1989
1984 - 1985

2009 - 2016

Republic County Hospital Belleville, KS
Chief Nursing Officer

Director of Surgical Services and Staff Education

Co - Risk Manager, Director of Surgical Services and Staff Educatipn
Risk Manager andv Staff Education

Director of Surgical Services

Registered Nurse: Surgery and Acute Nursing

Nursing Assistant

Cloud County Community College Concordia, KS

Community Education Instructor

March 2008 — Oct. 2008

Stormont Vail Health Care - ‘ Topeka, KS

Emefgency Department Staff Nurse

Dec. 2001 — April 2008

Salina Regional Health Center Salina, KS

Emergency Department Staff Nurse

EDUCATION

2003

Fort Hays State University Hays, KS

© Master of Science in Nursing Administration

Thesis: Working Conditions and Staff Nurse Retention in Rural Healthcare Organizations

1996

Bachelor of Science in Nursing

1985

Diploma in Nursing

Fort Hays State University Hays, KS

Asbury Hospital Schoo! of Nursing ‘ Salina, KS

CNE/IV Therapy 177




RECOGNITIONS/CERTIFICATIONS/MEMBERSHIPS

Registered Nurse by Kansas State Board of Nursing

Past Member Kansas State Board of Nursing Continuing Nurse Education Committee member
Past Member North Central Kansas Regional Trauma Council Executive Committee - Secretary
Leora B. Stroup Award for outstanding clinical performance, community involvement & academic
achievement — Fort Hays State University - 2003 -

Sigma Theta Tau International Honor Society, Fort Hays State University - April 2002
Graduated with Honors Fort Hays State 1996 & 2003

Member Kansas Healthcare Education Council

Trauma Nurse Core Course Instructor |

ACLS Certified

NRP Certified

American Heart Association BLS Instructor & Site Coordinator

Member Kansas Organization of Nursing Leaders

COURSE DEVELOPMENT lAND PRESENTATIONS

“Principles of Triage During a Mass Casualty Incident

Trauma Nurse Core Course

Advanced Cardiac Life Support

Bullying: Not in Our Nursing Profession
Documentation in the Real World

Trust: How does it impact you and your patients?
Ethics in Healthcare

Traunma Assessment and Care in the Critical Golden Hour
Medications and Interactions

Assessment and Care of Trauma Patients

Risk Management 101

Staff Nurse Retention

CNE/IV Therapy 178




REPUBLIC COUNTY HOSPITAL

Planning Procedures / Process for Offering Approval
PURPOSE: In order 1o meet the required regulations of continuing education programs mandated by the
Kansas State Board of Nursing, the following procedure should be followed.

HOSPITAL EDUCATION COORDINATOR: o
1.The Republic County Hospital Education Coordinatot shall be responsible for developing a continuing
cducation program planning procedure which is utilized in planning a continuing nursing education

~ program,

A. Course Description
1. Course Title - The title should be short, if possible, no more than six key words, 1t should
identify the subject matier,

2. Behavioral Objectives - Objectives should not be numerous enough Lo provide an outline but
should be sufficient to provide dircction. Behavioral objectives must be measurable,

3. Coonrse Qutline or Agenda - The course outline should
adequately describe the course content. 1t should include specific
time frames for cach speaker, breaks, and lunch.

4. Farmal - i.c. lecture, conference, seminar, elc.

5. Bibliography - To include current nursing articles and books.
Use of reference articles published within the last five yeats
and/or books published within the last len years are acceptable.

6. Budget - The source of financial support for the program shall be
considered and planning shall be donc accordingly. Grants and
company contributions (i.c. pharmaceutical speaker’s bureaus)
shall be utilized whenever possible.

7. Evaluation Plan - The plan or method which measures
behavior to be achieved as specified by the objectives. Must
include n measurement of objectives, whelher they were met or
not. i

8. Intended Audience - Including any necessary prerequisiles
{i.e. RN, LPN, BLS verification).

9. lustification - For the presentation of this course, (i.e, needs of
community, institution or of the attendees).

B. Faculty - A curriculum vitac is needed for each instructor. The vitac should include educational experience
appropriate to the offering.

C. Facility - Description for this presentation.
D. Other Information - To include date, location, CNE hours to be awarded.

E. Pre-program -~ Advertise, accept applications for attendance, prepare the roster including the
instructor's credentials, prepare handouts and arrange for any equipment needs.

F. Day of Program - Participants o sign the roster on admission fo the program, confirming that names,
license #'s, and addresses are correct. .

G. Certificates - Certificates of attendance are prepared and distributed at the completion of the program,
as per policy.

H. Evaluations - Summarize evaluations and review for comment and needed recommendations/changes,
send a copy to the instructor and retain a copy for the program file,

CNE/IV Therapy 179




Nursing Education Needs

POLICY: .

Republic County Hospital shall recognize the desired and felt needs of our nursing staff and the nurses within our
community & surrounding arcas, in the scheduling of CNE programs. This will encourage professional growth and
provide a mechanism to address issucs of interest as well as current health care trends within our community.

FROCEDURE: .
O A needs assessment survey shall be administercd to the nursing staff one time per year, in March or April, in
conjunction with the hospital’s required inservices,

O  Nurses attending CNE programs are surveyed for their felt or desired learning needs,

0O It is our desire to recognize the adult learners’ needs and desires and to provide a mechanism through which
they can relate them.

8 The survey shall be prepared in a manner that will allow recognition of current trends and will acknowledpe
personal preferences,

O Survey results shall be tabulated and then reviewed by the Continuing Nursing Education Advisory Committee.
Program planning will be done using information gained from this survey.

G  Programs may also be selected per the request of a deparimental supervisor, communily resource, physician, or
* administration to enhance professional growth within the organization and surrounding community.

Pregram Fees & Cancellation Pelicy

POLICY: Republic County Hospital intends to provide nursing education at reasonable fees so as not to deter
atlendance, We recognize that due to unforeseen circumstances, it is sometimes necessary lo cancel offerings. Itis

the intent of this policy to provide a method of covering expenses and recovering fees that will be fair to panticipants
and (o the Republic County Hospital.

Republic County Hospital shall:

O encourage pre-registration

Q  inform participants of the policy prior to the offering

O provide u guideline so that all registrants will be treated in an cqual manner

Procedure:

1. Refund of fees may be established dependent upon course cost/expenses and ability to {ill vacancies, but shall
be clearly stated in program advertising

*  Unless stated differently in the program announcement, a registrant may cancel and receive a full refund.

2

Full refund will be given if it is necessary for the Republic County Hospital to cancel the offering.

3. All refunds will be issued by mail,

4. Attendance fees shall be calculated from program expenses including instructor fees, travel expensc, and upon
the expected # of attendees. Generally, a fee of $6.00 per credit hour shall be charged.
s This amount may be more or less depending upon the calculated expenses of providing the program.
*  Republic County Hospital staff shall not be charged an attendance fee as this is an employee benefit.

5. In the event that the RCH Education department receives an insufficient fund check the issuer shall be contacied

and given the opportunity 1o make good on the payment. If correction does not occur the matter will be turned
over to the RCH CFO for collection of debt per hospital policics.

e CNE/IV Therapy 180




PROGRAM MARKETING

Policy

Adequate publicity is necessary to inform potential participants that an offering is being
presented in the area. Marketing an offering should increase awareness and attendance. The
marketing is the responsibility of the nurse coordinator of the CE programs. Republic County
Hospital shall utilize brochures/announcements as our primary method of marketing due to cost
expenditures. -

Brochures and Announcements

Brochures and/or announcements are mailed and/or e-mailed by the Republic County Hospital
Education department a minimum of one month prior to any CNE offering to area medical
facilities and nurses within the RCH data base. E-mail distribution will be utilized whenever
possible to decrease cost expenditures.

The following information shall be provided:
Name of Provider
Title & Objectives
CNE hours offered with KSBN approval statement & provider
Place, date & time of program
Cost
Pre—registration information, target audience

Media Releases

The purpose of media releases is to enable the potential audience to determine if the offering is
in a topic area that will meet their requirements. The news media release will contain the infor-
mation necessary for the potential participant to determine if this program is suited for them, as
title, length of offering, speaker, time and place of the offering, and any other pertinent
information will be included. The media releases will also serve to remind participants of
offerings being presented. '

Procedure

Two to four weeks prior to the presentation of an offering, news releases may be prepared by the
education department. If the decision to utilize such releases is made they shall be distributed to
area newspapers and radio stations at a minimum, two weeks prior to the presentation.

World Wide Web

Program listings may be placed on the Republic County Hospital web page. Information on how
to contact the CNE coordinator via e-mail and phone shall be included in this site.

ADMINISTRATION: PROVIDERSHIP COORDINATOR

The coordinator of the continuing nursing education long term providership is responsible for
the administrative details of the continuing education program. The coordinator:

o plans and implements educational offerings based on recommendation of the advisory
commiltee, assessment of learning needs, and/or recommendation of the Director of
Nursing, Administration, Quality Improvement, or Risk Management.

0 with the help of the advisory committee, assures that objectives are met and that the
content of the presentation is relevant to the audience.

J— . ‘ ) CNE/IV Therapy 181




o The coordinator shall be a registered nurse who has a valid Kansas nursing license, is
educationally prepared and has experience in education.

o If for any reason Republic County Hospital has the need to appoint a different CNE
coordinator, the KSBN shall be notified in writing within 30 days of said action.

The educational assistant shall have experience with various office machines and possess other
secretarial skills, such as typing, filing and telephone skills. The assistant shall:

o be knowledgeable in the record maintenance and regulations governing CNE course
attendance

0 shall assist with licensure verification
a  assist with maintenance CNE program records
a  assist with the coordination of program offerings including registration

a  assist with CNE program publicity.

‘ CONTINUING EDUCATION OFFERING PROCESS
Assessmcnt

The assessment is an importaat means for obtaining participant input. It can identify areas of need and/or interest.
The assessment should give nurses an opportunity to have input into offering selection, The assessment is often a
result of evaluations on previous offerings. It may be the recommendation of the advisory committee members, State
or Federal recommendations, departmental or administrative staff, or from the educational director following current
trends in nursing practice. Additional assessmenis are completed annually, providing nurses the opportunity to
speeify specific needs or interests. '

Planning

This phase of the process resulls in a list of (opics that will meet the needs and interests of nurses. Well-planned
offerings should ultimaiely lead to improved delivery of health care. Planning should result in offerings that are
relevant to the needs of participants and reflect the current trends and research in nursing. The coordinator has the
final decision in determining that a topic is appropriate for nurses; however consultation with members of the CNE
commilice is conducted. The coordinator is also responsible for scheduling, faculty selection, and approval of the
objectives, determining that the content meets the objectives, travel arrangements and any other identified program
needs. A CNE planning worksheet shall be utilized 1o assure that all phases of planning are completed.

Implementation

Implementation is the actual presentation of the offering, The implementation should present the offering as
advertised. It should also give the participants a valuable learning experience that will enhance their professional
practice. The educational director or designee will be responsible for ordering refreshments, distributing written
material (o participants, setting up equipment, typing certificates of atiendance and distributing them, and any other
tasks necessary for the successful completion of the offering. The coordinator and/or het assistant shall observe to
assuse that all attendees sign npon arrival at the program and remain in atiendance.

Evaluation

Evaluations are an integral part of each offering, They assist in the ever-continuing effort to maintain quality. The
evaluation should provide an opportunity for participants lo voice an opinion and offer constructive criticism about
all phases of the offering. The evaluation gives the director an overall view of how the education offering met
participants’ needs, and is one means of providing the presenter with an appraisal of their presentation.

The procedure for the evaluation is as follows:

CNE/IV Therapy 182




1. Ancvaluation form is distributed (o each participant at the beginning of the offering
1t will inctude the listed objectives in question form that can be answered with “yes”, “no”, “ N/A” or
Likert scale
Participants are encouraged to thoughtfully complete the form
Evaluations are collected al the offerings completion
A summary is made of the evaluations and a copy is mailed to the presenter with one
copy of the summary being kept in the offering file

!0

NP

CNE Planning Worksheet
Program Date;
Program Nime:
Planning Committec:

Learning Needs Assessment: (class requested or need demonstrated by)‘

Target Audience: (RN's: LPN’s: Ete)
Learning Objectives:

Program Logistics:
Speaker(s):

Instructor Credentials:
Vitae on File:
Bibliography relevant and up to date:

Agenda:

Evaluation Form Developed including: Yes /No
2. Achievement of the objectives
b.  Expertise of the presenter

Form Completed by:

FACULTY SELECTION
It is the policy of Republic County Hospital to select the most qualified persons as faculty for
continuing education offerings. It is also desirable to develop inexperienced speakers into
qualified presenters. This policy is developed to help select the most qualified faculty available
to serve as presenter for the offering. It is also the intent of the hospital that suggestions for
faculty selection as stated by the KSBN are considered.

CNE/IV Therapy 183




Procedure

1. Once a topic has been selected, a search is begun to identify a qualified speaker.

2. If the coordinator does not have first-hand knowledge of a speaker, other sources are
contacted. Networking may include Task Force members, other providers, or other outside
professional contacts of the coordinator.

3. Experienced faculty are encouraged to invite inexperienced, but otherwise qualified,
speakers to participate in the presentation.

4, Faculty will meet at least two of the criteria as suggested by the KSBN:

A. Educational experience appropriate to the offering
B. Teaching experience of similar content to the offering
C. Clinical experience appropriate to the offering

5. Other factors will be considered such as ability to relate to an audience, ability to speak
interestingly, appearance, and past evaluations.

6. Non-—nursing faculty may be used if the content area is one in which a qualified nurse is

not available, or in conjunction with nursing faculty.

Continuing Education Credit and Certificates

Offering Credit:

Educational offerings are usually developed so that partial credit is not possible and attendance is
necessary at the entire offering. Contact hours will be approved based on 50 minutes for one
contact hour. Participants are expected to be on time and remain until the end of the offering,
when certificates are distributed. CNE contact hours will be reduced for participants arriving
late for the offering or leaving early from the offering, Occasionally a special offering may be
developed that will consist of two or more sections with each section independent of the other

(serial). In this case partial credit would be considered dependent upon the content and the time
in attendance.

Partial Credit:

Partial credit will not be offered for less than one credit hour (50 minutes); increments over one
hour will be offered in half hour increments. Independent study credit is based on the time
required to complete the offering as documented by the provider’s pilot test result or if credit had

previously been determined for the independent study by another state board or national
accrediting agency it shall be noted as such on the pilot study form.

Instructor Credit:

Each faculty member presenting a program for the first time may be given double credit (2:1) for
each hour of presentation. The certificate issued will state plainly, that this is a first time
offering of that material, and the presenter's name with double time will be placed on the roster.

Instructors for TNCC, ACLS, NRP and other courses with established standardized curriculum
will not receive instructor credit. '

Certificates:

CNE/IV Therapy 184




At the completion of each offering, a certificate of attendance will be given to the participants.
The certificate will be completely filled out before it is distributed. The name on the certificate
will be typed exactly as it is on the nursing license. Any corrections or changes made on the
certificate must be made by the coordinator and initialed. The certificate of attendance is unique
to Republic County Hospital. 1t is designed so that it can be easily read and xeroxed by machine.

The certificate of attendance shall contain the following:
provider’s name, address, and provider number

title of the course and instructor

dates of attendance

number of contact hours awarded

name of the person responsible for the providership
name and license number of the participant

if independent study, it shall be clearly noted

if instructor credit, it shall be clearly noted

oOoooonoao

Duplicate Certificate: ,

If a duplicate certificate must be issued to a participant due to an error on the part of Republic
County Hospital, there is no charge. If a participant requests a duplicate certificate because of
loss or error on the participant's part, a fee of $5.00 may be charged. If a duplicate is issued for
any reason, the word "duplicate" will be prominently added to the certificaie.

INSTRUCTOR CREDIT

Policy: To provide CNE credit to a program instructor the first time that a course is
developed and presented and to do so in accordance to the KSBN,

Procedure:

A nurse who prepares and presents a course for an approved offering may be given credit for the
portion of the offering for the first time presented.

The minimum length of the presentation shall be one hour with two contact hours awarded.
Instructor credit is issued at a 2:1 ratio.

Arrangements for the instructor credit shall be made with the CNE coordinator in advance of the
program presentation.

Republic County Hospital awards the instructor a certificate showing the credits earned
Certificate as well as the course roster shall indicate that instructor credit is being awarded.
A nurse may earn up to fifty percent (50%) of the required CNE credits in this manner,

Instructor credit shall not be issued for courses such as ACLS, NPR, TNCC, etc. with
standardized prepared curriculum,

Independent‘ Study

Republic County Hospital recognizes that Independent Study may be an appropriate alternate for
earned CNE credit. Independent study may be used up to the required 30 hours in a two year

period. The following are the guidelines for independent study at Republic County Hospital
{(RCH):

CNE/IV Therapy 185




Self-instructional or independent study shall be defined as an organized study under the guidance
of the RCH CNE coordinator. , ‘

Designated credit will be determined by the CNE coordinator, as appropriate for the offering.
¢ Credit may be determined by pilot testing ,
o Total all time required for completion and divide by number of testers
following policy on credit for fractions of hours
¢ Credit. may be determined by previous credit approval by a National Accreditation
agency or a state board of nursing

The study is designed by the CNE coordinator and the learner jointly. The program may incl?de
such things as research, professional papers, and authorship. In-service education and on-the-job
training shall not be eligible for CNE credit.

Methods of evaluation shall be identified and may include pre and post testing, demonstrations,
and/or written reports. ’

A certificate of completionyshall be issued by the provider listing the number of contact hours

granted for the independent study, and clearly stating that such contact hours were earned in
independent study.

There shall be a minimum fee of $6.00 shall be charged for each independent study, however
some programs may be charged at a fee of $6.00 per hour. This fee shall be clearly stated on

program flier. RCH staff may obtain independent study at no charge if approved by their
supervisor.

ROSTERS

PURPOSE: To assure that rosters of CNE programs contain appropriate information
and comply with KSBN regulations.

Republic County Hospital shall begin registration a minimum of 15 minutes prior to the
start of a program and shall utilize a roster that contains the information recommended
by the Kansas State Board of Nursing. This roster is produced in Microsoft Access with
a program designed by the RCH coordinator. The finalized roster shall be maintained in
our office files for a minimum of 2 years. Contents of the standardized roster are:

A. Rosters shall be compuler generated.

B. The hospital educational coordinator or her assistant shall have

participants sign the original roster at registration time as designated for the
program. The original shall be maintained in the CNE file. Registrants shall sign
their names. Check marks or initials are not acceptable. The name, license #, and
address will be verified at the time of registration. :

C. Nurse names are typed--alphabetically by first name, as names are listed as on
the nursing license, current address (even if different than on license), nurse
category (RN / LPN), and hours of CNE earned. If no number is available for the
license number column; give the reason (i.e. new graduate, new Kansas applicant,
or relicensure applicants). If a nurse does not have a current license in Kansas,
does not know the license number when previously licensed in Kansas, and is

Ao primrnire < e CNE/IV Therapy 186




currently getting CNE hours for reinstatement, then the person's social security
number may be used on the roster instead of the license number. The social
security number should not be substituted if the person has a current license. List
out-of-state nurses with the abbreviation for their state and their license number.

D. Walk-in registrants may be added to the roster, if the class is not full,
E. List names of nursing instructors and their credentials, such as RN, BSN,
MSN, PhD, etc. Persons who serve as panelists, consultants and conference

leaders are not listed as instructors on the roster sheet.

F. Name of hospital offering the program as well as the name of the
provider, Republic County Hospital.

G. Title of the program.

H. Republic County Hospital Provider number, LT 0057-0338.

CNE/IV Therapy 187




REPUBLIC COUNTY HOSPITAL

2420 G STREET
BELLEVILLE, KANSAS 66935

Certificate of Attendance
This is to certify that

Teresa Tester

License Number: 00-00000-000

Attended:

Sample for KSBN

on
Friday, January 20, 2023

Instructed by: Tester Teacher, RN, MSN

This course approved for 3 Contact Hours

Coordinator

Republic County Hospital is approved as a provider of — i N V o~ .

continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board L_/—‘ Q MA\NMW@
of Nursing. Contacts hours are applicable for RN and Rekgec'ca Brown, MSN, RN
LPN relicensure KSBN Provider # LT 0057-0338

CNE/IV Therapy 188



REPUBLIC COUNTY HOSPITAL

2420 G STREET
BELLEVILLE, KANSAS 66935

Certificate of Attendance
This is to certify that

Teresa Tester

License Number: 00-00000-000

Attended:

Sample for KSBN - Independent Study

on
Friday, January 20, 2023

Instructed by: Rebecca Brown, RN, MSN (c) - Iridep. Study

This course approved for 1 Contact Hours

Republic County Hospital is approved as a provider of
continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board
of Nursing. Contacts hours are applicable for RN and Rebdcca Brown, MSN, RN
LPN relicensure KSBN Provider # LT 0057-0338 Coordinator

CNE/IV Therapy 189




CNE Planning Worksheet

Program Date: October 10, 2022

Program Name: Burn Class

Planning Committee: Rebecca Brown, RN; Tracey Moore, Debbie Krohn, RN

Learning Needs Assessment: Requested by Trauma Coordinator

Target Audience: {RN's; LPN’s; Etc.):  RN's, LPN's

Learning Obijectives: (reviewed & appropriate — note any changes required)

Identify the depth of the burn injury

Calculate % of burn injury

Identify signs of inhalation injury

Identify care for the different types of burn injury

A=

Program Logistics:
Speaker(s): EricJensen, RN
Instructor Credentials: See vitae

Vitae on File: yes
Bibliography relevant and up to date: Yes

Agenda: Reviewed, no changes

Evaluation Form Developed includinga Yes

a. Achievement of the ohjectives
b. Expertise of the presenter

Form Completed by: Rebecca Brown, MSN, RN

CNE/IV Therapy 190




Burn Injury

October 10, 2022

10:00a to 2:00p
9:453 Registration

Repubiic County Hospital
Education Room
2420 G St
Belleville, KS 66935

Objectives:
Upon completing this presentation, the participant will be able to:
1. Identify the depth of the burn injury
2. Calculate % of burn injury
3. Identify signs of inhalation injury
4. Tdentify care for the different types of burn injury

Target Audience: RNs, LPNS Fees: No charge to RCH employee
$25 for non-employees

Continuing Nurse Education (CNE) hours will be offered. Republic County Hospital as an
approved provider of continuing education by the Kansas State Board of Nursing, presents this
course offering for 3 contact hours applicable for RN/LPN relicensure. Kansas State Board of
Nursing Provider #1.T0057-0338.

Speaker: Eric Jensen, RN has 24 years of experience providing high quality care to patients with
burn injuries through education, research and direct patient care. He has provided care to critical
patients with 10 years experience in the burn outpatient unit, managing the long term care of
patients. He is a member of the speaker bureau and has helped to educate the community, EMS,
Nurses and Physician’s about burn care and also received the Governor’s Recognition Award for
outstanding bumn education throughout Nebraska in 2003.

Special Assistance: RCH wishes to take those steps required to ensure no individual with a
disability is excluded, denied services, segregated, or otherwise treated differently than other
individuals because of the absence of auxiliary aids and services identified in the Americans
with Disabilities Act in order to attend this program. Please contact Rebecca Brown, RN at
rbrown@rphospital.org if there are special accommodations or needs.

Registration: Required by October 3, 2022.

Please call Tracey at 785-527- 6075 or email tmoore@rphospital.org to register.

CNE/IV Therapy 191




Burn Class

Objectives

Identify the depth of the burn injury

Calculate % of burn injury

Identify signs of inhalation injury

Identify care for the different types of burn injury
Agenda

10:00-11:00: Depth & percentage of injury
11:00-12:00: Signs of inhalation injury
12:00-1:00: Lunch

1:00 to 2:00: Case Studies

CNE/IV Therapy 192




Eric Jensen
4400 Locust St Roca NE 68430 = (402) 416-5697 = eric.jensen@commonspirit.org

Summary of Qualifications

¢ With 24 years’ experience | am continuing to provide high quality care to patients with burn injuries though
education, research and direct patient care in the inpatient and outpatient setting

e Asa nurse on the floor | have been a part of many admissions and critical patients care along with 10 years'’
experience in the burn outpatient managing the long term care of patients

e As part of the speaker bureau | have helped to educate the community, EMS, Nurses, and Physician’s about burn
care

s In 2003, received Governor Recognition Award for outstanding burn education throughout Nebraska

s Experienced public speaker, who has completed many educational sessions along with two at the ABA Burn
Conference, Statewide EMS Conference, Case study for 3M and KCI

Education
Associate of Science- Nursing . 01/15
Kaplan University, Lincoln, NE
e Overall GPA 3.68
¢ Dean’s List .
Practical Nursing 06/04
Southeast Community College, Lincoln, NE

Professional Experience

CHI Health St. Elizabeth, Lincoln, NE

Regional Burn & Wound Center '

Register Nurse : 01/15-Current
¢ Direct patient care including Critical care of Burn or Wound Patients
s Charge Nurse duties on the Burn unit
e Community Outreach: Burn education to Hospitals, EMS, Nursing schools, and the Public

Director Burn Camp 01/12-Current
o Plan content for 7-18 year old children with burn Injuries '
s Support Campers with emotional trauma from Burn injuries
¢ Promote camp to local fire departments and others interested in the Burn camp

Licensed Practical Nurse . 01/04-01/15
¢ Directed patient care of patients with burns and wounds
e Assisted in the delivery of healthcare through patient assessments, interventions and monitoring
s  Member of the Education council for the Burn Unit

‘Burn Technician 01/98-01/04
e Assisted with Burn and wound Dressing changes alongside the RN
o Cleaned and stocked the Burn treatment rooms
¢ Assisted with Burn admissions in the treatment rooms

Licensures & Certifications
Registered Nurse, RN# 79529, Nebraska Board of Nursing
ABLS, ACLS and PALS Certifications
Speakers Bureau since 2001

CNE/IV Therapy 193




Continuing Nurse Education
Attendance Roster

REPUBLIC COUNTY HOSPITAL - /%’ Q)k 27

PROVIDER NUMBER: It 0057-0338

_APPROVED PROVIDER: Republic County Hospital

AGENCY PRESENTING COURSE: Republic County Hospital

COURSE TITLE: BurnInjury

INSTRUCTOR(S): Eric Jensen, RN ‘ ‘ -

COURSE DATE(S): 10/10/2022
Certificate Name ' Signature 4 Address License Number RN/LPN Hours
| , 3
o E
14-61531-111 RN 3

i

13-7037 10421 BN 3

13-142047-061 RN 3

13-119383-032 RN 3

13-85742-082 RN 3
95737 . RN 3
13"1 54512-102 RN, 3
J s
Page 1 of2

.CNE/IV Therapy 194




PROVIDER NUMBER: It 0057-0338

APPROVED PROVIDER: Republic County Hospital
AGENCY PRESENTING COURSE: Republic County Eos;;ital
COURSE TITLE: BumInjuy .

INSTRUCTOR(S): Eric Jensen, RN

COURSE DATE(S): 10/10/2022

| G%Q&«\« YD

vt nmtn Nsen ’ Sionature

Address License Number RN/LPN Hours

o 13-115510-051 RN 3

13-136139-102 RN 3

13-147285-042 RN 3

13-112417-021 | RN —T—3—l_

5
' 14-100629-032 RN 3
i5

13-53514-022 | RN | 3
55

13-79399-091 RN 3
38

13-111872-101 RN | 3

23-42954-122 | LPN .| 3

35

Page 2 of 2

CNE/IV Therapy 195




REPUBLIC COUNTY HOSPITAL

2420 G STREET

BELLEVILLE, KANSAS 66935

Certifi

cate of Attendance

This is to certify that @

License Number: 13-85742-082

Monday, October 10, 2022

Attended:

Burn Injury

on

Instructed by: Eric Jensen, RN

This course approved for 3 Contact Hours

Republic County Hospital is approved as a provider of
continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board
of Nursing. Contacts hours are applicable for RN and
LPN relicensure KSBN Provider # LT 0057-0338

@ S Tatan it Qe

cca Brown, MSN, RN

Coordinator

CNE/IV Therapy 196




Republic County Hospital

Prograrh: Burn Injury
DATE: October 10, 2022

Please check one: H RN | LPN __EMT Other:

Excellent | Good Fair Poor
Instructor- _ Eric Jensen, RN ;)
Fagility [ ' i
Course handouts E ' /
Audio-visuals -
2 |

Please review the following objectives, then indicate your choice:

Identify the depth of the burn injury Q_Yes
Caleulate % of burn injury | ) Yes
Identify signs of inhalation injury : " _‘}Q_Yes |
Identify care for the different types of bumn injury _Q\“Ye‘s

Do you feel this class will be beneficial to your role in healthcare? _lg_Yes

COMMENTS: . -

"Phepattar Ao Sartaotic Job |
\ZMy vruch NIOL 5?‘70{ Ecies lpctune
&ﬁ@& R€’§( cShen ‘

R:\Educatlon\CNE Classess\Past classes\Burn Class Oct22\eval.doc

__No
__No
___No
___No

___No

CNE/IV Therapy 197




Burn Injury

ABLS Provider Manual (2018). Pham, T., et al. American Burn Association

Rice, Jr, Phillip; Orgill, Dennis (September 23, 2022). Emergency care of moderate and severe
thermal burns in adults. Retrieved online www.uptodate.com Retrieved online October 5, 2022

Lippincott, . Lippincott Nursing Procedures. Available from: Wolters Kluwer, (8th Edition).

Wolters Kluwer Health, 2018

CNE/IV Therapy 198




Boailaeed

Start Burn Patient
- Scene Safe
- Identify Trauma & Clear

S/8 Inkialation
» Sootin alrway |

Intubation
» Oxygénate PT

Place ET Tube
» Secure well

» Place largest tube possible
‘ Circulatory Status .

» Obtain Vitals
» Start IV
* Monitor pulses

-gréaterthan 20%
» Use Rule Palm/Rule of ning

Pre Hospital i Hospital Rates
Age/Years Rate [&] Aduli  2mlLRxkgx % TBSA
4 Children 3ml LR x kgx % TBSA
Infant  3mlLR x kgx % TBSA
Plus DSLR at Maintenance Rate

Electrical

Allages  4miLR x kgx % TBSA
1/2 in first 8hrs

Keep Pt Warm ) : , 4 Pain Management:
Call for Transfer % e ‘Dressing Changes
Monitor Vitals =~ & : S 2 Tetanus Status
Treat Pain : 158 Follow-up Care







Republic County Hospital

CNE Planning Work Sheet

Planning (include reason for class; selection of jnstructor; cost):

Surgery Director request for Independent Study

Behavioral objectives reviewed & appropriate: WL Yes;

No — Changes made:

Appropriate after changes: Yes

Instructor Credentials: RN; X Other: Independent study writtén by well
credentialed author

Vitae on file: X
Bibliography relevant and up to date: _X Yes;

~ No — Changes made:

Evaluation form developed including: X Yes

a. achievement of the objectives
b. expertise of the presenter

Sheet completed by R. Brown, RN

K:\Education\CNE Classess\Independent study\CNE planning work sheet.docx

CNE/IV Therapy 201 -




Republic County Hospital

Independent Study
- Credit Apptoval

Program Title: ‘@Q &@c};\p\ “O\MN - D222

Date: 5 | A

1~ Objectives reviewed and appropriate to nurse development

23222

) .
-,/ Agénda/components of independent study appropriate to nurse development

Pre-approved for independent study by a National Accreditation Agency or another state board
QJ'\»éDS’“

of nursing?

J_Yes, for la}’l hours CNE G ©pocd gg

- No, see pilot study

L\E
Qb&@g

Participants

Time Required

Objectives Met?

Evaluation Done

eyl

L

\ o’
Y

[ &)
T

L~

Total Time
+ By #of
Participants

\A{ost er Completed

v Reviewed program evaluations

Comments:

&[é_;;:ertlﬁcates Issued 5/ 3) / AN

CNE Codrdinator S1@@\®Sﬁ\@w

~ K:\Education\CNE Classess\Independént study\Independenf study pilot test.doc

CNE/IV Therapy 202




- Pediatric Pain Management

Objectives:
1. Jdentify strategies for assessing pain in children.
2. Discuss nonpharmacologw pain interventions for children.
3. Describe pharmacolo gic pain interventions for children.

Instructox:  This is an independent study course developed by Amencan Journal of Nursing.
Authors Sharon Wrona, CNP, PMGT-BD, CPNP, PMHS, AP-PMN, FAAN and Michelle
Czarnecki, MSN, PMGT-BC, CPNP, AP-PMN. Rebecca Brown wﬂl oversee independent study
completion. :

Target Audience: RNs and LPNs

Location and Class Time:
Republic County Hospital
Belleville, KS 66935

You may schedule a time to complete this independent study from March 21, 2022 to
March 31, 2022 by contacting the RCH Education Department.

Cost:
$6.00
No charge to Republic County Hospital staff

Contact Hours: 1.4 (previously approved by the ANA , California Bbard CEP17219) for
1:4 contact hours with a passing score of 80% or higher on the post exam).

Republic County Hospital as an approved provider of'conﬁnuing education by the Kansas State
Board of Nursing, presents this course offering for 1.4 contact hours for RN/LPN rehcensure
Kansas State Board of Nursing Provider #L.T0057-0338.

Registration/Contact: To register for the above class, please call Rebecca Brown at
785-527-6063. Course must be completed by 12 noon March 31st, 2022.

* K:\Educatiom\CNE Classess\independent study\Ped paim\independent study Flier.doc
CNE/IV Therapy 203




Republic County Hospital
Program: “Pediatric Pain Management”

DATE: March 21 — March 31, 2022

Please check one:

& g RN LPN  Other: 4

Excellent | Good Fair Poor

Instructor . | Independent n/a nla  |n/a nla
Study :
Facility \ 4 {,(
Course handouts \ |
Appropriateness \ '
of Course to your
role \QQ P

Please review the following objectlves, then indicate if the learning obxectlves were
met or not:

1. Identify strategies for assessing pain in children. : _Lg[es __No

2. Discuss nonpharmacologic pain interventions for children. ‘ J_%_/Yes __No

3. Describe pharmacologic pain interventions for children. iXYes __No
Do you feel this class will be beneficial to your role in healthcare? __ges ___No

COMMENTS:

N SaloD
Lkl acttien - 29*5“{%’
Drppreciose— DEE ST *“) S=c @Q&*O‘%Lu&“

KA\Education\CNE Classess\independent study\Ped pain\ped pain evaluation.dac CNE/IV Therapy 204




i

Al 229

REPUBLIC COUNTY HOSPITAL
Continuing Nurse Education

‘ |
PROVIDER NUMBER: It 005 7-03\33
! APPROVED PROVIDER: Repubhf County Hospztal '
AGENCY PRESENIING COURSE:: Republxc County Eospztal
C OURSE ‘TITLE:. Pediatric Pain Manaaement ‘

. INSTRUCTOR(S): Rebecca Brown, RN MSN

Indep Study

Attendanca Rosz‘er :

'.@WL%Q B

\COURSEDATE(S): 3812022 ., "

— . Licéﬂse'?ffumbéf "".RN'/LPN'HOZI?'S %c’cﬁ:&j

13-68689-062 . RN 1.4 '
4153t | RN ) 14 1 22
farosroz | RN T4 oo
13-142047-061 RN | 14 |-
3119383-032 | RN 1.4
13-119383-0; &
13-152855-011 RN | 1.4
13153597-072. |- RN~ | 14 | <
137-111764-032 RN 1'.4 s
 13-155210 RN 1.4 -
. - R A

Pagelof2

CNE/IV Therapy 205



PROVIDER NUMBER: It 0057-0338
APPROVED PROWDER, Republzc Counfy Eospztal
AGENCY PRESENTING CO URSE: ‘Republic County Hospital

/% Uk%% A

C’OURSE TITLE Pedlamc Pain Manacrement 4 : Ao @&—"77
INSTRUCTOR(S): RebeccaBromRN MS@, ‘
COURSE DATE(S): 331202 ~ DX 3
e R — ; — =
I~y SRR - e S [ . i . &
Certificate Name Signature : . . "~ Address . - . . License Number RIN/LPN Hours \%u_’i—_’
i T 15-153885 RN |14 ] o\

- -05 RN - 1.4
1311551QQ5.1 R /XSB

- - RN [ 14 |,
T3-1z7148062_ | BN |14 i

15147285042 | RN | 14 | on

15-854971-061 RN | 14 [a\

TTaenia02 | RN | 14| o

13140359072 | RN | 1.4 @

13-79399-091 RN | 14 | o

A0l | RN |14 ] gy
"Page2of2

CNE/IV Therapy 206




REPUBLIC COUNTY HOSPITAL

2420 G STREET
BELLEVILLE, KANSAS 66935

Certificate of Attendance
ThlS isto cemfy that

License Number: 13 SiSM ﬁ(\

Attended:

Pediatric Pain Management - Independent Study

on -
Thursday, March 31, 2022

Instructed by: Rebecca Brown, RN, MSN - Indep. Study

This course approved for -1.4 Contact Hours

Rejyublic County.HOSpital is approved as a provider of Q | V\“\S} g \‘ Qz\

continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board
of Nursing. Contacts hours are applicable for RN and ebecca Brown, MSN
LPN relicensure KSBN Provider # LT 0057-0338 Coordinator

CNE/IV Therapy 207




6

American Nurse Journal

Volume 16, Number 3

An individualized,
multimodal, and
interprofessional

approach is key for

SUCCess.

By Sharon Wrona, DNP, PMGT-BC, CPNP, PMHS,
AP-PMN, FAAN, and Michelle L. Czarnecki,
MSN, PMGT-BC, CPNP, AP-PMN

ACCORDING to the Healthcare Cost and Uti-
lization Project, more than 5,000,000 children
in the United States had a hospital stay in
2017. Many of them experienced some type
of pain. Pain has an immense impact on the
mind and body. In addition to the physical
sensation of pain, effects include emotion-
al suffering, pulmonary complications, de-
creased mobility, poor sleep, immune impair-
ment, reduced quality of life, economic costs,
and a potential for developing persistent
(chronic) pain syndromes. Despite advances in
care, many children continue to experience
significant pain because of undertreatment and
inadequate pain management after surgery.
Sparing children the short- and long-term ef-
fects of pain requires early recognition and
treatment. "

Nurses are critical to pain prevention, recog-
nition, and treatment in children. They’re with
patients more than any other healthcare pro-
fessionals and have the opportunity to assess
pain throughout their shift. When pain is diag-
nosed, the nurse can start planning which in-
terventions are most appropriate for individual
patients. After interventions are implemented,
the nurse should reassess the patient’s pain
and response to treatment to evaluate interven-
tion effectiveness.

Nurses have identified barriers (many out-

CNEMyAinerappi28e.com




Pain scales have been developed for
various pediatric populations. Nurses
should select scales that are valid, reli-
able, user friendly, and easy to incor-
porate into practice. No matter which
scale is used, re-assessment after inter-
ventions is a necessary component of
the pain management plan.

Neonates and infants N
Premature infants, starting around 20
weeks gestation, can perceive and re-
spond to pain. To conserve energy,
they frequently show a less-robust
physical response compared to full-
term infants (for example, they are
more likely to close their eyes instead
of grimacing and often have lower
oxygen saturation levels), This unique
response requires a scalé specific to
premature infants,

e The Premature Infant Pain Profile
(PIPP), although less commonly
used now because it’s valid only in
premature infants < 37 weeks ges-
tation, is well equipped to measure
pain in this patient population. The
Neonatal Pain, Agitation and Seda-

tion Scale (N-PASS) includes a seda-

tion assessment so that only one
scale is needed for infants 23 weeks
gestation through 100 days of life.
The N-PASS scores pain/agitation
from 0 to 10 and sedation from -10
to 0.

¢ Scales appropriate for full-term and
older infants include the Neonatal
Infant Pain Scale, the FLACC (Face,
Legs, Activity, Cry, Consolability)
scale, Child Facial Coding System,
CRIES (Crying, Requires increased
oxygen administration, Increased vi-
tal signs, Expression, Sleeplessness)
score, Children's Hospital of Eastern

Ontario Pain Scale, Riley Infant Pain
Scale, and Children and Infants
Postoperative Pain Scale.

.Toddiers

When possible, self-report scales are
preferred over behavioral or observa-
tional scales in this patient population.
When children communicate pain with
words (usually by age 3 to 4 years),
many can self-report using faces
scales.

s Several self-report faces scales exist,
each with varying levels of validity
and reliability. These scales require
the child to point to the face that
best depicts their pain level. Exam-
ples include Faces Pain Scale-Re-
vised (FPS-R) and Wong-Baker
FACES pain rating scale. Nurses
should use the same scale with a
child rather than alternating be-
tween scales. The FPS:R has been
used with smartphone technology
with some success.

School age and adolescents

Many older children (8 years and older)
can self-report pain by usinga 0 to 10
scale, .

¢ Numeric rating scales are easy to
use and may be verbal (Verbal Nu-
merical Rating Scale) or written (Vi-
sual Analogue Scale).

Children with cognitive
developmental delays

These children are at increased risk for
poor pain assessment and manage-
ment, Although their pain response
may be diminished, no studies have
demonstrated a decrease in pain sen-
sation. Voepel-Lewis found that when

self-report isnt possible, facial cues are.

highly sensitive indicators of postpro-
cedure and postoperative pain. Several
scales exist, each with varying levels of
reliability and validity.

& The revised FLACC (r-FLACC) has
been validated in children from age
4 to 19 years. Using the original
FLACC scale as a base, additional in-
dicators (such as head banging and
breath holding) were added, along
with space for parents to document
any features unique to their child.

o Another helpful tool is the Individu-
alized Numeric Rating Scale. Care-
givers are asked to assign a number
to typical pain behavior seen in
their child. The scale must be peri-
odically updated because pain signs
may change as the child ages.

Intubated and meachanically
ventilated children

Very few validated scales exist for this
patient population.

s The COMFORT scale, which Van Dijk
and colleagues demonstrated to be
reliable and valid, is one of the
more commonly used scales in this
population. It uses six behavioral
and two physiological metrics for a
total score from 8 to 40,

¢ - An American Society of Pain Man-
agement Nursing position state-
ment recommends using self-report
if possible, evaluating potential
sources of pain, assessing patient
behaviors, incorporating physiolog-
ic measures (keeping in mind that
they may not be specific to pain),
soliciting input from parents, and
assuming pain is present if the child
is undergoing a painful procedure
or has known reasons for pain.

side of their control) to pediatric pain man-
agement. Czarnecki and colleagues’ 2019 mul-
tisite study of barriers to pediatric pain man-
agement found commonalities across the
United States. The most frequently identified
batriers included inadequate provider orders,
insufficient time to provide pain medication
before a procedure, insufficient premedication
orders before procedures, and low priority
given to pain management by medical staff.
Regardless of role or setting, nurses can be
empowered to overcome these barriers and
provide optimal pain management. For exam-

MyAmericanNurse.com

ple, they can use the electronic health record
to develop order sets that include analgesic
options, reducing barriers to adequate and
timely orders. At a system level, nurses can
collaborate with interprofessional teams on
quality improvement projects to remove barri-
ers that are out of the nurse’s control but with- -
in the area of other professionals’ work. In the
Czarnecki study, concerns about addiction,
limitations in nurses’ ability to assess pain,
and a low priority given to pain by nursing
staff were rated among the least frequently
identified barriers.

March 2021

AmerieNENvrERerapy209 7




Nonpharmacologic pain management interventions should be
age-appropriate.

infants

9

(-]

o

Breastfeeding .

Oral sucrose

Non-nutritive sucking

Swaying (rocking the infant back and forth)
Swaddling

Toddlers -

Bubbles, toys, books, or other objects for distraction

Comfort holds (secure hugging by a parent or caregiver that helps
the child feel safe and secure, decreases movement, and allows the
parent to appropriately participate in the procedure)

School-age children

L

(]

Comfort holds during procedures
Video games, toys, books, bubbles, and other objects for distraction

Adolescents

e

8

Whenever possible, allow adolescents to use their independence,

make choices, and apply coping skills they've previously acquired.
Adolescents may want more privacy or social support from peers

and others, compared to other age groups.

They may prefer technology (phone or laptop) for distraction.

Assessment

Historically, pain intensity numbers were
viewed as key to patient assessment, and
pain was considered the Sth vital sign. Al-
though this was interpreted as requiring a
pain score along with other vital signs, a
true pain assessment should capture more
than just a number. It should describe the
patient’s pain experience, including its na-
ture, impact, and context. Parental input can
help differentiate pain from anxiety or other

American Nurse Jouwrnal  Volume 16, Number 3

sources of distress in pediatric patients.

Pain intensity ratings are one piece of a
pain assessment, but function is more impor-
tant. Among adult patients, pain intensity
ratings are being replaced with multidimen-
sional pain assessments. For example, the
Clinically Aligned Pain Assessment Tool
guides the conversation between nurse and
patient, focusing on general comfort, treat-
ment effectiveness, whether pain is getting
better or worse, activity level, and sleep
quality. The tool can be adapted for use with
children. Not all categories may apply to all
pediatric patients, so the tool should be in-
dividualized and include parental input.

When used, pain intensity ratings should
be gathered with developmentally appropri-
ate, reliable, and validated tools. (See Choos-
ing the right pain scale.)

Treating pain in children and adolescents
Pain management should take an individu-
alized, multimodal (nonpharmacologic and
pharmacologic), and interprofessional ap-
proach. The Pain Management Best Practices
Inter-Agency Task Force identified gaps where
multimodal, nonopioid treatment options
were underused, especially in acute care
settings. This report suggests the need for
more guidelines, including a multimodal
approach.

Nonpharmacologic approaches
Nonpharmacologic approaches to pain treat-
ment should be tailored to the developmental
level of the child and their individual needs.
Treatment plans should be developed to ef-
fectively manage the child’s pain with an
overarching goal of improving function. In-
volving the patient and family in treatment
planning is essential for developing realistic
expectations and goals.

The Joint Commission standards encourage
hospitals to provide nonpharmacologic pain
treatment and monitor intervention outcomes.
Frequently, acute pain, especially in the hos-
pital, is treated with a combination of non-
pharmacologic and pharmacologic options. In
contrast, when working with children and
adolescents with persistent pain, nonpharma-
cologic treatment options frequently are the
mainstay of pain treatment.

Nonpharmacologic pain interventions can
be categorized as behavioral, cognitive,

CNE/NX,AhiaRyRie.com




restorative, and complementary. A child life
therapist can work with a child before a pro-
cedure or surgery to help facilitate therapeutic
play and teach bebavioral and cognitive tech-
niques they can use throughout their lives to
manage pain or uncomfortable situations.
These techniques include deep breathing,
self-coping skills, guided imagery, and virtual
reality. In addition, music and reduced stimu-
lation can create a soothing environment.
(See Age-appropriate options.)

Restorative therapies, such as physical ther-
apy, occupational therapy, and therapeutic
recreation, can help restore a child to optimal
function when they're experiencing acute
pain. These therapies are essential for chil-
dren with persistent pain.

According to Brittner and colleagues, com-
plementary and integrative health modalities,
such as massage and acupuncture, are show-
ing some promising effects when used as part
of a multimodal approach to treat various
types of pain in children. Their evidence sup-
ports the safe use of acupuncture in children,
and findings suggest this type of integrative
approach can be beneficial for improving in-
fant colic, headaches, dysmenorrhea, and oth-
er types of pain.

For children of all ages, parental involve-
ment to provide comfost and reassurance is
beneficial to both the parent and the child.
However, nurses must recognize when par-
ent or caregiver stress and anxiety may be
upsetting the child. When that’s the case,
nurses can help by providing open channels
of communication, sharing information, and
involving the parent in their child’s care
(bathing, comfort holds, distraction) when
possible.

Pharmacologic approaches
A variety of medication classes can be used to
treat pain in children. The medication selec-
tion should consider the nature (for example,
physical or emotional, acute or persistent)
and intensity of the pain, its characteristics
(for example, sharp, dulD), and duration. -
Nonopioid analgesics. Nonopioid medica-
tions, such as acetaminophen (I.V,, oral, or rec-
taD and nonsteroidal anti-inflammatory drugs
(NSAIDs) can be used to treat most types of
pain. NSAIDs are recommended for mild to
moderate pain and as part of a multimodal
treatment plan for severe pain when using

MyAmericanNurse.com

Is it on the FDA flush fist? Take your
_ ; medicineto a
S  drug take-back
? location.
Followthe FDA  Immediately flush your . Do this promptly
instructions for medicine in the toflet. for FDA flush list
disposing of medicine  Scratch out all personal - drugs, -

in the household trash.  info on the bottle and
_recycle or throw It away.

Reducing opioid misuse requires appropriate use for pain control as
well as safety precautions in the home,

Appropriate opioid use

in a study by Miech and colleagues, a legitimate opioid presctiption
predicted future opioid misuse in 12th grade students who had little
experience with illegal drug use and strongly disapproved of marijuana
use, This increased risk of future opioid misuse must be considered
when weighing the risks and benefits of prescribing these medications
to children. Opioids are appropriately indicated and necessary in some
cases, but if pain can be adequately treated without them, they shouid-
n't be prescribed, Nurses have a duty to discuss the risks and benefits
of any treatment modality with patients and their families, and to in-
form providers of any identified risks.

Safe opioid storage and disposal

About 70% of the opioids misused by children are prescribed or ob-

tained for free from a relative or friend. A study of U.S. Poison Control

Centers by Allen and colleagues found that an average of 32 calls a day

are received for unintentional opioid ingestion by children (more than

50% are age 5 years or younget).
When educating patients and families about opioid safety, nurses

should include the foliowing points:

e Secure medications in a locked location. Many retail pharmacies sell
medication lockboxes.

* To ensure no medications are missing, keep a log of the number of
opioids on hand and given to the child.

® Be on the lookout for opioid seekers, including family members,
friends, neighbors, and even strangers, who might want to steal un-
used medications from the home. o

e Transition from opioids to over-the-counter (OTC) pain medications
when opioids are no longer needed. For many minor surgeries or in-
juries, OTC medications may be sufficient to manage pain.

& Unused medications can be disposed of in a medication drop box
using a medication disposal bag, taken to a drug take-back pro-
gram, or disposed of in household trash after Mixing thern with
undesirable substances such as coffee grounds or cat litter. Nurses
cafi direct families to visit the U.S. Food and Drug Administration
website for more information fda.gov/Drugs/ResourcesForYou/
Consumers/BuyingUsingMedicineSafely/EnsuringSafeUseofMedicine/
SafeDisposalofMedicines/ucm186187.htm.

March2021  AmeBNEHIMUIRAIBUAKE 9




Regardless of administration

stronger analgesics such as opioids. Even in the
postoperative setting, scheduled acetamino-
phen and NSAIDs may provide enough analge-
sia for children to tolerate pain. When any
medication (including overthe-counter [OTC]
drugs) is administered to a child, doses must be
determined based on weight and age. Some
OTCs may be contraindicated for children with
certain clinical issues, such as liver or kidney
disease and bleeding disorders. Nurses should
screen for contraindications and teach parents
and caregivers how to use nonopioid anal-
gesics appropriately to help manage their
child’s pain.

Adjuvant medications (such as tricyclic

antidepressants) or anticonvulsants (such as

_gabapentin) can be used
for persistent neuropathic
pain. A study by Baxter

route, nurses should closely  and colleagues indicates

that these medications

monitor children receiving
opioids for side effects and
adverse reactions, including
increased sedation, which
may be the first sign of
impending opioid-induced
respiratory depression.
Nurses should take
immediate action to

can help reduce opioid
use to treat postoperative
pain in pediatric patients.
Some pediatric organiza-
tions use low-dose keta-
mine or lidocaine infu-
sions to help manage

acute and neuropathic

pain. Benzodiazepines
can be used in the acute
setting to treat muscle
spasms; however, these

per provider orders.

medications can cause se-

decrease or stop the opioid  dation and should be

used with extreme cau-
tion when given in con-
junction with opioids or
other sedating medications. Medications
such as baclofen or tizanidine, which cause
less sedation, may be more appropriate for
pediatric patients.

Opioid analgesics. Opioids are reserved
for managing severe pain. When prescribed
for children, opioids are given orally or in-
travenously. The oral route is easy and inex-
pensive, and most short-acting opioids are
available in a liquid or tablet form. Some
oral opioids, such as hydrocodone, are
available only as a combination medication
(for example, hydrocodone with acetamino-
phen). When using combination medica-
tions that have acetaminophen, nurses must
educate parents and caregivers about the

10 American Nurse Jowrnal  Volume 16, Number 3

maximum daily dose of acetaminophen for
their child to prevent unintentional over-
dose. Nurses should explain to parents that
some cold and flu OTC products contain
acetaminophen,

1.V. opioids are used for children who
can't tolerate oral formulations and may be
administered as an infusion or an intermit-
tent LV. push as needed. 1.V. opioids also
can be given via a patient-controlled analge-
sia (PCA) pump, which allows patients to
safely and effectively administer small
amounts of opioid within a specified time
period. Some pediatric organizations also
use PCA pumps for authorized agent-con-
trolled analgesia. This modality allows au-
thorized and educafed nurses and/or care-
givers to activate the PCA button for children
who can’t do so themselves. A 2015 study by
Czarnecki and colleagues showed this
modality to be safe and effective, although it
may not increase parent satisfaction.

Regardless of administration route, nurses
should closely monitor children receiving opi-
oids for side effects and adverse reactions, in-
cluding increased sedation, which may be the
first sign of impending opioid-induced respi-
ratory depression. Nurses should take imme-
diate action to decrease or stop the opioid per
provider orders. Common opioid side effects
include nausea, pruritus, drowsiness, and con-
stipation. Managing side effects is key to pa-
tient comfort. If medications are needed to
control side effects, the least sedating option
should be used. (See Safe opioid use, storage,
and disposal)

Regional techniques. Regional anesthesia
techniques—such as epidural catheters, spinal
anesthesia, peripheral nerve catheters, para-
vertebral catheters, and blocks—can improve
postoperative pain control in children and re-
duce opioid use. Many of these techniques,
which are being more widely used in the pe-
diatric population, use local anesthetics and
other medications that work directly on the
nerves to help block the pain. Local anesthet-
ics are nonsedating and have fewer side ef-
fects than opioid medications.

Procedural pain control. Crtically ill in-
fants experience between seven and 17
painful procedures per day during neonatal
intensive care unit stay. A variety of local and
topical anesthetics can be used in conjunction
with nonpharmacologic pain management

CNE(MhbaeanMdte.com




techniques to help comfort children during a
procedure. Local anesthetic creams, patches,
injections, or sprays should be offered to chil-
dren before a painful procedure unless con-
traindicated. Involving parents or caregivers to
help with comfort holds can help reduce
stress and anxiety during a procedure.

Make a difference A

Pain management in children continues to be
suboptimal, but nurses can make a difference.
Their individualized pain assessment using
age-appropriate tools, administration of phar-
macologic and nonpharmacologic pain treat-
ments, optimal pain management advocacy,
and patient and family education are key to
relieving pediatric patients’ pain and improv-
ing their quality of life. AN

Sharon Wrona is director of comprehensive pain and palliative
care services at Nationwide Children's Hospital in Columbus,
Ohio, Michelle Czarnecki is a pain management advanced prac-
tice nurse at Children’s Hospital of Wisconsin Jane B. Pettit Pain
and Headache Center in Milwaukee,

References

Allen JD, Casavant MJ, Spiller HA, Chounthirath T, Hodges
NL, Smith GA. Prescription opioid exposures among
children and adolescents in the United States: 2000-2015.
Pediatrics. 2017;139(4):e20163382. doi:10.1542/peds.2016
-3382 ’

American Pain Society. Principles of Analgesic Use in
the Treatment of Acute Pain and Cancer Pain. 5th ed,
Glenview, IL: American Pain Society; 2003.

Baxter KJ, Hafling J, Sterner J, et al. Effectiveness of
gabapentin as a postoperative analgesic in children un-
dergoing appendectomy. Pediatr Surg Int. 2018;34(7):
769-74. doi:10.1007/500383-018-4274-9.

Brittner M, Le Perte]l N, Gold MA. Acupuncture in pedi-
atrics. Curr Probl Pediatr Adolesc Health Cere. 2016;
46(6):179-83. doi:10.1016/j.cppeds.2015.12.005

Czarnecki ML, Hainsworth KR, Jacobson AA, Simpson
PM, Weisman SJ. Opioid administration for postoperative
pain in children with developmental delay. Parent and
nurse satisfaction. 7 Pedictr Surg Nuss. 2015;4(1):15-27.

Czamecki ML, Guastelio A, Turner HN, Wrona SK,
Hainsworth KR. Barriers to pediatric pain management:
A brief report of results from a multisite study. Pain
Manag Nurs. 2019;20(4):305-8. doi:10.1016/j.pmin.2019
.01.008

Crellin DJ, Harrison D, Santamaria N, Babl FE. Systemat-
ic review of the Face, Legs, Activity, Cry and Consolabil-
ity scale for assessing pain in infants and children: Is it
reliable, valid, and feasible for use? Pain. 2015;156(11);
2132-51. doi:10.1097/].pain.0000000000000305

Cruz MD, Fernandes AM, Oliveira CR. Epidemiology of
painful procedures performed in neonates: A systematic

MyAmericanNurse.com

review of observational studies. Eur J Pain. 2016;20(4):
489-98. doi:10.1002/ejp.757

Davies RB. Pain in children with Down syndrome: As-
sessment and intervention by parents. Pain Manag Nurs,
2010;11(4):259-67. doi:10.1016/].pmn.2009,09.003

Di Maggio T, Clark LM, Czamecki ML, Wrona §. Pedi-
atric pain management, In: American Society for Pain

Management Nursing. Gore Curriculum for Pain Man-
agement Nursing. 3rd ed. St. Louis, MO: Elsevier, Inc;

2017; 349-423.

Donaldson G, Chapman CR. Pain management s more
than just a number {research statement]. Salt Lake City:
University of Utah Health/Department of Anesthesiology;
2013. faculty.utah.edu/u0274011-GARY_W_DONALDSON/
research/index.hml

Healtheare Cost and Utilization Project. HCUP Fast
Facts—Trends in inpatient stays. May 2020. http://bit.ly/
38fkiaT .

Herr K, Coyne PJ, Ely E, Gélinas C, Manwosren RCB.
Pain Assessment in the patient unable to self-report:
Clinical practice recommendations in support of the
ASPMN 2019 position statement. Pain Manag Nurs.
2019;20(5):404-17. doi:10.1016/j.pmn.2019.07.005

Hummel P, Puchalski M, Creech SD, Weiss MG. Clinical
reliability and validity of the N-PASS: Neonatal pain, agi-
tation and sedation scale with prolonged pain. [ Perina-
iol. 2008;28(1):55-60. doi:10.1038/s].jp.7211861

TLalloo C, Stinson JN, Assessment and treatment of pain
in children and adolescents. Best Pract Res Clin Rbeuma-
tol. 2014;28(2):315-30. doi:10.1016/j.berh.2014.05.003

Lundeberg S. Pain in children—Are we accomplishing
the optimal pain treatment? Paediatr Anaesth. 2015;
25(1):83-92. doi:10.1111/pan.12539

Miech R, Johnston L, O’'Malley PM, Keyes KM, Heard X:
Prescription opioids in adolescence and future opioid
misuse. Pediatrics. 2015;136(5):€1169-77. doi:10.1542/
peds.2015-1364

Stevens B, Johnston C, Petryshen P, Taddio A. Premature
infant pain profile: Development and initial validation.
Clin J Pain. 1996;12(1%:13-22. doi:10.1097/00002508-
199603000-00004

Sun T, West N, Ansermino JM, et al. A smartphone ver-
sion of the Faces Pain Scale-revised and the Color Ana-
log Scale for postoperative pain assessment in children.
Paediatr Anaesth. 2015;25(12):1264-73. doi:10.1111/
pan. 12790

van Dijk M, Peters JWB, van Deventer P, Tibboe!l D. The
COMFORT behavior scale: A tool for assessing pain and
sedation in infants. Am _J Nurs. 2005;105(1):33-6.

Voepel-Lewis T. The ongoing quandaries of behav-
ioral pain assessment in children with neurocognitive
impairment. Dev Med Child Neurol. 2011;53(2):106-7.
doi:10.1111/5.1469-8749.2010.03845.x

Wilson CA, Sommerfield D, Drake-Brockman TFE, La-
grange C, Ramgolam A, von Ungern-Sternberg BS. A
prospective audit of pain profiles following general and
urological surgery in children, Paediatr Anaesth. 2017,
27(11):1155-64. doi:10.1111/pan.13256

March 2021

AmeGHE/ NuTBeRRYAES 11




POST TEST Pediatric pam management

Earn contact hour credlt onlme at myamencannurse.com/pedxatric-pam-management

Provider accreditation

Accreditation,

Please mark the correct answer
online,

1. A 16-year-old patient is receiving
mechanical ventilation, Which tool
would be most appropriate for assess-
ing pain?

a. COMFORT scale

b. FLACC scale

¢. Child Facial Coding System

d. Children and infants Pain Scale

2. A 10-year-old child with cognitive
developmental delays is admitted
with pessible appendicitis. Which tool
would be most appropriate for assess-
ing pain?

a. Riley Pain Score

b. CRIES Score

c. Children and Infants Pain Scale

d. Revised FLACC

3. At what week of gestation do in-
fants typically begin to perceive and
respond to pain?

a. 15

b.20

c 25

d.30

4. A 2-year-old child needs a naso-
gastric tube to be placed. Which of the
following would be an effective strat-
egy for easing discomfort?
a. Allowing the child to play with a
favorite doll
b. Administering oral sucrose
¢. Swaddling the child before the
procedure starts

d. Providing a complex video game

N Contact hours: 14
The American Nurses Association is accredited as a provider
of nursing continuing professional development by the
American Nurses Credentialing Center’s Commission on

5. Swaying would be an appropriate
nonpharmacologic pain management
strategy for a child who is

a. 11 months old.
b. 42 months old.
¢. 12 years old.
d. 16 years old.

6. An example of restorative therapy

a. virtual reality.

b. acupuncture.

C. massage.

d. physical therapy.

7. Anexample of a cognitive tech-
nique to reduce pain s

a. physical therapy.

b. occupational therapy.

¢. guided imagery.

d. deep massage.

8. Which of the following statements
about the use of nonsteroidal anti-in-
flammatory drugs {NSAIDs) for reliev-
ing pain in children is correct?
a. NSAIDs can be used in children
with bleeding disorders,
b. NSAID dosages should be stan-
dardized for all ages.
¢. NSAIDs are recommended for
mild to moderate pain.
d. NSAIDs should not be used in
conjunction with opioids.

12 American Nurse Journal . Volume 16, Number 3

ANA is approved by the California Board of Registered Nurs-
ing, Provider Number CEP17219.

Post-test passing score is 80%.
Expiration: 3/1/24

9. Which of the following statements
about the use of benzodiazepines for
relieving pain in children is correct?

a. They cause sedation..

b. They do not cause sedation,

c. They are contraindicated for
muscle spasms.

d. They are best used in conjunc-
tion with opioids.

10. Which of the following statements
about the use of opioids for relieving
pain in children is correct?

a. A patient-controlled analgesia
pump should not be used to ad-
minister LV. opioids.

b. A patient-controlled analgesia
pump can be safely used to ad-
minister LV. opioids,

¢. Opioids should only be adminis-
tered LV. in children.

d. Opioids should only be adminis-
tered orally in children,

11, Instructions for the safe disposal
of unused opioids include all of the
following except
a. flush down the toilet or a sink
drain, )
b. mix with coffee grounds and
then put in household trash.
¢. return to a drug take-back pro-
gram.

d. deposit in a medication drop
box.

CNFANIRERRN 4 dom




POST-TEST o Pediatric pain managément

Earn contact hour credit online at myamericannurse.com/pediatric-pain-management

Provider accreditation

The American Nurses Association is accredited as a provider
of nursing continuing professional development by the
American Nurses Credentialing Center’s Commission on

Accreditation.

Please mark the correct answer
online,

1. A 16-year-old patient is receiving
mechanical ventilation, Which tool
would be most appropriate for assess-

in in?
@COMFORT scale

b. FLACC scale
c. Child Facial Coding System
d. Children and Infants Pain Scale

2. A 10-year-old:child with cognitive
developmental delays is admitted
with possible appendicitis. Which tool
would be most appropriate for assess-
ing pain?

a. Riley Pain Score

b. CRIES Score

c. Children and Infants Pain Scale
vised FLACC

3. Atwhat week of gestation do in-
fants typically begin to perceive and
respond to pain?
a5
(5h
c 25
d.30

4. A 2-year-old child needs a naso-
gastric tube to be placed. Which of the
following would be an effective strat-

eg asing discomfort?
a, Mlowing the child to play with a
favorite doll

b. Administering oral sucrose

¢. Swaddling the child before the
procedure starts

d. Providing a complex video game

12  American Nurse Journal

Contact hours: 14

5. Swaying would be an appropriate
nonpharmacologic pain management

strategy for a child who is
@j months old.
b. 42 months old,

c. 12 years old.
d. 16 years old.

6. An example of restorative therapy

is )
a. virtual reality.
b. acupuncture.

qassage.
hysical therapy.

7. Anexample of a cognitive tech-
nique to reduce pain is

a. physical therapy.

b. occupational therapy.
uided imagery.

d. deep massage.

8. Which of the following statements
about the use of nonsteroidal anti-in-
flammatory drugs (NSAIDs) for reliev-
ing pain in children is correct?
a. NSAIDs can be used in children
with bleeding disorders,
b. NSAID dosages should be stan-
dardized for all ages.
@NSAIDS are recommended for
mild to moderate pain.

d. NSAIDs should not be used in
conjunction with opioids.

Volume 16, Number 3

==

L

ANA is approved by the California Board of Registered Nurs-
ing, Provider Number CEP17219,

Post-test passing 'score is 80%.
Expiration: 3/1/24

9. Which of the following statements
about the use of benzodiazepines for

relieving pain in children is correct?
ey‘ cause sedation.
b. They do not cause sedation.
c. They are contraindicated for
muscle spasms.

d. They are best used in conjunc-
tion with opioids.

10. Which of the following statements
about the use of opioids for telieving
pain in children is correct?

a. A patient-controlled analgesia
pump should not be used to ad-
naigister LV. opioids.

atient»controlled analgesia
pump can be safely used to ad-
minister LV. opioids.

¢. Opioids should only be adminis-
tered LV. in children.

d. Opioids should only be adminis-
tered orally in children.

11. Instructions for the safe disposal
of unused opioids include all of the
following except
! flush down the toilet or a sink
T drain.
b. mix with coffee grounds and
then put in household trash.
c. return to a drug take-back pro-
gram,
d. deposit in a medication drop
box.

CNI/AMERSEARK A om




Bibliography

References

Alen B, Casavant M, Spifler HA, Chousthisath T, Hodges
ML, Smith GA. Prescription opfoid exposures among
children and sdolescents in the United States: 2000-2015.
FPediairicz. 201 F13%(4pe20103562. dair1(L1542/peds. 20148
-3382

American Pain Soclety. Prineiples of Analgesic Use in
the Treatment of Acute Pain and Cancer Pain. 5th ed.
Glenview, I American Pain Society; 2003.

Baxter K], Hafling §, Sterner J, et al. Bffectivenesy of
gabapentin a3 4 postoperative analpesic i children une
dergoing appendectomy. Pediatr Sterg Fnt, J0IR3EH 71
760-74. dot ). 1007/s00383-018-4274-9,

Brittnier M, Le Pertel N, Gold MA. Acupurnctuse in pedi-
atrics. Curr Probl Peclinty Adolese Health Care. 2016,
4600):179-83. doi1). 1016/ .cppeds.2015.124005

Czarnecki ML, Hainsworth KR, Jacobson AA, Simpson
PM, Weisman 8. Opioid administrasion for postoperative
pain in children with developmental delay. Parent and
nurse setisfaction. J Pediatr Surg Muess. 2015:401%15-27.

Czarnecki ML, Guastello &, Turner HN, Wiona SK,
Hainsworth KR, Baniers 1o pediatic pain management:
A brief report of esults from & muldsite study. Poix
Manag Nusrs. 201%,2004):305-8. doi10.1018/4, pon 2015
81.008

Crellin 1Y, Harrdson D, Santamada N, Babl FE, Bysternat-
ie veview of the Face, Legs, Activity, Cry and Consolabil-
ity seale for assessing pain in infants and children: IQ it

reliable, valid, and feasible for use? Pain. 2015:1560113:
213251, dok 10,1097/, pain. Q000DEO000000305

Crux MDY, Fernandes AM, Cfivelra CR. Epidemiolagy of
painful procedures performed in neonates: A systematic

review of observational studies. Bur J Pain. 2016:20(4):
489-98. doi:10.1002/ejp. 757

Davies RB. Pain in children with Down syndrome: &s-
sessment and Intervention by parents. Pasn Manag Nurs.
2010:11(4):259-67. doi:10.1016/]. pran. 2009.09.003

Di Maggio T, Clark LM, Czarnecki ML, Wrona S, Pedi-

atric paln management, In: American Society for Pain

Management Nursing. Core Crurriculunt for Pain Man-
agement Nursing. 30d ed. 8t Louis, MO: Blsevier, Inc;

2017; 349-423.

Donzldson G, Chaproan CR. Pain management is more
than just 2 mumber {research statemen). Salt Lake City:
University of Utah Health/Department of Anesthesiology;
2013. faculty. utahedu/u027401 1-GARY_W_DONALDSON/
research/index.hml

Healthcare Cost and Udlization Project, HCUP Fast
Facts—Trends in inpatient stays, May 2020. htp://bitly/
38fkdaT

Hermr K, Coyne PJ, Ely E, Gélinas C, Manwormen RCH.
Pain Assessment in the patent unable o selfreport:
Clinical practice recommendations in support of the
ASPMN 2019 position statement. Pain Marag Nurs.
2019:2005):404-17. doi:10.1016/].pmn. 2019.07.005

Humumel P, Puchalski M, Creech 8D, Weiss MG, Clinical

relinbility and validity of the N-PASS: Neonatal pain, agi-
tation and sedation scale with prolonged pain. f Perdera-
fod. 2008 28(10:35-60. doi:10.1038/5).ip. 721 1861

fafioo G, Stinson JN. Assessment and treatment of pain
in children and adolescents. Best Pract Res Clisn Rbevsnci-
fol. Z014;28(2):315-30. doi:10.1016/].berh.2014.05.003

Lundebery 5. Pain in children—Are we accomplishing
the optimal pain treatment? Paediaty Anaesth. 2015,
25(1»:83-92. doi:10.1111/pan.1253¢9

Miech R, Johnston L, O'Malley PM, Keyes KM, Heasd K.
Prescription opioids in adolescence and future opioid
misuse. Pediatrics. 2015;136(5):e1160-77. doi:10.1542/
peds.2015-1364

Stevens B, Johnston C, Peryshen P, Taddio A. Premature
infant pain profile: Development and initial vatidation.
Clin J Pais, 1996;12(1%:15-22. doi:10.1007/00002508-
199603000-00004

Sun T, West N, Ansermino JM, et al. A smartphone ver-
sion of the Faces Pain Scale-revised and the Color Ana-
log Scale for postoperative pain assessment in children.
Paediatr Anaesth. 2015;25(12):1264-73. doi:10.1111/
pan.12790

van Difk M, Peters JWRB, van Deventer P, Tibboel I3. The
COMFORT behavior scale: A 00} for assessing pain and
sedation in infants. Am: f Nurs. 2005;105(1):33-6.

Voepel-Lewis T. The ongoing quandaries of behav-
ioral paln assessment in children with neurocognitive
impairment. Dew Med Child Nearol, 201 1;533(2):106-7.
dob:10.1111/.1469-8749.2010.03845.5

Wilson CA, Sommerfield 1, Drke-Brockman TEE, La-
grange C, Ramgolam A, von Ungern-Sternberg BS. A
prospactive audit of pain profiles following general and
usological surgery in children. Paediatr Ancesth. 2017;
27(11%1155-64. doi:10.1111/pan. 13256

CNE/IV Therapy 216




VITAE

Sharon Wrona, CNP, PMGT-BD, CPNP, PMHS, AP-PMN, FAAN

Experience

Past President

American Society for Pain Management Nursing
Sep 2019 - Present2 years 7 months

President September 2017- September 2018

Nationwide Childrens Hospital
34 years 3 months

Administraﬁve Program Director

Nationwide Childrens Hospital

Jul 2015 - Present6 years 9 months
Columbus, Ohio Area

Plans, develops, and implements the strategic plan for the Comprehensive Pain Service, while overseeing all aspects of
administrative responsibilities and clinical care.

Nurse Practitioner Comprehensive Pain Services

Nationwide Childrens Hospital

Aug 2001 - Present20 years 8 months

Registered Nurse

Nationwide Childrens Hospital

Jan 1988 - Present34 years 3 months

CNE/IV Therapy 217




Program Manager

Nationwide vChi'ldrens Hospital

1998 - 20012 yeats

Registered Nurse

The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center

1990 - 19911 year

Columbus, Ohio Area

Registered Nurse BMT unit

Education

The Ohio State University

The Ohio State University

2011 -2015

Post Master's Certification Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner

Wright State University

Wright State University

Master's Degree Pediatric Nurse/Nursing Nurse Practitioner
2000 - 2003

Mount Carmel College

Mount Carmel College

Bachelor's Degree Registered Nursing/Registered Nurse

1997 - 2000

. Doctor of Nursing Practice Pediatric Nurse/Nursing, Psychiatric Nursing

CNE/IV Therapy 218




Mount Cérmel School of Nursing

Diploma in Nursing Registered Nursing/Registered Nurse
1984 - 1987

Licenses & Certifications

Certified Pediatric Primacy Care Mental Health Specialist

Issued Jan ZQ1 3
Board Certified Pain Management Nursing

American Nurses Credentialing Center

Issued Jan 2006
Certified Pediatric Nurse Practitioner

Issued Jan 2003

Honors & Awards
 Mayday Pain Fellowship

Mayday Foundation

Jun 2018

Organizations

« American Academy of Nursing’

Fellow oct 2019 - present

«- NAPNAP

2001 - Present

National and Ohio member

- Sigma Theta Tau

CNE/IV Therapy 219




2001 - Present

American Society for Pain Management Nursing

Immediate Past President -present
2000 - Present

President 2017-2018

President Elect 2016-2017

Treasurer 2012-2016 & 2019-2020

Clinical Practice Committee, 2005 to 2007

Program Planning Committee, 2009 to 2017

- Co-Chair 2010 - 2012

Procedural Pain/Needle stick Task force, 2009 to 2011
Pediatric Epidural Module Task Force - 2013 - 2014

American Pain Society

2002 - Jun 2019

CNE/IV Therapy 220




VITAE

Michelle Czarnecki, MSN, PMGT-BC, CPNP, AP-PMN

Michelle Czarnecki Rn Bc Msn Cpnp is an experienced registered nurse with a master’s or doctoral
degree and advanced clinical training. Nurse practitioners can work in many different specialties
including primary care, pediatrics, cardiology, emergency, women’s health, oncology or geriatrics.

Michelle Czarnecki is a Nurse Practitioner based out of Milwaukee, Wisconsin and her medical
specialization is Nurse Practitioner - Pediatrics.She practices in Milwaukee and has been a nurse
practitioner since 2008.

CNE/IV Therapy 221




Republic County Hospital
Continuing Nurse Education

Total Program Evaluation
Area Reviewed At least: What to review Date of Results Action Taken
by : Eval.
. None
Parent Advisory Annual Review organizations July 2022 | Reviewed purpose,
Organization: Committee Purpose Jan. 2023 gcrgznllizan;nal chart
Administration Review Organizational Chart prfcedu};e&
& Mission Review Policy & Procedures
Update the above as
necessary
Philosophy, Advisory Annual Review philosophy statement | July 2022 | Reviewed None
goals & Committee Review goals & objectives Jan. 2023 | philosophy,
Objectives « goals, &
objectives
Budget CNE Annual Plan budget October Budget Replaced video
Coordinator Review past years budget 2021 & adequate. Fewer | system and large
Review Cost of programs July 2022 | classes held t/t | screen display.
Covid outbreak
leading to
cancelations. -
Planning
additional
classes now
starting fall
: 2022.
Program C.E.O. Annual Review & update job July 2022 | Job description | None
Director / descript. Jan. 2023 | appropriate,
Coordinator Review title & License status coordinator
maintains
current Kansas
nursing license.

CNE/IV Therapy 222




Republic County Hospital
Continuing Nurse Education
Total Program Evaluation

committee to meet needs

Policy & Advisory Annual Examine & revise as July 2022 | Policies & None
Procedures Committee necessary: Jan. 2023 | procedures
Registration, Certificates, appropriate and
Cancellations Instructor followed.
Credit, Co-sponsorship,
Attendance, Brochures,
Refunds, Fees, All others
‘Learning Needs | Advisory Annual Target population March Assessment Burn class
Assessment Committee Questionnaires/surveys, 2022 completed and | requested and
Frequency of programs reviewed by delayed by Covid
Assess program evaluations CNE has been
committee. rescheduled. Stress
Mitigation course
planned. Diabetic,
Stroke and Stemi
education planned -
via KU.
Independent study
courses will be
utilized to meet
| specific needs.
Needs being met.
Good evaluations.
Program Advisory Annual Compare offerings with March & | Needs met. Offerings of year
Offerings Committee needs assessment. July 2022 were limited
related to COVID.
Utilize recommendations of Did utilize Zoom &
staff; supervisors & advisory independent study.

CNE/IV Therapy 223



Republic County Hospital
Continuing Nurse Education
Total Program Evaluation

Individual CNE Annual Brochure with objectives July 2022 | Reviewed at
Program files Coordinator Handouts with bibliography | Jan. 2023 | conclusion of
Evaluation summary each program.
Roster No concerns.
Facilities Advisory Annual Facility layout/access. July 2022 | Adequate Recent upgrade in
Committee Availability of teaching tools | Jan. 2023 video display
(white board, projector, screen and
surround sound speaker speaker/phone
system, large screen display,
Microphone system,
computer)
Record Keeping | Advisory Annual List of offerings & date of July 2022 | Upcoming
Committee presentation available Jan. 2023 | offering flyers

Program files complete
Records of CNE attendance
for each nurse in facility.

and calendars
are posted and
e-mailed to

target audience.

Program files
are complete
and attendance
records are
accessible in
paper and
electronic
formats.

CNE/IV Therapy 224




Republic County Hospital
Continuing Nurse Education
Total Program Evaluation

Advisory CNE Annual Members assess educational July 2022 | Meeting needs. Targeted education
Committee Coordinator needs in their areas & Jan. 2023 | Reviewed requested via
communicate such. Assistin function & independent study
plapnipg o;lf ﬁrglre offferings; purpose of CNE | for
assist in selection of presenters; committee. .
review number of mepgtings : Committee works Surgery/Outpatlent.‘
held; review function & purpose closely with each
of committee other, physicians
& administration.
Design & CNE Monthly Review objectives for July 2022 | Objectives are | Continue to utilize
Review Coordinator relevancy, appropriateness, Jan. 2023 | relevant, RN instructors for
objectives of ' and completeness. appropriate, and | CNE courses
educational Review for attainment of complete. Met | whenever possible.
offerings stated objectives. as demonstrated

Review statics required by
KSBN (note % taught by

nurses)

by program
evaluations.
Majority of
courses are
taught by RN,
and those that
are not are
appropriate as
to the field of
expertise for the
course topic.

CNE/IV Therapy 225




Republic County Hospital
Continuing Nurse Education
Total Program Evaluation

Analysis of the
Total Program
Evaluation Plan

Advisory -

Committee

Annual’

Review and Revise: Program
management, evaluation tool,
documentation tools.

July 2022
Jan. 2023

CNE program
evaluation
continues to
work well.
Continue to
utilize CNE
course
flowsheet for
concurrent
statistical
analysis and
TeView.

None

CNE/IV Therapy 226




Long Term CNE Provider Checklist

(K.A.R. 60-9-107)

Name of Provider: Kansas Heart Hospital
Name of Program Coordinator:  Denise Gibbens
Date Received: 12/21/22

Date to CNE Committee: March 2023

Approved
Not Approved:
Date Notified:
Information Required Received NA
Completed application for initial approval or five-year renewal
for LT CNE providership shall be submitted at least 60 days X
before a scheduled board meeting
The name and address of the organization on the application X
The name and address of the department or unit within the
organization responsible for approving CNE, if different from the X
name and address of the organization
The name, education and experience of the program coordinator Denise Gibbens
responsible for CNE
e Be a licensed professional nurse X
e Have three years of clinical experience X
e Have one year of experience in developing and
implementing nursing education X
¢ Have a baccalaureate degree (unless held this position
for the provider at least five years immediately prior to X
January 1, 1977)
Policies & Procedures:
Written policies and procedures, including at least the following
areas:
e  Assessing the need and planning for CNE activities X
¢ Fee assessment X
e  Advertisements or offering announcements. Published
information shall contain the following statement:
“(name of provider) is approved as a provider of X
continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board
of Nursing. This course offering is approved for contact
hours applicable for APRN, RN, or LPN relicensure,
Kansas State Board of Nursing provider number:
¢ Notice of change of coordinator or required policies and
procedures. The program coordinator shall notify the X

board in writing of any change of the individual

1

CNE/IV Therapy 227




responsible for the providership or required policies and
procedures within 30 days

For long term providers, the policies and procedures for the
offering approval process shall include the following:

e A summary of the planning

e The behavioral objectives

e The content, which shall meet the definition of CNE in
KSA 65-1117

e The instructor’s education and experience, documenting
knowledge and expertise in the content area

e A current bibliography that is reflective of the offering
content. The bibliography shall include books published
within the past 10 years, periodicals published within the
past five years, or both

e An offering evaluation that includes each participant’s
assessment of the following:

= The achievement of each objective

= The expertise of each individual presenter

An approved provider may award any of the following:

e Contact hours as documented on an offering agenda for
the actual time attending, including partial credit for one
or more contact hours

e Credit for fractions of hours over 30 mins to be
computed towards a contact hour

e Instructor credit, which shail be twice the length of the
first-time presentation of an approved offering,
excluding an standardized, prepared curriculum

e Independent study credit that is based on the time
required to complete the offering, as documented by the
provider’s pilot test resulis

e  Clinical hours

Documentation of Attendance

Each provider shall maintain documentation to verify that each
participant attended the offering. The provider shall require each
participant to sign a daily roster, which shall contain the following
information:

e The provider’s name, address, provider number, and
coordinator

e The date and title of the offering, and the presenter or
presenters

e The participant’s name and license number and the
number of contact hours awarded

Each provider shall maintain documentation to verify completion
of each independent study offering, if applicable. To verify
completion of an independent study offering, the provider shall
maintain documentation that includes the following:

e The provider’s name, address, provider number, and X
coordinator

e The participant’s name and license number, and the X
number of contact hours awarded

CNE/IV Therapy 228




e  The title of the offering

e The date on which the offering was completed

e Either the completion of a posttest or a return
demonstration

Certificate of Attendance/CE Transcript

A certificate of attendance shall be awarded to each participant
after completion of an offering, or a CE transcript shall be
provided according to the policies and procedures of the long-
term provider

Each certificate and each CE transcript shall be complete before
distribution to the participant

Each certificate and each CE transcript shall contain the following
information:

e  The provider’s name, address and provider number

e  The title of the offering

e  The date or dates of attendance or completion

¢  The number of contact hours awarded and, if applicable,
the designation of any independent study or instructor
contact hours awarded

e The signature of the individual responsible for the
providership

e The name and license number of the participant

Recordkeeping & Storage

For each offering, the approved provider shall retain the following
for two years:

e A summary of the planning

e A copy of the offering announcement or brochure

e  The title and objectives

o The offering agenda or, for independent study, pilot test
results

e A bibliography

e A summary of the participants’ evaluations

e Each instructor’s education and experiences

e Documentation to verify completion of the offering

The record storage system used shall ensure confidentiality and
easy retrieval of records by authorized individuals

Program Evaluation Plan

For long-term providers, a copy of the total program evaluation
plan

Two Proposed Offerings

The provider shall submit two proposed offerings, including the
following:

#1
Neuro Refresher

e A summary of planning

X

ol e P P Fe R el P e x| ST I e e ke >

#2
MegaCode
Blue: ALS
Worksho

X

CNE/IV Therapy 229




e A copy of the offering announcement or brochure X X
e The title and behavioral objectives X X
e The offering agenda or, for independent study, pilot test
results X X
o  Each instructor’s education and experience X X
e A current bibliography Some outdated Some
outdated
e  The offering evaluation form X X

12/2018

1/5/23 Application reviewed and checklist completed by Carol Moreland, MSN, RN

CNE/IV Therapy 230




BuddyData.com - Secure Site https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

1of5

www.buddydata.com Crovern Gl
RECEIVED ‘~

By KSBN Education Department at 1: 44 pm, Dec 21, 2022

:: www.ksbn.org :: back to forms index printable version

~ private and confidential decrypted data ~
Reference No.: 25343 Date submitted: Dec 21 11:11 2022

17 files were uploaded with this form: NeuroRefresher.Planning Summary.pdf,
NeuroRefresher.Flyer.pdf, NeuroRefresher.Course Title and Objectives.pdf,
NeuroRefresher.Offering Agenda.pdf, Brittany.Grabill. NursingResume2022.pdf,
NeuroRefresher.Bibliography.pdf, NeuroRefresher.CourseEvaluaiton.pdf, Mega Code
Blue 2022.Planning Summary.pdf, MEGA.CODE.BLUE 2022.Flyer.pdf, Mega Code Blue
2022.Course Title and Objectives.pdf, Mega Code Blue 2022.0ffering Agenda.pdf,
2022.Nov.22.Resume.Gibbens.Denisel.pdf, Mega Code Blue 2022.Bibliography.pdf,
Mega Code Blue 2022.CourseEvaluaiton.pdf, Annual KSBN Assessment.pdf,

Template KHH.CEU.Certificate.pdf, Template KHH.AttendenceRoster.SignlnSheet.pdf

..............................................................................................................................................................................

www.ksbn.org

radio ~ Initial Application

Providername ~ Kansas Heart Hospital

providernum ~ ~

legalbody ~ ~

address ~ 3601 N Webb RD

adress2 ~ Wichita, KS 67226

telephone ~ 316-650-5000

email ~ dgibbens@kansasheart.com

coordinator ~ Denise Gibbens

date ~ 12-21-2022

planningce ~ 4. Department managers are encouraged to submit
recommendations to administration for future

educational needs in their department and employee participation in
specific courses.

5. Each department will provide department specific in-service training
for staff members on new

procedures or new equipment. Department managers may require an
employee to attend or complete a

specific course.

6. All employees are encourage to submit recommendations to
administration or the education department

for future educational needs including the following but not limited to:
committee (i.e. Employer of

Choice), unit staff meeting, and individual submission.

7. Educational courses are to be completed monthly or as required by
all hospital staff and are accessible

through HealthStream. Internet access will be allowed for staff to

CNE/IV Therapy 231
12/21/2022, 1:36 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

20of5

complete these courses.

feeassessment ~ 1. All courses and personal absences must be
approved in advance by the department manager prior to

enrolling in courses.

2. Hospital administration will approve and compensate employees for
attendance at specifically identified

staff development programs, as they pertain to specific hospital needs.
Upon approval, the hospital will

pay an employee up to eight (8) hours per day. In the event that
employee normally works a 12 hours

shift, efforts will be made to arrange for four (4) hours of work in unit
to make up the difference or PTO

may be taken.

3. An employee may take PTO to attend continuing education courses
not offered by KHH.

4. Educational Classes that are offered to include non KHH staff will
have a course fee. Any course fee will be

stated in the advertisements. Payment is due before start of class.

5. There will be a service charge of $ 30.00 for all returned checks.

6. A $ 10 processing fee will be charged for replacement of CE
certificates.

7. Fees will not be charged to KHH employees or most continuing
education offerings.

8. For special offerings, KHH employees may be required to pay a
registration fee. If possible, a reduced rate

will be negotiated.

advertisement ~ 1. All courses will have advertisements/offering
announcements will include the following statement:

a. “(name of provider) is approved as a provider of CNE by the Kansas
State Board of Nursing. This

course offering is approved for contact hours applicable for APRN, RN,
or LPN re-licensure. Kansas

State Board of Nursing provider Number
2. Courses will advertised or announced including bu’c not limited to the
following: posters/flyers placed on

communication boards and on units, employee email, staff meetings.

A\Y

approvalprocess ~ 1. Planning and supporting documentation will be
summarized by the Staff Development Coordinator.

2. Behavior objectives will be developed by the Quality Assurance/Staff
Development Coordinator and/or

course instructor to describe the intended result of an educational
offering.

a. Providers will be required to clearly state the overall course objective
in distributed materials so

participants will know in advance what they can expect to learn.

3. All course content will meet the terms set forth in the definition for

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 232

12/21/2022, 1:36 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

3of5

continuing nursing education

established by the Kansas State Board of Nursing. All course content
must be relevant to the practice of

registered nursing or for other healthcare professionals and must be:
a. Related to scientific knowledge and/or technical skills required for
the practice of nursing; or

other healthcare professions;

b. Related to the direct and /or indirect patient care; or

c. Related to personal practice or personal health maintenance

4. Documentation of instructor certification(s), qualifications, work
experience and expertise in the content

area will be required for any CE offering approval.

5. A current bibliography will be required to support the offering
content. Acceptable contents include text

published with n the past 10 years, periodicals published within the
past five (5) years, classic references

without time restriction, and current online references form established
sources.

6. Each course offering will have an evaluation form to determine each
participant’s assessment of the

following:

a. Behavioral objective achievement; and

b. Instructor/presenter qualifications/expertise

contacthours ~ 1. CE contact hours will be awarded as follows:

a. Every 50 minutes of qualified education will qualify for one (1)
continuing education (CE) contract

hour

b. Credit is not awarded or breaks, meals, or networking activities

c. Fractions of a credit hour over thirty minutes will be computed
towards a contact hour. (Example:

presentation that lasts 1 hour and 45 minutes without any
breaks/pauses. Calculation: 105

minutes divided by 50 minutes = 2.1. Thus, two (2) contact hours will
be awarded

d. Partial credit will be awarded based on attendance time of individual
(Time will be subtracted for

those arriving late or leaving early). The majority of the individual
educational offering (90%) must

be attended to qualify for CE credit.

e. Attendance of the entire class is required to receive full credit

f. Instructor credit will be given for initial course preparation
presentation of an approved CE

offering. The instructor will receive two (2) CE contact hours for every
one (1) hour of student

credit, at a maximum of fifteen (15) hours.

i. This excludes standardized or prepared curriculum (ie- ACLS/BLS
course)

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 233

12/21/2022, 1:36 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

4 of 5

verifycompletion ~ 1. An attendance roster for each class will be
required for participant verification and will include:

a. Instructor name

b. Course title

c. Provider name, address, provider number, coordinator

d. Start date/time and End date/time

e. Total hours of instruction, contact hours awarded

f. Participant name, address, and nursing license number

2. If lunch or long breaks are taken, participants will be required to
initial attendance roster when course

resumes

3. At the end of the course, instructors will verify successful completion
of course and CE certificate will be

awarded, if applicable. (Either at the conclusion of class or distributed
at a later date)

4. CE certificate shall contain the following:

a. Provider’s name, address and provider number

b. Title of the offering, date(s) of attendance or completion

c. Number of contact hours awarded and, if applicable, the designation
of any independent study or

instructor contact hours awarded

d. Signature of the individual responsible for the provider-ship

e. Name and license number of the participant

5. No individual with a disability will be excluded, denied services,
segregated or otherwise discrimination

against from other individuals because of the absence of auxiliary aids
or services. If special

accommodations are required, participants should contact the Quality
Assurance/Staff Education

Coordinator at KHH 630-5093

6. Classes may be cancelled or rescheduled at the facility’s discretion.
Pre-registered participants will be

notified and a full refund given, if applicable. The refund policy may not
apply to conferences held offsite

by a different CE provider.

recordkeeping ~ 1. For CE offered through HealthStream:

a. Documentation of all CE courses completed through HealthStream
will be maintained through

HealthStream.

b. The Staff Development Coordinator will be the designated
HealthStream system administrator

and will ensure access and retrieval of CE content and user attestations
of completion.

3. For CE offered through Kansas Heart Hospital:

a. A file cabinet system will be maintained for all hard copies of course
roster, class material, class

flyer/brochure, completed paper work (including any post-test, if
applicable) and course

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 234

12/21/2022, 1:36 PM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

50f5

evaluations for a minimum of two (2) years.

b. All hard copies will be maintained in the Quality Assurance/Staff
Education Coordinator office in a

secured file cabinet to insure confidentiality and security and allow for
easy record retrieval by

authorized personnel.

4, Computer files of all related course work will also be maintained for
a minimum of two (2) years.

5. Power Point presentations, class materials and handouts will be
maintained in computer files.

6. Provider will maintain documentation regarding course offering
planning/needs assessment, research

data, course title and objectives, course content and time frames for
each offering.

7. Staff who complete live, streaming, or online CE courses outside of
HealthStream or Kansas Heart Hospital

are responsible for maintaining hard copies of attestation of completion
of CE courses.

8. Biographical data of the Staff Development Coordinator will be
maintained in personnel file

noticeofchange ~ 7. The Kansas State Board of Nursing Education
Division will be notified in writing within 30 days of any

changes of individuals responsible for the continuing education
provider-ship or changes made to the

required education policies and procedures.

programevaluation ~ 1. A Total Program Evaluation will be
completed annually and reported in accordance with Kansas State
Board of Nursing Long Term Continuing Nursing Education
Requirements.

2. Total program Evaluation will be a systematic process by which an
approved provider analyzes outcomes

of the overall CNE program in order to make subsequent decisions
3. Total Program Evaluation will include:

. Program administration

. Program Coordinator’s responsibilities

Program management

. Policies and procedures

. Total Program Evaluation

Ability of the plan to measure the overall effectiveness of the CNE
provider-ship

Submission date ~ 12-21-2022 11:11:37

Form ID ~ 1672730

"D QOO0 To

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 235

12/21/2022, 1:36 PM




Kansas Heart

HOSPITAL

Planning Summary: Neuro Refresher

Need Identification:

Department Managers and Hospital Administration recognize that procedures and surgeries performed
at Kansas Heart Hospital carry risks of neurological complications.

e All current staff will have the opportunity to attend the Neuro Refresher course to review
and/or advance skill level and practice of identifying, assessing, and managing neurological
complications within their scope of practice.

Offering:

This course will be offered at least bi-annually and as needed to accommodate training requirements
and potential influx of new staff.

s Practice applications will be reviewed/discussed in class
e Further education needs will be evaluated based on learner’s performance and comprehension

Development/Review:
This CE course has been developed and/or reviewed to meet this training needed by:

¢ Denise Gibbens, MS, BSN, RN, Quality Assurance/Staff Education Coordinator
e Beatrice Duncan, BSN, RN, Intensive Care Unit Manger
e Brittany Grabill, BSN, RN, Intensive Care Unit

Approval for CE credit is pending KSBN review of Long Term CE Application.

Course Evaluation:

Participants will complete course evaluation to assist with current and future course enhancements and
considerations for all educational planning.

CNE/IV Therapy 236




NEURO REFRESHER

Education Offering
Kansas H ea rt

3601 North Webb Road, chhlta Kansas 67226 (316)630 5000

Education Offering: Recognition and Management of
Neurological Dysfunction

This class will review neuro anatomy and
physiology. It will present types of neurological
exams including level of consciousness
assessments and diagnostic testing. The class
will discuss signs and symptoms of neurological
decline with emphasis in conditions of Stroke,
Reperfusion Cerebral Edema, and Seizures.

Presented by Brittany Grabill, BSN RN, KHH ICU

in KHH Conference Room.

Completion of this course offers 2 hours of CE Credit.

Monday, August 29, 2022 08:00 - 10:00
Monday, August 29, 2022 14:00 - 16:00

Sign-Up in ICU, IMU or TELE Departments

For any questions or concerns please contact:
Denise Gibbens, MS, BSN RN

Quality Assurance/Staff Education Coordinator
. 316-630-5093 dgibbens@kansasheart.com

Kansas Heart Hospital is a provider of continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board of Nursing.
This course offering is approved for 2 contact hours, applicable for RN, or LPN relicensure.
Kanas State Board of Nursing Provider #

CINL/TV ||My ZOT




Course Title & Objectives Ka nsas H eart

HOLBPITAL

Course Title: Neuro Refresher, Recognition and Management of Neurological Dysfunction
Course Objectives:

e Review neuro anatomy and physiology

e Discuss and understand types of neurological exams, including level of conscicusness
assessment and diagnostic testing

e Discuss and recognize signs and symptoms of neurological decline, with emphasis in conditions

of:
o Stroke
o Reperfusion Cerebral Edema
o Seizures

CNE/IV Therapy 238




Offering Agenda: Neuro Refresher, Recognition and

14:00
14:02
14:05
14:20
14:40
14:55
15:00
15:20
15:40

16:00

Management of Neurological Dysfunction

Sign in and Welcome

Introduction

Review of Neuro Anatomy and Physiology

Types of Neurological Exams/Level of Conscioushess
Symptoms of Neurological Decline

Stretch Break

Stroke

Reperfusion Cerebral Edema

Seizures

Conclusion and Questions

Kansas Heart

HOSPITAL

CNE/IV Therapy 239




— - BRITTANY GRABILL o« —

RN, BSN, CCRN

CONTACT

. 316-251-1842
9 Wichita, KS

DR brittgrabill@gmail.com

SUMMARY

Compassionate, industrious registered nurse with over 3 years of experience
providing quality healthcare to critically ill patients. Seeking to leverage my
competencies in critical care and patient safety.

SKILLS |

> STRONG WORK ETHIC
o COLLABORATION

o EFFECTIVE |
COMMUNICATION
> CREATIVITY

o LEADERSHIP} |
> PATIENT ADVOCACY

CERTIFICATIONS

o BLS

o ACLS

© PALS
o NIHSS

> CCRN

 MEMBERSHIPS

o AACN member

EXPERIENCE

Registered Nurse

ICU at Kansas Heart Hospital- Wichita, KS
2020-Present

Duties: Perform and oversee care of patients with critical illness or injury
utilizing the nursing process. Serve as the primary nurse leading the
collaboration of all disciplines for well-coordinated patient care. Complete and
chart thorough assessments, hourly intake/output, vital signs, vasoactive drip
titrations, monitoring invasive lines/drains including arterial blood pressure
lines, CVP, chest tubes, intra-aortic balloon pumps, TPA catheters, and PPM
aftercare. Care for patients preoperatively as well as recovery post-op for
various vascular and cardiac surgeries and procedures.

Leadership roles: Relief charge nurse, preceptor, and Stroke Educator

Registered Nurse

Neuro ICU at Wesley Medical Center - Wichita, KS
2019-2020

Duties: Perform and oversee care of patients with critical iliness or injury
utilizing the nursing process. Serve as the primary nurse leading the
collaboration of all disciplines for well-coordinated patient care. Complete and
chart thorough assessments, hourly intake/output, vital signs, vasoactive drip
titrations, monitoring invasive lines/drains including arterial blood pressure
lines, ICP bolt, and external ventricular drains.

Leadership roles: Member of the Unit Based Nursing Council and The Violence
Prevention Task Force.

CNE/IV Therapy 240




EDUCATION |

Bachelor’ S Degree in Nursmg

2017~2019
Umverstty of Kansas Medical Center

‘ Gradueted with Honors

Assocsates Degree in Nursmg

2017- 2019
Butler County Community College

 Graduated Order of the Purple Honors

Nursing Prerequisites
2014-2015
Missouri Western State University '

CNE/IV Therapy 241




Bibliography: Neuro Refresher, Recognition and Management Kansas Heart
of Neurological Dysfunction HOSPITAL

Belleza, Marianne. (2021). Seizure Disorders (Epilepsy). Retrieved from
https://nurseslabs.com/seizure-disorders/#nursing management

Chandra A, Stone CR, Du X, Li WA, Huber M, Bremer R, Geng X, Ding Y. (2017). The cerebral circulation
and cerebrovascular disease lll: Stroke; 3:66-77. Retrieved from:
http://www.braincirculation.org/text.asp?2017/3/2/66/210957

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2018). Underlying Cause of Death, 1999-2018. CDC
WONDER OnlineDatabase. Retrieved from https://wonder.cdc.gov/ucd-icd10.html

Désemeci, L et al. {2004). Frequency of spinél reflex movements in brain-dead patients. Transplantation
proceedings vol. 36, 1:17-9. doi:10.1016/j.transproceed.2003.11.049

Edward P. Sloan, MD, MPH. (2014). Pediatric Seizure and Status Epilepticus Management in the
Emergency Setting. Retrieved from https://www.slideserve.com/cael/case.

Farooq, M.U., Goshgarian, C., Min, J. et al. (2016). Pathophysiology and management of reperfusion
injury and hyperperfusion syndrome after carotid endarterectomy and carotid artery stenting.
Exp & Trans Stroke Med 8, 7. https://doi.org/10.1186/s13231-016-0021-2

Intracranial Hemorrhage. (2013). Retrieved from
http://www.stritch.luc.edu/lumen/MedEd/Radio/curriculum/Neurology/IC hemorrhage 2013,
htmi#:~:text=Acute%20hematoma%20is%20seen%200n,an%20area%200f%20high%20density.

Mayo Clinic. (2022). Stroke. Retrieved from
https://www.mavyoclinic.org/diseases-conditions/stroke/diagnosis-treatment/drc-20350119

Mayo Foundation for Medical Education and Research. (2022). Seizures. Retrieved from
https://www.mavyoclinic.org/diseases-conditions/seizure/symptoms-causes/syc-20365711

Merck Manuals (2022). Viewing the Cranial Nerves. Retrieved from
https://www.merckmanuals.com/en-ca/home/multimedia/figure/viewing-the-cranial-nerves

Minnesota Department of Health (2018). Inclusion and Exclusion Criteria for IV Alteplase (tissue
plasminogen activator, IV-tPA) Treatment of Ischemic Stroke. Retrieved from
www.health.state.mn.us/diseases/cardiovascular/documents/clinicaltpaguide.pdf

Mobhr, Panel 1. P., et al. (1997). Etiology of Stroke. Stoke; 28:1501-1506. Retrieved from
https://www.ahajournals.org/doi/10.1161/01.5TR.28.7.1501

National Health Care Provider Solutions. Acute Stroke Algorithm. https://nhcps.com/lesson/acls-acute-
stroke-algorithm/

Nursing Education Consultants. (1994). Abnormal Posturing {image}. Retrieved from
http://www.nursinged.com/

CNE/IV Therapy 242




Bibliography: Neuro Refresher, Recognition and Management Ka nsas H eda ['t
of Neurological Dysfunction HOSPITAL

Tsao CW, Aday AW, Almarzooq ZI, Alonso A, Beaton AZ, Bittencourt MS, et al. (2022). Heart Disease and
Stroke Statistics—2022 Update: A Report From the American Heart Association; 145(8):e153~
€639

Wood, Jackie D. (2006). Physiology of the Gastrointestinal Tract (Fourth Edition) pg. 665-683.
https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-012088394-3/50027-1.

CNE/IV Therapy 243




Course/Instructor Evaluation
Class: Neuro Refresher
Date: Monday, Aug 29, 2022

Time:

Kansas Heart

3601 North Webb Road, Wichita, KS 67226

Instructor: Brittany Grabill, BSN RN

_ Please rate each of the following statements by
checking in the appropriate column: '

Strongly
Agree

Agree Adequate | Disagree "Stro,ngly‘

/Neutral

Disagree

1. The course content increased and /or
contributed to my knowledge, skills, and
abilities

2. Each objective was met as described
A. Review neuro anatomy/physiology
B. Present types of neurological exams:
assessments and diagnostic tests
C. Discuss sign/symptoms of neurological
decline, emphasis in: Stroke, Reperfusion
Cerebral Edema, and Seizures

w

The course content was thorough & complete

4. The relevance of course content was related
to professional practice

5. The amount of information presented was
appropriate for my needs

6. The instructor was knowledgeable of the
subject matter and had expertise in the
subject area

7. The instructor was effective in teaching the
course

8. The handouts and/or exercises contributed to
the course content.

9. Audiovisual materials were effective &
enhanced the course. (if applicable)

10. The classroom of in-service setting was
appropriate for course requirements and
convenient for attendance

11. You would recommend this course or similar
courses to others

$:\StaffDev\NeuroRefresher\NeuroRefresher.CourseEvaluation

Continue for comments on back =

CNE/IV Therapy 244




General Comments:

Comments/suggestions about course elements (e.g. content, objectives, administration, instructional aids,
classroom, materials, etc.) :

(
i
E

S:\StaffDev\NeuroRefresher\NeuroRefresher.CourseEvaluation

CNE/IV Therapy 245




Kansas Heart

HOsSPITAL

Planning Summary: Mega Code Blue: ALS Workshop

Need Identification:

Department Managers and Hospital Administration recognize that Mega Code Blue Workshop is offered
in addition to RQI program.

All current staff will have the opportunity to attend the Mega Code Blue: ALS Workshop course to
review and demonstrate roles, how to locate/access/use equipment, and responses in various ALS
scenarios.

Offering:
This course will be offered annually and PRN.

e Practice applications will be reviewed/discussed in class
e Quizis administered at end of the class
e Further education needs will be evaluated based on learner’s performance and comprehension

Development/Review:
This CE course has been developed and/or reviewed to meet this training needed by:

e Denise Gibbens, MS, BSN, RN, Quality Assurance/Staff Education Coordinator
e Beatrice Duncan, BSN, RN, Intensive Care Unit Manger

Approval for CE credit is pending KSBN review of Long Term CE Application.

Course Evaluation:

Participants will complete course evaluation to assist with current and future course enhancements and
considerations for all educational planning.

CNE/IV Therapy 246




MEGA CODE BLUE Workshop

This class will review the Crash Cart and its contents
and roles in running a Code Blue. Each class will
work through various ALS Code Scenarios. A quiz

Mandatory for ICU, IMU, and TELE RNs
Kansas Heart

BT %

3601 North Webb Road, Wichita, Kar

7226 (316)630-5000

Education: ALS Mega Code Simulations

will be given at the end.
Lead by Denise Gibbens, MS, BSN-RN

QA/Staff Education
This class will be held in the KHH Conference Room and last 90 minutes.
SEPTEMBER
SUN MON TUES WED THURS FRI SAT
11 12 13 14 MEGA CODE 15 MEGA CODE 16 MEGA CODE | 17
Enrollment Closed BLUE BLUE BLUE
« :09:00-10:30 o 07:30-09:00 o .. 07:060-08:30
. 15:30-17:00 «09:30-11:00 «09:00-10:30
. 17:30-19:00 o :13:00-14:30 . 13:00-14:30
« 15:00-16:30 « 15:00-16:30
«17:30-19:00
o 19:30-21:30
18 19 MEGA CODE |20 MEGA CODE |21 MEGACODE | 22 23 24
BLUE BLUE BLUE
o -08:30-10:00 o -07:30-09:00 o :09:00-10:30
o 10:30-12:00 « 09:30-11:00 o 13:00-14:30
o 15:00-16:30 o 13:00-14:30 «15:30-17:00
+ 17:00-18:30 o 15:00-16:30 '
«17:00-18:30
e 19:30-21:00

Class enrollment is through HealthStream.

Check assignments listed on your “To Do” tab.
Enrollment closes Monday, September 12, 2022

For any questions or concerns please contact:
Denise Gibbens, MS, BSN-RN
Quality Assurance/Staff Education Coordinator

316-630-5093

dgibbens(@kansasheart.com

Kansas Heart Hospital is a provider of continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board of Nursing.
This course offering is approved for 1.5  contact hours, applicable for RN, or LPN relicensure.
Kanas State Board of Nursing Provider #

VLA L ) a—




Course Title & Objectives Ka nsas H eart

HOGSPITAL

Course Title: Mega Code Blue: ALS Workshop
Course Objectives:

e Review and understand DNR status and modified DNR Status
¢ Identify and understand roles in responding to Code Blue
e Review and demonstrate how to use Zoll Defibrillator in Advance Life Support situations
e Identify and understand locations, access, and organization of the Code Carts in KHH
e Class demonstration and discussion of responses/actions in various ALS scenarios
o Cardiac Arrest
Acute Coronary Syndrome
Symptomatic Bradycardia
Unresponsive Patient with a Pulse

O
o
o]
o Supraventricular Tachycardia

CNE/IV Therapy 248




Offering Agenda: Mega Code Blue: ALS Workshop

09:00

09:02

09:30

10:15

10:30

Sign in, Welcome, and Introduction

Power point:
- Variations of Code Status: DNR
- Call the Code, Roles in Code Blue, and Communication
- Defibrillator and Crash Cart Review

ALS Scenarios
- Cardiac Arrest
- Acute Coronary Syndrome
- Symptomatic Bradycardia
- Unresponsive Patient with a Pulse
- Supraventricular Tachycardia

Conclusion, Questions, Quiz

Class dismissed

Kansas Heart

HOSPITAL

CNE/IV Therapy 249



DENISE J. GIBBENS, MS, BSN-RN, BS, BA

WICHITA, KS 67212
denisegibbens@outlook.com

NURSING EDUCATION AND CREDENTIALS

WICHITA STATE UNIVERSITY, Wichita, KS
College of Health Professions: Bachelor of Science in Nursing — Registered Nurse

KANSAS STATE REGISTERED NURSE LICENSE: 13-128429-024 (expires 2/2024)

RQI: BLS Certified (expires 7/31/2024)
ALS Certified (expires 7/31/2024)

NURSING EXPERIENCE

Registered Nurse, Quality Assurance/Staff Education Coordinator February 2022 — Present
Kansas Heart Hospital, Wichita, KS
¢ Quality Assurance: :

o Chart audits for compliance with KHH, and CMS — NHSN, VQI standards

o HIPAA Security presentation and audits

o Hand Hygiene audits

o Other quality measures evolve as per KHH policy and procedures

o Staff Education Coordinator:

o Develop and/or implement staff education to meet KHH, CMS, and OSHA standards using
HealthStream, developing own content, or coordinate with outside education resources —
AirMethods/LifeSave Education Outreach and Medline Skin Champion Program

o Orientate staff to KHH education resources: HealthStream, Dynamic Health, and RQI system

o Annual training Mega Code Blue Workshop and Skills Fair

o Reassess need for continuing education in coordination with CNO, Mgrs/Asst.Mgrs,
committees, departments, and individual staff

Registered Nurse, Intensive Care Unit March 2017 — February 2022

Kansas Heart Hospital, Wichita, KS

e Cardiovascular and Peripheral Vascular Intensive Care Unit; 14 bed unit

¢ Deliver a complete range of RN services and expertise; Open Heart Surgeries, Aortic Aneurysm
Repair,

o Assess individual conditions and needs, as well as selected departmental referrals for acute and
chronically ill patients

e Assist physicians during patient examinations and treatments (TEE/Cardioversions, Thoracentesis,
etc.)

Travel Registered Nurse, Progressive Care Unit June 2016 — March 2017
ANM: Onward Healthcare, Wilton, CT
s Contract with Good Samaritan Hospital, Kearney, NE. Magnet Recognized

Registered Nurse, Intermediate Care Unit July 2015 — June 2016
Wesley Medical Center, Wichita, KS

Registered Nurse , Medical/Surgical Unit September 2014 — June 2015
Overland Park Regional Medical Center, Lenexa, KS

O ————




DENISE J. GIBBENS, MS, BSN-RN, BS, BA

WICHITA, KS 67212
denisegibbens@outlook.com

OTHER EDUCATION

KANsAs CiTy UNIVERSITY, Kansas City, MO

~ (FORMERLY KNOWN AS: KANSAS CITY UNIVERSITY OF MEDICINE AND BOSCIENCES)
College of Biosciences: Master of Science in Biomedical Sciences

FORT HAYS STATE UNIVERSITY, Hays, KS
Bachelor of Arts in Chemistry
Bachelor of Science in Biology — Cellular and Molecular Focus

RESEARCH EXPERIENCE

Epstein-Barr Virus and the Development of Crohn's Disease

¢ Epstein-Barr virus associated T helper cell 1 inflammatory response and the development of Crohn’s
disease

¢ Thesis, Research Proposal
Eco-forecasting

e Retrieved and processed sediment samples from Saline River

o Collected gas samples and analyzed via Gas Chromatography
Copper Toxicity in Neurons

e Prepared for and cultured cells

o Performed various experiments on inhibition of copper uptake, mortality, and protein analysis
Antibiotic Resistance in Sewage

o Cultured samples of treated sewage effluent

o Isolated resistant bacteria, gram stains and characterized, and identified visually

REFERENCES ON REQUEST

CNE Therapy 2o




Bibliography: Mega Code Blue: ALS Workshop Kansas Heart

HOSPITAL

Kansas Heart Hospital Competencies:

COMP 128 Zoll Defibrillator

COMP 129 Nursing Competency

COMP 143 Zoll R Series Defibrillator

COMP 144 Zoll R Series External Pacing

COMP 145 Zoll Multi-Function Electrodes Cardioversion

Kansas Heart Hospital Forms:

103 Emergency Protocol

247 Code Blue Critique Form

444 Patient Assessment Worksheet

RT 100 Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation

Kansas Heart Hospital Policy:

BLS/ACLS (Basic Life Support/Advanced Cardiac Life Support) -
Crash Cart Restock & Maintenance

Code Blue — Medical Emergencies

Code System for Emergencies

Do Not Resuscitate Orders

Emergency Orders

External Cardiac Pacing

Rapid Response Team

Zoll Defibrillator

Manuals

Zoll R Series User Guides
o Zoll R Series ALS Operator’s Guide. (2018) https://www.zoll.com/-/media/public-
site/products/r-series-defibrillators/9650-0912-01-sf t.ashx
o Zoll R Series Quick Reference Guide. (2016} https://www.zoll.com/-/media/public-
site/products/r-series-defibrillators/9650-1001-01-sf g.ashx
o Zoll R Series Plus, R Series BLS Operator’s Guide. (2019) https://www.zoll.com/-
/media/public-site/products/r-series-defibrillators/9650-0904/9650-0904-06-sf j.ashx

RQI 1Stop: An American Heart Association and Laerdal Program

American Heart Association, www.heart.org

CNE/IV Therapy 252




Course/Instructor Evaluation Kansas Hearl:

Class: Mega Code Blue: ALS Workshop 3601 North Webl Road, Wihita, K5 67226
Date: '
Time:

Instructor: Denise Gibbens, MS, BSN RN

_ Please rate each of the following statements by | Strongly | Agree | Adequate Disagree ' Strongly
checking in the appropriate column: Agree | /Neutral | | Disagree

1. The course content increased and /or
contributed to my knowledge, skills, and
abilities

2. Each objective was met as described
A. Review/understand DNR & modified DNR
B. ldentify/understand Code Blue roles
C. Review/demonstrate how to use Zoll
Defibrillator in ALS
D. ldentify/understand KHH Code Cart
location, access, and organization
E. Demonstrate/discuss the
response/actions in ALS scenarios
i. Cardiac Arrest
ii. Acute Coronary Syndrome
iii. Symptomatic Bradycardia
iv. Unresponsive with Pulse
v. Supraventricular Tachycardia

3. The course content was thorough & complete

4. The relevance of course content was related
to professional practice

5. The amount of information presented was
appropriate for my needs

6. The instructor was knowledgeable of the
subject matter and had expertise in the
subject area

7. The instructor was effective in teaching the
course

8. The handouts and/or exercises contributed to
the course content.

9. Audiovisual materials were effective &
enhanced the course. (if applicable)

S:\StaffDev\NeuroRefresher\NeuroRefresher.CourseEvaluation
Continue on back =>

CNE/IV Therapy 253



10. The classroom of in-service setting was
appropriate for course requirements and
convenient for attendance

11. You would recommend this course or similar
courses to others

General Comments:

Comments/suggestions about course elements (e.g. content, objectives, administration, instructional aids,
classroom, materials, etc.) :

S:\StaffDev\NeuroRefresher\NeuroRefresher.CourseEvaluation
Continue on back =>

CNE/IV Therapy 254




Continuing Nursing Education Annual Report

Area

Frequency

Resp. Person

Criteria

Findings

Actions/

Recommendations

Administration

Review job description

Policies:

Assess need, Review survey for

planning appropriateness; were survey
findings and identified needs from

- written tool evaluation summaries used in
program planning

- evaluation

summaries

Policies:
Policy meets organization and

Fee customer needs

Assessment

Policies:
Review to be certain they reflect
necessary information

Announcement

Policies:

. Review policies and compare to

Offering KSBN requirements

approval

process

Policies: Review agendas/pilot test results
to verify contact hours awarded;

Awarding review documentation of partial

contact hours credit

Policies:

Verifying Review rosters and certificates;

participation/ compare to KSBN requirements

completion

Policies:

Record keeping

Audit contents of files for
compliance with KSBN
requirements

CNE/IV Therapy 255




Policies:

Notification of

Review procedures for changes
reported to KSBN

changes

Total Program Review total program evaluation
Evaluation and compare contents to KSBN
effectiveness requirements

CNE/IV Therapy 256



3601 N. Webb Rd, Wichita, KS 67226 (316)630-5000

Staff Development Department

Certifies that
Name of Nurse, RN License # 00-00000

Successfully Completed:

Name of Course

Presented by Course Educator, Certification
On Month 00, 2023
And is hereby awarded continuing education hours.

By: aﬁuﬁm ;é;mr& , Staff Development Coordinator

Kansas Heart Hospital is approved as a provider of continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board of
Nursing. This course offering is approved for contact hours, applicable for APRN, RN, or LPN relicensure.
Kansas State Board of Nursing Provider #

CNENV Therapy 25




Attendance Roster Kansas Heart

3601 North Webb Road, Wichita, Kansas, 67226
Date(s): (316) 630-5000

Time:

Program/Course:

Presenter(s):

Location:

Coordinator: # in Attendance:
KSBN CE Provider #: Contact Hours Designated
Other Details:

Name & Title : Home Address Nursing
(Please Print) License #







Long Term CNE Provider Checklist
(K.AR. 60-9-107)

Name of Provider: Sarah E. Jorgensen
Name of Program Coordinator:  Sarah E. Jorgensen
Date Received: 11/21/22

Date to CNE Committee: March 2023

Approved
Not Approved:
Date Notified:
Information Required Received NA
Completed application for initial approval or five-year renewal
for LT CNE providership shall be submitted at least 60 days 11/21/22
before a scheduled board meeting
The name and address of the organization on the application X
The name and address of the department or unit within the
organization responsible for approving CNE, if different from the X
name and address of the organization
The name, education and experience of the program coordinator Sarah E. Jorgensen
responsible for CNE
s Be a licensed professional nurse X
e Have three years of clinical experience X
e Have one year of experience in developing and
implementing nursing education X
¢ Have a baccalaureate degree (unless held this position
for the provider at least five years immediately prior to X
January 1, 1977)

Policies & Procedures:
Written policies and procedures, including at least the following
areas:
s  Assessing the need and planning for CNE activities

>

o Fee assessment

e Advertisements or offering announcements. Published
information shall contain the following statement:
“(name of provider) is approved as a provider of
continuing nursing education by the Kansas State Board X
of Nursing. This course offering is approved for contact
hours applicable for APRN, RN, or LPN relicensure.
Kansas State Board of Nursing provider number:

"

e Notice of change of coordinator or required policies and
procedures. The program coordinator shall notify the X
board in writing of any change of the individual

1

CNE/IV Therapy 260



responsible for the providership or required policies and
procedures within 30 days

For long term providers, the policies and procedures for the
offering approval process shall include the following:

s A summary of the planning

e  The behavioral objectives

e The content, which shall meet the definition of CNE in
KSA 65-1117

e The instructor’s education and experience, documenting
knowledge and expertise in the content area

e A current bibliography that is reflective of the offering
content. The bibliography shall include books published
within the past 10 years, periodicals published within the
past five years, or both

e An offering evaluation that includes each participant’s
assessment of the following:

= The achievement of each objective

Listed in policy

»  The expertise of each individual presenter

X

An approved provider may award any of the following:

e Contact hours as documented on an offering agenda for
the actual time attending, including partial credit for one
or more contact hours

Calculations
incorrect

e Credit for fractions of hours over 30 mins to be
computed towards a contact hour

X

o Instructor credit, which shall be twice the length of the
first-time presentation of an approved offering,
excluding an standardized, prepared curriculum

X

e Independent study credit that is based on the time
required to complete the offering, as documented by the
provider’s pilot test results

e Clinical hours

Documentation of Attendance

Each provider shall maintain documentation to verify that each
participant attended the offering. The provider shall require each
participant to sign a daily roster, which shall contain the following
information:

e The provider’s name, address, provider number, and
coordinator

s The date and title of the offering, and the presenter or
presenters

e The participant’s name and license number and the
number of contact hours awarded

Each provider shall maintain documentation to verify completion
of each independent study offering, if applicable. To verify
completion of an independent study offering, the provider shall
maintain documentation that includes the following:

e The provider’s name, address, provider number, and X
coordinator

e The participant’s name and license number, and the X
number of contact hours awarded

CNE/IV Therapy 261




o  The title of the offering

e  The date on which the offering was completed

o FEither the completion of a posttest or a return
demonstration

eltalle

Certificate of Attendance/CE Transcript

A certificate of attendance shall be awarded to each participant

after completion of an offering, or a CE transcript shall be X
provided according to the policies and procedures of the long-

term provider

Each certificate and each CE transcript shall be complete before

distribution to the participant X

Each certificate and each CE transcript shall contain the following
information:

e  The provider’s name, address and provider number

e The title of the offering X
e The date or dates of attendance or completion X
e  The number of contact hours awarded and, if applicable,

the designation of any independent study or instructor X

contact hours awarded

e The signature of the individual responsible for the
providership

Not on template

s The name and license number of the participant

No license

Recordkeeping & Storage

number

For each offering, the approved provider shall retain the following
for two years:

* A summary of the planning

e A copy of the offering announcement or brochure

e  The title and objectives

e  The offering agenda or, for independent study, pilot test
results

s A bibliography

e A summary of the participants’ evaluations

¢ Each instructor’s education and experiences

¢ Documentation to verify completion of the offering

The record storage system used shall ensure confidentiality and
easy retrieval of records by authorized individuals

S |5 [ B [ [ [ [ 3

Program Evaluation Plan

For long-term providers, a copy of the total program evaluation
plan

Two Proposed Offerings

The provider shall submit two proposed offerings, including the
following:

#1

|

Epigenetic Leadership ; Genetic

9

_ Effects
of

CNE/IV Therapy 262



| Chronic
_ Stress

e A summary of planning X X
e A copy of the offering announcement or brochure X X
» The title and behavioral objectives X X
e The offering agenda or, for independent study, pilot test
results X X
e Each instructor’s education and experience X X
e A current bibliography Some 2016 X
e  The offering evaluation form No eval of No eval of
objectives objectives

12/2018

1/6/2023 Application reviewed after missing information received and checklist completed by Carol Moreland,
MSN, RN

CNE/IV Therapy 263



BuddyData.com - Secure Site https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

1of6

www.buddydata.com yan
RECEIVED |

By KSBN Education Depafimeht at 9:27. am; Nov 21, 2022

:: www.ksbn.org :: back to forms index printable version

~ private and confidential decrypted data ~
Reference No.: 25336 Date submitted: Nov 19 16:38 2022

11 files were uploaded with this form: CNE-105 Verifying_participation ~0
completion.pdf, CNE-107 Record-keeping_and storage.pdf, CNE-106 Issuing
certificates of completion.pdf, CNE-102 Advertisements or Announcements. pdf,
CNE-103 Offering approval.pdf, CNE-104 Awarding contact hours.pdf, CNE-109 Total
program evaluation.pdf, CNE-108 Notice of change of coordinator or reqguired
policies.pdf, SEJ-specific CE evaluation tool.pdf, CNE-100 Needs Assessment &
Planning.pdf, CNE-101 Fee Assessment.pdf

..............................................................................................................................................................................

www.ksbn.org

radio ~ Initial Application

Providername ~ Sarah E. Jorgensen

providernum ~ ~ ‘

legalbody ~ ~

address ~ 526 Main St., PO Box 279

adress2 ~ Brewster, KS 67732

telephone ~ 303-775-3456

email ~ sarah@sejorgensen.com

coordinator ~ Sarah E. Jorgensen

date ~ 11-19-2022

planningce ~ Needs Assessment

1.SEJ Enterprises will assess needs for CNE using informal and/or
formal methods including:

a.identifying healthcare facility business needs through formal or
informal survey.

b.performing gap analysis through individual interviews, focus groups,
surveys, and/or self-assessments.

Assessment of Training Options

1.A list of training options and needs will be generated after the gap
analysis has been completed.

2.All options will be carefully evaluated to determine which are:
a.urgent.

b.important.

c.not important.

3.SEJ Enterprises will consider these factors when determining CNE
offerings:

a.Does the offering provide a solution to a problem?

b.What is the cost of the training for participants?

CNE/IV Therapy 264
11/21/2022, 9:20 AM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

20f6

c.What is the expected return on investment for participants?

d.Does the training assist with meeting legal compliance for individual
participants or organizations?

4.After all training options have been assessed, SEJ Enterprises will
have a list of educational priorities suitable for individuals,
departments, and organizations.

Planning of CNE Offerings

1.The CNE Program Coordinator will evaluate the list of educational
priorities and plan CNE offerings for the upcoming year.

2.CNE offerings will be planned and scheduled with consideration of the
following:

a.Where will the offering be conducted?

b.How will the offering be delivered?

c.Is the offering suitable to be provided online?

d.If the offering already exists, should it continue to be offered?

feeassessment ~ Fee Assessment

1.SEJ Enterprises will designate a fee for each CNE offering and publish
the fee and refund policy at the time the offering is formally
announced.

2.The fee for each offering will vary depending on the cost of the
speaker(s), venue, advertising, travel expenses, etc.

3.The fee for the offering will be collected at the time of registration
and will be payable electronically.

4.Payment of the fee secures registration for the offering.

Refunds

1.If a participant is unable to attend the offering as scheduled, refunds
will be issued as follows:

a.notice received up to 7 days prior to scheduled event: 100% refund.
b.notice received less 7 days prior to scheduled event: 0% refund.
2.Refunds will be made within 14 days of receipt of notice.

Insufficient Funds

1.SEJ Enterprises will not charge a fee for any payment received that is
returned to the organization for insufficient funds. However, SEJ]
Enterprises is not responsible for any charges incurred by the
participant’s bank or financial entity as a result of insufficient funds.
2.A participant may not attend an offering until fees have been paid in
full.

advertisement ~ Advertisements or Announcements

1.SEJ Enterprises will advertise or announce CNE offerings in a variety
of ways, including:

a.internet via website, social media, and email.

b.radio.

c.television.

d.print advertising.

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 265

11/21/2022, 9:20 AM



BuddyData.com - Secure Site

3of6

e.mail.

2.Published information shall contain the following statement:

a.SEJ Enterprises is approved as a provider of continuing nursing
education by the Kansas State Board of Nursing. This course offering is
approved for ___ contact hours applicable for APRN, RN, or LPN
licensure requirements. Kansas State Board of Nursing Provider
Number:

approvalprocess ~ Approval Offering

1.Each CNE offering submitted to the CNE Program Coordinator must
include:

a.a summary of planning.

b.learning objectives.

c.content that shall meet the definition of CNE in KSA 65-1117(a)
which states: continuing nursing education means learning experiences
intended to build upon the educational and experiential bases of the
registered professional and licensed practical nurse for the
enhancement of practice, education, administration, research, or
theory development to the end of improving the health of the public.
d.the instructor’s education and experience documenting
knowledge/expertise.

e.a complete bibliography.

f.an evaluation of the educational offering that includes:
i.assessments of learner achievement of each objective and
ii.expertise of individual presenters.

contacthours ~ Awarding Contact Hours

1.Participants completing an entire program offering will be awarded 1
contact hour based on 50 minutes of participation in a learning
experience.

2.Credit for fractions of an hour will be awarded to those participants
who have already completed at least 1 contact hour for a single course
offering. Credit for fractions of hours beyond 1 contact hour will be
awarded as follows:

a.15 minutes - 0.25 contact hour

b.30 minutes — 0.50 contact hour

c.45 minutes - 0.75 contact hour

3.Instructor credit will be awarded as follows:

a.2 contact hours for each one hour of first-time presentation of an
approved offering, excluding standardized prepared curriculum (e.g.
ACLS, PALS, TNCC, ENPC, MANDT, etc.)

4.Independent study credit will be awarded based on time required to
complete the offering as documented by SEJ Enterprises’ pilot time test
results.

a.Pilot test time results will be measured as follows:

i.A small group of pilot testers representative of the target audience
will document time needed by each to complete the offering.

ii.The Program Coordinator will discard the highest and lowest times,
then calculate the average of all remaining times. This calculation will

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 266

11/21/2022,9:20 AM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

4 of 6

serve as the independent study credit time.
5.4. Contact hours for clinical hours will not be awarded.

Partial Credit

1.Partial credit will be awarded as follows for late arrival or early
departure:

a.Participants arriving late or leaving early will note and initial either
time of late arrival or early departure.

b.Time for breaks will be subtracted from the total hours the
participant was present at the offering.

c.Total number of minutes attended will be divided by 50 to calculate
the number of contact hours to be awarded to participant.
verifycompletion ~ Online Offerings

1.Participants will register for course offerings electronically.

2.0nline course settings will not allow participants to advance to post-
test and program evaluation without first viewing course content in its
entirety.

3.Participants will be required to take a post-test and score 80% or
greater to be awarded a Certificate of Continuing Nursing Education or
a Certificate of Program Completion.

In-Person Events

1.Participants will register for course offerings electronically.
2.Participants will sign in upon arrival for the event and again after
lunch and/or each subsequent day to verify attendance.
3.Participants will complete a program evaluation at the end of the
offering.

Independent Study

1.Participants will register for course offerings electronically.
2.Participants will document and email an Independent Study
Verification Form to sarah@sejorgensen.com. Documentation will
include:

a.provider name, address, provider number, name of program
coordinator

b.title of offering

c.date offering completed

d.name of presenter(s)

e.participant name and signature, email, and license number
3.Participants will be required to take a post-test and score 80% or
greater to be awarded a Certificate of Continuing Nursing Education or
a Certificate of Program Completion.

a.Upon receipt of the Independent Study Verification Form by SEJ
Enterprises, participant will receive a link to complete the online post-
test for the offering.

b.Upon successful completion of the post-test, participants will receive
electronically a Certificate of Continuing Nursing Education or a
Certificate of Program Completion.

c.SEJ Enterprises will document post-test score, contact hours

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 267

11/21/2022, 9:20 AM



BuddyData.com - Secure Site

- 50f6

awarded, and date on the Independent Study Verification Form.
d.The Independent Study Verification Form will then be scanned into
the confidential and secure online records storage system to be
maintained.

recordkeeping ~ Record-Keeping and Storage

1.SEJ Enterprises will retain the following records for each offering for a
period of two years:

a.summary of planning

b.copy of advertisement or announcement, either digital or hard copy
c.course title

d.learning objectives

e.agenda

f.pilot time test results (if independent study)

g.complete bibliography

h.summary of participant evaluations

i.each instructor’s education and experience

j.documentation to verify completion of the offering

noticeofchange ~ Process for Notifications to Kansas State Board of
Nursing

1.The CNE Program Coordinator will notify the Kansas State Board of
Nursing within 30 days of any change to:

a.CNE Program Coordinator or

b.required policies and procedures.

2.Written notification will be mailed to: 900 SW Jackson, Ste. 1051,
Topeka, KS 66612-1230

programevaluation ~ Process for Total Program Evaluation

1.The CNE Program Coordinator will complete a total program
evaluation at least annually and submit findings in the annual report to
the Kansas State Board of Nursing.

2.The total program evaluation will include, per Kansas State
Administrative Regulation 60-9-105, "a systematic process by which an
approved provider analyzes outcomes of the overall continuing nursing
education program in order to make subsequent decisions.”

3.The total program evaluation will include evaluation of:

a.program administration, including program coordinator’s
responsibilities.

b.program management, including policies and procedures.

c.total program evaluation, including the ability of the plan to measure
the overall effectiveness of the providership.

4.At least annually SEJ Enterprises will complete a total program
evaluation.

5.The CNE Program Coordinator will include the total program
evaluation findings with the annual report submitted to the Kansas
State Board of Nursing.

Total Program Evaluation Tool
(See attached spreadsheet entitled “"CE Evaluation Tool.”)

https://www.buddydata.conVcgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 268

11/21/2022, 9:20 AM




BuddyData.com - Secure Site

60f6

Submission date ~ 11-19-2022 16:38:55
Form ID ~ 1672730

https://www.buddydata.com/cgi-bin/showForm.cgi

CNE/IV Therapy 269
11/21/2022, 9:20 AM




Policy #100: Process of Assessing Need and Planning CNE

Reg. 60-9-107 b (3) (A)
SEJ Enterprises will follow a systematic process for assessing needs and planning CNE offerings.

Date: Reviewed:

Needs Assessment

1. SEJ Enterprises will assess needs for CNE using informal and/or formal methods including:
a. identifying healthcare facility business needs through formal or informal survey.
b. performing gap analysis through individual interviews, focus groups, surveys, and/or
self-assessments.

Assessment of Training Options

1. Alist of training options and needs will be generated after the gap analysis has been completed.
2. All options will be carefully evaluated to determine which are:
a. urgent.
b. important.
¢. notimportant.
3. SEJ Enterprises will consider these factors when determining CNE offerings:
a. Does the offering provide a solution to a problem?
b. What is the cost of the training for participants?
c. What is the expected return on investment for participants?
d. Does the training assist with meeting legal compliance for individual participants or
organizations?
4. After all training options have been assessed, SEJ Enterprises will have a list of educational
priorities suitable for individuals, departments, and organizations.

Planning of CNE Offerings

1. The CNE Program Coordinator will evaluate the list of educational priorities and plan CNE
offerings for the upcoming year.
2. CNE offerings will be planned and scheduled with consideration of the following:
a. Where will the offering be conducted?
b. How will the offering be delivered?
c. Is the offering suitable to be provided online?
d. [If the offering already exists, should it continue to be offered?

CNE/IV Therapy 270



Policy #101: Process for Fee Assessment

Reg. 60-9-107 b (3) (B)

Participants will be aware of the cost of any CNE offering and the process for refunds at the time each
offering is announced.

Date: Reviewed:

Fee Assessment

1. SEJ Enterprises will designate a fee for each CNE offering and publish the fee and refund policy
at the time the offering is formally announced.

2. The fee for each offering will vary depending on the cost of the speaker(s), venue, advertising,
travel expenses, etc.

3. The fee for the offering will be collected at the time of registration and will be payable
electronically.

4. Payment of the fee secures registration for the offering.

Refunds

1. If a participant is unable to attend the offering as scheduled, refunds will be issued as follows:
a. notice received up to 7 days prior to scheduled event: 100% refund.
b. notice received less 7 days prior to scheduled event: 0% refund.

2. Refunds will be made within 14 days of receipt of notice.

Insufficient Funds

1. SEJ Enterprises will not charge a fee for any payment received that is returned to the
organization for insufficient funds. However, SEJ Enterprises is not responsible for any charges
incurred by the participant’s bank or financial entity as a result of insufficient funds.

2. A participant may not attend an offering until fees have been paid in full.

CNE/IV Therapy 271




Policy #102: Process for Advertisements or Announcements

Reg. 60-9-107 b (3} (C)
CNE offerings will be advertised or announced.

Date: Reviewed:

Advertisements or Announcements

1. SEJ Enterprises will advertise or announce CNE offerings in a variety of ways, including:
a. internet via website, social media, and email.
b. radio.
c. television.
d. print advertising.
e. mail.
2. Published information shall contain the following statement:
a. SEJ Enterprises is approved as a provider of continuing nursing education by the Kansas
State Board of Nursing. This course offering is approved for ___ contact hours applicable
for APRN, RN, or LPN licensure requirements. Kansas State Board of Nursing Provider
Number:

CNE/IV Therapy 272




Policy #103: Process for Offering Approval

Reg. 60-9-107 b (3) (D); 60-9-107 d

SEJ Enterprises will approve offerings using a standardized system to ensure each offering is appropriate.

Date: Reviewed:

Approval Offering

1. Each CNE offering submitted to the CNE Program Coordinator must include:
a. asummary of planning.
b. learning objectives.
¢. content that shall meet the definition of CNE in KSA 65-1117(a) which states: continuing
nursing education means learning experiences intended to build upon the educational
and experiential bases of the registered professional and licensed practical nurse for the
enhancement of practice, education, administration, research, or theory development to
the end of improving the health of the public.
d. the instructor’s education and experience documenting knowledge/expertise.
a complete bibliography.
f. an evaluation of the educational offering that includes:
i. assessments of learner achievement of each objective and
ii. expertise of individual presenters.

CNE/IV Therapy 273




Policy #104: Process for Awarding Contact Hours

Reg. 60-9-107 b (3) (E); 60-9-107 ¢

SEJ Enterprises will award contact hours to participants for completion of full or partial program offering.

Date: Reviewed:

Awarding Contact Hours

1. Participants completing an entire program offering will be awarded 1 contact hour based on 50
minutes of participation in a learning experience.

2. Credit for fractions of an hour will be awarded to those participants who have already
completed at least 1 contact hour for a single course offering. Credit for fractions of hours
beyond 1 contact hour will be awarded as follows:

a. 15 minutes — 0.25 contact hour
b. 30 minutes — 0.50 contact hour
¢. 45 minutes — 0.75 contact hour

3. Instructor credit will be awarded as follows:

a. 2 contact hours for each one hour of first-time presentation of an approved offering,
excluding standardized prepared curriculum (e.g. ACLS, PALS, TNCC, ENPC, MANDT, etc.)

4. Independent study credit will be awarded based on time required to complete the offering as
documented by SEJ Enterprises’ pilot time test results.

a. Pilot test time results will be measured as follows:

i. A small group of pilot testers representative of the target audience will
document time needed by each to complete the offering.

ii. The Program Coordinator will discard the highest and lowest times, then
calculate the average of all remaining times. This calculation will serve as the
independent study credit time.

5. 4. Contact hours for clinical hours will not be awarded.

Partial Credit

1. Partial credit will be awarded as follows for late arrival or early departure:
a. Participants arriving late or leaving early will note and initial either time of late arrival or
early departure.
b. Time for breaks will be subtracted from the total hours the participant was present at

the offering.
c. Total number of minutes attended will be divided by 50 to calculate the number of
contact hours to be awarded to participant.

CNE/IV Therapy 274




Policy #105: Process for Verifying Participation and Completion of the Offering

Reg. 60-9-107 b (3) (F); 60-9-107 £; 60-9-107 g

SEJ Enterprises will verify participation and completion of offerings by participants.

Date:

Reviewed:

Online Offerings

Participants will register for course offerings electronically.

Online course settings will not allow participants to advance to post-test and program
evaluation without first viewing course content in its entirety.

Participants will be required to take a post-test and score 80% or greater to be awarded a
Certificate of Continuing Nursing Education or a Certificate of Program Completion.

In-Person Events

1. Participants will register for course offerings electronically.
2. Participants will sign in upon arrival for the event and again after lunch and/or each subsequent
day to verify attendance.
3. Participants will complete a program evaluation at the end of the offering.
Independent Study
1. Participants will register for course offerings electronically.
2. Participants will document and email an Independent Study Verification Form to
sarah@sejorgensen.com. Documentation will include:
a. provider name, address, provider number, name of program coordinator
b. title of offering
c. date offering completed
d. name of presenter(s)
e. participant name and signature, email, and license number
3. Participants will be required to take a post-test and score 80% or greater to be awarded a

Certificate of Continuing Nursing Education or a Certificate of Program Completion.

a. Upon receipt of the Independent Study Verification Form by SEJ Enterprises, participant
will receive a link to complete the online post-test for the offering.

b. Upon successful completion of the post-test, participants will receive electronically a
Certificate of Continuing Nursing Education or a Certificate of Program Completion.

c. SEJ Enterprises will document post-test score, contact hours awarded, and date on the
Independent Study Verification Form.

d. The Independent Study Verification Form will then be scanned into the confidential and
secure online records storage system to be maintained.

CNE/IV Therapy 275




Policy #106: Process for Issuing Certificates of Completion

Reg. 60-9-107 b (3) (F); 60-9-107 f; 60-9-107 g

SEJ Enterprises will issue certificates of completion to participants based on verification of participation
in offerings.

Date: Reviewed:

Issuing Certificates of Completion for Online Offering

Participants completing an online offering will be required to take a post-test.
2. Ascore of 80% or greater is required for issuing a certificate of continuing nursing education.
3. Certificates of Completion will be provided electronically to participants completing online
offerings.

Issuing Certificates of Completion for In-Person Offering

1. Participants completing an in-person offering will be required to sign in upon arrival and after
lunch for all relevant course days.

2. Certificates of Completion will be provided electronically to those participants with verified
participation for each in-person offering.

CNE/IV Therapy 276




Policy #107: Process for Record-Keeping and Storage

Reg. 60-9-107 b (3) (G); 60-9-107 h

SEJ Enterprises will retain appropriate records for each offering. These records will be stored
electronically and securely, including password protection, in a manner that makes them easily
retrievable by authorized personnel.

Date:

Reviewed:

Record-Keeping and Storage

1. SEJ Enterprises will retain the following records for each offering for a period of two years:

a.

[ SO

S@m e oo T

summary of planning

copy of advertisement or announcement, either digital or hard copy
course title

learning objectives

agenda

pilot time test results (if independent study)

complete bibliography

summary of participant evaluations

each instructor’s education and experience

documentation to verify completion of the offering

CNE/IV Therapy 277




Policy #108: Process for Notice of Change of Coordinator or Required Policies

Reg. 60-9-107 b (3) (H)

The CNE Program Coordinator will notify the Kansas State Board of Nursing in writing of any change to
CNE Program Coordinator or required policies and procedures within 30 days.

Date: Reviewed:

Process for Notifications to Kansas State Board of Nursing

1. The CNE Program Coordinator will notify the Kansas State Board of Nursing within 30 days of
any change to:
a. CNE Program Coordinator or
b. required policies and procedures.
2. Written notification will be mailed to: (insert address here)

CNE/IV Therapy 278




Policy #109: Total Program Evaluation

Reg. 60-9-107 b (3) (1)

SEJ Enterprises will complete a total program evaluation annually and include findings in the annual
report to the Kansas State Board of Nursing.

Date:

Reviewed:

Process for Total Program Evaluation

1.

The CNE Program Coordinator will complete a total program evaluation at least annually and
submit findings in the annual report to the Kansas State Board of Nursing.
The total program evaluation will include, per Kansas State Administrative Regulation 60-9-105,
"a systematic process by which an approved provider analyzes outcomes of the overall
continuing nursing education program in order to make subsequent decisions.”
The total program evaluation will include evaluation of:

a. program administration, including program coordinator’s responsibilities.

b. program management, including policies and procedures.

c. total program evaluation, including the ability of the plan to measure the overall

effectiveness of the providership.

At least annually SEJ Enterprises will complete a total program evaluation.
The CNE Program Coordinator will include the total program evaluation findings with the annual
report submitted to the Kansas State Board of Nursing.

Total Program Evaluation Tool

(See attached spreadsheet entitled “CE Evaluation Tool.”)

Date

CNE Program Coordinator

CNE/IV Therapy 279



SEJ En:cévrprises

Eplgenetic Leadership

Evaluative | Evaluaton | Frequency of | Responsible | Effectiveness Data / o Actions or |
Date: _ Criteria Method Evaluation | Person Indicators Findings . | uicomes Recommendations
Whatis tobe  {How will the How frequently  |What individual [What is the Real findings IDecisions made |Realistic suggestions to:
evaluated criteria be will the or group is {desired outcome |from the |after reviewing  limprove program.
(measuzed to evaluated  Jevaluation data  |responsibleto  |of the levaluatio the data and -
determine if (measured fo sec |be reviewed for lensure that this  levaluation? Himplications.
theréisanced  fhow it meets decision-making |evaluation is ' ‘
expectations)? and possible dore and the
_ |revision? decision is
Review At least annually |Sarah Jorgensen jAccurate
organizational  |organizational presentation or
information, description. program's
service, Review program capabilities,
coordinator's credibility, and
credentials and potential to
job description. advance nursing.
Review survey  |At least annually |Sarah Jorgensen |Consistently
for identify areas and
appropriateness populations that
and ensure will benefit most
survey findings from program
and identified offerings.
needs from
evaluation
summaries used
in program
planning.
| Fairness, equity, |Policy meets At least annually |Sarah Jorgensen |Maintain
and accessibility Jorganization and accessibility and
of program fees. |customer needs. professional
value to all
participants.
Review for At least annually |Sarah Jorgensen |Offer adequate,
accuracy and timely
detail. information
regarding
offenings.
Page 1 of3

CNE/IV Therapy 280



Compliance of |Review policies |At least annually |Sarah Jorgensen |All program
offerings under |and compare to offerings will
| KSBN any updated maintain
requirements KSBN approval and
requirements. compliance
through KSBN.

Fairness and Review At least annually |Sarah Jorgensen |Contact hours

accuracy of agendas/pilot will reflect

contact hours for [test results to accurate

each offering.  |verify contact engagement and

hours awarded. learning
Review potential.
documentation
of partial credit.
Engagement and |Review rosters  [Atleast annually |Sarah Jorgensen |Ensure validity
completion of  |and certificates. of all participants
Compare to any and provide
offerings. updated KSBN proof of
requirements. completion to
participants.

Veracity and Review At least annually |Sarah Jorgensen |Provide

accuracy of certificates for validation of

certificates given faccuracy. CNE hours to

upon completion |Compare to any participants to
of all program  jupdated KSBN use for purposes
|offerings. requirements. such as
Ensure relicensure
continued ability requirements.
of online
platform to
provide
certificates.

Correct time, Audit contents  |At least annually [Sarah Jorgensen [All records will
ecurity, and of files for remain
onfidentiality of fcompliance with confidential and

record retention fcurrnet KSBN secure for at least

and storage. requirements. a two-year ‘
period.

Consistency of |Review At least annually [Sarah Jorgensen [Program will
rogram procedures for have seamless,
oordination and [changes reported consistent
dministration.  |to KSBN. program

coordination and |
administration. |
Page 2 of 3

CNE/IV Therapy 281



Availability of  {Review total At least annually |Sarah Jorgensen |Provide data on
necessary data to |program an annual basis
maintain evaluation. to validate and
program Prepare annual recommend
relevance and report for improvements
compliance with [KSBN. for program.
KSBN.
Participant Review total At least annually |Sarah Jorgensen |Customer
satisfaction, program satisfaction
service to higher |evaluation and remains high.
learning, and compate to Participants
improvement to {KSBN report tangible
nursing practice. |requirements. results in nursing
practice.
Page 3 of 3

CNE/IV Therapy 282



Title:
Presenter:
Date:

Attendance Roster

SEJ Eﬁzé;flgrises

Epigerietic Lesgership

Contact Hours: 1.0

Participant Name

RN or LPN License Number  Email Address

Contact Hours

. Awarded |

CNE Provider:
CNE Program Coordinator:
CNE Provider #:

SEJ Enterprises, PO Box 279, Brewster, KS 67732
Sarah E. Jorgensen - MSN, MS, RN
XXXXXXX

CNE/IV Therapy 283




) | [Course name

SEJ Entefﬁrises - Line 2]

This certifies that

[First name, Last name/

has attended [course name], earning a total of

i

[#] contact hours.

Date of completion

SEJ Enterprises is accredited as a provider of continuing nursing education by the
Kansas State Board of Nursing.

CNE Provider #: [XXXXX]

SEJ Enterprises
PO Box 279, Brewster, KS 67732

CNE/IV - Therapy 284



Course Evaluation

Course Title:

Instructor:

Date of course:

SEJ Enterprises

Epigenetic Leadirship

This course evaluation will take approximately five minutes. Please reflect on your experience in this course and with this instructor.

Responses are anonymous. All feedback and honesty are appreciated.

Question

The instructor clearly explained the course materials, process, and agenda.

Agree

Somewhat
_agree

Neutral

Somewhat
disagree

Disagreel N/A I

The instructor was able to provide clarity if | was confused about something.

The instructor managed time and pace of the course efficiently.

The instructor sparked interest in this topic.

The instructor demonstrated a genuine interest in student learning.

The instructor demonstrated in-depth knowledge of the subject.

The methods of evaluation (quizzes, knowledge checks) were fair and
consistent throughout the course.

The instructional materials (videos, graphics, audio, etc.) increased my
knowledge in this subject matter.

The course environment felt welcoming to questions or comments from
students.

This course challenged me to think in new ways.

| would recommend this course to others.

I can immediately apply new knowledge to my professional and/or personal
life.

Comments:

CNE/IV Therapy 285




SEJ Enterprises
Instructor’s Education & Experience

Sarah E. Jorgensen — MISN, MS, RN

Education:

e Bachelor of Science in Nursing — Fort Hays State University, 2001
* Master of Science in Organizational Leadership — Colorado State University Global, 2017
s Master of Science in Nursing Administration and Leadership — Capella University, 2020

Experience:

e Emergency RN since 2001

e Clinical nurse educator, emergency department
e (Clinical nurse coordinator

e Nurse manager

e Adjunct instructor for nursing

¢ Online instructor for allied health

e (Clinical nursing instructor

e Nursing faculty

e Entrepreneur

L
£ i \‘
77

SEJ Entéfbrises

Epigenetic Leadership

CNE/IV Therapy 286




SEJ Enterprises

Epigenetic Leadership
Introduction to Epigenetic Leadership

Summary of Planning

Presenter: Sarah E. Jorgensen — MSN, MS, RN

Suggested prerequisite: Genetic Effects of Chronic Stress

Summary of Planning

Much is being learned about how chronic stress can modify the methylation of DNA, resulting in disease
phenotypes (Vidrascu, et al, 2019). As a leader, whether your priority is the organizational bottom line
or the humans in your charge, your leadership style has implications for both humans and organizations.
The ripple effect of your leadership has the potential to lead to epigenetic changes in others if that
leadership cultivates an environment of stress for others. Once you learn about some disease processes
that can be linked to stress-induced epigenetic changes, you can consider how to use your leadership to
define what you care about, understand stressors experienced by others, and change systems and issues
that contribute to work-related stress. According to the Oncology Nursing Society, nurses are described
as feeling frustrated, exhausted, betrayed, undervalued, stressed, and more (Stone, 2022). This
program, Introduction to Epigenetic Leadership, has been developed in response to this identified need
to adapt leadership to support nurses, keep them in the profession, and maintain safe practices for
patients.

CNE/IV Therapy 287



LEADERSHIP

A stress-filled, toxic culture extends beyOnd»;ghe workplace. Come
find out the potential effects of'a leader's words, actions, and
behaviors on others' health, aswell as.workplace culture.
“ W s
SEJ Enterprises is approved as a provider of é‘o%tinuingﬁ“ﬁaﬁrsing education by the
Kansas State Board of Nursing. %Qis course offering is approved for
_. contact hours
applicable for RN%; LPN, or LMHT re-licensure.
Kansas State Board of Nursing Provider Number:

SATURDAY, NOV. 19, 2022
1:36-3:30“‘191\/! |
1 hour presentationf&ﬂ hour (optional) Q&A

$35/person

Location:
Hays Recreation Center Student discount!

Marcy Allenbaugh Conference Room If you're a previous
+Sarah E. Jorgensen 1105 Canterbury Dr., Hays, KS student of mine,

, SN. MS N contact me fora
MSN, R For more information coupon code.

and to sign up: DT TR S, o6




Epigenetic Leadership

Objectives

» Examine the relationship between your words, actions, and behaviors and potential epigenetic
effects on others.

* Explain the potential implications of your leadership styles.

* Integrate evidence-based self-awareness, self-regulation, and self-transcendence into your
leadership.

* Discuss the importance of prioritizing self-leadership before leadership of others.
* Adjust your leadership styles to encompass an epigenetic mindset.

* Re-imagine nursing leadership that considers long-term ripple effects.

s SN
[N )
Y.

SEJ Ehtéi;brises

Epigenetic Leadership

CNE/IV Therapy 289




SEJ Enterprises

Epigenetic Leadership
Introduction to Epigenetic Leadership

Outline

1. Introduction
2. Science overview
a. Review of sympathetic nervous system
b. Genetics vs. epigenetics
i. Intergenerational effects
c. Stress-induced epigenetic evidence
i. Immune, nervous, endocrine effects
3. Epigenetic mindset
a. All nurses are leaders
b. Ripple effect of leadership style on individuals and organizations
c. Leadership of self before leadership of others
i. Mindfulness model (begin with self)
1. Self-awareness
2. Self-regulation
3. Self-transcendence
d. Leadership of others (transcending self)
i. Intentvs. impact
ii. Trauma-informed communication
iii. Trusting others’ accounts of stress
v. Managing/leading considerations
4. Going forward
a. Define what you care about
b. Continual work on self to understand impact on others
c. Understand implications of a leader’s words, actions, and behaviors
5. Summary

CNE/IV Therapy 290



INTRODUCTION TO
EPIGENETIC LEADERSHIP
AGENDA

Date: [Date]

Time: [Time]

Instructor: [Instructor]

Course delivery: In-person, live

1:00-1:05 Welcome Instructor
1:05-1:10 Class introductions Participants
1:10-2:00 Lecture, in-class participation/engagement Instructor
2:00-3:00 (Optional) - open Q&A Instructor

SEJ Enterprlses

Epigenetic Leadership

www.sejorgensen.com




Epigenetic Leadership

Bibliography

Al Aboud, N. M., Tupper, C., & Jialal, I. (2021). Genetics, epigenetic mechanism. StatPearls. Retrieved
from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK532999/

Arena, M. J. & Uhl-Bien, M. (2016). Complexity leadership theory: Shifting from human capital to social
capital. People & Strategy, 39, 2.

Bowers, M., Yehuda, R. Intergenerational Transmission of Stress in Humans. Neuropsychopharmacology
41, 232-244 (2016).

Center on the Developing Child (2022). What is epigenetics? And how does it relate to child
development? Retrieved from https://developingchild.harvard.edu/resources/what-is-epigenetics-and-
how-does-it-relate-to-child-development/

Daskalakis, N.P., Xu, C., Bader, H.N. et al. (2021). Intergenerational trauma is associated with expression
alterations in glucocorticoid- and immune-related genes. Neuropsychopharmacology. 46, 763-773.

Doss, W. (2019). Hidden date in ‘junk DNA’ may predict cancer. Northwestern Medicine: Feinberg School
of Medicine. Retrieved from https://news.feinberg.northwestern.edu/2019/12/02/hidden-data-in-junk-
dna-may-predict-cancer/

Fahy, G. M., Brooke, R. T., Watson, J. P., et al. (2019). Reversal of epigenetic aging and immunosenescent
trends in humans. Aging Cell.

Future of Nursing 2020-2030, The. Charting a Path to Achieve Health Equity. Washington, DC: The
National Academies Press.

Johns Hopkins Medicine (n.d.). What is epigenetics? Retrieved from
https://www.hopkinsmedicine.org/kimmel cancer center/research/cancer_biology/epigenetics/

Kislik, L. (2022). How to be a compassionate manager in a heartless organization. Harvard Business
Review. Retrieved from https://hbr.org/2022/05/how-to-be-a-compassionate-manager-in-a-heartless-
organization?utm medium=email&utm source=newsletter monthly&utm campaign=leadership not a
ctivesubs&deliveryName=DM191357

Lorber, M., Treven, S., & Mumel, D. (2016). The examination of factors relating to the leadership style of
nursing leaders in hospitals. Our Economy, 62, 1.

Simpson, D.J., & Chandra, T. (2021). Epigenetic age prediction. Aging Cell, 20, e13452.

i"(
[T

SEJ Enté‘rprises

Epigenetic Leadership

CNE/IV Therapy 292




SEJ Enterprises

Epigenetic Leadership

Genetic Effects of Chronic Stress

Summary of Planning
Presenter: Sarah E. Jorgensen — MSN, MS, RN

Summary of Planning

The stresses that are inherent to the human condition, as well as extrinsic stressors, have the potential
to modify DNA methylation, which can either activate or de-activate gene expression (Vidrascu, et al,
2019). This ON/OFF function of certain genes can manifest in disease. Humans have a biologic stress
response meant to keep us safe, but when that stress response becomes chronically activated, the
ripple effect is more than an activation of the sympathetic nervous system. Chronic stress comes in
many forms, including social determinants of health, adverse childhood experiences, relationships, and
even the workplace. The Future of Nursing 2020-2030 Report directly calls upon the nursing profession
to address many of these causes of stress in our patient populations and within the profession itself.
This program, Genetic Effects of Chronic Stress, has been developed in response to this identified need.

CNE/IV Therapy 293



Epigenetic Leadership

SEJ Enterprises is approved as a provider o
Kansas State Board of Nursing. -
__conta
applicable for RN, LPN

Sarah E. Jorgensen
MSN, MS, RN

places, social
rigger a ripple
rations.

Student discount!
If you're a previous
student of mine,
contact me fora
coupon code.

rapy 294




Genetic Effects of Chronic Stress

Objectives

« Identify documented sources of chronic stress in yourself, coworkers, and patients.
»  Explain implications for yourself, patients, and coworkers of a chronic-stress environment.

«  Utilize evidence-based definition of mindfulness to consider individual contributions to chronic
stress in the workplace.

*  Re-imagine nursing practice with an intergenerational epigenetic mindset.

» Adopt an epigenetic mindset when interacting with patients, coworkers, and others.

4 { »/ ")\\ \l
A 4o}

SEJ Enterprises

Epigenetic Leadership

CNE/IV Therapy 295




SEJ Enterprises

Epigenetic Leadership

Genetic Effects of Chronic Stress

Outline

1. Introduction
2. Science overview
a. Review of sympathetic nervous system
b. Genetics vs. epigenetics
c. Stress-induced epigenetic evidence
i. Immune, nervous, endocrine effects
3. How does this affect patients?

a. Types of chronic stress patients experience
b. Considerations of cumulative stress
c. Adopting an equity mindset

i. Review equality vs. equity
d. Adapting your care model
4. How does this affect nurses?
a. Types of chronic stress nurses experience
b. Considerations of cumulative stress
c. Adopting an equity mindset
d. Adapting your self-care
5. Going forward
a. Expectations of yourself
b. Expectations of your leaders
c. Advocacy
i. Consider local workplace
ii. Consider nursing profession at large
6. Summary

CNE/IV Therapy 296



GENETIC EFFECTS
OF CHRONIC STRESS
AGENDA

Date: [Date]

Time: [Time]

Instructor: [Instructor]

Course delivery: Online, asynchronous

- Ty em _ Owner |
2 min Introduction Instructor

3 min Explanation of online course details Instructor

55 min Course participation Student

{ s )

SEJ Enterprlses

Epigenetic-Leadership

www.sejorgensen.com




Genetic Effects of Chronic Stress

Bibliography

Al Aboud, N. M., Tupper, C., & Jialal, I. (2021). Genetics, epigenetic mechanism. StatPearls. Retrieved
from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK532999/

Bowers, M., Yehuda, R. Intergenerational Transmission of Stress in Humans. Neuropsychopharmacology
41, 232-244 (2016).

Center on the Developing Child (2022). What is epigenetics? And how does it relate to child
development? Retrieved from https://developingchild.harvard.edu/resources/what-is-epigenetics-and-
how-does-it-relate-to-child-development/

Daskalakis, N.P., Xu, C., Bader, H.N. et al. (2021). Intergenerational trauma is associated with expression
alterations in glucocorticoid- and immune-related genes. Neuropsychopharmacology. 46, 763—773.

Doss, W. (2019). Hidden date in ‘junk DNA’ may predict cancer. Northwestern Medicine: Feinberg School
of Medicine. Retrieved from https://news.feinberg.northwestern.edu/2019/12/02/hidden-data-in-junk-
dna-may-predict-cancer/

Fahy, G. M., Brooke, R. T., Watson, J. P., et al. (2019). Reversal of epigenetic aging and immunosenescent
trends in humans. Aging Cell.

Future of Nursing 2020-2030, The. Charting a Path to Achieve Health Equity. Washington, DC: The
National Academies Press.

Johns Hopkins Medicine (n.d.). What is epigenetics? Retrieved from
https://www.hopkinsmedicine.org/kimmel cancer center/research/cancer biology/epigenetics/

Simpson, D. I, & Chandra, T. (2021). Epigenetic age prediction. Aging Cell, 20, e13452.

3y
IS 2D

SEJ Enterprises

Epigenetic Leadership

CNE/IV Therapy 298




‘3]
. 23
Moreland, Carol [KSBN] W onditveed

From: Sarah Jorgensen <sarah@sejorgensen.com>

Sent: Friday, December 16, 2022 5:33 PM

To: Moreland, Carol [KSBN]

Subject: Re: Long Term CNE provider application

Attachments: Attendance roster - PDF.pdf; Certificate of Attendance.png; Flyer - Intro to EL.png;

Objectives - Epigenetic Leadership.docx; Agenda - Epigenetic Leadership.docx;
Bibliography - Epigenetic Leadership.docx; Flyer - Genetic effects of chronic stress.png;
Objectives - Genetic Effects of Chronic Stress.docx; Agenda - Genetic Effects of Chronic
Stress.docx; Bibliography - Genetic Effects of Chronic Stress.docx; SEJ education &
experience.docx; Course evaluation - PDF.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click any links or open any attachments unless
you trust the sender and know the content is safe.

Carol,

| believe these are the missing documents for my CNE application. However, | do have a question about the bullet point
3A (A summary of planning). Is this item its own document, or was this meant to be the heading for all these supporting
documents? If it is its own document, can you offer some clarity on what exactly should be included? Thank you so
much. | appreciate your grace in my overlooking these details.

Sarah E. Jorgensen - MSN, MS, RN

www.sejorgensen.com

T =

On Mon, Dec 5, 2022 at 2:13 PM Sarah Jorgensen <sarah@sejorgensen.com> wrote:
Carol,

Thank you for reviewing these materials and for letting me know what's missing. | will submit the required documents
via email within the next two weeks.

Sarah E. Jorgensen - MSN, MS RN

WWW. sejorgensen com

1 CNE/IV Therapy 299



T

On Mon, Nov 21, 2022 at 2:03 PM Moreland, Carol [KSBN] <Carol.Moreland@ks.gov> wrote:

Sarah,

I have reviewed the application you submitted and it is incomplete. It is missing the following information:

1.Template for CE attendance roster
2.Template for certificate of attendance
3.You did not submit the following for two proposed offerings (as per the directions)
a.A summary of planning
b. A copy of the offering announcement or brochure
c.The title and behavioral objectives
d. The offering agenda or, for independent study, pilot test resuits
e.Each instructor’s education and experience
f. A current bibliography
g.The offering evaluation form

You can email all this information to me or you can submit another application that is complete. Itis up to
you. Please review the directions closely so the application is complete. | will not take an incomplete application to
committee and board to review. This will not go until March 2023 because of the date we received it.

Let me know whether you will be resubmitting a complete application or emailing the missing information to
me. Please let me know if you have questions.

Carol Moreland, MSN, RN
Executive Administrator
Kansas State Board of Nursing
900 SW Jackson, Suite 1051

Topeka, KS 66612

2 CNE/IV Therapy 300




785-296-5752

Fax: 785-296-3929

Note: new email address: carol.moreland@ks.gov

The mission of the Board of Nursing is to assure the citizens of Kansas safe and competent practice by
nurses and mental health technicians

If you would like to provide feedback about the customer service you have received, please visit our website
(www.ksbn.org) and complete the short Customer Service Survey located on our home page.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

The information transmitted by this e-mail including any attachments is intended only for the addressee and may
contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any interception, review, retransmission, dissemination, or other use
of, or taking of any action upon this information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited
by law and may subject them to criminal or civil liability.

If you are not the intended recipient, or have received this communication in error, please contact the sender by mail
or by phone at 785-296-5752 and destroy all communication from any computer or network system.

3 CNE/IV Therapy 301




firefox “ ' https://www ksrevisor.org/statutes/chapters/ch65/065_011_0019.html

65-1119. Schools of nursing; approval; approval of providers of continuing education offerings;

application fee; criteria for evaluating out-of-state schools; nationally accredited schools of nursing. (a)

, Application for approval. An approved school of nursing is one which has been approved as such by the board as

Y meeting the standards of this act, and the rules and regulations of the board. An institution desiring to conduct an
approved school of professional or practical nursing shall apply to the board for approval and submit satisfactory
proof that it is prepared to and will maintain the standards and basic professional nursing curriculum or the
required curriculum for practical nursing, as the case may be, as prescribed by this act and by the rules and
regulations of the board. Applications shall be made in writing on forms supplied by the board and shall be
submitted to the board together with the application fee fixed by the board. The approval of a school of nursing
shall not exceed 10 years after the granting of such approval by the board. An institution desiring to continue to
conduct an approved school of professional or practical nursing shall apply to the board for the renewal of
approval and submit satisfactory proof that it will maintain the standards and basic professional nursing
curriculum or the required curriculum for practical nursing, as the case may be, as prescribed by this act and by the
rules and regulations of the board. Applications for renewal of approval shall be made in writing on_ forms
supplied by the board. Each school of nursing shall submit annually to the board an annual fee fixed by the board
by rules and regulations to maintain the approval status.

(b) Schools for professional nurses. To qualify as an approved school for professional nurses, the school must
be conducted in the state of Kansas, and shall apply to the board and submit evidence that: (1) It is prepared to
carry out the professional curriculum as prescribed in the rules and regulations of the board; and (2) it is prepared
to meet such other standards as shall be established by this law and the rules and regulations of the board.

(c) Schools for practical nurses. To qualify as an approved school for practical nurses, the school must be
conducted in the state of Kansas, and shall apply to the board and submit evidence that: (1) It is prepared to carry
out the curriculum as prescribed in the rules and regulations of the board; and (2) it is prepared to meet such other
standards as shall be established by this law and the rules and regulations of the board.

(d) Survey. The board shall prepare and maintain a list of approved schools for both professional and practical
nurses whose graduates, if they have the other necessary qualifications provided in this act, shall be eligible to
apply for a license as a registered professional nurse or as a licensed practical nurse. A survey of the institution or
institutions and of the schools applying for approval shall be made by an authorized employee of the board or
members of the board, who shall submit a written report of the survey to the board. If, in the opinion of the board,
the requirements as prescribed by the board in its rules and regulations for an approved school for professional
nurses or for practical nurses are met, it shall so approve the school as either a school for professional nurses or
practical nurses, as the case may be. The board shall resurvey approved schools on a periodic basis as determined
by rules and regulations. If the board determines that any approved school of nursing is not maintaining the
standards required by this act and by rules and regulations prescribed by the board, notice thereof in writing,
specifying the failures of such school, shall be given immediately to the school. A school which fails to correct
such conditions to the satisfaction of the board within a reasonable time shall be removed from the list of approved
schools of nursing until such time as the school shall comply with the standards. All approved schools shall
maintain accurate and current records showing in full the theoretical and practical courses given to each student.

(e) Providers of continuing nursing education. (1) To qualify as an approved provider of continuing nursing
education offerings, persons, organizations or institutions proposing to provide such continuing nursing education
offerings shall apply to the board for approval and submit evidence that the applicant is prepared to meet the
standards and requirements established by the rules and regula‘nons of the board for such continuing nursing
education offerings. Initial applications shall be made in writing on forms supplied by the board and shall be
submitted to the board together with the application fee fixed by the board.

(2) A long-term provider means a person, organization or institution that is responsible for the development,
administration and evaluation of continuing nursing education programs and offerings. Qualification as a long-
term approved provider of continuing nursing education offerings shall expire five years after the granting of such
approval by the board. An approved long-term provider of continuing nursing education offerings shall submit
annually to the board the annual fee established by rules and regulations, along with an annual report for the
previous fiscal year. Applications for renewal as an approved long-term provider of continuing nursing education
offerings shall be made in writing on forms supplied by the board. '

(3) Qualification as an approved provider of a single continuing nursing education offering, which may be
offered once or multiple times, shall expire two years after the granting of such approval by the board. Approved
single continuing nursing education providers shall not be subject to an annual fee or annual repRElV Therapy 302

[ of 2 2/20/2023, 1:48 PM



lirefox - ) https://www.ksrevisor.org/statutes/chapters/ch65/065_011_0019.htm]l

(4) In accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the board, the board may approve individual
educational offerings for continuing nursing education which shall not be subject to approval under other
subsections of this section.

5, (5) The board shall accept offerings as approved continuing nursing education presented by: Colleges that are

+ approved by a state or the national department of education and providers approved by other state boards of
nursing, the national league for nursing, the national federation of licensed practical nurses, the American nurses
credentialing center or other such national organizations as listed in rules and regulations adopted by the board.

(6) An individual designated by a provider of continuing nursing education offerings as an individual
responsible for CNE who has held this position for the provider at least five years immediately prior to January 1,
1997, shall not be required to have a baccalaureate or higher academic degree in order to be designated by such
provider as the individual responsible for CNE.

() Criteria for evaluating out-of-state schools. For the purpose of determining whether an applicant for
licensure who is a graduate of a school of professional or practical nursing located outside this state meets the
requirements of item (2) of subsection (a) of K.S.A. 65-1115 and amendments thereto or the requirements of item
(2) of subsection (a) of K.S.A. 65-1116 and amendments thereto, as appropriate, the board by rules and regulations
shall establish criteria for determining whether a particular school of professional nursing located outside this state
maintains standards which are at least equal to schools of professional nursing which are approved by the board
and whether a particular school of practical nursing located outside this state maintains standards which are at
least equal to schools of practical nursing which are approved by the board. The board may send a questionnaire
developed by the board to any school of professional or practical nursing located outside this state for which the
board does not have sufficient information to determine whether the school meets the standards established under
this subsection (f). The questionnaire providing the necessary information shall be completed and returned to the
board in order for the school to be considered for approval. The board may contract with investigative agencies,
commissions or consultants to assist the board in obtaining information about schools. In entering such contracts
the authority to approve schools shall remain solely with the board.

(g) The board may accept nationally accredited schools of nursing as defined in rule and regulation.

(1) Schools of nursing which have received accreditation from a board recognized national nursing
accreditation agency shall file evidence of initial accreditation with the board and shall file all reports from the
accrediting agency and any notice of any change in school accreditation status. The board may grant approval
based upon evidence of such accreditation.

(2) Schools of nursing holding approval based upon national accreditation are also responsible for complying
with all other requirements as determined by rules and regulations of the board.

(3) The board may grant approval to a school of nursing with national accreditation for a continuing period
not to exceed 10 years.

History: L. 1949, ch. 331, § 8; L. 1963, ch. 314, § 5; L. 1973, ch. 249, § 2; L. 1978, ch. 240, § 5; L. 1980, ch.
188, § 2; L. 1980, ch. 186, § 2; L. 1981, ch. 244, § 2; L. 1982, ch. 261, § 3; L. 1983, ch. 207, § 3; L. 1983, ch. 206,
§ 9; L. 1983, ch. 206, § 14; L. 1988, ch. 243, § 2; L. 1990, ch. 221, § 4; L. 1997, ch. 146, § 2; L. 2001, ch. 161, §
4; July 1.

CNE/IV Therapy 303

1 of 2 2/20/2023, 1:48 PM




1543 BTUICIALY UL O1atC = 1IN INGEUaLUNS & AP BUSAD BUY PUULLAUUILY PUUD_ R At INTED.QOPA LSS INTUU Lu- LUZ

60-16-102. Scope of practice for licensed practical nurse performing intravenous fluid therapy. (a) A licensed practical nurse under
the supervision-of a registered professional nurse may engage in a limited scope of intravenous fluid treatment, including the following:

(1) Monitoring;

(2) maintaining basic fluids;

(3) discontinuing intravenous flow and an intravenous access device not exceeding three inches in length in peripheral sites only; and
(4) changing dressings for infravenous access devices not exceeding three inches in length in peripheral sites only.

(b) Any licensed practical nurse who has met one of the requirements under K.S.A. 65-1136, and amendments thereto, may perform, in
addition to the functions specified in subsection (a) of this regulation, the following procedures relating to the expanded administration of
intravenous fluid therapy under the supervision of a registered professional nurse: :

(1) Calculating;

(2) adding parenteral solutions to existing patent central and peripheral intravenous access devices or administlration sets;
(3) changing administration sets;

(4) inserting intravenous access devices that meet these conditions:

(A) Do not exceed three inches in length; and

(B) are located in peripheral sites only;'

(5) adding designated premixed medications to existing patent central and peripheral intravenous access devices or admlnlstratlon sets
either by continuous or intermittent methods;

(6) maintaining the patency of central and peripheral intravenous access devices and administration sets with medications or solutions as
allowed by policy of the facility;

(7) changing dressings for central venous access devices;

(8) administering continuous intravenous drip analgesics and antibiotics; and

(9) performing the following procedures in any facility having continuous on-site registered professional nurse supervision:
(A) Admixing intravenous medications; and

(B) administering by direct intravenous push any drug in a drug category that is not specifically listed as a banned drug category in
subsection (¢}, including analgesics, antibiotics, antiemetics, diuretics, and corticosteroids, as allowed by policy of the facility.

(c) A licensed practical nurse shall not perform any of the following:
(1) Administer any of the following by intravenous route:

(A) Blood and blood products, including albumin;

(B) investigational medications;

(C) anesthetics, antianxiety agents, biological therapy, serums, hemostatics, immunosuppressants, muscle relaxants, human plasma
fractions, oxytocics, sedatives, tocolytics, thrombolytics, anticonvulsants, cardiovascular preparations, antineoplastics agents,
hematopoietics, autonomic drugs, and resplratory stimulants;

(D) intravenous fluid therapy in the home health setting, with the exception of the approved scope of practice authorized in subsection (a); or

(E) intravenous fluid therapy to any patient under the age of 12 or any patient weighing less than 80 pounds, with the exception of the
approved scope of practice authorized in subsection (a);

(2) initiate total parenteral nutrition or lipids;

(3) titrate medications;

(4) draw blood from a central intravenous access device;

(5) remove a central intravenous access device or any intravenous access device exceeding three inches in length; or
(6) access implantable ports for any purpose.

(d) Licensed practical nurses qualified by the board before June 1, 2000 may perform those activities listed in subsection (a) and paragraph
(b)(S)}(A) regardless of their intravenous therapy course content on admixing.

(e) This regulation shall limit the scope of practice for each licensed practical nurse only with respect to intravenous fluid therapy and shall
not restrict a licensed practical nurse's authority to care for patients receiving this therapy. (Authorized by and implementing K.S.A. 65-1136;
effective Nov. 21, 1994; amended Dec. 13, 1996; amended June 12, 1998; amended Oct. 29, 1999; amended Jan. 24, 2003; amended May
18, 2012; amended Oct. 18, 2013.)
CNE/IV Therapy 304

AMAIAANT A e




	Draft Minutes-December 13 2022
	IOA Statistical Report
	Accredo Health
	Republic County Hospital
	Kansas Heart Hospital
	Sarah E. Jorgensen
	K.S.A. 65-1119 – Nursing school accreditation
	K.S.A. 60-16-102 – Scope of Practice



